
Board of Examiners Meeting 

May 13, 2014 – Agenda 
Page 1 

 

POST 
 

*** NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING *** 
 

BOARD OF EXAMINERS 
 

 
LOCATION:  Capitol Building 

The Guinn Room 

101 N. Carson Street 

Carson City, Nevada 89701 

 

VIDEOCONFERENCE: Grant Sawyer State Office Building 

    555 E. Washington Avenue, Ste. 5100 

    Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 

      

DATE AND TIME:  May 13, 2014 at 10:00 a.m. 

 
Below is an agenda of all items to be considered.  Action will be taken on items preceded by an asterisk (*).  

Items on the agenda may be taken out of the order presented, items may be combined for consideration by the public 

body, and items may be pulled or removed from the agenda at any time at the discretion of the Chairperson. 

 

AGENDA 

 
 

 

1. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 

*2. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – APPROVAL OF THE APRIL 8, 2014 BOARD 

OF EXAMINERS’ MEETING MINUTES 
 

*3. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION – 

VICTIMS OF CRIME POLICIES 

 
The Board of Examiners (BOE) is the governing authority of the Nevada Victims of Crime 

Program. NRS 217.130 empowers the BOE to adopt rules and regulations while NRS 217.150 

requires the BOE to formulate standards for the payment of compensation to victims of crime. 

The current policies were last updated and adopted by the Board in August 2009. The current 

revisions are largely clarification and minor changes to existing policies.  



Board of Examiners Meeting 

May 13, 2014 – Agenda 
Page 2 

 

 

*4. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – NOTIFICATION OF INTENT TO FILE FOR A 

GRANT OR LOAN FROM THE DISASTER RELIEF ACCOUNT WHICH 

REQUIRES AN EXTENSION TO COLLECT DATA 

 
A. Department of Public Safety – Division of Emergency Management – Clark 

County Flood 

 

Pursuant to NRS 353.2755, the Division of Emergency Management on behalf of Clark County 

is requesting additional time to the original extension due to the time needed to identify all costs 

associated with the flood damage repairs and to identify potential insurance claim offsets to the 

various departments and agencies with damage to structures and facilities. Clark County 

respectfully requests a fourth and final extension of time from June 30, 2014 to              

September 28, 2014. 

 

*5. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – STATE ADMINISTRATIVE MANUAL  
 

The State Administrative Manual (SAM) is being submitted to the Board of Examiner for 

approval of additions and revisions in the following chapters:  

 

 

A. Department of Administration – Administrative Services Division  

 

1. 0324 – Independent Contract Review Procedure 

2. 0328 – Lease Contracts 

3. 0336 – Amendments to Contracts 

 

B. Department of Administration – Enterprise Information Technology 

Services 

 

1. 1616 – Cellular Telephones/Tablets/Mobile Devices 

 

C. Department of Administration – Fleet Services Division  

 

1. 0204 – Board of Examiners’ Travel Policy 

2. 0218 – Use of Rental Cars  

3. 0504 – Insurance and Self-Insurance 

4.   1303 – Authorized Operators of State Vehicles 

5.   1304 – Complaint Procedure 

6.   1316 – Records 

7. 1400 – Table of Contents 

8. 1402 – Purpose 

9. 1404 – Policy 

10. 1405 – Services Provided 

11. 1406 – Division Charges 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

May 13, 2014 – Agenda 
Page 3 

 

12. 1407 – Vehicle Utilization Guidelines 

13. 1408 – Facility Locations and Hours of Operation 

14. 1409 – Authorized Operators of Fleet Services Vehicles 

15. 1410 – How to Request a Vehicle 

16. 1412 – Care and Maintenance of State Vehicles 

17. 1414 – Insurance and Accident Reporting 

18. 1415 – Driver Responsibility 

19. 1416 – Fuel 

20. 1417 – Long Term Assigned Vehicle Request (Deleted) 

21. 1418 – Energy Management   

22. 2904 – What to Do in the Event of an Accident or Potential Claim 

 

 

*6. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – AUTHORIZATION TO CONTRACT WITH A 

FORMER EMPLOYEE 

 
 

A. Department of Education 

 

Pursuant to NRS 333.705, the Department of Education seeks approval to continue a contract 

with WestEd, who now employs a former employee of the department, Rorie Fitzpatrick.  The 

former employee may be involved in future projects that impact the department.   

 

B. Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation 

 

Pursuant to NRS 333.705, the Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation, 

Rehabilitation Division, Bureau of Disability Adjudication (BDA), seeks approval to continue to 

contract with Avysion Healthcare Services, who is anticipated to employ an employee acting as 

Chief Medical Consultant of the agency who has announced his retirement, Dr. Jaime Wheeler.  

The current employee has 24 years of experience as BDA’s medical policy expert and 30 years 

of experience as a medical consultant.  BDA is requesting to employ this individual part time 

through Avysion Healthcare Services, up to 20 hours per week, for up to two years subsequent to 

his retirement in order to continue to train and mentor other BDA physicians.   

 

C. Department of Health and Human Services – Director’s Office  

 

Pursuant to NRS 333.705, the Department of Health and Human Services requests department-

wide blanket pre-approval authority to contract with persons who are current or former graduate 

assistants or student workers of the Nevada System of Higher Education. 

 

D. Department of Health and Human Services – Director’s Office 

 

Pursuant to NRS 333.705, the DHHS Director’s Office requests authority to contract with a 

former employee, Jennifer White, to serve as a statewide 2-1-1 Coordinator. 

 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

May 13, 2014 – Agenda 
Page 4 

 

E. Department of Health and Human Services – Division of Health Care 

Financing and Policy (DHCFP) 

 

Pursuant to NRS 333.705, the DHCFP requests authority to contract with Dr. David Fiore, who 

is currently employed at the University of Nevada, Reno. DHCFP would like to retain his 

services through Avysion to ensure adequate staffing for Medicaid eligibility determinations 

during work load fluctuations.  

 

F. Department of Health and Human Services – Division of Public and 

Behavioral Health  

 

Pursuant to NRS 333.705, the Department of Health and Human Services requests retroactive 

authority for contracts with persons from November 2012 through March 2014, who are current 

or former graduate assistants or student workers of the Nevada System of Higher Education. 

 

 

*7. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – REQUEST FOR GENERAL FUND 

ALLOCATION FROM THE INTERIM FINANCE COMMITTEE 

CONTINGENCY FUND 

 
A. Judicial Branch – Judicial Retirement System - $24,241 

Pursuant to NRS 353.268, the Judicial Branch, Judicial Retirement System State Share, requests 

an allocation of $24,241 from the Interim Finance Committee Contingency Fund to fund a 

projected shortfall in the account supporting the unfunded actuarial accrued liability payments.  

   

 

B. Judicial Branch – Judicial State Elected Officials - $110,000  
 

Pursuant to NRS 353.268, the Judicial Branch, Judicial State Elected Officials, requests an 

allocation of $110,000 from the Interim Finance Committee Contingency Fund to fund 

unbudgeted Medicare costs. 

 

 

C. Judicial Discipline Commission - $29,527 

 

Pursuant to NRS 353.268, the Judicial Discipline Commission requests an allocation of $29,527 

from the Interim Finance Committee Contingency Fund to fund an operating shortfall due to 

unanticipated commission expenses.   

 

D. Department of Taxation - $86,066 

 

Pursuant to NRS 353.268, Department of Taxation, requests an allocation of $86,066 from the 

Interim Finance Committee Contingency Fund to fund the excise tax imposed from SB374, 

Section 24.4 in the 77th Legislative Session, relating to the sale of marijuana, edible marijuana 

products and marijuana-infused products.  



Board of Examiners Meeting 

May 13, 2014 – Agenda 
Page 5 

 

 

E. Department of Motor Vehicles – Division of Motor Vehicle Information 

Technology - $140,256 

 

Pursuant to NRS 353.268, the Department of Motor Vehicles – Division of Motor Vehicle 

Information Technology is requesting an allocation of $140,256 from the Interim Finance 

Committee Contingency Fund Highway Fund to contract with a project manager to write the 

Request for Proposal for the departments System Modernization project. 

 

 

*8. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – SALARY ADJUSTMENTS 

 
A. Distribution of Salary Adjustments to Departments, Commissions and 

Agencies, pursuant to Assembly Bill 511, Sections 6, 7, and 8 of the 2013 

Legislative Session. 

 

The 2013 Legislature appropriated funds from the State General Fund and State Highway Fund 

for the purpose of meeting any deficiencies which may be created between the appropriated 

money of the respective departments, commissions, and agencies of the State of Nevada, as fixed 

by the 2013 Session of the Nevada Legislature, and the actual salary of each state employee. 

Pursuant to this legislation, the following amounts from the State General Fund and State 

Highway Fund are recommended: 

 

BA# 

 

BUDGET ACCOUNT NAME 

GENERAL 

FUND  

HIGHWAY 

FUND  

4713 Nevada Highway Patrol  $352,732 

3650 Military $18,713  

2941 

Division of Museums & History - 

Administration $2,719  

2870 

Division of Museums & History – 

Nevada Historical Society $2,531  

 Total $23,963 $352,732 

 

 

*9. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – AUTHORIZATION TO APPROVE A 

PROVIDER AGREEMENT 

 

 
A. Department of Health and Human Services – Division of Public and 

Behavioral Health 

 

The Division of Public and Behavioral Health is requesting Board of Examiners’ approval for 

amendments made to their Supported Living Arrangement (SLA) provider agreement template.  

These changes will formalize the process for standardization, monitoring, oversight and 

accountability of the SLA residential provider service delivery system. 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

May 13, 2014 – Agenda 
Page 6 

 

 

 

 

B. Department of Health and Human Services – Division of Child and Family 

Services 

 

The Division of Child and Family Services is requesting Board of Examiners’ approval of a 

Provider Agreement template contract for services of independent contractor for Specialized 

Foster Care Services. 

 

 

*10. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – VICTIMS OF CRIME FY 2014 3
RD

 QUARTER 

AND 4
TH

 QUARTER RECOMMENDATION 

 
NRS 217.260 requires the Board of Examiners to estimate available revenue and anticipated 

claim costs each quarter. If revenues are insufficient to pay anticipated claims, the statute directs 

a proportional decrease in claim payments.  

 

The 3
rd

 Quarter fiscal year 2014 Victims of Crime Program report states all approved claims 

were resolved totaling $20,306,735.23, with $4,698,362.36 paid out of the Victims of Crime 

Program account and $15,608,372.87 resolved through vendor fee adjustments and cost 

containment policies.   

 

The program anticipates future reserves at $8.1 million to help defray crime victims’ medical 

costs. 

 

Based on the projections, the Victims of Crime Program recommends paying Priority One, Two 

and Three claims at 100% of the approved amount for the 4
th

 quarter of FY 2014. 

 

 

*11. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – STATE VEHICLE PURCHASE 
 

Pursuant to NRS 334.010, no automobile may be purchased by any department, office, 

bureau, officer or employee of the State without prior written consent of the State Board 

of Examiners. 

 

AGENCY NAME 
# OF 

VEHICLES 

NOT TO 

EXCEED: 

Department of Administration – Fleet 

Services Division    1 $26,550 

                              Total: 1 $26,550 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

May 13, 2014 – Agenda 
Page 7 

 

 

 

*12. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – LEASES 

 

 
BOE # 

 

LESSEE 

 

LESSOR 

 

AMOUNT 

1. 

Department of Health and Human 

Services – Aging & Disability 

Services – Early Intervention Services 

(Ely)   

O’Flaherty Rentals, LLC 

$56,435 

Lease 

Description: 
This is an extension of an existing lease with an addition of 360 sq. ft., which has been negotiated to house 

the Department of Health and Human Services – Aging & Disability Services – Early Intervention 

Services.  
Term of Lease: 06/01/2014 – 05/31/2019 

 

2. 

Department of Health and Human 

Services – Division of Welfare and 

Supportive Services   (Las Vegas)     

City of Las Vegas 

$1,861,870 

Lease 

Description: 
This is an extension of an existing lease, which has been negotiated to house the Department of Health and 

Human Services – Division of Welfare and Supportive Services on West Owens Avenue. 
Term of Lease: 06/01/2014 – 05/31/2019 

 

3. 

Department of Public Safety – Nevada 

Highway Patrol (Hawthorne)  

Wood, Nathan & Yuko 
$56,760 

Lease 

Description: 
This is an extension of an existing lease, which has been negotiated to house the Department of Public 

Safety – Nevada Highway Patrol.  
Term of Lease: 06/01/2014 – 05/31/2020 

 

4. 

Department of Public Safety – Nevada 

Highway Patrol (Eureka)  

Eureka County 
$11,248 

Lease 

Description: 
This is a lease which has been negotiated to house the Department of Public Safety – Nevada Highway 

Patrol.  
Term of Lease: 06/01/2014 – 06/30/2017 

 

5. 
Department of Wildlife (Eureka) Eureka County $20,720 

Lease 

Description: 
This is a lease which has been negotiated to house the Department of Wildlife. 

Term of Lease: 06/01/2014 – 06/30/2017 
 

 

 

*13. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – CONTRACTS 

 

 

BOE 

# 

DEPT 

# 
STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR EMPLOYEES 

1. 

030 
ATTORNEY GENERAL'S 

OFFICE - CONSUMER 

ADVOCATE 

TECHNICAL 

ASSOCIATES, INC. 

OTHER: 

REGULATORY 

ASSESSMENTS  

$199,400 PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICE 

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract that provides ongoing expert witness litigation support for financing dockets related to utility company 

resource acquisition plans and cost recovery. It includes, but is not limited to, utility integrated resource plans, energy supply 

plans, purchase gas adjustments, and renewable portfolio standards dockets before the Public Utilities Commission of Nevada, 

any board, commission, legislature, or court with jurisdiction over Nevada's regulated utilities.  

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 05/17/2018 Contract # 15468 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

May 13, 2014 – Agenda 
Page 8 

 

 

BOE 

# 

DEPT 

# 
STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR EMPLOYEES 

2. 

030 

ATTORNEY GENERAL'S 

OFFICE  

BINGHAM 

MCCUTCHEN, LLP. 

OTHER: 

STATUTORY 

CONTINGENCY 

FUND 

$1,125,000 PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICE 

Contract 

Description: 

This is the second amendment to the original contract, which continues ongoing legal services in the defense of a lawsuit filed 

against the State of Nevada/Department of Health and Human Services.  This amendment increases the maximum amount from 

$388,000 to $1,513,000 because the services required of this vendor in the defense of this lawsuit have exceeded what was 

originally requested. 

Term of Contract: 10/09/2013 - 06/30/2015 Contract # 15155 

3. 

050 
TREASURER'S OFFICE - 

BOND INTEREST & 

REDEMPTION 

HAWKINS 

DELAFIELD & 

WOOD, LLP. 

BONDS $2,500,000 PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICE 

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide bond counsel and/or disclosure counsel services for the issuance of State securities. The State 

uses separate law firms to act as bond counsel and disclosure counsel for each issuance of bonds/notes or other securities of the 

State. The State selected a pool of legal firms to provide bond and disclosure counsel services. Hawkins Delafield & Wood, LLP. 

is one of the firms selected. The firms selected as bond and/or disclosure counsel are not guaranteed to be used as counsel on any 

specific State debt issuance; therefore the state does not guarantee any firm a minimum amount of work or compensation. 

Compensation for securities issuance work, other than special projects, is dependent upon the successful closing of an issuance. 

Term of Contract: 06/01/2014 - 06/30/2018 Contract # 15549 

4. 

050 
TREASURER'S OFFICE - 

BOND INTEREST & 

REDEMPTION 

MCKENNA LONG 

& ALDRIDGE, LLP. 

BONDS $2,500,000 PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICE 

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide bond counsel and/or disclosure counsel services for the issuance of State securities. The State 

uses separate law firms to act as bond counsel and disclosure counsel for each issuance of bonds/notes or other securities of the 

State. The State selected a pool of legal firms to provide bond and disclosure counsel services. McKenna Long & Aldridge, LLP. 

is one of the firms selected. The firms selected as bond and/or disclosure counsel are not guaranteed to be used as counsel on any 

specific State debt issuance; therefore the state does not guarantee any firm a minimum amount of work or compensation. 

Compensation for securities issuance work, other than special projects, is dependent upon the successful closing of an issuance. 

Term of Contract: 06/01/2014 - 06/30/2018 Contract # 15543 

5. 

050 
TREASURER'S OFFICE - 

BOND INTEREST & 

REDEMPTION 

ORRICK, 

HERRINGTON & 

SUTCLIFFE, LLP. 

BONDS $2,500,000 PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICE 

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide bond counsel and/or disclosure counsel services for the issuance of State securities. The State 

uses separate law firms to act as bond counsel and disclosure counsel for each issuance of bonds/notes or other securities of the 

State. The State selected a pool of legal firms to provide bond and disclosure counsel services. Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe, 

LLP. is one of the firms selected. The firms selected as bond and/or disclosure counsel are not guaranteed to be used as counsel on 

any specific State debt issuance; therefore the state does not guarantee any firm a minimum amount of work or compensation. 

Compensation for securities issuance work, other than special projects, is dependent upon the successful closing of an issuance. 

Term of Contract: 06/01/2014 - 06/30/2018 Contract # 15542 

6. 

050 
TREASURER'S OFFICE - 

BOND INTEREST & 

REDEMPTION 

SHERMAN & 

HOWARD, LLC. 

BONDS $2,500,000 PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICE 

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide bond counsel and/or disclosure counsel services for the issuance of State securities. The State 

uses separate law firms to act as bond counsel and disclosure counsel for each issuance of bonds/notes or other securities of the 

State. The State selected a pool of legal firms to provide bond and disclosure counsel services. Sherman and Howard is one of the 

firms selected. The firms selected as bond and/or disclosure counsel are not guaranteed to be used as counsel on any specific State 

debt issuance; therefore the state does not guarantee any firm a minimum amount of work or compensation. Compensation for 

securities issuance work, other than special projects, is dependent upon the successful closing of an issuance. 

Term of Contract: 06/01/2014 - 06/30/2018 Contract # 15541 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

May 13, 2014 – Agenda 
Page 9 

 

 

BOE 

# 

DEPT 

# 
STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR EMPLOYEES 

7. 

050 
TREASURER'S OFFICE - 

BOND INTEREST & 

REDEMPTION 

STRADLING 

YOCCA CARLSON 

& RAUTH 

BONDS $2,500,000 PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICE  

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide bond counsel and/or disclosure counsel services for the issuance of State securities. The State 

uses separate law firms to act as bond counsel and disclosure counsel for each issuance of bonds/notes or other securities of the 

State. The State selected a pool of legal firms to provide bond and disclosure counsel services. Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth 

is one of the firms selected. The firms selected as bond and/or disclosure counsel are not guaranteed to be used as counsel on any 

specific State debt issuance; therefore the state does not guarantee any firm a minimum amount of work or compensation. 

Compensation for securities issuance work, other than special projects, is dependent upon the successful closing of an issuance. 

Term of Contract: 06/01/2014 - 06/30/2018 Contract # 15544 

8. 

070 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION - 

DIVISION OF HUMAN 

RESOURCE 

MANAGEMENT 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION 

– HEARINGS 

DIVISION  

OTHER: 

PERSONNEL 

ASSESSMENTS 

$200,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original contract, which provides ongoing Appeals Officers to hear Executive Branch employee 

"Whistle Blower" complaints and appeals regarding suspensions, demotions, involuntary transfers, and terminations.  This 

amendment extends the termination date from June 30, 2014 to June 30, 2016 and increases the maximum amount from $100,000 

to $300,000 due to the continued need for these services.  This amendment also revises the scope of work to include additional 

clarification.  

Term of Contract: 02/12/2013 - 06/30/2016 Contract # 14024 

9. 

082 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION – 

STATE PUBLIC WORKS 

DIVISION –  BUILDINGS 

AND GROUNDS  

TRUGREEN 

LANDCARE OF 

NEVADA 

OTHER: BUILDING 

RENT INCOME 

FEES 

$187,096   

Contract 

Description: 

This is the second amendment to the original contract, which continues ongoing landscaping services to the Department of Motor 

Vehicles, 8250 Flamingo; Department of Motor Vehicles, 4110 Donovan; Department of Health and Human Services, 620 & 628 

Belrose; and the Sahara Complex, which consists of the Department of Motor Vehicles, 2701 E. Sahara; Bradley Building, 2501 

E. Sahara; and Public Works Division-Buildings and Grounds Section, 2621 E. Sahara, Las Vegas, Nevada. This amendment 

provides $10,000 for extra services at the above mentioned buildings and various State buildings in the Las Vegas area as needed, 

requested and approved by the Buildings and Grounds Section designee.  This amendment extends the termination date from June 

30, 2014 to December 31, 2015, and increases the contract amount from $187,096 to $374,192, to continue ongoing needed 

services, which includes a corresponding increase to the extra services amount from $10,000 to $20,000. 

Term of Contract: 01/01/2012 - 12/31/2015 Contract # 12806 

10. 

082 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION – 

STATE PUBLIC WORKS 

DIVISION –  BUILDINGS 

AND GROUNDS  

VARSITY 

CONTRACTORS, 

INC. 

OTHER: BUILDING 

RENT INCOME 

FEES 

$69,333   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract that provides ongoing janitorial services, including semi-annual hard floor & carpet cleanings, and annual 

blind & window cleanings, for the Department of Wildlife and the Department of Agriculture in Las Vegas. 

Term of Contract: 06/01/2014 - 05/31/2018 Contract # 15430 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

May 13, 2014 – Agenda 
Page 10 

 

 

BOE 

# 

DEPT 

# 
STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR EMPLOYEES 

11. 

082 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION -

STATE PUBLIC WORKS 

DIVISION - 

CORRECTIONS CIPS 

NON-EXEC 

AUSENCO PSI, 

LLC. 

BONDS 2% OTHER: 

TRANSFER FROM 

TREASURER - 

REALLOCATED 

BOND AUTHORITY 

98%  

$302,858 PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICE 

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide professional architectural/engineering services to upgrade door control panels at the Lovelock 

Correctional Center phase I; Project No. 13-M06; Contract No. 95758. 

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 06/30/2014 Contract # 15525 

12. 

082 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION -

STATE PUBLIC WORKS 

DIVISION - MILITARY 

2005 CIP - VET HOME-

NON-EXEC 

Q&D 

CONSTRUCTION, 

INC. 

GENERAL 28% 

BONDS 38% 

OTHER: TRANSFER 

FROM TREASURER 

- REALLOCATED 

BOND AUTHORITY 

34%  

$87,103 PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICE 

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide owner Construction Manager at Risk pre-construction services for advanced planning - Northern 

Nevada Veterans Home, Project No. 13-P07; Contract No. 98981. 

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 06/30/2018 Contract # 15532 

13. 

082 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION -

STATE PUBLIC WORKS 

DIVISION - MILITARY 

2005 CIP - VET HOME-

NON-EXEC 

VAN WOERT 

BIGOTTI 

ARCHITECTS 

GENERAL 28% 

BONDS 38% 

OTHER: TRANSFER 

FROM TREASURER 

- REALLOCATED 

BOND AUTHORITY 

34%  

$120,000 PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICE 

Contract 

Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original contract, which provides advanced planning for the Northern Nevada Veterans Home; 

Project No. 13-P07; Contract No. 86741. This amendment increases the maximum amount from $1,840,000 to $1,960,000 to 

provide specialty consulting for programming and staffing needs for the planned home in accordance with Federal Community 

Living Center design requirements for federally approved veterans homes. 

Term of Contract: 11/12/2013 - 06/30/2017 Contract # 15022 

14. 

082 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION - 

STATE PUBLIC WORKS 

DIVISION - DMV/PS CIP 

MAINTENANCE 

PROJECTS-NON-EXEC 

CORE 

CONSTRUCTION 

SERVICES OF 

NEVADA, INC. dba 

CORE 

CONSTRUCTION  

HIGHWAY 87.5% 

OTHER: TRANSFER 

FROM DMV 12.5%  

$90,440 PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICE 

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide Construction Manager at Risk pre-construction services for planning for the Sahara Department 

of Motor Vehicles replacement building and planning for the Las Vegas Metro building upgrades; Projects 13-P01 and 13-P02; 

Contract No. 98979. 

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 06/30/2018 Contract # 15530 

15. 

082 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION  - 

STATE PUBLIC WORKS 

DIVISION  

PURCELL KROB 

ELECTRICAL 

PROF. 

OTHER: AGENCY-

FUNDED CIP 

$85,000 PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICE 

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide professional architectural/engineering services for the Department of Corrections site 

assessments to assess the feasibility of the department’s proposed kiosk installation project; Project No. 14-A024; Contract No. 

96993. 

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 06/30/2018 Contract # 15527 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

May 13, 2014 – Agenda 
Page 11 

 

BOE 

# 

DEPT 

# 
STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR EMPLOYEES 

16. 

101 
COMMISSION ON 

TOURISM - TOURISM 

DEVELOPMENT FUND 

TNS US, LLC. OTHER: LODGING 

TAX 

$124,500   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract that continues an ongoing domestic visitor profile study allowing the Nevada Commission on Tourism 

(NCOT) to obtain travel related information from recent Nevada visitors from all 50 US states as identified in a syndicated 

(multiple partner states) tracking study.  NCOT will obtain additional information on cities and attractions visited, activities 

experienced, along with corresponding expenditures by category (i.e. transportation within the state, gaming, lodging, food and 

beverage) and competitive analysis of Nevada data against other states' data sets. 

Term of Contract: 07/01/2014 - 06/30/2016 Contract # 15508 

17. 

102 

GOVERNOR’S OFFICE 

OF ECONOMIC 

DEVELOPMENT 

KPS 3, INC. GENERAL 93% 

OTHER: 

INTERAGENCY 

TRANSFER FROM 

DETR 7%  

$70,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is the third amendment to the original contract, which provides full-service marketing of Nevada and the Governor's Office 

of Economic Development (GOED) to local, national, and international decision-makers. Additionally, the agency handles 

strategy, branding, advertising, web design/development, collateral, and other marketing duties as assigned.  The amendment 

increases the contract value by $70,000 from $293,000 to $363,000 to allow for additional funding GOED received to market the 

new Emerging Small Business Program and meet other marketing needs through the end of FY14. 

Term of Contract: 09/11/2012 - 06/30/2016 Contract # 13753 

18. 

180 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION - 

ENTERPRISE 

INFORMATION 

TECHNOLOGY 

SERVICES - DATA 

COMMUNICATIONS & 

NETWORK 

ENGINEERING 

AT&T OTHER: REVENUE $200,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide internet service access to the division of Enterprise Information Technology Services (EITS) for 

Northern Nevada EITS customers utilizing AT&T bandwidth services.   

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 05/18/2018 Contract # 15518 

19. 

240 
OFFICE OF VETERANS 

SERVICES - VETERANS' 

HOME ACCOUNT 

WESTCARE 

MANAGEMENT, 

INC. 

OTHER: 50% 

PRIVATE FUNDS, 

50% FEDERAL  

$240,000 PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICE 

Contract 

Description: 

This is the third amendment to the original contract, which provides ongoing Medicare and Medicaid accounting, consulting, and 

billing assistance to the Nevada State Veterans Home.  This amendment extends the termination date from May 31, 2014 to     

May 31, 2016 and increases the maximum amount from $255,000 to $495,000 due to the continued need for these services.  

Term of Contract: 05/08/2012 - 05/31/2016 Contract # 13280 

20. 

300 

DEPARTMENT OF 

EDUCATION - 

DISCRETIONARY 

GRANTS  

CENTER FOR 

INNOVATIVE 

TECHNOLOGY 

FEDERAL $2,150,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide and procure, develop/customize and implement a Nevada Statewide Longitudinal Data System 

with the capacity to create unique state personal identifier for all students, teachers and other people who enter K-12, higher 

education institutions and/or the work force in Nevada. 

Term of Contract: 05/14/2014 - 06/30/2015 Contract # 15462 

21. 
315 

STATE PUBLIC 

CHARTER SCHOOL 

AUTHORITY 

BRUSTEIN & 

MANASEVIT, 

PLLC. 

FEDERAL $130,600 PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICE 

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide legal advice, analysis, mock audits and training on federal education grants compliance. 

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 06/30/2016 Contract # 15514 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

May 13, 2014 – Agenda 
Page 12 

 

 

BOE 

# 

DEPT 

# 
STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR EMPLOYEES 

22. 

332 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION - 

LIBRARY AND 

ARCHIVES - NEVADA 

STATE LIBRARY-CLAN 

CARSON CITY 

LIBRARY 

FEE: MEMBER FEES $341,175   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new cooperative revenue agreement, which continues to maintain a regional network of libraries (per NRS 379.147-

379.150) known as CLAN (Cooperative Libraries Automated Network) through joint agreement for the improvement of library 

services and the sharing of resources. 

Term of Contract: 07/01/2014 - 06/30/2019 Contract # 15424 

23. 

332 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION - 

LIBRARY AND 

ARCHIVES - NEVADA 

STATE LIBRARY-CLAN 

HUMBOLDT 

COUNTY 

FEE: MEMBER FEES $212,805   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new cooperative revenue agreement, which continues to maintain a regional network of libraries (per NRS 379.147-

379.150) known as CLAN (Cooperative Libraries Automated Network) through joint agreement for the improvement of library 

services and the sharing of resources. 

Term of Contract: 07/01/2014 - 06/30/2019 Contract # 15473 

24. 

332 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION - 

LIBRARY AND 

ARCHIVES - NEVADA 

STATE LIBRARY-CLAN 

NEVADA 

SUPREME COURT 

LIBRARY 

FEE: MEMBER FEES $73,575   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new cooperative revenue agreement, which continues to maintain a regional network of libraries (per NRS 379.147-

379.150) known as CLAN (Cooperative Libraries Automated Network) through joint agreement for the improvement of library 

services and the sharing of resources. 

Term of Contract: 07/01/2014 - 06/30/2019 Contract # 15425 

25. 

403 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND HUMAN 

SERVICES - HEALTH 

CARE FINANCING & 

POLICY - 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL 

TRANSFER PROGRAM 

CARSON CITY 

SCHOOL DISTRICT 

OTHER: IGT FROM 

CITY FOR STATE 

SHARE 

$919,252   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new revenue contract that is ongoing and provides for the receipt of non-federal share for school based Medicaid 

services, medical screening, and diagnostic services for children who are Nevada Medicaid/Checkup eligible. This contract allows 

the Carson City School District to make payment of the state share of school based services to the division by intergovernmental 

transfers. 

Term of Contract: 07/01/2014 - 06/30/2018 Contract # 15382 

26. 

403 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND HUMAN 

SERVICES - HEALTH 

CARE FINANCING & 

POLICY - 

ADMINISTRATION 

DIVISION OF 

CHILD AND 

FAMILY SERVICES  

FEDERAL $5,221,716   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new ongoing interlocal agreement to provide the Division of Child and Family Services the federal share of costs 

associated with the Medicaid administrative activities such as outreach, utilization review and referral services.  

Term of Contract: 07/01/2014 - 06/30/2018 Contract # 15410 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

May 13, 2014 – Agenda 
Page 13 

 

 

BOE 

# 

DEPT 

# 
STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR EMPLOYEES 

27. 

406 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND HUMAN 

SERVICES - PUBLIC 

AND BEHAVIORAL 

HEALTH - MATERNAL 

CHILD HEALTH 

SERVICES 

THE CHILDRENS 

CABINET, INC. 

FEDERAL $263,469   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to expand evidence-base home visiting in the states at risk rural communities. This contract allows the 

division to expand the home visiting and Home Instruction for Parents of Preschool Youngsters program into rural at risk 

communities and target low income families with pregnant women and children up to five years old. 

Term of Contract: 05/13/2014 - 09/30/2016 Contract # 15482 

28. 

406 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND HUMAN 

SERVICES - PUBLIC 

AND BEHAVIORAL 

HEALTH - MATERNAL 

CHILD HEALTH 

SERVICES 

HEAD START OF 

NORTHEASTERN 

NEVADA 

FEDERAL $201,427   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to expand evidence-base home visiting in the states at risk rural communities. This contract allows the 

division to expand the home visiting and Early Head Start programs into rural at risk communities and target low income families 

with pregnant women and children up to five years old. 

Term of Contract: 05/13/2014 - 09/30/2016 Contract # 15483 

29. 

407 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND HUMAN 

SERVICES - WELFARE 

AND SUPPORT 

SERVICES - 

ADMINISTRATION 

PUBLIC 

CONSULTING 

GROUP, INC. 

GENERAL 4% 

FEDERAL 96%  

$600,869   

Contract 

Description: 

This is the third amendment to the original contract, which provides independent verification and validation services related to the 

design, development and implementation of the Health Care Reform Eligibility Engine. These services include planning and 

administration, verification, validation, and quality assurance activities related to the Eligibility Engine system requirements, 

computing platform, technical requirements, and security standards and requirements. This amendment increases the maximum 

amount from $1,868,300 to $2,469,168.76, revises Attachment AA - Deliverable Payment Schedule, revises the consideration 

language, and extends the termination date from June 30, 2014 to December 31, 2014 due to additional time needed to complete 

the requirements. 

Term of Contract: 07/01/2012 - 12/31/2014 Contract # 13346 

30. 

407 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND HUMAN 

SERVICES - WELFARE 

AND SUPPORT 

SERVICES - 

ADMINISTRATION 

VIATRON 

SYSTEMS, INC. 

GENERAL 4% 

FEDERAL 96%  

$327,600   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide services for electronic scanning; digitizing and indexing all existing Medicaid paper case file 

(jacket) contents. Existing Medicaid case jackets must be imaged in a timely manner in order to prepare for the wave of new 

applicants and ongoing re-determination processing that will occur by using new Affordable Care Act rules and functionality. 

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 06/30/2015 Contract # 15353 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

May 13, 2014 – Agenda 
Page 14 

 

 

BOE 

# 

DEPT 

# 
STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR EMPLOYEES 

31. 

407 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND HUMAN 

SERVICES - WELFARE 

AND SUPPORT 

SERVICES - CHILD 

SUPPORT 

ENFORCEMENT 

PROGRAM 

ELKO COUNTY  OTHER: STATE 

SHARE OF 

COLLECTIONS 34% 

FEDERAL 66%  

$306,454   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new interlocal agreement, which continues ongoing services to provide hearing master and court services for the Child 

Support Enforcement Program for the purpose of enforcing support obligations owed by non-custodial parents to their children, 

locating non-custodial parents, establishing paternity, obtaining financial and medical support, and adjusting support orders. 

Term of Contract: 07/01/2014 - 06/30/2018 Contract # 15390 

32. 

407 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND HUMAN 

SERVICES - WELFARE 

AND SUPPORT 

SERVICES - CHILD 

SUPPORT 

ENFORCEMENT 

PROGRAM 

WHITE PINE 

COUNTY 

OTHER: STATE 

SHARE OF 

COLLECTIONS 34% 

FEDERAL 66%  

$82,115   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new interlocal agreement, which continues ongoing services to provide hearing master and court services for the Child 

Support Enforcement Program for the purpose of enforcing support obligations owed by non-custodial parents to their children, 

locating non-custodial parents, establishing paternity, obtaining financial and medical support, and adjusting support orders. 

Term of Contract: 07/01/2014 - 06/30/2018 Contract # 15396 

33. 

409 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND HUMAN 

SERVICES - CHILD AND 

FAMILY SERVICES - 

YOUTH PAROLE 

SERVICES 

CORNERSTONE 

PROGRAMS 

GENERAL 50% 

OTHER: COUNTY 

ASSESMENTS 50%  

$466,000 SOLE SOURCE 

Contract 

Description: 

This is the second amendment to the original contract, which continues ongoing delivery of required services and programs 

conducive to the rehabilitation needs of either male or female juvenile offenders while maintaining sight and sound separation 

from adult offender populations.  This amendment extends the termination date from June 30, 2014, to January 31, 2016, and 

increases the maximum amount from $199,260 to $665,260 due to the continued need for these services. 

Term of Contract: 01/10/2012 - 01/31/2016 Contract # 12860 

34. 

409 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND HUMAN 

SERVICES - CHILD AND 

FAMILY SERVICES - 

SOUTHERN NEVADA 

CHILD & ADOLESCENT 

SERVICES 

ALLPRO 

SERVICES, LLC. 

GENERAL 40.9% 

OTHER: RENTAL 

INCOME 2.5% 

FEDERAL 56.6%  

$80,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide exterior and interior painting services on state owned buildings located at 6171 W. Charleston 

Blvd in Las Vegas. 

Term of Contract: 07/01/2014 - 06/30/2018 Contract # 15417 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

May 13, 2014 – Agenda 
Page 15 

 

 

BOE 

# 

DEPT 

# 
STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR EMPLOYEES 

35. 

440 

DEPARTMENT OF 

CORRECTIONS - WARM 

SPRINGS 

CORRECTIONAL 

CENTER 

TRIANGLE 

BUILDERS OF 

NEVADA, INC. 

GENERAL $79,848   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide for the removal and replacement of tile flooring in the dining hall at Warm Springs Correctional 

Center. 

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 06/30/2015 Contract # 15342 

36. 

580 

PUBLIC UTILITIES 

COMMISSION 

SOLIX, INC. OTHER: FEES FOR 

SERVICES ARE 

PAID DIRECTLY 

FROM THE 

NEVADA 

UNIVERSAL 

SERVICE FUND. 

$97,053   

Contract 

Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original contract, which continues ongoing fiscal agent duties required by NAC 704.6804 

through NAC 704.68056 to administer the Nevada Universal Service Fund. This amendment extends the termination date from 

June 30, 2014 to June 30, 2016 and increases the maximum amount from $193,000 to $290,053 due to the continued need for 

these services. 

Term of Contract: 07/01/2010 - 06/30/2016 Contract # 10742 

37. 

655 
DEPARTMENT OF 

PUBLIC SAFETY - 

GENERAL SERVICES 

GOSERCO, INC. OTHER: COST 

ALLOCATION 

$262,638   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide hardware, software, installation, ongoing maintenance and 24/7 support for the provision of a 

Dispatch Digital Recording System installed at dispatch centers located in Carson City, Las Vegas and Elko, Nevada. 

Term of Contract: 05/13/2014 - 06/30/2018 Contract # 15478 

38. 

705 

DEPARTMENT OF 

CONSERVATION & 

NATURAL RESOURCES - 

WATER RESOURCES – 

LAS VEGAS BASIN 

WATER DISTRICT-NON-

EXEC. 

GNOMON, INC. FEDERAL $295,670   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide a system of quality assurance/quality control review for a mapping project of the Truckee Carson 

Irrigation District's (TCID) Newlands Water Rights Project.  This would include the delineation of line work and the accounting 

of water right issued contracts to land holders within the TCID.  The contractor will maintain the website for quality control 

review and create a Geographic Information System and tabular editing interfaces for use by the State Engineer's Office staff.   

Term of Contract: 05/14/2014 - 05/31/2019 Contract # 15517 

39. 
742 

DEPARTMENT OF 

BUSINESS AND 

INDUSTRY - 

INDUSTRIAL 

RELATIONS 

MILLIMAN, INC. OTHER: WORKERS' 

COMPENSATION 

AND SAFETY FUND 

ASSESSMENT 

$234,200   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide information regarding fees and charges to develop a new Nevada Medical Fee Schedule. 

Term of Contract: 05/13/2014 - 01/30/2015 Contract # 15536 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

May 13, 2014 – Agenda 
Page 16 

 

 

BOE 

# 

DEPT 

# 
STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR EMPLOYEES 

40. 

810 
DEPARTMENT OF 

MOTOR VEHICLES - 

CENTRAL SERVICES 

INTELLECTUAL 

TECHNOLOGY, 

INC. 

OTHER: FEE 

FUNDED 

$189,876   

Contract 

Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original contract to provide an automated method of collecting electronic data, printing secure 

and non-secure documents, finishing mail preparation, transportation to the U.S. Postal Service for the same day mail entry and 

tracking of the documents for Off-Highway Vehicles.  This amendment extends the termination date from May 31, 2014 to     

May 31, 2016 and increases the maximum amount from $1,110,176 to $1,300,052.27 to cover the two year extension.  

Term of Contract: 06/05/2012 - 05/31/2014 Contract # 13298 

41. 

810 
DEPARTMENT OF 

MOTOR VEHICLES  

RENO SALVAGE HIGHWAY $600,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is the second amendment to the original contract, which provides for the removal and destruction of scrap metal aluminum 

and steel material from the department's License Plate Manufacturing Plant inside the Nevada State Prison.  The vendor will 

destroy all material by high tonnage compression, sell material on the scrap metal market and remit proceeds to the department for 

deposit into Motor Vehicle Fund.  This amendment extends the termination date from June 30, 2014 to June 30, 2018 and 

increases the maximum amount from $300,000 to $900,000 to cover the extension.  

Term of Contract: 05/13/2008 - 06/30/2018 Contract # CONV5322 

42. 

901 

DEPARTMENT OF 

EMPLOYMENT, 

TRAINING & 

REHABILITATION - 

REHABILITATION - 

BLIND BUSINESS 

ENTERPRISE PROGRAM 

SKY 

CONSTRUCTION 

AND 

ENGINEERING 

OTHER: BUSINESS 

SET ASIDE 

$100,525   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide for the remodel of the Arizona Look-out Gift Shop.  Work shall include, but not be limited to, 

painting and associated preparation and clean-up; installation of sliding interior doors; removal and replacement of ceiling tiles;  

removal and replacement of interior counters; installation of shelving, hooks and baskets; removal and replacement of interior 

carpet; removal and replacement of ceiling mounted lighting fixtures and relocating other existing ceiling lighting fixtures.   Work 

is anticipated to be completed prior to the 2014 Memorial Day weekend. 

Term of Contract: 05/13/2014 - 06/30/2014 Contract # 15477 

43. 

901 

DEPARTMENT OF 

EMPLOYMENT, 

TRAINING & 

REHABILITATION - 

REHABILITATION - 

DISABILITY 

ADJUDICATION 

JERROLD M. 

SHERMAN,  MD, 

INC. 

FEDERAL $1,200,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new provider agreement that is ongoing and provides consultative exams to assist the Bureau of Disability Adjudication 

in the disability determination process. 

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 05/13/2018 Contract # 15566 

44. 

901 

DEPARTMENT OF 

EMPLOYMENT, 

TRAINING & 

REHABILITATION - 

REHABILITATION - 

DISABILITY 

ADJUDICATION 

MEDICAL 

SUPPORT LOS 

ANGELES 

FEDERAL $2,100,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new provider agreement that is ongoing and provides consultative exams to assist the Bureau of Disability Adjudication 

in the disability determination process. 

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 05/13/2018 Contract # 15565 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

May 13, 2014 – Agenda 
Page 17 

 

 

BOE 

# 

DEPT 

# 
STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR EMPLOYEES 

45. 

902 

DEPARTMENT OF 

EMPLOYMENT, 

TRAINING & 

REHABILITATION - 

EMPLOYMENT 

SECURITY - SPECIAL 

FUND 

CAPGEMINI 

GOVERNMENT 

SOLUTIONS 

FEDERAL $200,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is the fifth amendment to the original contract, which continues ongoing provisions for an automated computer system to 

process wage, contributions, benefits, appeals, and other information related to Nevada's statewide Unemployment Insurance (UI) 

programs, replacing the department's UI Legacy applications. This amendment extends the termination date from June 30, 2014 to 

May 31, 2016 and increases the maximum amount from $32,384,375 to $32,584,375 due to change order 130411-49 

implementing the U. S. Department of Labor FY2013 UI Sequestration process, which increases the contract amount by 

$200,000, and change order 130604-11 separating the final Release 2 implementation into Benefits, Appeals and Contributions 

sub-releases, which extends the contractual termination date to accommodate a 12 month warranty period.  

Term of Contract: 02/09/2010 - 05/31/2016 Contract # 10484 

46. 

908 

DEPARTMENT OF 

EMPLOYMENT, 

TRAINING & 

REHABILITATION - 

ADMINISTRATIVE 

SERVICES - RESEARCH 

& ANALYSIS 

OREGON 

UNIVERSITY 

SYSTEM DBA 

UNIVERSITY OF 

OREGON 

OTHER: STATE 

CAREER 

ENHANCEMENT 

FUNDS 

$68,400 EXEMPT 

Contract 

Description: 

This is the second amendment to the original interlocal agreement that continues ongoing licensing for the Career Information 

System for utilization in the State of Nevada.  This amendment extends the termination date from June 30, 2014 to June 30, 2015 

and increases the maximum amount from $137,200 to $205,600 due to the extended term of the licensing agreement.  

Term of Contract: 07/01/2012 - 06/30/2015 Contract # 13447 

47. 

950 

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES 

BENEFITS PROGRAM 

HOMETOWN 

HEALTH 

PROVIDERS 

OTHER: 63% STATE 

SUBSIDY/ 37% 

PREMIUM 

REVENUE 

$8,033,380   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract that continues the ongoing service of providing an in state (inside Nevada) Preferred Provider Organization 

medical network for participants of the Public Employees' Benefits Program. 

Term of Contract: 07/01/2014 - 06/30/2019 Contract # 15510 

48. 

950 

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES 

BENEFITS PROGRAM 

STANDARD 

INSURANCE 

COMPANY 

OTHER: PAID VIA 

AUTOMATIC 

PAYROLL 

DEDUCTIONS 

FROM 

PARTICIPANTS 

WHO CHOOSE TO 

ENROLL FOR THIS 

BENEFIT 

$22,500,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract that continues ongoing Voluntary Group Life Insurance for participants of the Public Employees Benefit 

Program who choose to enroll in this benefit. 

Term of Contract: 07/01/2014 - 06/30/2020 Contract # 15503 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

May 13, 2014 – Agenda 
Page 18 

 

 

BOE 

# 

DEPT 

# 
STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR EMPLOYEES 

49. 

950 

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES 

BENEFITS PROGRAM 

STANDARD 

INSURANCE 

COMPANY 

OTHER: PAID VIA 

AUTOMATIC 

PAYROLL 

DEDUCTIONS 

FROM 

PARTICIPANTS 

WHO CHOOSE TO 

ENROLL FOR THIS 

BENEFIT 

$2,000,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract that continues ongoing Voluntary Short Term Disability Insurance for participants of the Public Employees 

Benefit Program who choose to enroll in this benefit. 

Term of Contract: 07/01/2014 - 06/30/2020 Contract # 15504 

 

 

 

*14. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – MASTER SERVICE AGREEMENTS 

 

BOE 

# 

DEPT 

# 
STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR EMPLOYEES 

MSA 

1. 

MSA 
VARIOUS STATE 

AGENCIES 

GOLDEN GATE 

PETROLEUM OF 

NEVADA, LLC. 

OTHER: VARIOUS $5,000,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract for bulk fuel purchase and delivery services statewide on an as needed basis for state-owned tanks. 

Term of Contract: 05/13/2014 - 01/31/2016 Contract # 15513 

MSA 

2. 

MSA 
VARIOUS STATE 

AGENCIES 

IPC (USA) FUEL 

DISTRIBUTION 

OTHER: VARIOUS $5,000,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract for bulk fuel purchase and delivery services statewide on an as needed basis for state-owned tanks. 

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 01/31/2016 Contract # 15349 

MSA 

3. 

MSA 
VARIOUS STATE 

AGENCIES 

INTER-STATE OIL 

COMPANY 

OTHER: VARIOUS $5,000,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract for bulk fuel purchase and delivery services statewide on an as needed basis for state-owned tanks. 

Term of Contract: 05/13/2014 - 01/31/2016 Contract # 15520 

MSA 

4. 

MSA 
VARIOUS STATE 

AGENCIES 

RADCO 

COMMUNICATIONS, 

LLC. 

OTHER: VARIOUS $150,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is the third amendment to the original contract to provide communication site parts and services including general 

maintenance on an as needed basis.  This amendment increases the maximum amount from $600,000 to $750,000 based on usage. 

Term of Contract: 04/12/2011 - 04/12/2015 Contract # 11974 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

May 13, 2014 – Agenda 
Page 19 

 

15.      INFORMATIONAL ITEM  

 
Pursuant to AB 41 of the 2013 Legislative Session, the Clerk of the Board may approve 

all contract transactions for amounts less than $50,000. Per direction from the August 13, 

2013 meeting of the Board of Examiners, the Board wished to receive an informational 

item listing all approvals applicable to the new threshold ($10,000 - $49,999). Below is a 

list of all applicable approvals for contracts and amendments approved from              

April 1, 2014 through April 30, 2014. 

 

CONTRACT 

# 

STATE AGENCY  CONTRACTOR 
CONTRACT/ 

AMENDMENT  
AMOUNT 

15363 Department of Health and 

Human Services – Public and 

Behavioral Health  

Nye Communities 

Coalition, Inc. 

Contract $10,549 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract to sustain and support diabetes self-management (DSME) programs in Nye, Esmeralda and Lincoln 

Counties. 

15509 Department of Administration 

– State Public Works Division 

Rounds Engineering, Ltd. 

Dba CR Engineering 

Contract $15,000 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract to provide professional architectural/engineering services for the United States Property and Fiscal Office 

Boiler Replacement; Project No. 14-A013-14; Contract No. 97005. 

15511 Department of Conservation 

and Natural Resources – State 

Parks Division 

Impact Construction Contract $19,480 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract to provide sand removal of approximately 6000 cubic yards and reseal asphalt at the Lahontan State 

Recreational Area - Beach 3 day use area. 

15505 Department of Conservation 

and Natural Resources – State 

Parks Division 

Brad Leonard Painting Contract $17,008 

Contract Description: This is a new contract to provide repair and painting on Valley of Fire State Park structures. 

15444 Department of Training, 

Rehabilitation and 

Employment – Employment 

Security Division  

Curtis Meyer dba Superior 

Janitorial Services 

Contract $23,880 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract that continues ongoing janitorial services for the Elko Job Connect office located at 172 6th Street, Elko, 

NV 89801. 

15474 Department of Administration 

– Hearings and Appeals 

Division 

Olivia Rienshagen-

Hernandez 

Contract $24,999 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract which provides for Spanish interpretation services during Administrative hearings, required by NRS 645B, 

to non-English speaking injured workers so they are appropriately represented at appeal hearings. 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

May 13, 2014 – Agenda 
Page 20 

 

 

CONTRACT 

# 

STATE AGENCY  CONTRACTOR 
CONTRACT/ 

AMENDMENT  
AMOUNT 

15524 Board of Accountancy Kaempfer, Crowell, 

Renshaw, Gronauer & 

Fiorentino 

Contract $47,250 

Contract Description: 

This is a new contract to provide government affairs assistance to the Nevada State Board of Accountancy.  This government 

affairs support will provide the Nevada State Board of Accountancy with assistance in preparing, planning and responding to 

legislative issues brought forth concerning Nevada Certified Public Accountants and Nevada citizens.  In addition the contractor 

will provide professional assistance to the Nevada State Board of Accountancy during the statute and regulation drafting process 

when responding to statute changes, regulation changes and public protection issues.  The skill and expertise provided by the 

contractor will ensure the Nevada State Board of Accountancy protects the public by actively participating and responding to each 

legislative issue in a proficient and productive manner. 

15433 Department of Conservation 

and Natural Resources – 

Forestry Division  

Wayne Weaver Contract $24,000 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract to provide ongoing routine maintenance of the water cooling and heating system as the Sierra Front 

Interagency Dispatch Center. 

15522 Department of Administration –

State Public Works Division  

URS Corporation Contract $20,960 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract to provide professional architectural/engineering services to recondition existing water tanks, Phase I 

(Indian Springs Prison complex); Project No. 13-M42; Contract No. 95780. 

15507 Department of Health and 

Human Services – Department 

of Child and Family Services  

Watertech, Inc. Contract $19,905 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract that continues ongoing water treatment maintenance for the two chillers located on State owned property at 

6171 W Charleston Blvd in Las Vegas. 

15506 Department of Health and 

Human Services – Department 

of Child and Family Services 

Stephen Galloway Contract $43,200 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract that continues ongoing psychological consultation and assessment evaluations for youth located at Nevada 

Youth Training Center. 

15537 Department of Administration –

Nevada State Library & 

Archives – CLAN  

Lincoln County Contract $18,550 

Contract Description: 

This is a new cooperative revenue agreement, which continues to maintain a regional network of libraries (per NRS 379.147-

379.150) known as CLAN (Cooperative Libraries Automated Network) through joint agreement for the improvement of library 

services and the sharing of resources. 

15384 Department of Agriculture San Joaquin Chemicals, 

Inc. 

Contract $22,642 

Contract Description: 

This is new contract to provide inspection services for the department's cooling tower.  Cooling towers must be inspected for 

scale, corrosion and fouling and serviced as needed to bring it back into compliance.  The contract will test the water to determine 

if additional special chemicals are needed to bring back into code. 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

May 13, 2014 – Agenda 
Page 21 

 

 

CONTRACT 

# 

STATE AGENCY  CONTRACTOR 
CONTRACT/ 

AMENDMENT  
AMOUNT 

15515 Department of Training, 

Rehabilitation and Employment 

– Rehabilitation Division 

Cheryl Abbott Contract $27,000 

Contract Description: 

This is a new contract to provide an independent monitor to monitor the effectiveness of the Rehabilitation Services 

Administration Independent Living (RSA/IL) grant administration.  The grant is administered under the auspices of the Aging and 

Disability Services Division (ADSD).  The goals of the monitoring activities are to gauge customer satisfaction, measure the 

impact of the services on the ability of the individuals with disabilities to attain or retain independent living and to verify the 

expenditures were appropriately administered.  The review is designed to meet the need to assure quality services are provided.  

The vendor shall be paid at the completion of each monitoring period's interviews and the acceptance of the final report by the 

Division. 

15427 Department of Agriculture Life Technologies 

Corporation dba Applied 

Biosystems/Invitrogen  

Contract $36,207 

Contract Description: 

This is a new contract to provide certification and full-service maintenance for the Lifetech 7500 Real Time PCR (polymerase 

chain reaction) system and the Lifetech 7500 FAST Real Time PCR system in the Animal Disease and Food Safety Laboratory 

that can do real time animal testing.  Annual maintenance contracts for analytical equipment are required to achieve and maintain 

IOS17025 (International Organization for Standardization) certification. Laboratories use IOS17025 to implement a quality 

system aimed at improving their ability to consistently produce valid results.  The quality assurance programs in diagnostic 

laboratories have to meet this international standard in order to generate legally defensible results.   

15429 Department of Administration – 

Fleet Services Division 

Ideco NV, Inc. Contract $10,000 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract to provide repair, maintenance and certification of gasoline and diesel fuel dispenser equipment such as fuel 

tanks, fuel pumps, and fuel monitoring equipment and fuel dispensers in the Las Vegas area. 

15512 Attorney General’s Office William N. Morrison, Inc. Contract $10,000 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract to provide expert witness services for an accident reconstruction in the defense of a lawsuit filed against the 

State of Nevada. 

15496 Attorney General’s Office White Pine County 

District Attorney 

Contract $25,000 

Contract Description: 
This is a new revenue contract to provide prosecution services on behalf of the Office of the District Attorney, White Pine 

County. 

15476 Department of Employment, 

Training and Rehabilitation –

Rehabilitation Division  

Department of 

Administration 

Contract $20,000 

Contract Description: 

This is a new intrastate interlocal contract that continues on-going services to provide neutral, knowledgeable, and experienced 

attorney Hearing Officer services for hearings as requested; have attorney Hearing Officers attend training offered by the 

Rehabilitation Division or other appropriate entities; have the Chief Hearing Officer assign fair hearings to the appropriate 

attorney Hearing Officer; take and preserve a record of the fair hearing proceedings including providing for audio recordings; as 

needed, prepare a record of the proceedings and transmit it to the applicable court jurisdiction within the time frame established 

by NRS 233B.131(1), or other time frame established by law; and promptly forward any request for a certified court reporter to 

the department. 

13387 Department of Administration –

State Public Works Division  

Roseville Termite & Pest 

Control 

Amend #1 $17,000 

Contract Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original new contract, which provides ongoing pest control services, exterior and interior, on an 

as-needed basis for various state buildings in the Carson City and Reno area, upon the request and approval of a Buildings and 

Grounds designee.  This amendment increases the maximum amount from $20,000 to $37,000 due to an increased need for these 

services. 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

May 13, 2014 – Agenda 
Page 22 

 

 

CONTRACT 

# 

STATE AGENCY  CONTRACTOR 
CONTRACT/ 

AMENDMENT  
AMOUNT 

15540 Department of Conservation 

and Natural Resources 

Department of Interiors 

dba Bureau of Land 

Management 

Contract $14,748 

Contract Description: 

This is a new interlocal agreement to conduct an environmental site assessment to provide State Parks and State Lands necessary 

information required to acquire title to the federal land, designated in the Lincoln County and White Pine County Bills to transfer 

to Kershaw Ryan, Cathedral Gorge, Beaver Dam and Ward Charcoal Ovens State Parks. 

15554 Department of Administration –

State Public Works Division 

Coda Architecture Contract $12,600 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract to provide professional architectural/engineering services to rehabilitate the historic building (Old Las 

Vegas Mormon Fort Park); Project No. 13-M53; Contract No. 95800. 

14243 Department of Employment, 

Training and Rehabilitation –

Rehabilitation Division  

Naval Supply Center – 

San Diego Code 200  

Amend #4 $3,965.17 

Contract Description: 

This is the fourth amendment to the original contract to provide full food service support at the Naval Air Station in Fallon, 

Nevada. This amendment increases the maximum amount from $1,084,743.12 to $1,088,708.29 due to the need for emergency 

food services provided as a result of a plane crash at the Fallon Naval Air Base. 

10876 Department of Employment, 

Training and Rehabilitation –

Employment Security Division  

Las Vegas Interpreters 

Connection, LLC. 

Amend #5 $20,000 

Contract Description: 

This is the fifth amendment to the original contract, which continues ongoing English/Spanish interpretation services at 

Unemployment Insurance hearings and other meetings where interpreters need to be fluent in both languages and the 

interpretation must be on a word-for-word basis for clients. This amendment increases the maximum amount from $185,000 to 

$205,000 due to a continued need for these services. 

14896 Department of Administration – 

Enterprise Information 

Technology Services  

Mentor Services 

Corporation 

Amend #1 $18,000 

Contract Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original contract, which provides Introduction to Removable Media Manager and Hardware 

Management Console Operation training in Carson City, Nevada.  This amendment extends the termination date from          

March 31, 2014 to March 31, 2016, and increases the maximum amount from $12,000 to $30,000 due to continued need for 

training. 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

May 13, 2014 – Agenda 
Page 23 

 

 

 16.     INFORMATIONAL ITEM  

 
A. Department of Conservation and Natural Resources – Division of State 

Lands    

 

Pursuant to NRS Chapter 111, Statutes of Nevada, 1989, at page 263, the Division of State Lands 

is required to provide the Board of Examiners quarterly reports regarding lands or interests in 

lands transferred, sold, exchanged, or leased under the Tahoe Basin Act program.   

 

Pursuant to Chapter 355, Statues of Nevada, 1993, at page 1153, the Division of State Lands is 

required to report quarterly on the status of real property or interests in real property transferred 

under the Lake Tahoe Mitigation Program. This submittal reports on program activities for the 

fiscal quarter ending March 31, 2014 (reference NRS 321.5954). 

 
Brief description 

 

       1989 Tahoe Basin Act 

 

 The agency reports there were no transfers of lands or interests in lands during the 

quarter.   

 

 On March 26, 2014 the Nevada Division of State Lands held a public auction where a 

Residential Development Right associated with a Tahoe Basin Act parcel was made 

available for sale.  That offering resulted in the sale of the Development Right for 

$15,100.  Upon the closing of escrow, those proceeds will be deposited into the 

appropriate budget account, and the proceeds will be used to support continued forest 

health and fuels management projects in the basin. 

 

 Lake Tahoe Mitigation Program 

 

 The agency reports there were no transfers of lands or interests in lands during the 

quarter. 

  

 The agency reports there were no acquisitions of lands or interests in lands during the 

quarter. 

 

 

17.     INFORMATIONAL ITEM  

 
A. Silver State Health Insurance Exchange 

 

Update from Deloitte Consulting, LLP on its assessment of the Silver State Health Insurance 

Exchange Business Operating System functionality. 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

May 13, 2014 – Agenda 
Page 24 

 

 

18. BOARD MEMBERS’ COMMENTS/PUBLIC COMMENTS 

  

 

*19. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – ADJOURNMENT 
 

 

 

 

Notice of this meeting was posted in the following locations:   

Blasdel Building, 209 E. Musser St., Carson City, NV 

Capitol Building, 101 N. Carson St., Carson City, NV 

Legislative Building, 401 N. Carson St., Carson City, NV 

Nevada State Library and Archives, 100 Stewart Street, Carson City, NV 

 

 

Notice of this meeting was emailed for posting to the following location: 

Capitol Police, Grant Sawyer State Office Building, 555 E. Washington Ave, Las Vegas, NV  

Brad Carson bcarson@dps.state.nv.us   

 

Notice of this meeting was posted on the following website: 

http://budget.nv.gov/Meetings  

 

Any questions regarding the agenda or supporting material for the meeting please contact Director Teska 

at (775) 684-0222 or you can email us at budget@admin.nv.gov.We are pleased to make reasonable 

accommodations for members of the public who are disabled and would like to attend the meeting.  If 

special arrangements for the meeting are required, please notify the Department of Administration at least 

one working day before the meeting at (775) 684-0222 or you can fax your request to (775) 684-0260. 

mailto:bcarson@dps.state.nv.us
http://budget.nv.gov/Meetings
mailto:budget@admin.nv.gov


Board of Examiners Meeting 

May 13, 2014 – Detailed Agenda 

Page 1 

 

DETAILED AGENDA 
 May 13, 2014 

 

1. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Comments: 

 

*2. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – APPROVAL OF THE APRIL 8, 2014 BOARD 

OF EXAMINERS’ MEETING MINUTES 

 
Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Seconded By: Vote: 

Comments: 

 

*3. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION – 

VICTIMS OF CRIME POLICIES 

 
The Board of Examiners (BOE) is the governing authority of the Nevada Victims of Crime 

Program. NRS 217.130 empowers the BOE to adopt rules and regulations while NRS 217.150 

requires the BOE to formulate standards for the payment of compensation to victims of crime. 

The current policies were last updated and adopted by the Board in August 2009. The current 

revisions are largely clarification and minor changes to existing policies.  

 
Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Seconded By: Vote: 

Comments: 

 

*4. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – NOTIFICATION OF INTENT TO FILE FOR A 

GRANT OR LOAN FROM THE DISASTER RELIEF ACCOUNT WHICH 

REQUIRES AN EXTENSION TO COLLECT DATA 

 
A. Department of Public Safety – Division of Emergency Management – Clark 

County Flood 

 
Pursuant to NRS 353.2755, the Division of Emergency Management on behalf of Clark County is 

requesting additional time to the original extension due to the time needed to identify all costs associated 

with the flood damage repairs and to identify potential insurance claim offsets to the various departments 

and agencies with damage to structures and facilities. Clark County respectfully requests a fourth and 

final extension of time from June 30, 2014 to September 28, 2014. 

 
Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Seconded By: Vote: 

Comments: 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

May 13, 2014 – Detailed Agenda 

Page 2 

 

*5. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – STATE ADMINISTRATIVE MANUAL  
 

The State Administrative Manual (SAM) is being submitted to the Board of Examiners’ for 

approval of additions and revisions in the following Chapters:  

 

 

A. Department of Administration – Administrative Services Division  

 

1. 0324 – Independent Contract Review Procedure 

2. 0328 – Lease Contracts 

3. 0336 – Amendments to Contracts 

 

B. Department of Administration – Enterprise Information Technology  

Services 

 

1. 1616 – Cellular Telephones/Tablets/Mobile Devices 

 

C. Department of Administration – Fleet Services Division 

 

1. 0204 – Board of Examiners’ Travel Policy 

2. 0218 – Use of Rental Cars  

3. 0504 – Insurance and Self-Insurance 

4.   1303 – Authorized Operators of State Vehicles 

5.   1304 – Complaint Procedure 

6.   1316 – Records 

7. 1400 – Table of Contents 

8. 1402 – Purpose 

9. 1404 – Policy 

10. 1405 – Services Provided 

11. 1406 – Division Charges 

12. 1407 – Vehicle Utilization Guidelines 

13. 1408 – Facility Locations and Hours of Operation 

14. 1409 – Authorized Operators of Fleet Services Vehicles 

15. 1410 – How to Request a Vehicle 

16. 1412 – Care and Maintenance of State Vehicles 

17. 1414 – Insurance and Accident Reporting 

18. 1415 – Driver Responsibility 

19. 1416 – Fuel 

20. 1417 – Long Term Assigned Vehicle Request (Deleted) 

21. 1418 – Energy Management   

22. 2904 – What to Do in the Event of an Accident or Potential Claim 

 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Seconded By: Vote: 

Comments: 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

May 13, 2014 – Detailed Agenda 

Page 3 

 

 

*6. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – AUTHORIZATION TO CONTRACT WITH A 

FORMER EMPLOYEE 

 
 

A. Department of Education 

 

Pursuant to NRS 333.705, the Department of Education seeks approval to continue a contract 

with WestEd, who now employs a former employee of the department, Rorie Fitzpatrick.  The 

former employee may be involved in future projects that impact the department.   

 

B. Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation 

 

Pursuant to NRS 333.705, the Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation, 

Rehabilitation Division, Bureau of Disability Adjudication (BDA), seeks approval to continue to 

contract with Avysion Healthcare Services, who is anticipated to employ an employee acting as 

Chief Medical Consultant of the agency who has announced his retirement, Dr. Jaime Wheeler.  

The current employee has 24 years of experience as BDA’s medical policy expert and 30 years 

of experience as a medical consultant.  BDA is requesting to employ this individual part time 

through Avysion Healthcare Services, up to 20 hours per week, for up to two years subsequent to 

his retirement in order to continue to train and mentor other BDA physicians.   

 

C. Department of Health and Human Services – Director’s Office  

 

Pursuant to NRS 333.705, the Department of Health and Human Services requests department-

wide blanket pre-approval authority to contract with persons who are current or former graduate 

assistants or student workers of the Nevada System of Higher Education. 

 

D. Department of Health and Human Services – Director’s Office 

 

Pursuant to NRS 333.705, the DHHS Director’s Office requests authority to contract with a 

former employee, Jennifer White, to serve as a statewide 2-1-1 Coordinator. 

 

 

E. Department of Health and Human Services – Division of Health Care 

Financing and Policy (DHCFP) 

 

Pursuant to NRS 333.705, the DHCFP requests authority to contract with Dr. David Fiore, who 

is currently employed at the University of Nevada, Reno. DHCFP would like to retain his 

services through Avysion to ensure adequate staffing for Medicaid eligibility determinations 

during work load fluctuations.  

 

 

 

 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

May 13, 2014 – Detailed Agenda 

Page 4 

 

F. Department of Health and Human Services – Division of Public and 

Behavioral Health  

 

Pursuant to NRS 333.705, the Department of Health and Human Services requests retroactive 

authority for contracts with persons from November 2012 through March 2014, who are current 

or former graduate assistants or student workers of the Nevada System of Higher Education. 

 
Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Seconded By: Vote: 

Comments: 

 

 

*7. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – REQUEST FOR GENERAL FUND 

ALLOCATION FROM THE INTERIM FINANCE COMMITTEE 

CONTINGENCY FUND 

 
A. Judicial Branch – Judicial Retirement System - $24,241 

Pursuant to NRS 353.268 the Judicial Branch, Judicial Retirement System State Share, requests 

an allocation of $24,241 from the Interim Finance Committee Contingency Fund to fund a 

projected shortfall in the account supporting the unfunded actuarial accrued liability payments.  

   

 

B. Judicial Branch – Judicial State Elected Officials - $110,000  
 

Pursuant to NRS 353.268 the Judicial Branch, Judicial State Elected Officials, requests an 

allocation of $110,000 from the Interim Finance Committee Contingency Fund to fund 

unbudgeted Medicare costs. 

 

 

C. Judicial Discipline Commission - $29,527 

 

Pursuant to NRS 353.268, the Judicial Discipline Commission requests an allocation of $29,527 

from the Interim Finance Committee Contingency Fund for an operating shortfall due to 

unanticipated commission expenses.   

 

D. Department of Taxation - $86,066 

 

Pursuant to NRS 353.268, Department of Taxation, requests an allocation of $86,066 from the 

Interim Finance Committee Contingency Fund to fund the excise tax imposed from SB374, 

Section 24.4 in the 77th Legislative Session, relating to the sale of marijuana, edible marijuana 

products and marijuana-infused products.  

 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

May 13, 2014 – Detailed Agenda 

Page 5 

 

E. Department of Motor Vehicles – Division of Motor Vehicle Information 

Technology - $140,256 

 

In accordance with NRS 353.268, the Department of Motor Vehicles – Division of Motor 

Vehicle Information Technology is requesting an allocation of $140,256 from the Interim 

Finance Committee Contingency Fund Highway Fund to contract with a project manager to 

write the Request for Proposal for the departments System Modernization project. 

 
 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Seconded By: Vote: 

Comments: 

 

 

*8. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – SALARY ADJUSTMENTS 

 
A. Distribution of Salary Adjustments to Departments, Commissions and 

Agencies, pursuant to Assembly Bill 511, Sections 6, 7, and 8 of the 2013 

Legislative Session. 

 

The 2013 Legislature appropriated funds from the State General Fund and State Highway Fund 

for the purpose of meeting any deficiencies which may be created between the appropriated 

money of the respective departments, commissions, and agencies of the State of Nevada, as fixed 

by the 2013 Session of the Nevada Legislature, and the actual salary of each state employee. 

Pursuant to this legislation, the following amounts from the State General Fund and State 

Highway Fund are recommended: 

 

BA# 

 

BUDGET ACCOUNT NAME 

GENERAL 

FUND 

ADJUSTMENT 

HWY FUND 

ADJUSTMENT 

4713 Nevada Highway Patrol  $352,732 

3650 Military $18,713  

2941 

Division of Museums & History - 

Administration $2,719  

2870 

Division of Museums & History – 

Nevada Historical Society $2,531  

 Total $23,963 $352,732 

 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Seconded By: Vote: 

Comments: 
 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

May 13, 2014 – Detailed Agenda 

Page 6 

 

 

*9. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – AUTHORIZATION TO APPROVE A 

PROVIDER AGREEMENT 

 
A. Department of Health and Human Services – Division of Public and 

Behavioral Health 

 

The Division of Public and Behavioral Health is requesting Board of Examiners’ approval for 

amendments made to their Supported Living Arrangement (SLA) provider agreement template.  

These changes will formalize the process for standardization, monitoring, oversight and 

accountability of the SLA residential provider service delivery system. 

 

B. Department of Health and Human Services – Division of Child and Family 

Services 

 

The Division of Child and Family Services is requesting Board of Examiner approval of a 

Provider Agreement template contract for services of independent contractor for Specialized 

Foster Care Services 
 

 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Seconded By: Vote: 

Comments: 
 

 

*10. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – VICTIMS OF CRIME FY 2014 3
RD

 QUARTER 

AND 4
TH

 QUARTER RECOMMENDATION 

 
NRS 217.260 requires the Board of Examiners to estimate available revenue and anticipated 

claim costs each quarter. If revenues are insufficient to pay anticipated claims, the statute directs 

a proportional decrease in claim payments.  

 

The 3
rd

 Quarter fiscal year 2014 Victims of Crime Program report states all approved claims 

were resolved totaling $20,306,735.23, with $4,698,362.36 paid out of the Victims of Crime 

Program account and $15,608,372.87 resolved through vendor fee adjustments and cost 

containment policies.   

 

The program anticipates future reserves at $8.1 million to help defray crime victims’ medical 

costs. 

Based on the projections, the Victims of Crime Program recommends paying Priority One, Two 

and Three claims at 100% of the approved amount for the 4
th

 quarter of FY 2014. 

 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Seconded By: Vote: 

Comments: 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

May 13, 2014 – Detailed Agenda 

Page 7 

 

*11. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – STATE VEHICLE PURCHASE 
 

Pursuant to NRS 334.010, no automobile may be purchased by any department, office, 

bureau, officer or employee of the State without prior written consent of the State Board 

of Examiners. 

 

AGENCY NAME 
# OF 

VEHICLES 

NOT TO 

EXCEED: 

Department of Administration – Fleet 

Services Division    1 $26,550 

                              Total: 1 $26,550 

 
Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Seconded By: Vote: 

Comments: 

 

 

*12. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – LEASES 

 

Five statewide leases were submitted to the Board for review and approval. 
 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Seconded By: Vote: 

Comments: 
 

 

 

*13. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION –CONTRACTS 

 
Forty Nine independent contracts were submitted to the Board for review and approval. 

 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Seconded By: Vote: 

Comments: 

 

 

*14. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – MASTER SERVICE AGREEMENTS 
 

Four master service agreements were submitted to the Board for review and approval. 
 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 
 

Motion By: Seconded By: Vote: 

Comments: 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

May 13, 2014 – Detailed Agenda 

Page 8 

 

 

15.    INFORMATIONAL ITEM 

 
 Pursuant to AB 41 of the 2013 Legislative Session, the Clerk of the Board may approve all 

contract transactions for amounts less than $50,000. Per direction from the August 13, 2013 

meeting of the Board of Examiners, the Board wished to receive an informational item listing all 

approvals applicable to the new threshold ($10,000 - $49,999). Below is a list of all applicable 

approvals for contracts and amendments approved from April 1, 2014 through April 30, 2014. 

 

CONTRACT 

# 

STATE AGENCY  CONTRACTOR 
CONTRACT/ 

AMENDMENT  
AMOUNT 

15363 Department of Health and 

Human Services – Public and 

Behavioral Health  

Nye Communities 

Coalition, Inc. 

Contract $10,549 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract to sustain and support diabetes self-management (DSME) programs in Nye, Esmeralda and Lincoln 

Counties. 

15509 Department of Administration 

– State Public Works Division 

Rounds Engineering, Ltd. 

Dba CR Engineering 

Contract $15,000 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract to provide professional architectural/engineering services for the United States Property and Fiscal Office 

Boiler Replacement; Project No. 14-A013-14; Contract No. 97005. 

15511 Department of Conservation 

and Natural Resources – State 

Parks Division 

Impact Construction Contract $19,480 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract to provide sand removal of approximately 6000 cubic yards and reseal asphalt at the Lahontan State 

Recreational Area - Beach 3 day use area. 

15505 Department of Conservation 

and Natural Resources – State 

Parks Division 

Brad Leonard Painting Contract $17,008 

Contract Description: This is a new contract to provide repair and painting on Valley of Fire State Park structures. 

15444 Department of Training, 

Rehabilitation and 

Employment – Employment 

Security Division  

Curtis Meyer dba Superior 

Janitorial Services 

Contract $23,880 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract that continues ongoing janitorial services for the Elko Job Connect office located at 172 6th Street, Elko, 

NV 89801. 

15474 Department of Administration 

– Hearings and Appeals 

Division 

Olivia Rienshagen-

Hernandez 

Contract $24,999 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract which provides for Spanish interpretation services during Administrative hearings, required by NRS 645B, 

to non-English speaking injured workers so they are appropriately represented at appeal hearings. 

 

  



Board of Examiners Meeting 

May 13, 2014 – Detailed Agenda 

Page 9 

 

 

CONTRACT 

# 

STATE AGENCY  CONTRACTOR 
CONTRACT/ 

AMENDMENT  
AMOUNT 

15524 Board of Accountancy Kaempfer, Crowell, 

Renshaw, Gronauer & 

Fiorentino 

Contract $47,250 

Contract Description: 

This is a new contract to provide government affairs assistance to the Nevada State Board of Accountancy.  This government 

affairs support will provide the Nevada State Board of Accountancy with assistance in preparing, planning and responding to 

legislative issues brought forth concerning Nevada Certified Public Accountants and Nevada citizens.  In addition the contractor 

will provide professional assistance to the Nevada State Board of Accountancy during the statute and regulation drafting process 

when responding to statute changes, regulation changes and public protection issues.  The skill and expertise provided by the 

contractor will ensure the Nevada State Board of Accountancy protects the public by actively participating and responding to each 

legislative issue in a proficient and productive manner. 

15433 Department of Conservation 

and Natural Resources – 

Forestry Division  

Wayne Weaver Contract $24,000 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract to provide ongoing routine maintenance of the water cooling and heating system as the Sierra Front 

Interagency Dispatch Center. 

15522 Department of Administration 

–State Public Works Division  

URS Corporation Contract $20,960 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract to provide professional architectural/engineering services to recondition existing water tanks, Phase I 

(Indian Springs Prison complex); Project No. 13-M42; Contract No. 95780. 

15507 Department of Health and 

Human Services – Department 

of Child and Family Services  

Watertech, Inc. Contract $19,905 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract that continues ongoing water treatment maintenance for the two chillers located on State owned property at 

6171 W Charleston Blvd in Las Vegas. 

15506 Department of Health and 

Human Services – Department 

of Child and Family Services 

Stephen Galloway Contract $43,200 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract that continues ongoing psychological consultation and assessment evaluations for youth located at Nevada 

Youth Training Center. 

15537 Department of Administration 

–Nevada State Library & 

Archives – CLAN  

Lincoln County Contract $18,550 

Contract Description: 

This is a new cooperative revenue agreement, which continues to maintain a regional network of libraries (per NRS 379.147-

379.150) known as CLAN (Cooperative Libraries Automated Network) through joint agreement for the improvement of library 

services and the sharing of resources. 

15384 Department of Agriculture San Joaquin Chemicals, 

Inc. 

Contract $22,642 

Contract Description: 

This is new contract to provide inspection services for the department's cooling tower.  Cooling towers must be inspected for 

scale, corrosion and fouling and serviced as needed to bring it back into compliance.  The contract will test the water to determine 

if additional special chemicals are needed to bring back into code. 

  



Board of Examiners Meeting 

May 13, 2014 – Detailed Agenda 

Page 10 

 

CONTRACT 

# 

STATE AGENCY  CONTRACTOR 
CONTRACT/ 

AMENDMENT  
AMOUNT 

15515 Department of Training, 

Rehabilitation and 

Employment – Rehabilitation 

Division 

Cheryl Abbott Contract $27,000 

Contract Description: 

This is a new contract to provide an independent monitor to monitor the effectiveness of the Rehabilitation Services 

Administration Independent Living (RSA/IL) grant administration.  The grant is administered under the auspices of the Aging and 

Disability Services Division (ADSD).  The goals of the monitoring activities are to gauge customer satisfaction, measure the 

impact of the services on the ability of the individuals with disabilities to attain or retain independent living and to verify the 

expenditures were appropriately administered.  The review is designed to meet the need to assure quality services are provided.  

The vendor shall be paid at the completion of each monitoring period's interviews and the acceptance of the final report by the 

Division. 

15427 Department of Agriculture Life Technologies 

Corporation dba Applied 

Biosystems/Invitrogen  

Contract $36,207 

Contract Description: 

This is a new contract to provide certification and full-service maintenance for the Lifetech 7500 Real Time PCR (polymerase 

chain reaction) system and the Lifetech 7500 FAST Real Time PCR system in the Animal Disease and Food Safety Laboratory 

that can do real time animal testing.  Annual maintenance contracts for analytical equipment are required to achieve and maintain 

IOS17025 (International Organization for Standardization) certification. Laboratories use IOS17025 to implement a quality 

system aimed at improving their ability to consistently produce valid results.  The quality assurance programs in diagnostic 

laboratories have to meet this international standard in order to generate legally defensible results.   

15429 Department of Administration 

– Fleet Services Division 

Ideco NV, Inc. Contract $10,000 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract to provide repair, maintenance and certification of gasoline and diesel fuel dispenser equipment such as fuel 

tanks, fuel pumps, and fuel monitoring equipment and fuel dispensers in the Las Vegas area. 

15512 Attorney General’s Office William N. Morrison, Inc. Contract $10,000 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract to provide expert witness services for an accident reconstruction in the defense of a lawsuit filed against the 

State of Nevada. 

15496 Attorney General’s Office White Pine County 

District Attorney 

Contract $25,000 

Contract Description: 
This is a new revenue contract to provide prosecution services on behalf of the Office of the District Attorney, White Pine 

County. 

15476 Department of Employment, 

Training and Rehabilitation –

Rehabilitation Division  

Department of 

Administration 

Contract $20,000 

Contract Description: 

This is a new intrastate interlocal contract that continues on-going services to provide neutral, knowledgeable, and experienced 

attorney Hearing Officer services for hearings as requested; have attorney Hearing Officers attend training offered by the 

Rehabilitation Division or other appropriate entities; have the Chief Hearing Officer assign fair hearings to the appropriate 

attorney Hearing Officer; take and preserve a record of the fair hearing proceedings including providing for audio recordings; as 

needed, prepare a record of the proceedings and transmit it to the applicable court jurisdiction within the time frame established 

by NRS 233B.131(1), or other time frame established by law; and promptly forward any request for a certified court reporter to 

the department. 

13387 Department of Administration 

–State Public Works Division  

Roseville Termite & Pest 

Control 

Amend #1 $17,000 

Contract Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original new contract, which provides ongoing pest control services, exterior and interior, on an 

as-needed basis for various state buildings in the Carson City and Reno area, upon the request and approval of a Buildings and 

Grounds designee.  This amendment increases the maximum amount from $20,000 to $37,000 due to an increased need for these 

services. 

  



Board of Examiners Meeting 

May 13, 2014 – Detailed Agenda 

Page 11 

 

CONTRACT 

# 

STATE AGENCY  CONTRACTOR 
CONTRACT/ 

AMENDMENT  
AMOUNT 

15540 Department of Conservation 

and Natural Resources 

Department of Interiors 

dba Bureau of Land 

Management 

Contract $14,748 

Contract Description: 

This is a new interlocal agreement to conduct an environmental site assessment to provide State Parks and State Lands necessary 

information required to acquire title to the federal land, designated in the Lincoln County and White Pine County Bills to transfer 

to Kershaw Ryan, Cathedral Gorge, Beaver Dam and Ward Charcoal Ovens State Parks. 

15554 Department of Administration 

–State Public Works Division 

Coda Architecture Contract $12,600 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract to provide professional architectural/engineering services to rehabilitate the historic building (Old Las 

Vegas Mormon Fort Park); Project No. 13-M53; Contract No. 95800. 

14243 Department of Employment, 

Training and Rehabilitation –

Rehabilitation Division  

Naval Supply Center – 

San Diego Code 200  

Amend #4 $3,965.17 

Contract Description: 

This is the fourth amendment to the original contract to provide full food service support at the Naval Air Station in Fallon, 

Nevada. This amendment increases the maximum amount from $1,084,743.12 to $1,088,708.29 due to the need for emergency 

food services provided as a result of a plane crash at the Fallon Naval Air Base. 

10876 Department of Employment, 

Training and Rehabilitation –

Employment Security Division  

Las Vegas Interpreters 

Connection, LLC. 

Amend #5 $20,000 

Contract Description: 

This is the fifth amendment to the original contract, which continues ongoing English/Spanish interpretation services at 

Unemployment Insurance hearings and other meetings where interpreters need to be fluent in both languages and the 

interpretation must be on a word-for-word basis for clients. This amendment increases the maximum amount from $185,000 to 

$205,000 due to a continued need for these services. 

14896 Department of Administration 

– Enterprise Information 

Technology Services  

Mentor Services 

Corporation 

Amend #1 $18,000 

Contract Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original contract, which provides Introduction to Removable Media Manager and Hardware 

Management Console Operation training in Carson City, Nevada.  This amendment extends the termination date from          

March 31, 2014 to March 31, 2016, and increases the maximum amount from $12,000 to $30,000 due to continued need for 

training. 

 

  



Board of Examiners Meeting 

May 13, 2014 – Detailed Agenda 

Page 12 

 

16.     INFORMATIONAL ITEM  

 

 
A. Department of Conservation and Natural Resources – Division of State 

Lands    

 

Pursuant to NRS Chapter 111, Statutes of Nevada, 1989, at page 263, the Division of State Lands 

is required to provide the Board of Examiners quarterly reports regarding lands or interests in 

lands transferred, sold, exchanged, or leased under the Tahoe Basin Act program.   

 

Pursuant to Chapter 355, Statues of Nevada, 1993, at page 1153, the Division of State Lands is 

required to report quarterly on the status of real property or interests in real property transferred 

under the Lake Tahoe Mitigation Program. This submittal reports on program activities for the 

fiscal quarter ending March 31, 2014 (reference NRS 321.5954). 

 

Brief description 

 

       1989 Tahoe Basin Act 

 

 The agency reports there were no transfers of lands or interests in lands during the 

quarter.   

 

 On March 26, 2014 the Nevada Division of State Lands held a public auction where a 

Residential Development Right associated with a Tahoe Basin Act parcel was made 

available for sale.  That offering resulted in the sale of the Development Right for 

$15,100.  Upon the closing of escrow, those proceeds will be deposited into the 

appropriate budget account, and the proceeds will be used to support continued forest 

health and fuels management projects in the basin. 

 

 

 Lake Tahoe Mitigation Program 

 

 The agency reports there were no transfers of lands or interests in lands during the 

quarter. 

  

 The agency reports there were no acquisitions of lands or interests in lands during the 

quarter. 

  



Board of Examiners Meeting 

May 13, 2014 – Detailed Agenda 

Page 13 

 

 

 

17.     INFORMATIONAL ITEM  

 
A. Silver State Health Insurance Exchange 

 

Update from Deloitte Consulting, LLP on its assessment of the Silver State Health Insurance 

Exchange Business Operating System functionality. 

 

 

 18. BOARD MEMBERS’ COMMENTS/PUBLIC COMMENTS 

  

 

*19. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – ADJOURNMENT 
 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 
 

Motion By: Seconded By: Vote: 

Comments: 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

April 8, 2014 – Meeting 

Page 1 

 

MINUTES 

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EXAMINERS 
April 8, 2014 

 

The Board of Examiners met on Tuesday, April 8, 2014, in the Guinn Room on the second floor 

of the Capitol Building, 101 N. Carson St., Carson City, Nevada, at 10:00 a.m.  Present were: 

 

Members: 

Governor Brian Sandoval 

Attorney General Catherine Cortez Masto 

Secretary of State Ross Miller 

Julia Teska, Clerk 

 

Others Present: 

Gloria Callahan, Member of the Public 

Scott Sisco, Department of Corrections 

Chuck Schardin, Department of Corrections 

Mike Willden, Department of Health and Human Services 

Katie Armstrong, Office of the Attorney General 

Cheryl Tyler, Office of the Military 

Colonel Castagnola, Office of the Military 

Captain Dana Grigg, Office of the Military 

Karissa Neff, Office of the Attorney General 

David Stewart, Division of Welfare and Supportive Services. 

Michael McMahon, Division of Welfare and Supportive Services 

Kunal Shah, Deloitte Consulting 

Ivy Bela, Deloitte Consulting 

Deb Saha, Deloitte Consulting 

David Hamilton, Xerox 

Carol Sweeney, Administrative Services Division 

Sue Sands, Administrative Services Division 

Dave Prather, Department of Forestry 

Pete Anderson, Department of Forestry 

Vicki Radford, Military 

Douglas McEldowney, Army National Guard 

Rakesh Duttagupta, Deloitte Consulting 

Julie Kidd, State Public Works Division 

Teri Preston, State Public Works Division 

Janet Murphy, Aging & Disability Services 

Julie Balderson, Aging & Disability Services 

Todd Rich, Department of Insurance 

Sandi Bailey, Business & Industry 

Clark Leslie, Attorney General’s Office 

Bill Hoffman, Department of Transportation 

Dennis Gallagher, Attorney General’s Office 

Leah Lamborn, Department of Health Care, Finance & Policy 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

April 8, 2014 – Meeting 

Page 2 

 

Jim Earl, Enterprise IT Services 

David Gustafson, Enterprise IT Services 

Ellen Crecelius, Department of Health & Human Services 

Sue Smith, Department of Welfare & Supportive Services 

Lorne Malkovich, R&R Partners 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

April 8, 2014 – Meeting 

Page 3 

 

 

1. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

Comments: 

 

Governor:  Good morning, everybody. 

 

Attorney General:  Good morning. 

 

Governor:  Can you hear us loud and clear in Carson City? 

 

Attorney General:  Yes, we can. 

 

Governor:  We can hear you loud and clear, so we will -- if everyone’s ready, we’ll commence 

the meeting, Meeting of the Board of Examiners.  Agenda Item No. 1 is public comment.  Is 

there any member of the public here in Las Vegas that would like to provide public comment to 

the Board?  Is there anyone present in Carson City that would like to provide comment to the 

Board? 

 

Attorney General:  Actually, Governor, I think we have somebody here who wants to come 

forward. 

 

Governor:  All right. 

 

Gloria Callahan:  Hello. 

 

Attorney General:  Good morning. 

 

Gloria Callahan:  I apologize, I’m not prepared to speak.  I’m going… 

 

Secretary of State:  And if you could just grab a seat. 

 

Gloria Callahan:  Excuse me.  I didn’t know what the procedure was. 

 

Secretary of State:  Oh, sure.  There’s a microphone in front of you if you just want to state 

your name for the record. 

 

Gloria Callahan:  Gloria Callahan. 

 

Governor:  And good morning, Ms. Callahan. 

 

Attorney General:  See the Governor down there. 

 

Gloria Callahan:  Good morning. 

 

Governor:  Please proceed. 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

April 8, 2014 – Meeting 

Page 4 

 

Gloria Callahan:  I’m not prepared to speak, so I apologize if I’m not as articulate as I’d like to 

be.  I understood that the state per diem employee problem was going to be on the Agenda, and it 

was pulled this morning.  And I drove up from Las Vegas to attend.  I am a state employee.  And 

I have a letter from per stating that the state defined my nursing position as a critical -- if the 

state defined my position as a critical needs position, then retroactively they would remove the 

requirement for reimbursement to pers.  This is a huge financial burden on my husband and I.  

And I request this decision or discussion be made as reasonably -- as soon as possible.  Also the 

income that we have paid tax -- this income we’ve paid taxes on and we cannot receive that 

money back.  I’m not sure if that made sense. 

 

Governor:  All right, Ms. Callahan.  What I would suggest is perhaps after the meeting if you 

could chat with Ms. Teska who is the Budget Director.  This item isn’t on the Agenda, so we 

can’t have that discussion.  And I apologize that you traveled all the way from Las Vegas to 

Carson City.  And if there’s an opportunity in the future, we are always meeting jointly both in 

Las Vegas and Carson City so that you don’t have to make that trek up north.  But if you have a 

copy of that letter or we can make a copy for you, and if you would provide that to Ms. Teska, 

and then perhaps we can put you together with some of the people who could talk to you a little 

bit more in detail about the contents of that letter. 

 

Gloria Callahan:  I don’t have it with me.  I wasn’t prepared to speak.  I was just thinking that it 

was going to be on the Agenda and would be handled today, but I can meet with her after the 

meeting. 

 

Governor:  All right.  Thank you very much.  Is there any other public comment from Carson 

City?  Okay.  Before I get to Agenda No. 2, I did want to welcome Julia Teska, the Budget 

Director.  This is her first Board of Examiners’ meeting.  And she’s very well known to 

everybody, but, Ms. Teska, I don’t know if you had any words that you’d like to provide to 

everyone. 

 

Clerk:  Thank you, Governor.  It’s a Julia Teska.  I guess I wouldn’t -- I don’t have any prepared 

comments.  I just wanted to say thank you to the Governor for this opportunity, and I’m grateful 

that this is not a very long BOE Agenda, because I don’t know how long it’s been since I’ve 

been to a Board of Examiners’ meeting, so I’ll try not to mess things up here as we go through 

this meeting.  But grateful to be here, and anything that any of the members need, I’ll be happy 

to get that for them. 

 

Governor:  Well, and thank you, Julia.  And I will say publically what I told you privately is I’m 

thrilled that you’ve accepted the position.  I think you’re going to do a wonderful job.  I think 

you have the experience that will do great things for the State of Nevada.  So I appreciate your 

service and I very, very much look forward to working with you. 

 

Clerk:  Thank you. 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

April 8, 2014 – Meeting 

Page 5 

 

 

*2. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – APPROVAL OF THE MARCH 11, 2014 

BOARD OF EXAMINERS’ MEETING MINUTES 

 
Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Attorney General Seconded By: Secretary of State Vote: 3-0 

Comments: 

 

Governor:  All right.  Let’s move on to Agenda Item No. 2, which is approval of the March 11, 

2014 Board of Examiners’ Meeting Minutes.  And we’ll also take on Agenda Item No. 3, which 

is approval of the March 18, 2014 Special Board of Examiners’ Meeting Minutes.  Have the 

members had an opportunity to review the minutes, and are there any changes? 

 

Attorney General:  I’ll move for approval. 

 

Secretary of State:  Second. 

 

Governor:  The Attorney General has moved for approval of Agenda Items 2 and 3.  The 

Secretary of State has seconded the motion.  Any questions or discussion?  If there are none, all 

those in favor say aye. 

 

Attorney General:  Aye. 

 

Secretary of State:  Aye. 

 

Governor:  Aye.  Motion passes 3-0. 

 

*3. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – APPROVAL OF THE MARCH 18, 2014 

SPECIAL BOARD OF EXAMINERS’ MEETING MINUTES 

 
Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Attorney General Seconded By: Secretary of State Vote: 3-0 

Comments: 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

April 8, 2014 – Meeting 

Page 6 

 

 

 

*4. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – STATE VEHICLE PURCHASE 
 

Pursuant to NRS 334.010, no automobile may be purchased by any department, office, bureau, 

officer or employee of the State without prior written consent of the State Board of Examiners. 

 

 

AGENCY NAME 
# OF 

VEHICLES 

NOT TO 

EXCEED: 

Department of Conservation and Natural 

Resources – Division of Forestry    3 $99,712 

                              Total: 3 $99,712 

 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Attorney General Seconded By: Secretary of State Vote: 3-0 

Comments: 

 

Governor:  We will move on to Agenda Item No. 4, State Vehicle Purchase.  Ms. Teska. 

 

Clerk:  Thank you, Governor.  On the Agenda for approval today there’s three vehicles for the 

Department of Conservation and Natural Resources, Forestry Division.  This is paid for by a 

grant from the U.S. Forest Service.  If there are any other questions. 

 

Governor:  Thank you very much.  I have no questions.  Board members, any questions? 

 

Attorney General:  Nope.  I’ll move for approval of Agenda Item No. 4. 

 

Secretary of State:  Second. 

 

Governor:  The Attorney General has moved for approval of Agenda Item No. 4.  The Secretary 

of State has seconded the motion.  Any questions or discussion?  If there are none, all in favor 

say aye. 

 

Attorney General:  Aye. 

 

Governor:  Aye. 

 

Secretary of State:  Aye. 

 

Governor:  Motion passes 3-0. 

 

 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

April 8, 2014 – Meeting 

Page 7 

 

*5. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – AUTHORIZATION TO CONTRACT WITH A 

FORMER EMPLOYEE 

 
A. Department of Education 

 

Pursuant to NRS 333.705, subsection 1, Education seeks retroactive approval to contract with a 

former employee, for the term of April 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014 to provide audits of 

school district enrollments and financial reviews of grant programs and audit reports on an 

intermittent basis. 

 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Attorney General Seconded By: Secretary of State Vote: 3-0 

Comments: 

 

Governor:  We will move on to Agenda Item No. 5, which is Authorization to Contract with a 

Former Employee, Department of Education.  Ms. Teska. 

 

Clerk:  Thank you, Governor.  This is a request from the Department of Education to contract 

through a temporary employment agency with a former employee who retired last summer for 

their Audit Services.  They do fairly specific audits in terms of enrollment.  These are not 

necessarily services that we can just contract out with anyone who doesn’t have this experience.  

The audit unit at the Department of Education has five staff, two positions are currently vacant.  

And they also have a pending medical leave in one of the other positions.  They’re also 

approximately a year behind on some of their financial reviews, so this is a critical need for the 

department.  And the retired employee’s willing to do this on a intermittent basis as needed. 

 

Governor:  Ms. Teska, do you believe that the time period, at least that’s describe in the Agenda 

item, April 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014 will be adequate to accomplish the tasks? 

 

Clerk:  Having just come from the Department of Education, yes, I do believe this should be 

adequate.  The department is in the process of hiring one of the positions and has the other out 

for recruitment.  This will also -- as they fill those positions, since this was a person who was 

with the department for a significant amount of time, will also allow for them to do training to 

get the new staff up to speed, so this should take care of their needs for the foreseeable future. 

 

Governor:  I have no further questions.  Board members, any questions with regard to Agenda 

Item No. 5? 

 

Attorney General:  No, I will move for approval. 

 

Secretary of State:  Second. 

 

Governor:  The Attorney General has moved for approval of Agenda Item No. 5.  The Secretary 

of State has seconded the motion.  Any questions or discussion?  If there are none, all in favor 

please say aye.  Aye. 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

April 8, 2014 – Meeting 

Page 8 

 

 

Secretary of State:  Aye. 

 

Governor:  Those opposed say no.  Motion passes 3-0. 

 

*6. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – REQUEST FOR GENERAL FUND 

ALLOCATION FROM THE INTERIM FINANCE COMMITTEE 

CONTINGENCY FUND 

 
A. Department of Administration 

Pursuant to NRS 353.268 on behalf of the Department of Business and Industry (B&I), the 

Department of Administration, Division of Budget and Planning, is seeking an allocation of 

$26,755 of the $8,300,000 appropriated to the IFC Contingency Fund pursuant to subsection 4 of 

Section 1 of AB 474 (2013) to replace unsupported operating system software, computer 

monitors and productivity software.  In order to receive the requested allocation from the IFC 

Contingency Fund, B&I will complete individual work program revisions as depicted in the 

following table: 

 
 

Budget 

Account  Title 

Allocation 

Amount 

3823 Real Estate $12,895 

3952 Athletic Commission $3,465 

3900 Labor Relations $10,395 

  Total $26,755  

 

 
B. Department of Business & Industry – Transportation Services Authority 

 

Pursuant to NRS 353.268 the Department of Business & Industry - Transportation Services 

Authority requests an allocation of $66,942 from the Interim Finance Contingency Fund for 

Highway Funds to provide for a projected shortfall in personnel costs and mailroom costs. 

 

 

C. Department of Corrections – Prison Medical Care 

 

Pursuant to NRS 353.268 the Department of Corrections requests an allocation of $2,168,005 

from the Interim Finance Contingency Fund to fund a projected shortfall in the Prison Medical 

Care budget for inmate medical claims. 

 

 

D. Office of the Military 

 

In accordance with NRS 353.268, the Office of the Military is requesting an allocation of 

$209,443 from the IFC Contingency Fund to provide for a projected shortfall in Category 01 – 

Personnel Services as a result of changes to Military Leave benefit. 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

April 8, 2014 – Meeting 

Page 9 

 

E.  Treasurer’s Office 

 

Pursuant to NRS 353.268, the Nevada State Treasurer’s Office is requesting an allocation of 

$64,946 from the Interim Finance Committee’s Contingency Fund for a total of $37,806 in fiscal 

year 2014 and $27,140 in fiscal year 2015 to cover unanticipated expenditures due to upgrades 

required to prevent an extended interruption in connection to the SilverNet network that were not 

known by the agency prior to the FY 14/15 budget closings, and to provide funding for a contract 

that was included in the Governor’s Recommended budget and legislatively approved, but was 

inadvertently left out of the agency’s final budget. 

 
Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Attorney General Seconded By: Secretary of State Vote: 3-0 

Comments: 

 

Governor:  All right.  We’ll move on to Agenda Item No. 6, which is Request for General Fund 

Allocation from the Interim Finance Committee Contingency Fund.  We’ll commence with 6A, 

which is Department of Administration.  Ms. Teska. 

 

Clerk:  Thank you, Governor.  This is -- while this says it’s an allocation to the Department of 

Administration, this is really to cover the costs, I believe there was an item approved previously, 

of the outdated -- the computers with the outdated operating systems.  This is for some remaining 

items with the Department of Business and Industry, as well as once they did some of the 

computer replacements, they no longer had monitors that would work with the new computers, 

and so it’s also adding those components.  Hopefully this is the last that we’ll see of these 

requests for the year. 

 

Governor:  All right.  Any questions with regard to Agenda Item 6A?  Let’s move on to 6B. 

 

Clerk:  This is another request from the Department of Business and Industry.  This is for the 

Transportation Services Authority.  This is to cover some shortfalls, in particular, in the salary 

area, in personnel costs.  There was an error in the approved budget for one of the unclassified 

positions, as well as they were filling vacant positions during the last session, and those folks that 

they hired ended up at different steps than were originally budgeted.  And this has created a 

shortfall in their payroll personnel services category, and this will -- this allocation will help 

cover that shortfall. 

 

Governor:  Okay.  Do we have somebody from TSA to answer questions? 

 

Clerk:  There does not appear to be anyone here from the Transportation Services Authority. 

 

Governor:  And I’ll ask you the question then, Ms. Teska, ‘cause at least from my review of this 

is these were budgeted at step one and they were hired in at step seven or nine.  Do we know 

where the issue resolved with regard to that delta, how it was budgeted at one and then hired in at 

a seven or a nine? 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

April 8, 2014 – Meeting 

Page 10 

 

Clerk:  I can speak in terms of it’s a practice in the state that vacant positions are budgeted as 

step one, which is a practice that I’ve already had some discussions with the staff about, in 

particular, in the smaller accounts.  Perhaps we might want to look at modifying that.  And then 

when -- especially when we’re hiring employees who are already state employees, there are rules 

in place in the personnel system regarding how the steps which, you know, if you’re being 

promoted from one position to another, you generally retain your steps as long as you’re not 

increasing more than two grades.  So this kind of thing actually where a position is budgeted at 

one level and then the -- when the position is filled, it’s filled at a different level than -- or 

different steps than what was budgeted is fairly common place.  It just creates problems when 

we’re talking about these position -- these budget accounts that have a small number of positions. 

 

Governor:  So would it -- to avoid this in the future, should we just not budget at the step -- the 

higher steps rather than at the step one? 

 

Clerk:  That’s one of the things that I’m having a discussion with my -- with the Budget Office 

staff about, in particular, setting a threshold for the number of positions in an agency and 

identifying the types of positions where these types of incidents are occurring.  So I would look 

for us to be modifying that practice going forward. 

 

Governor:  Okay.  Good.  And given that we’re building a budget, you know, we’re starting the 

beginnings of building a budget, I would like to avoid these types of issues in the future. 

 

Clerk:  Absolutely. 

 

Governor:  Okay.  Board members, any questions with regard to Agenda Item 6B? 

 

Secretary of State:  No, Governor. 

 

Governor:  All right.  Let’s move on to Agenda Item 6C, Prison Medical Care, Department of 

Corrections. 

 

Clerk:  Thank you, Governor.  This is a request from the Contingency Fund from the 

Department of Corrections for $2.1 million.  This is due to a significant increase in the 

hospitalization costs as well as shortfall in the eligible billings for Medicaid for the inmate 

claims.  And I believe there are folks here from Corrections if there are additional questions. 

 

Governor:  Okay.  I do have questions, so I’m not sure who’s there, but if they’d come to the 

table, please. 

 

Scott Sisco:  Thank you, Governor, members of the Board, for the record, Scott Sisco, Deputy 

Director of Department of Corrections and with me is Chuck Schardin who is our Medical 

Administrator. 

 

Governor:  Mr. Sisco, if you could give us a little bit more detailed background as to how we 

got here. 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

April 8, 2014 – Meeting 

Page 11 

 

Scott Sisco:  Thank you, Governor.  Again, for the record, basically what happens is we end up -

- and the Department of Corrections has somewhat of a unique budget because we have a 

category within that -- within our budget that allows us to pay claims for -- stale claims from the 

prior year.  And already this year we’ve had two of our programs where we’ve had to move 

current year medical reimbursement money from current year money to prior year money to pay 

last year’s medical bills.  We had several catastrophic cases near the end of last year.  We 

consider catastrophic cases, those cases that are over $100,000.  And we’ve had those, so that’s a 

big part of it.  And then our projections for medical costs through the end of the year is part of it. 

 

And then the third part of this is during the close of the budgets, the legislature looked at the 

Affordable Care Act as they were closing our budgets, and they estimated how much possible 

savings they might have as those inmates that leave the institution for 24 hours or more would be 

picked up by the Affordable Care Act.  And they took -- they moved that money out to utilize for 

other purposes.  But when they did that, they didn’t realize that some of that money comes from 

the inmates themselves and the Inmate Welfare Account.  And they did not deduct that, so they 

took the whole amount and credited it to the General Fund instead of crediting part of it to the 

General Fund and part of it to the Inmate Welfare Account.  And since, again, the way the statute 

is written is that the inmates will reimburse the state for costs that the state incurs since there 

would be no cost that the state incurs, that portion of the money would then not be reimbursed by 

the inmate.  So it’s kind of those three things there that are causing this shortfall for this year. 

 

As far as the Medicaid itself is still on track.  We’re still successfully submitting their Medicaid 

claims.  We’re still on track.  We’re not seeing any problems with that.  It’s just every now and 

then we have years where we have catastrophic cases that end up hitting us heard. 

 

Governor:  Okay. What is the -- do you know what the amount is off the top of your head for 

that inmate portion of the… 

 

Scott Sisco:  Yes, I do. 

 

Governor:  …of the Affordable Care Act? 

 

Scott Sisco:  Yes, I do.  The revenue transfer shortfall portion of this is $435,287. 

 

Governor:  So that amount likely will never be recovered, correct? 

 

Scott Sisco:  Yes, that amount -- yes. 

 

Governor:  So that was the amount that the legislature assumed would be recovered, but won’t 

be going forward? 

 

Scott Sisco:  Well, that was the amount that the legislature removed from the budget assuming 

that the Affordable Care Act was going to pick it up, but didn’t realize that it was a different 

funding source than the General Fund.  So they overestimated the savings to the General Fund 

and didn’t -- underestimated that portion or didn’t count on that portion at all. 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

April 8, 2014 – Meeting 

Page 12 

 

Governor:  Okay.  No, and I’m not -- I don’t want this to be interpreted like I’m trying to point 

fingers or anything.  I just want to make sure that going forward, again, as we budget, we can be 

more accurate in terms of what we think we’re going to recover or not.  Now, with this amount, 

and we’re looking at $2,168,005, do you think we’re going to be okay through the rest of the 

biennium, or will you be coming back for more? 

 

Scott Sisco:  We are continuing to watch it closely.  These are the best estimates that we can get.  

One of the things that’s unique about the Affordable Care Act and this Medicaid is we’re no 

longer seeing those bills.  Once a inmate is determined to be eligible for it, they’re turned over to 

Medicaid and we no longer see it, so we really don’t know.  So we’re doing the best job that we 

can to estimate it.  We are watching our payroll costs and other costs within the department real 

close, but I’m not 100 percent confident that we might not be back to you one more time before 

the end of the year, but it might not be about medical.  It might be about salary costs, ‘cause 

we’re a little tight on salary this year. 

 

Governor:  Well, that shouldn’t be a mystery figure.  Wouldn’t you be able to go over to Mr. 

Willden’s department and figure out how much money is being paid out of Medicaid account for 

those inmates? 

 

Scott Sisco:  Presumably yes.  The problem -- I think the issue that we’re seeing right now is 

when an inmate goes in, as soon as we identify the fact that they’re going to be there, we apply 

for the Medicaid.  And then once the 24 hours kicks in, the application is sent off.  Again, my 

understanding is that Medicaid is struggling like crazy and doing the best job they possibly can 

with catching up with a backlog of the people signing up for it and everything else.  And, again, 

our situation is somewhat unique to them because we’re signing them up -- we’re signing up.  

They may only be in the hospital for one, two, three days, and then they come back off.  A lot of 

times they’re back in our institutions two, almost three months before they’re even determined 

whether they were eligible in the first place. 

 

Governor:  And do you know what that specific figure was for what those stale claims that you 

talked about that had to be paid? 

 

Scott Sisco:  Let’s check here real quick. 

 

Chuck Schardin:  It was like 900,000. 

 

Scott Sisco:  Yeah, it was real close to $900,000. 

 

Governor:  All right.  So a significant portion of what we’re talking about today is something 

that essentially was from the last biennium? 

 

Scott Sisco:  They were catastrophic claims from 2013… 

 

Governor:  Okay. 

 

Scott Sisco:  …that carried forward. 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

April 8, 2014 – Meeting 

Page 13 

 

 

Governor:  And I have no further questions.  Board members, any questions with regard to 

Agenda Item 6C? 

 

Secretary of State:  No, Governor. 

 

Attorney General:  No. 

 

Governor:  And, Mr. Sisco, if you would just keep Ms. Teska apprised as to how this develops 

over time so that we can be ready for it. 

 

Scott Sisco:  Absolutely.  We are feeling better about how Medicaid is working out.  It’s just 

with it starting on January 1, like I say, many of the claims won’t actually wash out until we’re 

almost into the next fiscal year.  But we do plan on continuing the budgeting through that 

process, and hopefully -- the anticipated savings to the General Fund this year I believe was 

about 2.5 million, and then 5 million in 2015.  We probably will have a similar situation in 2015 

with the Inmate Welfare Account, but hopefully as we -- as Medicaid catches up and as we get 

better at getting the applications in and everything else, we’ll have a good feeling as we prepare 

our budgets for the 2016/2017 biennium. 

 

Governor:  Yeah, and I guess the point I would make, Mr. Sisco, is I feel like we’re kinda flying 

blind here a little bit, and there has to be a way to be able to figure out what those savings are.  

And you’re telling me you can’t do it, but you would be able to do it through the Medicaid 

Division and Mike Willden’s shop.  So, as I said, I really wanted to make sure that we’re 

tracking this, because right now it doesn’t sound like we know exactly what those figures are. 

 

Scott Sisco:  Right.  Hopefully, and, yes, we can work with Mr. Willden’s shop and find out 

what Medicaid ended up paying.  Unfortunately it’s just probably going to be after the fact, 

meaning almost to the point of after the fiscal year is closed to some degree. 

 

Governor:  Why does it take that long? 

 

Scott Sisco:  Well, again, prior to this for most of our claims we’d go into the hospital.  Within a 

certain amount of time the hospital would create a bill to us.  It would go through our third-party 

administrator who would take the deductions that we have contracted with that hospital. And 

then we would get hit with a bill.  So we would know right then and there what our actual costs 

were, what we saved and everything else.  In this case, when we apply for Medicaid, we no 

longer see the bill.  They’re just -- once they’re accepted, Medicaid pays the bill and nothing 

comes back to the Department of Corrections to tell us even what that inmate ended up costing.  

Again, there was an assumption in the legislative process that as a result of the Affordable Care 

Act we were going to save a certain amount of money.  And I guess we’re just now realizing that 

we really don’t know until Medicaid tells us later on.  And that’s kind of a process that we 

haven’t set up with them to tell us later on what they actually paid on behalf of each of these 

inmates. 

 

Governor:  Okay.  Is Mr. Willden in the audience there? 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

April 8, 2014 – Meeting 

Page 14 

 

 

Scott Sisco:  Yes, he is.  We’ll slide this down to him and let him take a shot at this. 

 

Mike Willden:  Good morning, Governor. 

 

Governor:  Good morning.  How are you, Mike? 

 

Mike Willden:  Good.  So I can’t add a number or a savings, but I can add the process.  So when 

an inmate leaves the correctional facility and goes to a hospital, it’s generally done here in 

Carson City.  The hospital then does not bill the Correction’s system.  They bill Medicaid, just 

like any other claim would be billed to Medicaid.  Providers have 180 days -- up to 180 days to 

bill what we call a clean claim.  And so that’s part of the delay.  As for taking the applications, 

it’s my understanding that there’s actually -- these aren’t done electronically.  They’re not in our 

electronic queue.  They’re in a paper process. 

 

Chuck Schardin:  No, we do electronically. 

 

Mike Willden:  Electronically.  Okay. 

 

Chuck Schardin:  Yeah. 

 

Mike Willden:  So they’re processed out of Carson office though and there’s a team dedicated to 

processing these Medicaid Prison Correction’s applications.  So the delay is how quickly a 

hospital gets a claim in to Medicaid to be paid.  And I didn’t bring the numbers, but we are 

paying a significant number of claims on behalf of inmates. 

 

Governor:  And perhaps at a later point you can put that in document form so we can see where 

we are.  And I get that it’s really the responsibility of the provider then to get that bill in in a 

timely manner, and there’s not anything you can do if they do it on the 179
th

 day.  But as much 

information as we can get at this point would be very helpful. 

 

Mike Willden:  Governor, we can provide you what we’d call a billing pattern to see how many 

are billing in 30, 60, 90, 120 days. 

 

Governor:  And as you say, if all of its coming out of one place, which would probably be the 

Carson Tahoe hospital I would imagine… 

 

Chuck Schardin:  Both, yeah, we do Valley and… 

 

Mike Willden:  Yes, most of it’s in Carson Tahoe, but there’s also births that are in Valley 

Hospital… 

 

Chuck Schardin:  Right. 

 

Mike Willden:  …in Las Vegas. 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

April 8, 2014 – Meeting 

Page 15 

 

Governor:  Okay. 

 

Mike Willden:  But they won’t be in Valley Hospital after the 17
th

 of this month ‘cause they’re 

closing their OB Center, so I assume those births will be moved to another Las Vegas hospital. 

 

Chuck Schardin:  Centennial. 

 

Mike Willden:  Centennial. 

 

Governor:  Okay.  Like I said, hopefully we can -- there’s not a big universe here of individuals 

that are involved and we can get a pretty firm handle on where we’re going with it.  Okay.  I 

have no further questions.  Board members? 

 

Secretary of State:  No, Governor. 

 

Attorney General:  No. 

 

Governor:  Thank you, Mr. Willden. 

 

Mike Willden:  Thank you. 

 

Governor:  Thank you. 

 

Scott Sisco:  Thank you. 

 

Governor:  We’ll move on to Agenda Item 6D, which is Office of the Military. 

 

Clerk:  Thank you, Governor.  This is a request from the Office of the Military to cover 

projected shortfall in Personnel Services that results from military benefit leave coming in the -- 

there was a bill, AB364, from the last session that changed provisions to the Military Leave 

Benefit.  I want to -- before we go any further, I want to say that the amount has been revised as 

of yesterday to $296,356 to ensure that it includes not just the salary portion, but also associated 

fringe benefits.  And there are folks here from the Department of Military to -- or the Office of 

the Military to speak to this in great detail.  But this is largely a combination of several things, 

one of which was some changes on the federal side in terms of what they are reimbursing for, 

changes related to AB364 and its interpretation versus the initial understanding of the way the 

intent of the bill and the scope of the bill. 

 

In reviewing the testimony, when this was presented to the Assembly Ways and Means during 

last session, this was really talking a lot about the -- was referencing by the bill sponsor that this 

was really talking about the two weeks and one weekend a year to fulfill the duties of National 

Guard and Reservists.  And the interpretation from LCB Legal has expanded that significantly to 

where the -- to the point where, at least it’s my understanding, it’s also including costs associated 

with some of the deployment.  So the Executive Branch understanding of the bill and the way it 

was presented during the session versus the way it’s been interpreted are a little bit different, as 

well as then there were some issues with how the feds are reimbursing this and that is creating 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

April 8, 2014 – Meeting 

Page 16 

 

this shortfall of almost $300,000 in the Office of the Military budget.  And, again, there are folks 

here from the office if you have any more questions. 

 

Governor:  Okay.  I’d like to ask them to come to the table, but just one question.  Do we have 

any open meeting law issues if the amount of 296,356 is different than the amount that is in 

Agenda Item 6D, which is $209,443? 

 

Katie Armstrong:  Thank you, Governor.  This is Katie Armstrong.  And, yes, I believe that you 

do have an open meeting law issue and you can only approve what was agendized is the 209,443 

at this point. 

 

Governor:  So that begs the question that means we would have to have this on the Agenda 

again to make up the difference.  So are we in a time crunch where this portion of 209 needs to 

be approved today and then we have to put it on the Agenda again, or can we do it all at once and 

continue this matter? 

 

Cheryl Teller:  For the record, this is Cheryl Tyler, ASO of Office of the Military.  Good 

morning, Board members.  Good morning, Governor Sandoval.  And with me… 

 

Governor: Good morning. 

 

Cheryl Teller:  …is Colonel Castagnola, RUSPFO.  And he’s able to answer any federal 

questions.  And also our JAG Captain Dana Grigg who can answer any policy questions.  To 

answer your question, sir, I do believe we need the 209,000 at least ‘cause we currently have 

stopped paying our military personnel.  We have some firefighters -- majority of fire -- 

deficiency right now is because of the firefighters getting deployed back in October.  And 

because of this shortfall we have stopped allowing them to use military leave.  So we do 

appreciate if you could approve the portion of 209,000 first and then we’ll come back for the 

additional funds. 

 

Governor:  Okay.  Well, then we’ll go ahead and do that.  I mean, we’ll discuss this Agenda 

item.  Will you kind of walk us through how we got here in the first place? 

 

Cheryl Teller:  Basically when AB364 was being discussed in the legislative hearings, it was 

calculated the -- they increased the -- militarily from 15 days to 39 days.  And how they 

calculated the 39 days is based on weekend drills and the two week animal trainings that the 

active Guardsmen have to go through to still be active -- considered active Guardsmen.  So with 

that definition we were under the assumption that the original master cooperative agreement of 

30 days that the feds will reimburse the state will cover those specific trainings.  Because not all 

of our firefighters work both a Saturday and a Sunday or any other personnel.  This covers all 

active Guardsmen in the Office of the Military, and the majority of them are firefighters, but we 

do have some security officers and other personnel that also qualify for military leave. 

 

So for this type of case it’s not all of them work two, again, days.  So, for example, if a person 

works Saturdays only, they would only get the Saturday reimbursement which is the 12 days, 

plus 15 days of UTA, which would amount to 27 days for that fiscal year.  However, now that 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

April 8, 2014 – Meeting 

Page 17 

 

we understood that deployment should be included, so, for example, our current firefighters were 

deployed from October until December, they could easily use up the 39 days per calendar year, 

and January until March they used up another set of 39 days, ‘cause that’s another discrepancy 

too.  In the state -- per state policy military leave is tracked per calendar year.  Federally we are 

reimbursed by federal fiscal year.  And federal NGB are now reimbursing us up to 168.  It was 

clarified that the 30 days was misconstrued and that we will be reimbursed by the Federal 

Government National Guard Bureau for 168 hours of military leave only.  So the two sets of 39 

now falls into one federal fiscal year and one state fiscal year.  So that generated the shortfall 

right there. 

 

Governor:  So do you -- this will be a -- this is a one-time issue, do you believe? 

 

Cheryl Teller:  Well, sir, it depends if a lot of our members will continuously get deployed or 

not.  Like in this case, we have seven firefighters that were deployed starting October 1
st
 until 

March, so that created the majority of this.  So we can’t tell exactly if we will -- if some of our 

personnel would get deployed in the future or not.  But if they do get deployed, then this would 

be an ongoing situation. 

 

Governor:  And what would be the fix going forward in your opinion? 

 

Cheryl Teller:  Speaking to our budget analysts, we would budget in -- we would use this year 

as the base year to budget in for state fiscal year ’16 and ’17.  Just as a basis of how much 

approximately we would have.  But, again, that’s not going to be a concrete amount.  It would 

just be based on the current history that we have. 

 

Governor:  Okay.  Any other questions from Board members on this Agenda item? 

 

Secretary of State:  No, Governor. 

 

Governor:  Thank you very much.  Ms. Teska, we’ll move on to Agenda Item 6E, Treasurer’s 

Office. 

 

Clerk:  Thank you, Governor.  This is a request from the Treasurer’s Office for Contingency 

Funds.  The majority of this, it’s $64,946 for the remainder of the biennium, $37,806 for 2014 

and $27,140 for 2015.  The majority of these costs are for a contract that was included both in 

the Governor’s recommended budget and in their -- it was legislatively approved during their 

budget hearings.  However, there was a technical error and it was inadvertently left out of the 

final budget figures for the Treasurer’s Office.  That contract is funded -- is supposed to be 

funded 100 percent with General Funds and the Treasurer’s Office does not have General Funds 

in any of their other budgets that could cover this. 

 

The other piece of this, a much smaller component, is that they have some I think it’s switches 

that need to be replaced to be upgraded in order to continue connection with the Silver Network. 

These were not included in their budget last biennium.  They did not -- there was a -- I think 

there was a miscommunication in terms of trying to get the -- between the agency in terms of 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

April 8, 2014 – Meeting 

Page 18 

 

whether these were at the end of their useful life or not.  So in order for them to continue to have 

Silver Net access, they would need to have those items replaced. 

 

Governor:  I have no questions on this Agenda item.  Board members? 

 

Attorney General:  No. 

 

Secretary of State:  No, Governor. 

 

Governor:  Are there any other questions with regard to Agenda Item 6A through E?  If there 

are none, the Chair will accept a motion for approval. 

 

Attorney General:  Move for approval. 

 

Secretary of State:  Second. 

 

Governor:  The Attorney General has moved for approval of Agenda Item No. 6A through E.  

Secretary of State has seconded the motion.  Any questions or discussion?  All in favor, please 

say aye. 

 

Secretary of State:  Aye. 

 

Attorney General:  Aye. 

 

Governor:  Aye.  Motion passes 3-0. 

 

*7. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – SALARY ADJUSTMENTS 

 
The 2013 Legislative Session made appropriations from the General Fund and the Highway 

Fund to the Board of Examiners to meet certain salary deficiencies for fiscal year 2014 that 

might be created between the appropriated money of the respective departments, commissions, 

and agencies and the actual cost of the personnel of those departments, commissions, and 

agencies that are necessary to pay for salaries.  Under this legislation, the following amounts 

from the General Fund and/or Highway Fund are recommended: 

 

 

BA# 

 

BUDGET ACCOUNT NAME 

GENERAL 

FUND 

ADJUSTMENT 

HWY FUND 

ADJUSTMENT 

3922 Transportation SVCS Authority  $35,115 

 Total  $35,115 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

April 8, 2014 – Meeting 

Page 19 

 

 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Attorney General Seconded By: Secretary of State Vote: 3-0 

Comments: 

 

Governor:  We will move on to Agenda Item No. 7, Salary Adjustments.  Ms. Teska. 

 

Clerk:  Thank you, Governor.  This is a request for salary adjustment funds for the Department 

of Business and Industry, Transportation Services Authority. This is in connection with the item 

that was just approved, 6B.  They are eligible for salary adjustment funds and we are using those 

to help bridge the shortfalls.  These are actually to pay for the increased costs of existing 

employees given the difference between the cost of what was included in the budget and the 

implementation of the restoration of the two and a half percent and the six days of furlough. 

 

Governor:  I’ve already asked my questions previously in regard to this Agenda item, so any 

questions from the other Board members? 

 

Secretary of State:  No, Governor. 

 

Governor:  If there are none, the Chair will accept a motion for approval of Agenda Item No. 7. 

 

Attorney General:  Move for approval. 

 

Secretary of State:  Second. 

 

Governor:  The Attorney General has moved for approval.  The Secretary of State has seconded 

the motion.  All those in favor, please say aye. 

 

Attorney General:  Aye. 

 

Secretary of State:  Aye. 

 

Governor:  Aye.  Motion passes 3-0. 

 

*8. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – APPROVAL TO PAY A CASH SETTLEMENT 

Pursuant to NRS 41.037, the State Board of Examiners may approve, settle or deny any claim or 

action against the State, any of its agencies or any of its present or former officers, employees, 

immune contractors or State Legislators. 

 

A. Department of Transportation – Administration – $65,000 

 

The department requests settlement approval in the amount of $65,000 to resolve a direct 

condemnation action to acquire real property located on the northeast corner of Cactus and the I-

15 in Las Vegas, Nevada for the Cactus/I-15 Interchange.  The sum of $477,293.02 was 

previously deposited with the Court, which was comprised of the total amount of NDOT’s 

appraised value of the property during litigation plus accrued interest through December 31, 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

April 8, 2014 – Meeting 

Page 20 

 

2013.  Approval of this additional amount would bring the total amount paid to the landowner to 

$542,293.02. 
 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Attorney General Seconded By: Secretary of State Vote: 3-0 

Comments: 

 

Governor:  We’ll move on to Agenda Item No. 8, Approval to Pay a Cash Settlement.  Ms. 

Teska. 

 

Clerk:  Thank you, Governor.  This is a request from the Department of Transportation for 

$65,000.  This is related to the I-15 Interchange in Las Vegas.  This is an additional amount in 

addition to the $477,293 previously approved.  This is to add an additional $67,000 [sic] to settle 

this claim, and it brings the total to $542,293.02. 

 

Governor:  All right.  Thank you.  And if you’d identify yourself for the record, please. 

 

Karissa Neff:  My name is Karissa Neff, and I’m from the Attorney General’s Office.  And I am 

the Senior Deputy Attorney General that’s been working on this case. 

 

Governor:  All right.  Thank you, Ms. Neff.  And if you’d just kinda take us through the 

process, please. 

 

Karissa Neff:  Okay.  This is a direct condemnation action that was needed to acquire real 

property located on the northeast corner of I-15 and Cactus for the Cactus Interchange Project.  

Approximately .45 acres of real property needed to be acquired in fee, along with quite a few 

permanent easements from about a 2 gross acre parcel.  And the land that was acquired is 

undeveloped property.  All of the other named defendants in this lawsuit, except for the present 

landowner, all of their interests have already been accounted for.  And basically during litigation 

our appraiser appraised the property at 470,000, our acquisitions of the property.  We increased 

the deposit with the court to an additional 7,000 to cover the interests that they’re entitled to on 

that deposit.  And we’re now looking to settle with the investors that have since acquired titles to 

the property, after the initial landowner, Ad America, went into default and was foreclosed on.  

And so we’re asking for the Settlement Authority to settle for an additional $65,000. 

 

Governor:  Okay.  And does that resolve at least this case once and for all? 

 

Karissa Neff:  It resolves this case once and for all, yes. 

 

Governor:  And do you believe that this settlement amount is in the best interest of the state? 

 

Karissa Neff:  I do. 

 

Governor:  Any questions from Board members? 

 

Attorney General:  No. 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

April 8, 2014 – Meeting 

Page 21 

 

 

Secretary of State:  No, Governor. 

 

Governor:  Thank you, Ms. Neff. 

 

Karissa Neff:  All right.  Thank you. 

 

Governor:  If there are no further questions, the Chair will accept a motion for approval of -- to 

pay a cash settlement in the sum of $65,000 as described in Agenda Item No. 8. 

 

Secretary of State:  Governor, before we get there, I just have one quick disclosure to make.  

One of the investors and a party to this litigations is Michael O’Callaghan, who’s a contract 

employee with my office.  I don’t believe it poses a conflict. 

 

Governor:  All right.  Thank you, Mr. Secretary. 

 

Attorney General:  Governor, I’ll move for approval. 

 

Secretary of State:  Second. 

 

Governor:  The Attorney General has moved for the approval of Agenda Item No. 8.  The 

Secretary of State has seconded the motion.  Any questions or discussion?  All in favor say aye. 

 

Attorney General:  Aye. 

 

Governor:  Aye. 

 

Secretary of State:  Aye. 

 

Governor:  Motion passes 3-0. 

 

*9. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – LEASES 

 

Four statewide leases were submitted to the Board for review and approval. 
 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Attorney General Seconded By: Secretary of State Vote: 3-0 

Comments: 

 

Governor:  We’ll move on to Agenda Item No. 9, Leases.  Ms. Teska. 

 

Clerk:  Thank you, Governor.  For your consideration today we have four leases.  These are all 

extensions of existing leases for state agencies. 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

April 8, 2014 – Meeting 

Page 22 

 

Governor:  And I’d like to note at least in Leases 1 and 3, there’s a savings between the two of 

them of over $200,000, so that’s a good result.  But I have no questions with regard to any of 

these leases.  Board members? 

 

Secretary of State:  No, Governor. 

 

Governor:  Is there a motion to approve Agenda Item No. 9? 

 

Attorney General:  Move for approval. 

 

Secretary of State:  Second. 

 

Governor:  The Attorney General has moved for the approval of the Leases 1 through 4 as 

described in Agenda Item No. 9.  The Secretary of State has seconded the motion.  Any 

questions or discussion?  All in favor please say aye. 

 

Attorney General:  Aye. 

 

Governor:  Aye. 

 

Secretary of State:  Aye. 

 

Governor:  Motion passes 3-0. 

 

*10. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – CONTRACTS 

 
Twenty Eight independent contracts were submitted to the Board for review and approval. 

 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Attorney General Seconded By: Secretary of State Vote: 3-0 

Comments: 

 

Governor:  Let’s move on to Agenda Item No. 10, Contracts.  Ms. Teska. 

 

Clerk:  Thank you, Governor.  There are 28 contracts for your consideration at today’s meeting.  

I believe you had indicated you wanted to hear testimony on Item No. 20. 

 

Governor:  Yes. 

 

Clerk:  And are there any other items that the members would like to hear? 

 

Governor:  And, I guess, for the record, I’m going to make a disclosure with regard to Agenda 

Item No. 28.  The principal in that contract is the Ferraro Group, the contractor.  I have a 

friendship with Greg Ferraro who is the principal in that entity, so to avoid any appearance of 

impropriety, I will not be participating in the vote on Agenda Item No. 28.  But I will say that it 

was unclear what board and commission that contract is with.  Did we find out who that is? 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

April 8, 2014 – Meeting 

Page 23 

 

 

Clerk:  Yes, sir.  It is with Contractors Licensing Board. 

 

Governor:  Okay.  All right.  Then let’s go back to Agenda Item No. 20, which is Department of 

Health and Human Services, Welfare and Support Services, Child Support Program and 

Maximus Human Services. 

 

David Stewart:  For the record, this is David Stewart, Deputy Administrator, Information 

Systems for DWSS. 

 

Michael McMahon:  Good morning, Governor, members of the Board.  And for the record, 

Michael McMahon, Administrator, Division of Welfare and Supportive Services. 

 

Governor:  Okay.  And the only question here was I understand that these type of services are 

necessary, just the amount of a million dollars seemed like a lot.  And I was wondering if you 

could give some background on why the contract costs a million dollars. 

 

David Stewart:  Governor, this process went through the RFP process of the State of Nevada.  

The low bid for the services came in at 960,000 with the high bid of about two and a half million.  

This contractor, their bid was at $1.3, $1.4 million, and I was able to negotiate them down to the 

$1 million budget for this project. 

 

Governor:  Well, thank you for doing that.  What is the service that’s going to be provided?  I 

mean, this is -- I’m not in the technology world, so, as I said, when I saw $1 million for a 

feasibility study, I just wanted to get a little more background on why it costs that much. 

 

David Stewart:  According to the Office of Child Support Enforcement, a federally mandated 

feasibility study is required to obtain federal funding for any replacement system that would be 

identified by this feasibility study.  So in order for us to get the 66 percent federal funding 

matched, we have to do this study.  And the study consists of working with all of our county 

partners in the state developing requirements, going through our existing applications.  As part of 

this we have to consider two different transfers from two different states.  They look at hybrid 

solutions, which may be, you know, a hybrid might be some in-house development coupled with 

transfers of components from different states, or commercial off the shelf software that’s 

available.  Also included in this RFP is the vendor will help the state write the -- what they call 

the advanced planning document, which is kind of like the technology improvement request for 

the State of Nevada.  That’s how they look at the scope of the project and the approved funding 

based upon that.  The vendor’s also going to assist the state with writing the RFP for the design, 

development and implementation vendor, as well as the independent verification and validation 

vendor. 

 

Governor:  Okay.  And, as I said, it sounds like it’s very complex and necessary, and I 

appreciate the background.  And I also, again, want to thank you for being a tough negotiator and 

saving that money.  All right.  Board members, any… 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

April 8, 2014 – Meeting 

Page 24 

 

David Stewart:  Well, it was fairly easy.  It was fairly easy.  The second place vendor was a 

$960,000 bid. 

 

Governor:  Okay.  All right.  Any other questions from Board members on Contract No. 20? 

 

Secretary of State:  No, Governor. 

 

Governor:  Thank you, Gentlemen.  All right.  Board members, do you have any questions with 

regard to Contracts 1 through 28? 

 

Attorney General:  No. 

 

Secretary of State:  No. 

 

Governor:  Then the Chair will accept a motion for approval of Contracts 1 through 27. 

 

Attorney General:  Move for approval. 

 

Secretary of State:  Second. 

 

Governor:  The Attorney General has moved for the approval of Contracts 1 through 27.  The 

Secretary of State has seconded the motion.  Any questions or discussion on the motion?  All in 

favor say aye. 

 

Attorney General:  Aye. 

 

Secretary of State:  Aye. 

 

Governor:  Aye.  Motion passes 3-0.  As I stated previously, I will not be participating on the 

vote for Contract No. 28.  So if one of the other Board members would handle that for me, I’d 

appreciate it. 

 

Secretary of State:  Turning to Contract No. 28, are there any questions or concerns about 

Contract No. 28? 

 

Attorney General:  No. 

 

Secretary of State:  Hearing none, is there a motion to approve Contract No. 28? 

 

Attorney General:  I’ll move for approval. 

 

Secretary of State:  I’ll second.  Any comments or questions about the motion?  Hearing none, 

all those in favor signify by saying aye. 

 

Attorney General:  Aye. 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

April 8, 2014 – Meeting 

Page 25 

 

Secretary of State:  Aye.  Opposed nay?  The motion passes 2-0. 

 

Governor:  Thank you, Mr. Secretary. 

 

*11. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – MASTER SERVICE AGREEMENTS 
 

One master service agreement was submitted to the Board for review and approval. 
 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 
 

Motion By: Attorney General Seconded By: Secretary of State Vote: 3-0 

Comments: 

 

Governor:  We will move on to Agenda Item No. 11, Master Service Agreements.  Ms. Teska. 

 

Clerk:  There’s one master service agreement for approval today.  It is with Triple 7 Movers.  It 

is for moving services, packing, storage and general freight.  Any questions? 

 

Governor:  Yeah, I have on questions on this Agenda item.  Board members? 

 

Secretary of State:  No, Governor. 

 

Governor:  Is there a motion for approval? 

 

Attorney General:  Move for approval. 

 

Secretary of State:  Second. 

 

Governor:  The Attorney General has moved for approval of the Master Service Agreement No. 

1 in Agenda Item No. 11.  The Secretary of State has seconded the motion.  All in favor say aye.  

Aye. 

 

Secretary of State:  Aye. 

 

Governor:  Motion passes 3-0. 

 

12.     INFORMATIONAL ITEM 

 
 Pursuant to AB 41 of the 2013 Legislative Session, the Clerk of the Board may approve all 

contract transactions for amounts less than $50,000. Per direction from the August 13, 2013 

meeting of the Board of Examiners, the Board wished to receive an informational item listing all 

approvals applicable to the new threshold ($10,000 - $49,999). Below is a list of all applicable 

approvals for contracts and amendments approved for the month of March. 

 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

April 8, 2014 – Meeting 

Page 26 

 

CONTRACT 

# 

STATE AGENCY  CONTRACTOR 
CONTRACT/ 

AMENDMENT  
AMOUNT 

15357 Attorney General’s Office Clark County Office of 

District Attorney 

Contract $25,000 

Contract Description: This is a new revenue contract to provide prosecution services for the Office of the District Attorney, Clark County. 

15277 Attorney General’s Office Parkside Associates, LLC. Contract $49,999 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract to provide ongoing forensic accounting services to the Bureau of Consumer Protection in matters pertaining 

specifically to mortgage lending services cases.   

15346 Department of Administration 

– State Public Works Division 

Vegas Valley Locking 

Systems 

Contract $15,000 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract that continues ongoing installation, repair, and re-keying to doors and door hardware to various State 

buildings in the Las Vegas area. 

15345 Department of Administration 

– State Public Works Division 

JBA Consulting Engineers, 

Inc. 

Contract $21,500 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract to provide professional architectural/engineering services for the server room air conditioner installation at 

the Las Vegas Readiness Center, Project No. 13-M21; Contract No. 94251. 

15322 Department of Administration 

– State Public Works Division 

Paul Cavin Architect Contract $15,800 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract to provide professional architectural/engineering services for the Stewart Building #3 Americans with 

Disabilities Act Upgrades; Project No. 13-S02-5; Contract No. 94240. 

15438 Department of Administration 

– State Public Works Division 

Lumos & Associates Contract $22,400 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract to provide professional architectural/engineering services for the Camp Stead DFAC Drainage 

Improvements, Project No. 14-A013 (2); Contract No. 95010. 

15436 Department of Administration 

– State Public Works Division 

RO Anderson Engineering, 

Inc. 

Contract $13,405 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract to provide professional architectural/engineering services for the Nevada State Railroad museum 

Americans with Disabilities Act Upgrades; Project No. 13-S02; Contract No. 96984.  

15344 Department of Administration 

– State Public Works Division 

GML Architects, LLC. Contract $44,100 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract to provide professional architectural/engineering services to remove and replace culinary and infirmary 

flooring at the Ely State Prison, Project No. 13-M46; Contract No. 95759. 

14156 Department of Administration 

–  Nevada State Library and 

Archives 

Charter Fiberlink-CCVII, 

LLC. 

Amend $25,560 

Contract Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original contract, which provides new dedicated 20Mbps synchronous fiber internet access 

services to the Nevada State Library.  This amendment extends the termination date from May 31, 2014, to May 31, 2017, and 

increases the maximum amount from $9,520 to $35,080 due to the continued need for this service. 

15413 Department of Administration 

– Nevada State Library and 

Archives  

Beatty Library District Contract $30,635 

Contract Description: 

This is a new cooperative revenue agreement which continues to maintain a regional network of libraries (per NRS 379.147-

379.150) known as CLAN (Cooperative Libraries Automated Network) through joint agreement for the improvement of library 

services and the sharing of resources. 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

April 8, 2014 – Meeting 

Page 27 

 

 

CONTRACT 

# 

STATE AGENCY  CONTRACTOR 
CONTRACT/ 

AMENDMENT  
AMOUNT 

15416 Department of Administration 

– Nevada State Library and 

Archives  

Tonopah Library District Contract $24,430 

Contract Description: 

This is a new cooperative revenue agreement, which continues to maintain a regional network of libraries (per NRS 379.147-

379.150) known as CLAN (Cooperative Libraries Automated Network) through joint agreement for the improvement of library 

services and the sharing of resources. 

15418 Department of Administration 

– Nevada State Library and 

Archives  

Sierra Nevada College Contract $28,225 

Contract Description: 

This is a new cooperative revenue agreement, which continues to maintain a regional network of libraries (per NRS 379.147-

379.150) known as CLAN (Cooperative Libraries Automated Network) through joint agreement for the improvement of library 

services and the sharing of resources. 

15414 Department of Administration 

– Nevada State Library and 

Archives  

Esmeralda County 

Libraries 

Contract $41,235 

Contract Description: 

This is a new cooperative revenue agreement, which continues to maintain a regional network of libraries (per NRS 379.147-

379.150) known as CLAN (Cooperative Libraries Automated Network) through joint agreement for the improvement of library 

services and the sharing of resources. 

15381 Department of Health and 

Human Services – Director’s 

Office   

Kohn & Company, LLP. Contract $40,000 

Contract Description: 

This is a new contract that continues ongoing fiscal reviews of the Department of Health and Human Services Grants Management 

Unit grantees.  These outside fiscal reviews will provide assistance to the agency in meeting a requirement that all grantees are to 

be reviewed once every two (2) years. 

15380 Department of Health and 

Human Services – Director’s 

Office   

Bradshaw, Smith & 

Company, LLP. 

Contract $40,000 

Contract Description: 

This is a new contract that continues ongoing fiscal reviews of the Department of Health and Human Services Grants Management 

Unit grantees.  These outside fiscal reviews will provide assistance to the agency in meeting a requirement that all grantees are to 

be reviewed once every two (2) years. 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

April 8, 2014 – Meeting 

Page 28 

 

 

CONTRACT 

# 

STATE AGENCY  CONTRACTOR 
CONTRACT/ 

AMENDMENT  
AMOUNT 

15378 Department of Health and 

Human Services – Director’s 

Office   

Johnson and Burt CPA’s, 

LLC. 

Contract $40,000 

Contract Description: 

This is a new contract that continues ongoing fiscal reviews of the Department of Health and Human Services Grants 

Management Unit grantees.  These outside fiscal reviews will provide assistance to the agency in meeting a requirement that all 

grantees are to be reviewed once every two (2) years. 

15379 Department of Health and 

Human Services – Director’s 

Office   

Ellsworth, Gilman & Stout, 

LLC. 

Contract $40,000 

Contract Description: 

This is a new contract that continues ongoing fiscal reviews of the Department of Health and Human Services Grants 

Management Unit grantees.  These outside fiscal reviews will provide assistance to the agency in meeting a requirement that all 

grantees are to be reviewed once every two (2) years. 

12255 Department of Health and 

Human Services – Public and 

Behavioral Health   

Deborah E. Keil, PhD. Amend $25,569 

Contract Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original contract, which continues ongoing medical laboratory supervision services.  This 

amendment extends the termination date from February 28, 2014 to February 28, 2015 and increases the maximum amount from 

$72,327.12 to $97,896.72 to continue funding the fees for ongoing services through the extension date. 

13246 Department of Health and 

Human Services – Department 

of Child and Family Services   

Kathy N. Carlson Amend $14,960 

Contract Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original contract, which continues ongoing barber services at Nevada Youth Training Center.  

This amendment extends the termination date from June 30, 2014, to June 30, 2016, and increases the maximum amount from 

$19,440 to $34,440 due to the continued need for this service.  Beginning July 1, 2014, the cost per haircut will increase from $9 

to $10. 

14664 Department of Corrections  Board of Regents – UNR  Contract $14,964 

Contract Description: 

This is a new Interlocal Agreement with University of Nevada, Reno to provide an independent review of the Purpose, Respect, 

Integrity, Determination, and Excellence (PRIDE) program to be submitted to the Department of Employment, Training and 

Rehabilitation (DETR) to ensure the effectiveness and compliance of the program. 

15313 Department of Agriculture  MIA Consulting, LLC. Contract $15,396 

Contract Description: 

This is a new contract to create a custom Geo-database using the Early Detection & Distribution Mapping System (EDDMAPS) 

to establish a real-time web-based catalog of invasive weed infestations throughout Nevada.  This database will allow for 

smartphone access of pictures of various types of weeds and their locations.  The database will be supported and hosted for 12 

months after acceptance. 

15422 Department of Agriculture  M3 Planning Contract $12,870  

Contract Description: 

This is a new contract to provide meeting facilitation services for two development meetings within the Food and Nutrition 

Division. There will be an updating of the "Nevada School Wellness Policy" for the Child Nutrition Program and the initial 

development of the "Nevada USDA Food Distribution Plan" for the Commodity Food Program.  Facilitation services are needed 

to bring together the diverse stakeholders for each meeting, so that a common, efficient strategy can be formulated and agreed 

upon.  The vendor will facilitate 6 meetings (3 for Nevada School Wellness Policy and 3 for Nevada USDA Food Distribution 

Plan) over the balance of fiscal year 2014. 

15311 Department of Wildlife  Flight Check, Ltd. Contract $33,000 
Contract Description: This is a new contract to provide annual training to NDOW Helicopter pilots. 

15350 Department of Conservation 

and Natural Resources – 

Forestry Division   

Plumb Line Mechanical, 

Inc. 

Contract $25,000 

Contract Description: 

This is a new contract to provide ongoing preventative maintenance, repairs and parts to the HVAC system at the Nevada 

Division of Forestry's Northern Region Office/Shop and Elko Interagency Dispatch Center in Elko, NV.  Services will include 

annual and semi-annual schedule maintenance and general repairs services, as needed. 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

April 8, 2014 – Meeting 

Page 29 

 

 

CONTRACT 

# 

STATE AGENCY  CONTRACTOR 
CONTRACT/ 

AMENDMENT  
AMOUNT 

15292 Business and Industry – Real 

Estate Division   

Michael L. Matuska Contract $25,000 

Contract Description: 

This is a new contract to impanel the contractor to the Real Estate Divisions Alternative Dispute Resolution panel. The panel will 

mediate disputes between parties concerning common interest communities, including, without limitation, the interpretation, 

application and enforcement of covenants, conditions and restrictions pertaining to residential property and the articles of 

incorporation, bylaws, rules and regulations of an association. AB 370 gives authority to the Division to create this program and 

impanel mediators. 

15389 Department of Motor Vehicles  Image Access Corporation Contract $42,000 

Contract Description: 

This is a new contract to provide end user technical support to the Kovis File 360 scanning software being currently used within 

the department. This includes onsite software support services, system administration support, application development support, 

software upgrade support and training. The Kovis File 360 Imaging System is integrally linked to the DMV Mainframe 

Application which required custom programming by Image Access.   

15315 Department of Employment, 

Training and Rehabilitation – 

Rehabilitation Division   

General Cleaning Service 

Corporation 

Contract $19,560 

Contract Description: 

This is a new contract to provide as-needed cleaning and detailing of heavy duty commercial kitchen equipment and facilities, air 

conditioning and ventilation systems, trash chutes, loading docks, dumpster areas, awnings and rooftop grease and oil at all 

existing Business Enterprises of Nevada (BEN) locations in Northern Nevada. 

15296 Department of Employment, 

Training and Rehabilitation – 

Rehabilitation Division   

Paul Edwin Watson Contract $30,000 

Contract Description: 

This is a new contract to develop a training class with a workbook/handout and conduct training classes to provide current and 

potential Business Enterprises of Nevada (BEN) site operators (OPERATOR) tools to prepare for business ownership, operations 

and management, business plan development and on-going consulting/coaching. 

14483 Department of Employment, 

Training and Rehabilitation – 

Employment Security Division  

Emcor Services dba Mesa 

Energy Systems 

Amend $20,000 

Contract Description: 

This is the second amendment to the original contract which continues ongoing HVAC service works for the Department of 

Employment, Training and Rehabilitation facilities in Las Vegas, Nevada on an as needed basis. This amendment increases the 

maximum amount from $49,500 to $69,500 due to anticipated repair needs for the term of the contract.   

12942 Licensing, Boards & 

Commissions 

Lorylynn, Ltd. Amend $26,400 

Contract Description: 
This is the second amendment to the original contract to provide Executive Director services.  This amendment increases the 

contract amount from $172,295 to $198,695 to fund additional services as required by the Board. 

 

Governor:  Agenda Item No. 12 which are informational items.  Ms. Teska. 

 

Clerk:  I believe there are 30 contracts that were administratively approved by the Clerk of the 

Board.  These are contracts between $10,000 and $49,999.  If there are any questions on any of 

these items. 

 

Attorney General:  I just have… 

 

Governor:  Any questions, Board members? 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

April 8, 2014 – Meeting 

Page 30 

 

Attorney General:  Yeah, Governor, I just have one clarification for the same reason that you 

identified before.  The last item, which is Licensing, Boards and Commissions, that actually 

should be the Audiology Therapy. 

 

Unidentified Female Speaker:  Hang on. 

 

Attorney General:  And I guess in the future, for the same reason the Governor stated, we 

should probably clarify what Board.  And my understanding, it’s the Board of Examiners for 

Audiology and Speech Pathology. 

 

Katie Armstrong:  Yes. 

 

Attorney General:  Okay.  Yes, that was -- yes, that is Audiology and, yes, we will make sure 

that these Agenda items are clearer in the future.  Thank you. 

 

Governor:  And thank you, Madam, Attorney General, ‘cause I agree that it just -- from those 

two Agenda items you had no idea -- or I had no idea what board and commission was going to 

be contracting.  So, again, Ms. Teska’s already said, so as we move on, we’ll know specifically 

what board and commission is involved.  Okay.  Because this is an informational item, there 

won’t be a motion with regard to those. 

 

13.     INFORMATIONAL ITEM 

 
A. Silver State Health Insurance Exchange 

 

Update from Deloitte Consulting, LLP. on its assessment of the Silver State Health Insurance 

Exchange Business Operating System functionality. 

 

Governor:  So why don’t we move on then to Agenda Item No. 13, which is another 

informational item with regard to the Silver State Health Insurance Exchange.  Do we have 

representatives here today from Deloitte and Xerox?  All right.  Before we begin, I’ve been -- 

I’ve just been handed a Board of Examiners’ status update dated April 8, 2014 from Deloitte.  

Do the Board members have a copy of the same document that I have here? 

 

Attorney General:  Yes. 

 

Secretary of State:  Yes, Governor. 

 

Governor:  All right.  So why don’t we begin with Deloitte.  And we’ve begun with your review 

of the system and we’d like to know how it’s going. 

 

Do you mind?  Sorry about that. 

 

Governor:  He was going to give me his notes. 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

April 8, 2014 – Meeting 

Page 31 

 

Deb Saha:  For the record, I’m Deb Saha, I’m with Deloitte.  And with me Kunal Shah who’s 

the project manager for the system project, Ivy Bela, she’s the functional business manager. 

 

Governor:  Good morning. 

 

Deb Saha:  Good morning. 

 

Deb Saha:  So flipping over to slide one for you, Governor.  We talked about the background in 

the last meeting.  So we are engaged in doing an assessment for the SSHIX solution.  We are 

focusing on one thing, which is as this situation today, not looking at the past, and then going 

through our findings, then provide recommendation.  So in the approach, as we discussed earlier, 

that we have six threads.  We’re looking at project management governance, looking at the 

solution functionality.  On the technology piece we look at the SDLC, which is basically looking 

how the solution has been implemented, are being modified as well.  And the infrastructure, 

which is the data center component.  We’re looking at the security aspect of it and also the call 

center aspect. 

 

On the next slide, on the project approach, we have two phase approach.  One is the discovery 

phase, which is the two weeks.  And then we have analysis for the third week and the fourth 

week.  Two weeks each.  We are at the end of the discovery phase.  And we have completed 19 

interviews with stakeholders that includes Exchange executives, staff, Xerox project 

management, technical staff, brokers, carriers, infrastructure architects from the Xerox team as 

well as the EITS team.  We collected 88 documents, reviewed 88 documents.  We have… 

 

Governor:  And if I don’t -- if you don’t I’ll interrupt you there.  When you say 88 documents… 

 

Deb Saha:  That’s the 88 documents that’s needed for us to do the assessment.  88 documents 

that we gathered from the Xerox team, from the Exchange team. 

 

Governor:  ‘Cause that doesn’t seem like a lot of documents.  Is that sufficient to accomplish 

your task? 

 

Deb Saha:  Yeah, we actually requested 188.  Out of that we are still -- we are waiting for 28 

documents that we have not got.  We have not received.  I think truly there are two sets of 

documents that are overdue.  And there’s one set of documents that’s due on the 9
th

.  So really 

from the perspective of 18 documents that we -- that’s overdue, if you will, from the Xerox team.  

There are 88 documents we have reviewed.  We actually received 160 documents, but some of 

the documents are unavailable.  So, I’m sorry, the total set up documents that we looked at or 

tried to look at is 160.  Some of it’s unavailability from the Xerox team or the Exchange team. 

 

Governor:  And when you say it’s unavailable, what does that mean? 

 

Deb Saha:  That means -- I probably would let the Xerox team respond to that, but my 

understanding is, you know, every company has their own way of collecting documents, building 

solution and documents that are necessary for building.  So in some cases where we felt that 

document is needed perhaps was not available. 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

April 8, 2014 – Meeting 

Page 32 

 

 

Governor:  Okay.  And we’ll get to Xerox in sec.  When you say you’re waiting for 28 

documents, if you don’t get those documents in a timely manner, will that inhibit your ability to 

perform the analysis? 

 

Deb Saha:  Yes, I think we’ll just have to -- that would be blank, that data. 

 

Governor:  Okay.  And if we don’t have those 28 documents and you’re not able to complete 

your work, will that leave us with, at the end of the day, an incomplete answer as to what’s going 

on if we don’t have those documents? 

 

Deb Saha:  Yes, yes. 

 

Governor:  Okay.  And what has been -- and I’ll give Xerox a chance to talk about this.  Do you 

know what the explanation is for why those documents haven’t been provided yet? 

 

Deb Saha:  At this point I would say that they’re not available because of, in some cases, they’re 

gathering the data.  And I would say that there’s a lot of collaboration and cooperation from the 

Xerox team.  The first weeks have been a little bit rough, but things are getting better.  So there’s 

been a continuous dialogue between the teams to get the data. 

 

Governor:  Okay.  And before I move -- before you move on to the presentation obviously I 

want to see if the other Board members have any questions.  But this is what I want to continue 

this narrative that we have to have complete cooperation for us to be done in -- not only just to 

finish for the sake of finishing, but to have those answers that we need so that we can have a 

properly constructed Health Exchange.  So it’s very -- I mean, I want you to be really detailed in 

your response with regard to the provision of the documents and the information because that is 

obviously the threshold issue into being able to perform a proper analysis.  And the last thing I 

want is for you to be coming back at the end of this and said, “Well, Governor, this is what we 

know, but there’s a big gap here because we never got the documents that we needed or the 

information we needed to make a proper assessment.”  So that’s where I am.  Board members, 

any questions from you at least on this document piece? 

 

Secretary of State:  No, Governor. 

 

Attorney General:  No. 

 

Governor:  Okay.  So why don’t -- what I’ll ask is Deloitte go through its presentation, then 

we’ll move over to Xerox. 

 

Deb Saha:  Sure.  So on slide two as I was describe that we’re done with the first two weeks, 

phase one of discovery.  We are in the process of working with the Exchange leadership team to 

go through our first draft of deliverable.  And we expect approval on our deliverable first one.  

That’s called the status report after two weeks, after discovery, at the end of Friday this week.  

So we… 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

April 8, 2014 – Meeting 

Page 33 

 

Governor:  So you’re three days away? 

 

Deb Saha:  Yeah, that’s for just the first part. 

 

Governor:  Okay. 

 

Deb Saha:  Yeah.  And the second one, which is the analysis one, which will go for a couple of 

weeks, including this week, that’s where all the compiling of the -- of what our findings are and 

our recommendations are.  And so we will work through in the next week when we will be ready 

to start working -- have a dialogue with the Exchange team.  On the third week, which is the 

week of the 21
st
, that Monday, we’ll start looking -- working with the Exchange team.  And 

finally submit our final deliverable that’s supposed to be approved on the 25
th

, that Friday. 

 

Governor:  Is it fair to say that you’re behind now because you don’t have all the documents 

that you need? 

 

Deb Saha:  Yes. 

 

Governor:  And what will it take for you to get caught up? 

 

Deb Saha:  Just as much documents -- the documents that we can get from the Xerox team. 

 

Governor:  Okay.  Anything else that you wanted to provide to the Board? 

 

Deb Saha:  No.  Thank you, Governor. 

 

Governor:  Any questions for the Deloitte representatives from Board members? 

 

Secretary of State:  No, Governor. 

 

Attorney General:  No. 

 

Governor:  Why don’t we move over to Xerox and hear what you have to say. 

 

David Hamilton:  Governor and Board, good morning.  David Hamilton, Group President for 

Xerox, Government Health Solutions.  Again, we’re pleased to be participating with Deloitte.  I 

think our teams are working well together.  I would validate the numbers from Deb and his 

colleagues, 188 requests, about 28 outstanding that will come down we believe to about 12 as of 

probably now.  These documents and requests are coming in virtually daily.  The oldest 

outstanding from 3-26.  There are a few documents, I think as the Deloitte team reflects, that 

they would have a perspective that in building a system you would have documents one, two and 

three, and Xerox might have a perspective that you need one, three and four, so we may have 

gaps.  But I think we’ll either close on that disagreement or build where we can anything that 

Deloitte needs to support their assessment.  I think as you asked us last time we were here, we’re 

all in to support the assessment and we’ll work to get these last few straggling documents in 

within the next 24 hours. 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

April 8, 2014 – Meeting 

Page 34 

 

 

Governor:  Okay.  So are you saying that all 28 outstanding documents will be provided in the 

next 24 hours? 

 

David Hamilton:  There may be one or two that we’ll have to build because we literally don’t 

have them, but we’ll build them expeditiously. 

 

Governor:  Okay.  I mean, I’m not a technical person.  When you say that you have to build 

them, what does that mean? 

 

David Hamilton:  It basically means that Deloitte would request a certain artifact or diagram or 

something that would help them in their analysis that might not have been assembled by our 

team, so our team would literally have to build or make it.  But, again, what I would recommend 

is we just literally work together to say is the time spent of our mutual teams most valuable in 

building that artifact or is it more valuable to do some other aspect of the interrogation and the 

assessment?  But I think we can work together as I think we have over the last several weeks and 

close the door on this item. 

 

Governor:  Yeah, ‘cause almost is not good enough. 

 

David Hamilton:  Yep. 

 

Governor:  I mean, it’s -- I can’t be any more clear that it feels like what we’ve heard before, in 

terms of we’re getting there, we’re almost there, we’re working on it.  And so what I want to 

hear -- what I’ve heard you say today that all 28 outstanding documents will be provided in the 

next 24 hours. 

 

David Hamilton:  Mm-hmm.  Correct. 

 

Governor:  And then my questions for Deloitte is, if you have all those documents in the next 24 

hours, will that allow you to perform the analysis that needs to be completed in a timely manner? 

 

Deb Saha:  Yes, Governor. 

 

Governor:  Okay.  All right.  Questions from Board members for Xerox? 

 

Secretary of State:  No, Governor. 

 

Attorney General:  No, Governor. 

 

Governor:  ‘Cause, Mr. Hamilton, what I don’t want to happen is I’ve already had one 

conversation with… 

 

David Hamilton:  I understand. 

 

Governor:  …Ms. Burns and I’m riding hard on this. 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

April 8, 2014 – Meeting 

Page 35 

 

 

David Hamilton:  Absolutely understand.  As is she on board.  Yep. 

 

Governor:  Okay.  All right.  Mr. Willden or Director Willden, I see that you’re there.  Do you 

have any observations that you wanted to share? 

 

Mike Willden:  Not specifically, Governor, other than we, HHS and I know the Exchange 

Board, Mr. Fisher who is out this week and Ms. DeRousse, we continue to work with Deloitte 

and Xerox to get the documents in hand.  We have stayed in almost daily contact with the 

Deloitte assessment team.  We’re having period meetings.  So, again, I feel comfortable if we get 

all the 28 documents that we’re talking about.  As we’ve indicated, three of them are more than 

ten days old, some of them are very current requests.  That if we get there, that we should be able 

to complete the assessment. 

 

Governor:  Okay.  Has the state done everything that it’s supposed to do associated with these 

tasks? 

 

Mike Willden:  To my knowledge, yes, Governor.  I believe there are no outstanding documents 

that the Exchange would need to provide or that DHHS would need to provide.  It is my 

understanding that they are all requests to Xerox and Xerox needs to provide the documents. 

 

Governor:  Okay.  As I said, Mr. Hamilton, it’s on Xerox. 

 

David Hamilton:  Completely understand. 

 

Governor:  And, as I said, this is a very short period of time and there’s a lot riding on this. 

 

David Hamilton:  Completely right. 

 

Governor:  And in the meantime, you know, we’ve got the enrollment period that’s been 

extended.  How is that going?  I don’t know if you can respond to that or if you’re prepared to 

respond to that. 

 

David Hamilton:  Not with anything substantive.  Again, the teams are mobilized.  We’ve 

obviously seen a really good run up to 331.  And we’re seeing a little bit of that positive 

momentum continue.  But we’ll have the more final numbers for the Board meeting on 

Thursday. 

 

Governor:  Okay.  And with the other Board members’ permission, I know we don’t have 

another Board of Examiners’ meeting for another month, but I may consider having a special 

meeting so that we can continue to have real-time updates on how this is going, because I don’t 

want a surprise a month from now.  So I’ll obviously stay in close communications with the 

other Board members.  But is there any objection from either of you of us doing that in the 

future? 

 

Attorney General:  No, Governor.  I would support it. 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

April 8, 2014 – Meeting 

Page 36 

 

 

Secretary of State:  No, Governor. 

 

Governor:  Okay.  All right.  Thank you.  Any other questions?  ‘Cause I’m going to check in 

24 hours.  So I would imagine that by the close of business tomorrow that all those documents 

will be in. 

 

David Hamilton:  Correct. 

 

Governor:  All right.  Thank you very much. 

 

 14. BOARD MEMBERS’ COMMENTS/PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
Governor:  All right.  Agenda Item No. 14, are there any Board member comments? 

 

Secretary of State:  No, Governor. 

 

Governor:  Is there any public comment from Las Vegas?  Any public comment from Carson 

City? 

 

 

*15. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – ADJOURNMENT 
 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 
 

Motion By: Attorney General Seconded By: Secretary of State Vote: 3-0 

Comments: 

 

Governor:  Move on to Agenda Item No. 15, which is adjournment.  Is there a motion for 

adjournment? 

 

Attorney General:  Move for adjournment. 

 

Secretary of State:  Second. 

 

Governor:  Secretary of State has seconded.  All in favor say aye. 

 

Attorney General:  Aye. 

 

Secretary of State:  Aye. 

 

Governor:  Aye.  Motion passes 3-0.  This meeting’s adjourned.  Thank you, ladies and 

gentlemen. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting 

April 8, 2014 – Meeting 

Page 37 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

JULIA TESKA, CLERK 

 

APPROVED: 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

GOVERNOR BRIAN SANDOVAL, CHAIRMAN 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

ATTORNEY GENERAL CATHERINE CORTEZ MASTO 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

SECRETARY OF STATE ROSS MILLER 

 

 



 

DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION 

Brian Sandoval 

Governor 

Julia Teska 

Director 

Bryan Nix, Esq.  

Senior Appeals Officer 

STATE OF NEVADA 

Hearings Division 

Southern Nevada: 

Hearing Office 

2200 S. Rancho Drive, Ste. 210 

Las Vegas, Nevada 89102 

(702) 486-2525 | Fax (702) 486-2879 

 

Appeals Office 

2200 S. Rancho Drive, Ste. 220 

Las Vegas, Nevada 89102 

(702) 486-2527 | Fax (702) 486-2555  

  

 

Northern Nevada: 

Hearing Office 

1050 E. Williams St. Ste. 400 

Carson City, Nevada 89701 

(775) 687-8440 | Fax (775) 687-8441 

 

Appeals Office 

1050 E. Williams St. Ste. 450 

Carson City, Nevada 89701 

(775) 687-8420 | Fax (775) 687-8421  

 

 

http://hearings.state.nv.us/  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To: Julia Teska, Clerk, Board of Examiners 

 

From: Bryan Nix, Coordinator, Victims of Crime Program 

 

Date: April 2, 2014 

 

Re: Revised Policies 

 

 

The Board of Examiners is the governing authority of the Nevada Victims of Crime 

Program. NRS 217.130 empowers the Board of Examiners to adopt rules and regulations while 

NRS 217.150 requires the BOE to formulate standards for the payment of compensation to 

victims of crime. 

 

The current policies were last updated and adopted by the Board in August 2009. The current 

revisions are largely clarification and minor changes to existing policies. All of the changes are 

highlighted in RED in the copy of the policies I’ve submitted with the final version to be 

adopted. 

 

There are some changes of note including: 

  

o Clarification that Nevada can assist Nevada residents injured in other states where 

our benefits provide assistance not available in the state where they were injured. 

(page 6) 

 

o Clarification that the VOCP does not reimburse other agencies or programs when 

they provide assistance to a victim. (page 9) 

 

o Clarification that the VOCP does not pay for long term nursing care or in-patient 

care. (page 34 and 48) 

 

o Clarification of the documents acceptable for establishing residency. (page 38) 

 

1



 
 

 

o Clarification of what types of dental care are approvable. (page 47) 

 

o Addition of a new benefit for the payment of HIV preventive prescription 

treatments on sexual assault claims. (page 48) 

 

o Changed the policy on travel reimbursement to eliminate reimbursement of 

mileage but allow for other travel related per diem. (page 53) 

 

o Clarification that the VOCP can allow for the payment of COBRA payments. 

(page 53) 

 

o Provide a new benefit to rural victims by paying for sexual assault testing in 

certain circumstances. (page 54) 

 

o Clarify appeals process to the Board of Examiners. (page 64) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

  

 

 

2



 

Policies 
Nevada Victims of Crime Program 
Nevada State Board of Examiners 
 

 

3



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 2 of 90 

 

Table of Contents 
Section One.  Introduction .................................................................................................. 6 

1. Nevada Victims of Crime Program........................................................................ 6 
2. Scope of Nevada Victims of Crime Program ........................................................ 6 

Section Two.  VOCP Policies ............................................................................................. 7 
1. General...................................................................................................................... 7 
2. VOCP Coordinator.................................................................................................. 8 
3. Effective Date of Changes ....................................................................................... 8 
4. Anti-Discrimination Policy ..................................................................................... 8 
5. Americans with Disabilities Statement .................................................................. 8 
6. Language Interpreters and Hearing Interpreters ................................................ 9 
7. VOCP is the Payer of Last Resort.......................................................................... 9 
8. VOCP is Not an Entitlement Program .................................................................. 9 
9. Payments to Victims Not Reportable as Taxable Income.................................. 10 
10. Service of Documents at Last Known Address Sufficient.................................. 10 
10. Conflicts .................................................................................................................. 11 
11. Confidentiality........................................................................................................ 11 

Section Three.  VOCP Standards for Determining Compensation................................... 11 
1. General.................................................................................................................... 11 
2. Estimating Revenue and Expenses....................................................................... 12 
3. Claim Payment Priorities...................................................................................... 13 
4. Financial Analysis and Counseling ...................................................................... 14 
5. Fee Schedules ......................................................................................................... 14 

Section Four.  Responsibilities of Applicant .................................................................... 15 
1. General.................................................................................................................... 15 
2. Continuing Obligations:........................................................................................ 16 
3. Filing Timely Police Report .................................................................................. 16 
4. Cooperation with Law Enforcement.................................................................... 17 
5. Cooperation with the VOCP................................................................................. 17 
6. Restitution, Civil Suits, and VOCP Subrogation Lien ....................................... 18 

Section Five.  Application for VOCP Benefits ................................................................. 19 
1. General.................................................................................................................... 19 
2. Incomplete Applications........................................................................................ 19 
3. Third - Party Applications.................................................................................... 20 
4. Waiver of Late Application................................................................................... 20 
5. Application Signature Requirements................................................................... 20 
6. Acknowledgement of Subrogation, Financial Eligibility and Penalties............ 21 
7. VOCP Releases of Information ............................................................................ 22 
8. Medical, Law Enforcement and Employment Releases..................................... 22 
9. Adult Applicants .................................................................................................... 23 
10. Minor Applicants ................................................................................................... 23 

Section Six.  Police Reports .............................................................................................. 23 
1. Police Reports Required........................................................................................ 23 
2. Police Report Verification Form .......................................................................... 25 

4



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 3 of 90 

3. When Police Reports are Unavailable or Not Required .................................... 25 
4. Statements of Law Enforcement in Police Reports. ........................................... 26 

Section Seven.  Crime Types Eligible for Consideration ................................................. 26 
1. Murder: NRS 200.010 ........................................................................................... 26 
2. Assault and Battery: NRS 200.471; NRS 200.481............................................... 26 
3. Robbery: NRS 200.380 .......................................................................................... 27 
4. Driving Under the Influence: NRS 484.379......................................................... 27 
5. Pedestrian Hit & Run: NRS 484.219: NRS 484.111 ........................................... 27 
6. Sexual Assault or Spousal Rape: NRS 200.366 ................................................... 28 
7. Domestic Violence: NRS 33.018............................................................................ 28 
8. Child Abuse, Endangerment, Molestation: NRS 200.508 .................................. 29 
9. Elder Abuse: NRS 200.5092.................................................................................. 29 
10. Pornography Involving a Minor: NRS 200.700 .................................................. 30 
11. Human Trafficking: NRS 200.468........................................................................ 31 
12. Stalking: NRS 200.575........................................................................................... 31 
13. Kidnapping: NRS 200.310..................................................................................... 31 
14. Terrorism: NRS 217.035; NRS 217.070; 18 U.S.C. § 2331(1) ............................ 32 

Section Eight.  Eligibility Standards and Criteria ............................................................. 32 
1. General.................................................................................................................... 32 
2. Physical Injury Claims .......................................................................................... 33 
3. Catastrophic Injury Claims .................................................................................. 34 
4. Presumed or Emotional Injury Claims................................................................ 34 
5. Threat of Injury Claims ........................................................................................ 35 
6. Children’s Claims in Domestic Violence Cases................................................... 35 
7. Vehicle-Related Crimes......................................................................................... 36 
8. DUI Crimes............................................................................................................. 36 
9. Ineligible Crimes.................................................................................................... 37 
10. Prison or Jail Victims ............................................................................................ 37 
11. Residency and Citizenship Requirements ........................................................... 37 
12. Financial Eligibility Standards............................................................................. 38 

Section Nine.  Limitations on Compensation ................................................................... 38 
1. Contribution: General Considerations ................................................................ 38 
2. Contributory Conduct Considerations ................................................................ 39 
3. Mitigating Factors ................................................................................................. 40 
4. Drug and Alcohol Intoxication Issues .................................................................. 40 
5. Limited Claim Acceptance.................................................................................... 41 
6. Prior Case or Social History ................................................................................. 41 

Section Ten.  Claim Limits and Payment Policies............................................................ 41 
1. General.................................................................................................................... 41 
2. Claim and Benefit Limits ...................................................................................... 42 
3. Verification Process ............................................................................................... 44 
4. Medical Bill Review ............................................................................................... 44 
5. Applicant or Provider Not Authorized to Obligate VOCP................................ 45 
6. Pre-Approval Required to Assure Payment........................................................ 45 
7. Reimbursement to Applicants Limited to Fee Schedule .................................... 45 
8. Pre-existing Conditions are not payable by the VOCP...................................... 46 
9. Second Opinions and Independent Medical Exams ........................................... 46 

5



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 4 of 90 

10. Co-Pays and Deductibles....................................................................................... 46 
Section Eleven.  Available Benefits.................................................................................. 46 

1. Medical and Dental Care ...................................................................................... 46 
2. Chiropractic Treatment and Physical Therapy.................................................. 47 
3. Ambulance or Medical Transport........................................................................ 47 
4. Surgical Implants................................................................................................... 47 
5. Prescription Medication Benefits ......................................................................... 48 
6. Counseling and Mental Health Services .............................................................. 48 
7. Work Interruption Claims.................................................................................... 49 
8. Lost Wage Reimbursement Claims...................................................................... 49 
9. Survivor Benefits ................................................................................................... 50 
10. Funeral and Burial Expenses................................................................................ 51 
11. Relocation Expenses .............................................................................................. 51 
12. Crime Scene Clean Up........................................................................................... 52 
13. Home Security........................................................................................................ 52 
14. Child Care .............................................................................................................. 53 
15. Mileage/Travel Reimbursement ........................................................................... 53 
16. COBRA Payments ................................................................................................. 53 
17. Compensation Officer Discretionary Authority ................................................. 53 

Section Twelve.  Claim Acceptance, Denial and Closure, and Reconsideration.............. 54 
1. General.................................................................................................................... 54 
2. Claim Acceptance .................................................................................................. 55 
3. Claim Denial........................................................................................................... 55 
4. Reasons for Denial ................................................................................................. 56 
5. Consolidated Applications .................................................................................... 57 
6. Vacated Applications............................................................................................. 57 
7. Inactive Claims and Claim Closure ..................................................................... 57 
8. Reconsideration...................................................................................................... 58 
9. Reopening ............................................................................................................... 58 
10. Protection from Collection Agencies.................................................................... 59 

Section Thirteen.  VOCP Subrogation Rights .................................................................. 59 
1. Subrogation Lien ................................................................................................... 59 
2. Civil Suit by VOCP................................................................................................ 60 
3. Civil Suit by Applicant .......................................................................................... 60 

Section Fourteen.  Appeal Rights and Procedures............................................................ 61 
1. Appeal Rights ......................................................................................................... 61 
2. Failure to Respond to Written Request ............................................................... 62 
3. Non-Appealable Matters ....................................................................................... 62 
4. Burden of Proof...................................................................................................... 62 
5. Appeals Process...................................................................................................... 63 
6. Appeal to a Hearing Officer.................................................................................. 63 
7. Appeal to Appeals Officer..................................................................................... 64 
8. Appeals to the Board of Examiners ..................................................................... 64 
9. Decisions of the BOE ............................................................................................. 65 

Section Fifteen.  Victim Advocates and Attorneys........................................................... 65 
1. Advocate Assistance............................................................................................... 65 
2. Federal Requirements ........................................................................................... 65 

6



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 5 of 90 

3. The Advocate’s Role in the Appeal Process ........................................................ 66 
4. Attorney Fees ......................................................................................................... 66 

Section Sixteen.  VOCP Claims Management System..................................................... 66 
1. Paperless Claims Management System ............................................................... 66 
2. File Retention ......................................................................................................... 67 
3. Systems Security and Backup............................................................................... 67 
4. System Functionality ............................................................................................. 67 

Section Seventeen.  Operating Procedures ....................................................................... 68 
1. Application Processing .......................................................................................... 68 
2. Document Processing............................................................................................. 68 
3. Medical Bill Processing ......................................................................................... 68 
4. Direct Payment Processing ................................................................................... 69 
5. Check Production .................................................................................................. 69 
6. Stop Payments........................................................................................................ 69 
7. Reconciliation of Bank Account ........................................................................... 70 
8. Tax Reporting ........................................................................................................ 70 
9. Excluded Parties List............................................................................................. 70 
10. Deposits ................................................................................................................... 70 

Section Eighteen.  Operational Goals and Standards........................................................ 70 
1. General.................................................................................................................... 70 

Section Nineteen.  Reports................................................................................................ 71 
1. Reports to the Legislature..................................................................................... 71 
2. Reports to the BOE................................................................................................ 71 

Section Twenty.  VOCP Funding ..................................................................................... 72 
1. General.................................................................................................................... 72 
2. State Funding Sources........................................................................................... 72 
3. OVC VOCA Victim Compensation Grant .......................................................... 73 

Section Twenty-One.  Federal Policies Pursuant to: USC Title 42 .................................. 74 
1. General.................................................................................................................... 74 

Section Twenty-Two.  Federal Guidelines: VOCA Grant Program ................................. 76 
1. General.................................................................................................................... 76 

 
 
 

  

7



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 6 of 90 

 

Section One.  Introduction 
 
1. Nevada Victims of Crime Program 
 

A. The Nevada Legislature established the Victims of Crime Program “VOCP” in 1969 pursuant 
to NRS 217.010 to NRS 217.270 to provide compensation to victims of violent crime in 
Nevada. The VOCP operates under the auspices of the Nevada State Board of Examiners 
“BOE”, established pursuant to NRS 353.010.  

 
B. The policy of the State of Nevada is expressed in NRS 217.010. This section provides: 

 
“It is the policy of this State to provide assistance to persons who are victims of violent 
crimes or the dependents of victims of violent crimes.” 

 
C. VOCP Mission Statement 

 
“It is the mission of the Nevada Victims of Crime Program to provide financial 
assistance to qualified victims of crime in a timely, cost efficient and compassionate 
manner.” 

 
2. Scope of Nevada Victims of Crime Program 
 

A. The Nevada VOCP assists victims who suffer injuries from violent crime. The VOCP does 
not assist with crimes involving property damage, or provide assistance for property loss or 
damage except as expressly provided for by these policies. 
 

B. The VOCP is established to assist qualified Nevada residents, U.S. citizens, or others entitled 
to reside in the U.S., who sustained injuries in a crime committed in Nevada.   
 

C. NRS 217.035 defines crimes covered by the VOCP as crimes “committed within this state”. 
 

D. NRS 217.102 provides for assistance to Nevada residents injured by crimes outside Nevada.  
This section provides: 

 
“A resident who is a victim of a crime that occurred in a state other than the State of Nevada 
may apply to the Board for compensation if: 
1.  The state in which the crime occurred does not have a program for compensating victims 
of crime for their injuries; or 

     2. The resident is ineligible to receive compensation under the program of the other state.” 
 

E. The provisions of NRS 217.102 may be extended to Nevada residents injured while visiting 
other countries, where the country does not provide assistance to Nevada residents, 
comparable to the assistance offered by the VOCP for crimes committed in the State of 
Nevada. The VOCP may assist Nevada residents injured in other states where Nevada 
provides assistance not offered by the state where they were injured. 

8



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 7 of 90 

 
F.  NRS 217.065 defines resident as:   

 
“A person who is a citizen of the United States or who is lawfully entitled to reside in the 
United States; and     
2.  During the 6 weeks preceding the date of the crime was: 
     (a) Domiciled in this state; and 
    (b) Physically present in this state, except for any temporary absence. 

 
Section Two.  VOCP Policies 

 
1. General 
 

A. The Board of Examiners is the governing authority of the Nevada Victims of Crime 
Program. NRS 217.130 empowers the BOE to adopt rules and regulations while NRS 
217.150 requires the BOE to formulate standards for the payment of compensation to victims 
of crime. 

 
B. When adopted by the BOE these policies are the rules and regulations of the Nevada Victims 

of Crime Program and constitute the standards for the determination of the payments of 
claims to or on behalf of victims of crime. 

 
C. These policies are intended to assist in interpreting and applying the provisions of NRS 217. 

They are intended to provide guidance to compensation officers in determining eligibility 
requirements and in paying the benefits approved by these policies. 

 
D. These policies are intended to provide guidance to hearings and appeals officers in deciding 

matters that are properly before them, and to the BOE in reviewing their decisions. 
 

E. These policies are intended to assist victims of crime understand the rules and regulations 
which guide the decisions of the Nevada VOCP and the policies which determine available 
benefits. They will assist the victim in insuring decisions are made pursuant to these policies. 

 
F. The VOCP goal is to assist eligible victims of crime and their families cope, and recover 

from the physical, emotional and financial impact of violent crime. These policies recognize 
the VOCP does this best by paying for medical and dental care, counseling, lost income, and 
other approved benefits as quickly as possible: when a victim needs financial support and 
reassurance the most. These policies encourage a responsible sense of “urgency” in making 
decisions and providing benefits to qualified victims, and they encourage cooperation and 
coordination with victim advocates, and others working to assist victims of crime throughout 
Nevada. 

 

9



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 8 of 90 

2. VOCP Coordinator 
 

A. The VOCP coordinator (or their designee) provides oversight and guidance to the 
Compensation Officers, and is responsible for monitoring adherence to these policies. 
 
   

3. Effective Date of Changes 
 

A. The benefits levels set forth in these policies for wage loss reimbursement, funeral expenses, 
mental health counseling, and all other benefits, are subject to change at any time by the 
Board of Examiners. 
 

B. Unless otherwise required by law, a substantive change to eligibility requirements will be 
effective for applications approved on or after the effective date of the change.  

 
C. Except as otherwise provided by the BOE or these policies, any decrease in claim limits or 

claim benefit levels will be applied to all claims effective at the time the change is adopted.  
 

D. An effective date or date of limitation included in the express provisions of a section will 
apply if there is any conflict with this section. 

 
E. Individual exceptions to claim or benefit levels may be approved by the VOCP coordinator if 

necessary to avoid undue hardship to a victim or when the application of a change would 
violate a commitment of the VOCP to the victim, a service provider, or other person. 
Exceptions granted by the VOCP coordinator shall be documented in the claim. 

 
F. Authorizations for benefits or other payments given by the VOCP staff may be withdrawn if 

given by mistake; if based on misinformation provided by any person; or if given in violation 
of these policies. 

 
4. Anti-Discrimination Policy 
 

A. The VOCP will not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion (creed), gender, age, 
national origin (ancestry), disability, marital status, sexual orientation, or military status, in 
any of its activities or operations. These activities include, but are not limited to, determining 
an individuals eligibility for VOCP benefits, hiring and firing of staff, selection of 
volunteers, selection or treatment of vendors, and provision of services to, and dealings with, 
the public. 

 
5. Americans with Disabilities Statement 
 

A. VOCP will take all reasonable measures to ensure that no individual with a disability is 
excluded, denied services, segregated or otherwise treated differently due to the absence of 
auxiliary aids and services identified in the Americans with Disabilities Act. 

 
B. If special needs accommodations are necessary in order for any individual to obtain services 

from the VOCP, advance notice should be provided to the VOCP staff. 

10



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 9 of 90 

 
6. Language Interpreters and Hearing Interpreters 
 

A. The VOCP recognizes that communication in the face of language barriers can be difficult 
and frustrating. The VOCP will provide information and referral assistance to persons who 
may be in need of hearing or language interpretation services.  
 

B. The VOCP will make reasonable efforts to insure its application and other critical documents 
or forms are available in Spanish translation. 

 
7. VOCP is the Payer of Last Resort 
 

A. The VOCP is the “payer of last resort.” This means that all existing resources a victim has 
must be utilized before the VOCP can pay any expenses. Existing resources include, but are 
not limited to, insurance, workers’ compensation, or civil suit settlements. 
 

B. These policies adopt, by reference, federal guidelines that require federal assistance 
programs such as: Medicaid, Veterans Administration, Indian Health Services, or Social 
Security, pay before VOCP pays. If VOCP pays and such benefits become available, the 
VOCP is entitled to be reimbursed pursuant to its subrogation lien or other provisions of law 
or these policies. 

 
C. Since the VOCP may pay approved victim claims immediately after an application is 

approved, resources may become available that were not available when benefits were paid 
to, or on behalf of the victim. In cases where a third party is determined responsible for 
paying for applicants injuries, after the VOCP has paid applicant claims, then the VOCP is 
entitled to reimbursement pursuant to its subrogation lien. If the applicant recovers from civil 
suit settlements, lump sum retroactive payments from social security, or other recoveries, the 
VOCP must be reimbursed. 
 

D. The VOCP will not reimburse another agency, program or other service provider for 
expenses paid by their organization on behalf of an approved victim, unless the organization 
requests and obtains written preauthorization from the VOCP coordinator.   

 
8. VOCP is Not an Entitlement Program 
 

A. VOCP benefits available under these policies are paid on behalf of approved applicants, 
subject to restrictions that may be imposed as the BOE may determine, or as available 
funding may require. No legal rights to payment are conferred on an applicant when their 
application is approved by the VOCP other than those provided by NRS 217 or these 
policies. 

 
B. An applicant who incurs medical or other expenses related to the crime is legally responsible 

for those financial obligations regardless of whether those debts were incurred before or after 
acceptance by the VOCP. Neither the VOCP, nor the State of Nevada, is ever legally 
responsible for any of the bills or expenses incurred by an applicant at any time. If the 
application is approved by the VOCP, the applicant is still legally responsible for those 

11



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 10 of 90 

financial obligations unless, and until they are paid or the applicant is otherwise relieved of 
legal responsibility. 

 
C. Approval of an application confers no right to any payments by the VOCP. Claim approval 

or the approval of any benefit may be revoked or withdrawn by the VOCP at any time, where 
the VOCP determines that the approval was made in error or for other cause consistent with 
these policies. Any such revocation or withdrawal may be appealed. 

 
D. Decisions denying benefits are appealable for the purposes of ensuring the appealable 

decisions of the VOCP were correctly made pursuant to the provisions of NRS 217 and these 
policies, not to establish a right to, or property interest in any benefit offered by the VOCP.  

 
E. Previous approvals or other decisions of the VOCP do not establish precedent, or require 

consideration in other cases or matters. Decisions of the VOCP are appealable through the 
administrative appeals process and to the BOE, only when appeal rights are provided with 
the decision, or as otherwise required by these policies or law.  

 
F. The BOE is the final appeal in all VOCP matters. Decisions of the BOE are final and cannot 

be appealed to the District Court or State Supreme Court. This is provided for in NRS 
217.117 (4) which states: 

 
“The decision of the Board is final and not subject to judicial review.” 

 
9. Payments to Victims Not Reportable as Taxable Income 

 
A. IRS Revenue Ruling 74-74 states awards made by the Crime Victims Compensation Board 

to victims of crime or to their surviving spouses or dependents are not includable in the gross 
income of the recipient. Therefore, the VOCP will not issue 1099-MISC forms on direct 
payments made to the victim, applicant or their dependents, such as lost wages and survivor 
benefits. 
   

B. If a victim receives reimbursement for medical expense that they had deducted in a prior 
year, they should advise their tax preparer of the amount received, and report the amount 
received as required by Income Tax Regulations relating to reimbursements for expenses 
paid in prior years. No tax form will be issue by the VOCP regarding reimbursement 
payments made to the victim, applicant or their dependents. 

  
10. Service of Documents at Last Known Address Sufficient 
 

A. It is the responsibility of the applicant to notify the VOCP of any change of address. Any 
notice or determination or other correspondence mailed to the applicant at the address on file 
with the VOCP is deemed received by the applicant no later than 3 days after the date mailed 
by the VOCP.  
 

B. If service of documents or receipt by the applicant of any VOCP document is an issue on 
appeal the applicant will have the burden of establishing lack of notice or delivery. 

 

12



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 11 of 90 

10. Conflicts 
 

A. Employees, contractors, and vendors of the VOCP will avoid all conflicts or appearances of 
conflicts in matters relating to VOCP business or its affairs.  
 

B. Employees, contractors, and vendors will not handle documents or files, make or influence 
decisions of family members, friends, or associates. 

 
C. Employees, contractors, and vendors will disclose to the VOCP coordinator any conflicts 

involving applicants or claims of family members, friends, or associates to the VOCP 
coordinator. 

 
11. Confidentiality 

 
A. NRS 217.105 provides that all victim information maintained by the VOCP is confidential 

and will not be made public unless otherwise provided by law or court order. 
 

B. The VOCP necessarily releases or discloses certain information in the execution of its 
responsibilities in investigating and administrating the claim. For example, the VOCP will 
provide certain information about the applicant to police agencies, medical providers, 
counselors, VOCP contractors or vendors, victim advocates or attorneys, in order to request 
reports or other information necessary to investigate, administer, or pay claims. 
 

C. The VOCP may release or disclose information to auditors or investigators or others with an 
official need for information related to their legal duties. 
 

D. The VOCP may release or disclose information to employees of the state budget office, 
treasurer’s office, VOCP contractors or other agencies as necessary to pay claims or 
otherwise administer a claim. 
 

E. The VOCP may release or disclose information to the Hearing or Appeals Officers or the 
BOE when a matter is appealed. 
 

F. Confidential information may become public as a consequence of an appeal to the BOE, 
which conducts its meetings, and hearings open to the public. 

 
G. The VOCP may be required to provide or disclose information in response to a complaint by 

the applicant or in order to respond to an inquiry generated by the applicant. 
 

Section Three.  VOCP Standards for Determining Compensation 
 
1. General 
 

A. NRS 217.150 requires the BOE to formulate standards for determining the amount “of any 
compensation payable” to an approved applicant. This section states: 

 

13



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 12 of 90 

“The Board shall, so far as practicable, formulate standards for the uniform application 
of NRS 217.010 to NRS 217.270, inclusive, by the compensation officers in the 
determination of the amount of any compensation payable pursuant to NRS 217.010 to 
NRS 217.270, inclusive. The standards must take into consideration rates and amounts of 
compensation payable for injuries and death under other laws of this state and of the 
United States.” 

 
B. These policies formulate the standards for the uniform application of NRS 217.010 to NRS 

217.270 in the determination of compensation to be paid by the VOCP. 
 

C. “Compensation payable to an approved applicant” as required by NRS 217.150 will consist 
of only those claims approved for payment by the VOCP pursuant to these policies. 

 
D. A claim submitted for payment by the victim or provider is an “approved claim” when all of 

the following occurs: 
 

1) Receipt of the claim by VOCP, with all required supporting documentation; and 
2) Verification that the claim is the responsibility of the applicant; and 
3) Verification that the claim is crime related: and 
4) Confirmation that the claim is for an approved benefit; and 
5) Review and application of appropriate fee schedule or other approved rate; and 
6) Approval by the compensation officer; and 
7) Approval by the VOCP coordinator; and 
8) Approval by the Administrative Services Division of the State Budget Office. 

 
E. New incidents, or injuries suffered during a pending claim, with the same perpetrator, will be 

consolidated and included under any existing open or approved claim. The compensation 
officer may approve medical treatment for additional injuries under the existing claim. 

 
F. An applicant may not accumulate additional benefits by filing additional or duplicate 

applications, where there are multiple incidents or ongoing claims with the same perpetrator. 
The compensation officer may, however, consider additional costs as a result of further or 
additional injuries while an approved claim is open.  

 
G. If the applicant suffers additional injuries from subsequent crimes, and the medical and other 

costs exceed the claim limit of the approved claim, the compensation officer may increase 
the claim limit of the existing claim, or close the existing claim and open a new claim with a 
new claim limit as determined by the compensation officer.  

 
 

2. Estimating Revenue and Expenses 
 
A. NRS 217.260 (1) requires the BOE to estimate its revenue and anticipated expenses on a 

quarterly basis, and when anticipated expenses exceed anticipated revenue to pay claims at 
the same reduced rate as expenses exceed revenue. This section states, in pertinent part: 

 
“The Board shall estimate quarterly: 

14



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 13 of 90 

      (a) The revenue in the Fund which is available for the payment of compensation; and 
      (b) The anticipated expenses for the next quarter. 
 If the estimated expenses for the quarter exceed the available revenue, all claims paid in 
that quarter must be reduced in the same proportion as the expenses exceeded the 
revenue.” 

 
B. These policies establish priorities for the payment of claims so that approved expenses do not 

exceed available revenues in any fiscal year quarter. When claims are paid pursuant to these 
policies expenses will not exceed revenues budgeted for the payment of claims. 

 
C. The application of cost containment measures, including fee schedules and claim and benefit 

caps are intended to maintain claim costs in a manner to avoid blanket claim reductions by a 
percentage of estimated expenses over revenue as provided by NRS 217.260 (1). 

 
3. Claim Payment Priorities 

 
A. In order to effectuate the provisions of the applicable statutes, and the standards and criteria 

stated in these policies, the VOCP will pay approved claims according to the priorities 
established in this section. Claims will be categorized and paid by priority as follows: 

 
B. Priority One Claims 

 
1) Priority one claims will be paid before all other existing or known claims are paid and 

consist of bills for medical treatment or services provided to the applicant that were pre-
approved by the compensation officer, after the claim has been approved by the VOCP. 
Such claims may include expenses such as: surgery to remove bullets, reparative 
cosmetic or dental care, prosthetic devices, or equipment such as wheelchairs.  

 
2) Priority one claims will be paid upon receipt of appropriate billing documentation from 

the provider or vendor. Priority one claims will be paid at the rate pre-approved by the 
compensation officer or pursuant to VOCP fee schedules or these policies. 

 
 

C. Priority Two Claims 
 

1) Priority two claims will be paid after existing or known priority one claims, and consist 
of bills for services or for benefits provided to the applicant after the application has been 
approved by the VOCP. These claims consist of expenses such as mental health 
counseling, lost wage reimbursement, prescription medication, relocation costs and 
medical expenses incurred after claim approval.  

 
2) Priority two claims will be paid upon receipt of appropriate billing documentation by the 

provider. Priority two claims will be paid at the fee schedule rate or the rates set forth by 
these policies. 

 
D. Priority Three Claims 
 

15



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 14 of 90 

1) Priority three claims will be paid after existing, known, or anticipated priority one and 
priority two claims and will consist of bills or claims incurred by the applicant prior to 
claim acceptance by the VOCP. Such claims include hospital emergency room bills, 
ambulance charges and other medical or service charges incurred prior to claim 
acceptance by the VOCP.  

 
2) Priority three claims may be paid after funds are reserved, but not yet paid, for known or 

anticipated priority one or priority two claims.  
 

3) Priority three claims will be paid at the end of each fiscal year quarter as follows: 
 

a) When adequate funds are available pursuant to VOCP funding and budgeting 
priorities, priority three approved claims will be paid at 100% of the approved 
amount. 

 
b) When budgeted and available funding for the fiscal year quarter is insufficient to pay 

approved priority three claims at 100% of the approved amount, then all approved 
priority three claims will be paid a pro-rata share of funds available for that fiscal 
year quarter. 

 
E. A claim may be paid at any time, as determined by the VOCP regardless of its priority status.  

Designation of a priority status lower than another does not mean it will be paid after a claim 
designated with a higher priority status. 

 
4. Financial Analysis and Counseling 

 
A. In order to provide the maximum financial benefit within the limits set forth in these policies, 

the VOCP, or its contractor, will review and analyze all victims resources including 
insurance, public assistance or other available benefits, and crime related debts and 
obligations to determine what VOCP resources will provide the most effective assistance. An 
analysis of all existing crime related financial impact including anticipated future financial 
impact will be conducted to insure resources are utilized efficiently and in the interest of the 
victim’s maximum recovery from the financial impacts of the crime. 
 

B. The VOCP, or its contractor, will assist the victim with financial counseling as may be 
required.  

 
C. The VOCP contractor will analyze and restructure the crime related medical debts incurred 

by the victim by reviewing all medical bills and recommending payments that should be 
acceptable to medical providers based on workers’ compensation standards, VOCP policies, 
known acceptable rates for service or usual and customary standards. 

 
5. Fee Schedules 

 
A. These policies recognize that VOCP revenues will not always be sufficient to pay all 

approved claims at the approved amount, and that priorities for the payment of benefits are 
necessary to ensure the fair treatment of applicants and providers or vendors. 

16



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 15 of 90 

 
B. These policies establish the principle that the VOCP will endeavor to provide assistance to 

victims in a manner that will assist them recover from injuries and trauma first; and then 
assist them with financial relief from crime related debt, incurred by the victim prior to claim 
acceptance by the VOCP.  

 
C. The VOCP will negotiate or compromise claims in a manner that will provide the greatest 

debt relief to a victim at the least cost to the VOCP. 
 

D. When determining the validity of medical or other provider claims, the VOCP will consider 
the fee schedules adopted by the State of Nevada for payment of workers compensation 
claims, or other insurance industry fee schedules accepted by the provider, whichever 
provides the greatest discount for the VOCP.  
 

E. The VOCP may utilize the fee schedule recommended payment or may pay a larger or 
smaller amount than the recommended fee schedule amount when circumstances of a 
particular claim may require, 

 
F. Where medical fee schedules are not available for a particular claim or service the VOCP 

will consider the usual and customary charges for such services. 
 
G. When pre-approving medical treatment or other services the VOCP may adjust such fees as 

approved by the VOCP coordinator. 
 

Section Four.  Responsibilities of Applicant 
 
1. General 
 

A. When applying to the VOCP, the burden of proof for determining eligibility lies solely on 
the applicant. The applicant must provide clear evidence of eligibility for any and all benefits 
provided by the VOCP. It is not the responsibility of the VOCP to obtain documentation to 
substantiate claims and statements made by the applicant. 

 
B. The applicant is responsible for obtaining and submitting all bills, receipts and other 

documents required by the VOCP to evidence eligibility for payment of expenses submitted 
for payment.  

 
C. If the applicant is unable to obtain reports, bills or other documents the applicant must advise 

the VOCP and provide information sufficient to identify the creditor, agency or provider so 
the VOCP can assist the applicant in obtaining the reports, bills or other documents or 
information. 

 
D. All notices, letters or other correspondence, and direct payments to applicants will be mailed 

to the applicant’s current address on file with the VOCP. No payments may be picked up at 
the VOCP offices or its contractors, or vendor’s offices.  

 

17



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 16 of 90 

E. The applicant must inform the VOCP of any change of address. All notices and other 
correspondence directed to the applicant, that may require action by the applicant, will be 
mailed to the address on file with the VOCP. Failure to respond to a deadline stated in a 
determination or other correspondence will not be excused where the failure to respond is 
caused, in whole or in part, by applicants’ failure to report address changes to the VOCP. 

 
2. Continuing Obligations:  
 

A. An applicant shall have a continuing obligation to: 
 

1) provide the VOCP with current information relating to the claim; 
2) cooperate with the VOCP in the investigation of the claim including responding promptly 

to all requests for further information; 
3) notify the VOCP of any change in address; 
4) provide information to the VOCP about any civil action anticipated or filed in connection 

with the crime; 
5) exhaust all other sources of payment or reimbursement for compensable expenses, and 

promptly notify the VOCP of any order for payment or eligibility for payment from any 
other source. 

 
3. Filing Timely Police Report 
 

A. To qualify for VOCP benefits an applicant must establish that a police report was filed 
within 5 days of the crime or within 5 days of the time when a report could reasonably have 
been made. NRS 217.210 (1) provides:  

 
“Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, an order for the payment of 
compensation must not be made unless the application is made within 1 year after the 
date of the personal injury or death on which the claim is based, unless waived by the 
Board of Examiners or a person designated by the Board for good cause shown, and the 
personal injury or death was the result of an incident or offense that was reported to the 
police within 5 days of its occurrence or, if the incident or offense could not reasonably 
have been reported within that period, within 5 days of the time when a report could 
reasonably have been made.” 

 
B. The VOCP coordinator is authorized, and designated by the BOE to approve a waiver of the 

late filed police report requests made by the applicant or the compensation officer. In 
determining reasonableness of delays in reporting the crime to law enforcement, the 
compensation officer may consider the following factors: 

 
1) Mental or physical impairment of the victim, or 
2) Coma or memory loss, or 
3) Absence from the state following the crime for reasons of personal safety, or 
4) The victim failed to comprehend or realize they were a victim of a crime, or 
5) Justifiable fear for victims’ safety, or the safety of family members, or 
6) Justifiable fear of violent retaliation, or 
7) Credible threat of family disruption or displacement. 

18



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 17 of 90 

 
4. Cooperation with Law Enforcement 
 

A. Victims are required to provide reasonable cooperation with law enforcement in the 
investigation of the crime or prosecution of the offender. Reasonable cooperation includes 
answering investigators questions truthfully and making reasonable efforts to assist in 
identifying the offender. NRS 217.220(1)(f) provides:  

 
 “Compensation must not be awarded if the victim: 
 (f) Fails to cooperate with law enforcement agencies. Such cooperation does not 
require prosecution of the offender.” 

 
B. Reasonable cooperation also includes making reasonable efforts to assist in the prosecution 

of the offender; however prosecution or conviction of the offender is not required in order to 
qualify for VOCP assistance. NRS 217.180(3) provides: 

 
“An order for compensation may be made whether or not a person is prosecuted or 
convicted of an offense arising from the act on which the claim for compensation is 
based.” 

 
C. An application may be denied where the applicant or victim fails to provide reasonable 

cooperation as follows: 
 

1) Refused to testify when legally served with a subpoena in a proceeding related to the 
prosecution of the crime; 

2) Committed perjury relating to the crime; 
3) Did not completely and truthfully respond to a request for information, evidence or 

assistance in a timely manner, unless circumstances beyond the victim’s control 
prevented the victim from complying. 

 
D. VOCP policies recognize that circumstances may exist where the victim fears for their life or 

safety, or the life or safety of family members, if they cooperate with law enforcement. 
These factors will be considered in cases where failure to cooperate with law enforcement is 
raised. 
 

E. Initial failure to cooperate may be mitigated or waived where the victim establishes the 
following: 

 
1) Subsequent cooperation with law enforcement 
2) Justifiable fear for victims’ safety, or the safety of family members 
3) Justifiable fear of violent retaliation 
4) Credible threat of family disruption or displacement 

 
5. Cooperation with the VOCP 
 

19



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 18 of 90 

A. The applicant must cooperate with the VOCP, its staff, and the staff of its contractors or 
vendors, in the verification of all information necessary to determine eligibility including 
verifying the information on the application and in all matters related to the claim.  

 
B. The following actions establish a lack of cooperation with the VOCP and constitute grounds 

for denial of the application or denial of further benefits and closure of an approved, open 
claim: 

 
1) The applicant fails to provide information needed to process the application or the claim, 

that is available to the applicant, or that the applicant may reasonably obtain, and the 
applicant fails to provide the information after being requested, in writing, to do so.  

2) The applicant intentionally submitted false or misleading information or intentionally 
incomplete or inaccurate information. 

3) The applicant intentionally submitted documents that were falsified, altered, or 
“doctored”. 

4) The applicant intentionally submitted for payment bills, receipts, vouchers, or other 
documents that were not crime related. 

5) The applicant intentionally attempted to obtain benefits they knew they were not entitled 
to, such as lost wages during a period they were employed, or the payment of expenses 
not related to the crime. 

6) Threatening or harassing the BOE, the VOCP staff, or the staff of its contractors or 
vendors.  

7) Intentionally or knowingly disregarding the reasonable written requests or instructions 
from VOCP or BOE staff.                                                                         

8) The applicant fails to provide the VOCP with a current mailing address and mail is 
returned undeliverable. 
 

C. For the purposes of determining applicants’ intent under these policies, the applicants’ 
conduct is considered intentional where the applicant knew or reasonably should have known 
the document, assertion, or declaration was false, and submitted it anyways. 

 
D. The compensation officer may immediately deny, or close a previously accepted application, 

under these circumstances or in situations where the applicants’ actions impede the VOCP 
staff, or the staff of its contractors or vendors in the completion or prosecution of their duties.  

 
E. The compensation officer may also submit the matter to the Attorney General or other 

officials for prosecution if the applicant knowingly submitted false claims under NRS 
217.270, or violated any other provision of law. 

 
6. Restitution, Civil Suits, and VOCP Subrogation Lien 
 

A. A judge may order restitution to the victim or to the VOCP directly. If the victim receives 
money from a restitution order directly, the VOCP may exercise its subrogation rights.  
 

B. If an applicant files a civil suit against a perpetrator or a third party, the law requires them to 
notify and repay the VOCP pursuant to NRS 217.240 and these policies. 

 

20



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 19 of 90 

Section Five.  Application for VOCP Benefits 
 
1. General 
 

A. To qualify for VOCP benefits a victim must submit a completed VOCP application to the 
VOCP. 

 
B. Applications for assistance will be deemed to be complete only if: 

 
1) The applicant provides all information as directed in the application. 
2) The applicant signs the application as provided. 
3) The applicant submits, or the VOCP obtains, a valid police report or verification of the 

filing of the police report. 
 

C. For purposes of determining when the application is complete in the VOC-NET database, the 
police report will be considered “submitted” when it is scanned into the VOC-NET file and 
available for review as a file document. 
 

D. In DUI cases the application is not complete until a BAC report or other evidence or 
verification of intoxication is submitted, if such information is not included in the original 
police or traffic report. 

 
2. Incomplete Applications 
 

A. Incomplete applications may be returned to the applicant for completion, or may be denied.  
 

B. Before an application will be considered complete, each of the following sections must be 
completed where applicable: 

 
1) Victim information 
2) Applicant information  
3) Residency status 
4) Crime information 
5) Crime expenses 
6) Prior disability information 
7) Prior VOCP claims 
8) Insurance information 
9) Signature of applicant  

 
C. Information concerning persons assisting the victim complete the application, and advocate 

or attorney information, is only required where applicable.  
 

D. The demographic and statistical sections of the application are not mandated, however, the 
information requested will help the VOCP identify victim demographics, and provide more 
complete data for reports for the BOE, Nevada Legislature, Nevada Attorney General, U.S. 
Department of Justice, National Association of Crime Victim Compensation Boards, law 
enforcement organizations, and community and local victim service organizations, who 

21



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 20 of 90 

address the needs of the victims of violent crime at the local level throughout Nevada, and 
others. Answers to these questions will not affect the applicants’ eligibility in any way. 
Victim advocates who assist victims complete the application, and individual applicants, are 
encouraged to provide the demographic and statistical information requested in the 
application. 

 
3. Third - Party Applications 
 

A. Victims, their dependents or next-of-kin, may submit applications for VOCP assistance. A 
“victim” will not include an individual or company who merely provides medical or 
medically related services, funeral and/or burial services, estates, or corporations. All such 
expenses will only be paid based upon the submission of such expenses through the 
particular victim or their qualified representative. 

 
4. Waiver of Late Application 
 

A. Subsection 1 of NRS 217.210 states in part:  
 

“Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, an order for the payment of 
compensation must not be made unless the application is made within one (1) year after 
the date of the personal injury or death due to a crime on which the claim is based, 
unless waived by the board of examiners or a person designated by the board for good 
cause shown…” 

 
B. Waiver of a late-filed application means that the claim can be evaluated and processed 

despite the late filing. Waiver of a late application does not mean the applicant is eligible. 
Waiver allows the compensation officer to consider the application on its merits rather than 
simply deny it for being late.  
 

C. The following criteria will be considered in mitigation when evaluating a request for waiver: 
 

1) Whether the victim was aware of VOCP 
2) Whether the victim was physically unable to apply 
3) Whether the victim was mentally unable to apply 
4) Length of the delay 

 
D. Authority to waive the 12-month deadline, when applications are submitted between 12 and 

18 months of the crime, after a showing of good cause, is vested in the compensation officer.  
 

E. Authority to waive the deadline on claims filed after 18 months, after a showing of good 
cause, is vested in the VOCP coordinator. 

 
5. Application Signature Requirements 
 

A. When an applicant files an application with the VOCP, they are subject to certain conditions 
imposed by law or by these policies.  Benefits are available to qualified applicants who 

22



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 21 of 90 

complete the application, provide the requested information, and acknowledge and agree to 
the conditions imposed by law or these policies.  
 

B. The applicant must authorize the release of information about the victim or applicant from 
medical providers, police agencies and others. This requires the applicant to sign the 
application containing the pertinent declarations, statements, acknowledgements and 
releases. If the victim is a minor or incapacitated, a parent or legal guardian must sign on 
their behalf. If the applicant does not sign where required, or attempts to modify the 
statements contained therein, the application may be denied.  

 
C. Applicants shall provide the last four digits of their social security number to aid in 

identification where necessary. 
 
6. Acknowledgement of Subrogation, Financial Eligibility and Penalties 
 

A. The section titled “My Promise to Repay the VOCP” reflects the provisions of NRS 217.240, 
which gives the State of Nevada a subrogation lien on any recoveries by the victim as a result 
of the crime. This applies primarily to lawsuits but could also cover restitution, insurance, 
social security, or other payments to victims. 

 
My Promise to Repay the VOCP: I hereby acknowledge my legal obligation to repay the 
VOCP any money paid to me, or paid on my behalf, by the VOCP, if I receive any 
money, from any source, as a result of the crime. I hereby agree to notify the VOCP if I 
hire an attorney to pursue a lawsuit or if I receive any court ordered restitution or other 
recovery including, but not limited to, insurance payments, settlements or other benefit 
payments. 

 
B. The section titled “Certificate of Financial Eligibility” reflects the provisions of NRS 

217.220 that provides for denial if payment of the bills would not present a financial 
hardship on the victim. The statute allows the victim to have up to one years worth of salary 
in savings or investments and still be eligible. 

 
Certificate of Financial Eligibility: I hereby certify that I do not have Savings or 
Investments exceeding the amount of my Annual Income, and that it would be a financial 
hardship if I were to receive no assistance from the VOCP. I hereby authorize any 
insurer, financial institution, government agency, or any other person with information 
about me to release information about me to the VOCP. 

 
C. The section titled “Penalties for Providing False Information” reflects the provisions of NRS 

217.270, which makes it a crime to provide false information for the purposes of obtaining 
benefits. 

 
Penalties for Providing False Information: I understand that I may be imprisoned or fined 
for providing false or misleading, or intentionally incomplete information to the VOCP. I 
declare under penalty of perjury and pursuant to Nevada law that all the information I 
have provided is true, correct and completed to the best of my information and belief. 

 

23



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 22 of 90 

7. VOCP Releases of Information 
 

A. The section titled “VOCP Release of Information” reflects the policy allowing the VOCP to 
release information as necessary to administer the claim or the VOCP. Typical examples 
include releasing certain information to obtain police or medical reports and providing 
victims names to vendors to verify claim acceptance or denial information. 

 
VOCP Release of Information: I hereby authorize the VOCP to release information to 
police agencies, medical or other service providers, my advocate, attorney, or 
representative concerning my application or claim as necessary to administer the VOCP 
or my claim. No information will be released where prohibited by law.  

 
8. Medical, Law Enforcement and Employment Releases 

 
A. The language of the following sections reflect the provisions of NRS 217.090 and NRS 

217.100 which requires the compensation officer to review the victims medical reports and 
police reports and, in cases of wage claims, employment information. These releases allow 
the compensation officer to obtain such reports. 

 
B. The section titled “Medical Information Release” is used by the VOCP to comply with 

requirements of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, and allows 
the VOCP to obtain medical information about the victim. 

 
Medical Information: I hereby authorize any hospital, medical clinic, physician, dentist, 
mental health provider, pharmacist, or any other medical provider to release any and all 
information including medical reports, histories, prognosis, treatment plans, billing 
information and any other information relating to my medical treatment for my crime 
related injuries or condition, to the VOCP as required by NRS 217.100. This Medical 
Authorization shall automatically expire without express revocation one year from the 
date below.  This release is in compliance with all HIPAA regulations.              

 
C. The section titled “Law Enforcement Reports” allows the VOCP to obtain investigative 

reports regarding the crime. 
 

Law Enforcement Reports: I hereby authorize any police, law enforcement agency, child 
protective agency, or Coroners office to release any police, investigative, incident report, 
or coroners report related to my application to the VOCP as required by: NRS 217.110 
(2)(d), NRS 217.180, NRS 217.210 (1) and NRS 217.220 (1) and (2).   I understand that 
all such reports will remain confidential as provided by State and Federal law and NRS 
217.105. 

 
D. Requests for Lost Wages benefits or Survivors benefits will also require the following 

employment release and acknowledgement, which must be signed by the victim or 
authorized applicant. 

 

24



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 23 of 90 

Employment Information: I hereby authorize my current or former employer to release 
any and all information concerning my employment status, including my wages, benefits, 
insurance, lost time or other information to the VOCP. 

 
9. Adult Applicants    

 
A. Adult victims and applicants must sign the application. Adults who cannot sign because of 

physical or mental limitations may have a dependent or representative sign an application on 
the victim’s behalf. Documentation, evidencing the applicant’s legal authority to act on 
behalf of the victim, may be required by the compensation officer. 

 
10. Minor Applicants 
 

A. A minor who is a victim of crime may qualify for assistance from the VOCP. NRS 217.210 
provides that minors, who are the victims of sexual abuse or assault, or a victim of 
pornography, have until age 21 to file a claim with the VOCP.  
 

B. Late claims may be excused as provided in paragraph 8 above: Waiver of Late Application. 
 

C. Minor victims cannot file an application without parental or responsible adult authorization.  
An adult must sign on behalf of the minor victim. The following adults may file an 
application on behalf of a minor: 

 
1) Parent  
2) Legal Guardian 
3) Victim Advocate 
4) Social Worker or Probation Officer 
5) Relative Caregiver 
6) Other Court-Approved Designees 

 
 
 

Section Six.  Police Reports 
 
1. Police Reports Required 
 

A. An application for VOCP benefits cannot be approved unless a police report was filed. NRS 
217.090 requires the compensation officer to verify certain facts contained in the reports of 
law enforcement agencies who investigated the crime.  This section states in part:  
 

“A compensation officer shall: 
 (a) Conduct an investigation to determine the eligibility of the applicant for aid, 
including but not limited to: … 
             (3) Obtaining and reviewing reports of peace officers and statements of 
witnesses.”  

 
B. The compensation officer verifies the following information from the police report: 

25



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 24 of 90 

 
1) Whether the report filed within 5 days of the crime per NRS 217. 210. 
2) Whether the crime committed is covered by the VOCP. 
3) Whether the applicant was a victim of that crime. 
4) Whether the applicant was injured during the crime. 
5) Whether the applicant participated in the crime. 
6) Whether the applicant contributed to their injuries. 
7) Whether the applicant cooperated with the police. 

 
C. Police Reports must be provided to VOCP pursuant to NRS 217.110 (3). This section states:  

 
3.  If a compensation officer submits a request pursuant to subsection 2 for investigative 
or police reports which concern:  
 (a) A natural person, other than a minor, who committed a crime against the victim, a 
law enforcement agency shall provide the compensation officer with a copy of the 
requested investigative or police reports within 10 days after receipt of the request or 
within 10 days after the reports are completed, whichever is later.  
 (b) A minor who committed a crime against the victim, a juvenile court or a law 
enforcement agency shall provide the compensation officer with a copy of the requested 
investigative or police reports within 10 days after receipt of the request or within 10 
days after the reports are completed, whichever is later.  
 4.  A law enforcement agency or a juvenile court shall not redact any information, 
except information deemed confidential, from an investigative or police report before 
providing a copy of the requested report to a compensation officer pursuant to subsection 
3.  
 5.  Any reports obtained by a compensation officer pursuant to subsection 3 are 
confidential and must not be disclosed except upon the lawful order of a court of 
competent jurisdiction.  
 6.  When additional reports are requested pursuant to subsection 2, the compensation 
officer shall render a decision in the case, including an order directing the payment of 
compensation if compensation is due, within 15 days after receipt of the reports.  

 
D. In order to expedite the processing of the application, applicants are encouraged to obtain 

and submit, along with the application, a copy of the crime report prepared by the law 
enforcement agency where the crime was reported. In cases where the applicant or their 
representative is unable to obtain a crime report, the VOCP will attempt to obtain the crime 
report by sending a written request for the report to the agency identified in the application. 

 
E. No application will be complete until the VOCP receives a copy of the crime report. The 

report must be a report generated by a law enforcement agency, or a voluntary statement 
from the victim or witness to the crime that shows evidence of receipt by the law 
enforcement agency. If the applicant does not provide a police report with the application, or 
otherwise, and the VOCP does not receive a report after 30 days after its written request, the 
application may be denied.  
 

F. The police report must be legible and sufficiently free of redactions, whiteouts, and other 
markings to be read and understood by the compensation officer. The report must contain 

26



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 25 of 90 

sufficient information to establish eligibility of the applicant under these policies. Reports 
that do not meet these criteria may be rejected and applications supported by such reports 
may be denied. 

 
G. The compensation officer may request a subpoena for a police report to be issued by the 

hearing or appeals officer, at the discretion of the compensation officer, whether or not an 
appeal or hearing request has been filed. The hearing or appeals officer will issue the 
subpoena where the compensation officer establishes the following: 

 
1) that a written request for the police report was denied, or 
2) the request was not responded to, as verified by the compensation officer, or 
3) the report provided is unreadable or difficult to decipher due to whiteouts, redactions 

or other alterations. 
 
2. Police Report Verification Form 
 

A. If a law enforcement agency is unable to release a full investigative report for any reason, it 
may submit a completed a “Police Report Verification” form as provided by the VOCP, in 
lieu of submitting an official police report. The submission of a police report verification 
form does not excuse the law enforcement agency from complying with NRS 217.110 by 
providing an official police report, if the compensation officer or a hearings or appeals 
officer otherwise requires an official police report. 

  
B. The police report verification form approved by the VOCP provides the facts of the crime 

including: 
 

1) the date of the crime and the date the crime was reported,  
2) whether the victim participated in the commission of the crime,  
3) whether the victim was involved in the events leading to the crime, and  
4) whether the victim cooperated with law enforcement. 

 
 

C. In cases involving DUI’s, any other information that may be necessary, such as drug or 
alcohol test results, or police officer observations or field sobriety reports, may be provided 
in the Police Report Verification Form. These facts may also be verified by letter, email, or 
otherwise. 

 
3. When Police Reports are Unavailable or Not Required 
 

A. If a crime report is not required to be made to law enforcement, by other state or federal laws 
or regulations, or when a sexual assault victim submits to a forensic examination, but does 
not file a law enforcement report, the compensation officer may approve the claim without a 
crime report as long as there is sufficient documentation that a crime was committed against 
the applicant.  

 
B. Where the VOCP has made a written request to the law enforcement agency identified in the 

application, and the law enforcement agency is unable or unwilling to provide a copy of the 

27



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 26 of 90 

official police report, the hearing officer may not remand the matter to the VOCP. The 
hearing officer may subpoena police reports or personnel, if it will assist the hearing officer 
determine whether the applicant is qualified for VOCP assistance under these policies. 

 
C. If the applicant appeals the denial of an application for reasons related to the adequacy or 

existence of a law enforcement report, they will have the burden of establishing, by official 
documentation, that a police report was filed and the requirements of NRS 217.210 have 
been met.  

 
4. Statements of Law Enforcement in Police Reports. 
 

A. Law enforcement reports will be accepted as evidence by the hearing or appeals officer, and 
will not be subject to disqualification based on hearsay objections.  
 

B. The compensation officer will consider the following when evaluating law enforcement 
statements concerning applicants’ cooperation, or failure to cooperate: 

 
1) Whether the applicant was required to cooperate under any other state or federal law or 

regulation 
2) Whether applicant demonstrates subsequent cooperation with law enforcement  
3) Whether applicant demonstrates justifiable fear for victims’ safety, or the safety of family 

members 
4) Whether applicant demonstrates justifiable fear of violent retaliation 
5) Credible threat of family disruption or displacement 

 
C. Statements of law enforcement officers contained in their reports will be considered, and 

significant weight will be given to the evidence from, and conclusions of a law enforcement 
agency when determining whether or not a crime occurred, or the applicant cooperated. 
Evidence from the victim that contradicts, corrects or clarifies such reports will also be 
accepted into evidence and given full consideration. 
 
 

 
Section Seven.  Crime Types Eligible for Consideration 

 
1. Murder: NRS 200.010 
 

A. Murder is defined under NRS 200.010 as the “unlawful killing of a human being”. 
 
2. Assault and Battery: NRS 200.471; NRS 200.481 
 

A. Assault is defined under NRS 200.471 as “intentionally placing another person in 
reasonable apprehension of immediate bodily harm”.  

 
B. Battery is defined under NRS 200.481 as “any willful and unlawful use of force or violence 

upon the person of another”. 
 

28



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 27 of 90 

3. Robbery: NRS 200.380 
 

A. Robbery is defined under NRS 200.380 as: 
 

1.…the unlawful taking of personal property from the person of another, or in his 
presence, against his will, by means of force or violence or fear of injury, immediate or 
future, to his person or property, or the person or property of a member of his family, or 
of anyone in his company at the time of the robbery.   

 
4. Driving Under the Influence: NRS 484.379 
 

A. NRS 484.379 states: 
 

 1.  It is unlawful for any person who: 
      (a) Is under the influence of intoxicating liquor; 
      (b) Has a concentration of alcohol of 0.08 or more in his blood or breath; or 
      (c) Is found by measurement within 2 hours after driving or being in actual physical 

control of a vehicle to have a concentration of alcohol of 0.08 or more in his blood 
or breath, 

to drive or be in actual physical control of a vehicle on a highway or on premises to 
which the public has access. 
      2.  It is unlawful for any person who: 
      (a) Is under the influence of a controlled substance; 
      (b) Is under the combined influence of intoxicating liquor and a controlled substance; 

or 
      (c) Inhales, ingests, applies or otherwise uses any chemical, poison or organic 

solvent, or any compound or combination of any of these, to a degree which renders 
him incapable of safely driving or exercising actual physical control of a vehicle, 

to drive or be in actual physical control of a vehicle on a highway or on premises to 
which the public has access. The fact that any person charged with a violation of this 
subsection is or has been entitled to use that drug under the laws of this State is not a 
defense against any charge of violating this subsection. 

 
5. Pedestrian Hit & Run: NRS 484.219: NRS 484.111 
 

A. A Hit & Run crime occurs when someone violates the requirements of NRS 484.219, which 
states: 

 
1. The driver of any vehicle involved in an accident on a highway or on premises to 
which the public has access resulting in bodily injury to or the death of a person shall 
immediately stop his vehicle at the scene of the accident or as close thereto as possible, 
and shall forthwith return to and in every event shall remain at the scene of the accident 
until he has fulfilled the requirements of NRS 484.223. 
 

B. A Pedestrian is defined under NRS 484.111, which states: 
 

29



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 28 of 90 

“Pedestrian” means a person afoot, a person in a manual or motorized wheelchair, or a 
person on an electric personal assistive mobility device as defined in NRS 482.029. 

 
6. Sexual Assault or Spousal Rape: NRS 200.366 
 

A. Sexual Assault is defined under NRS 200.366, which states: 
 

1.  A person who subjects another person to sexual penetration, or who forces another 
person to make a sexual penetration on himself or another, or on a beast, against the will 
of the victim or under conditions in which the perpetrator knows or should know that the 
victim is mentally or physically incapable of resisting or understanding the nature of his 
conduct, is guilty of sexual assault. 

 
B. Spousal Rape is defined under NRS 200.373, which states: 

 
 It is no defense to a charge of sexual assault that the perpetrator was, at the time of the 
assault, married to the victim, if the assault was committed by force or by the threat of 
force. 
 

7. Domestic Violence: NRS 33.018 
 

A. Domestic Violence is defined under NRS 33.018, which states: 
 

1.  Domestic violence occurs when a person commits one of the following acts against 
or upon his spouse, former spouse, any other person to whom he is related by blood or 
marriage, a person with whom he is or was actually residing, a person with whom he 
has had or is having a dating relationship, a person with whom he has a child in 
common, the minor child of any of those persons, his minor child or any person who has 
been appointed the custodian or legal guardian for his minor child: 
      (a) A battery. 
      (b) An assault. 
      (c) Compelling the other by force or threat of force to perform an act from which he 
has the right to refrain or to refrain from an act which he has the right to perform. 
      (d) A sexual assault. 
      (e) A knowing, purposeful or reckless course of conduct intended to harass the 
other. Such conduct may include, but is not limited to: 
             (1) Stalking. 
             (2) Arson. 
             (3) Trespassing. 
             (4) Larceny. 
             (5) Destruction of private property. 
             (6) Carrying a concealed weapon without a permit. 
             (7) Injuring or killing an animal. 
      (f) A false imprisonment. 
      (g) Unlawful entry of the other’s residence, or forcible entry against the other’s will 
if there is a reasonably foreseeable risk of harm to the other from the entry. 

30



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 29 of 90 

2.  As used in this section, “dating relationship,” means frequent, intimate associations 
primarily characterized by the expectation of affectional or sexual involvement. The 
term does not include a casual relationship or an ordinary association between persons 
in a business or social context. 

 
8. Child Abuse, Endangerment, Molestation: NRS 200.508 
 

A. Child Abuse and Endangerment is defined under NRS 200.508, which defines the abuser as: 
 

1.  A person who willfully causes a child who is less than 18 years of age to suffer 
unjustifiable physical pain or mental suffering as a result of abuse or neglect or to be 
placed in a situation where the child may suffer physical pain or mental suffering as the 
result of abuse or neglect: 

 
B. Sexual Abuse of a minor is defined under 432B.100, which states: 
 

“Sexual abuse” includes acts upon a child constituting: 
      1.  Incest under NRS 201.180; 
      2.  Lewdness with a child under NRS 201.230; 
      3.  Sado-masochistic abuse under NRS 201.262; 
      4.  Sexual assault under NRS 200.366; 
      5.  Statutory sexual seduction under NRS 200.368; 
      6.  Open or gross lewdness under NRS 201.210; and 
      7.  Mutilation of the genitalia of a female child, aiding, abetting, encouraging or 
participating in the mutilation of the genitalia of a female child, or removal of a female 
child from this State for the purpose of mutilating the genitalia of the child under NRS 
200.5083. 

 
9. Elder Abuse: NRS 200.5092 
 

A. Elder Abuse is defined under NRS 200.5092, which states: 
 

1.  “Abuse” means willful and unjustified: 
      (a) Infliction of pain, injury or mental anguish on an older person or a vulnerable 
person; or 
      (b) Deprivation of food, shelter, clothing or services which are necessary to 
maintain the physical or mental health of an older person or a vulnerable person. 
      2.  “Exploitation” means any act taken by a person who has the trust and 
confidence of an older person or a vulnerable person or any use of the power of 
attorney or guardianship of an older person or a vulnerable person to: 
      (a) Obtain control, through deception, intimidation or undue influence, over the 
older person’s or vulnerable person’s money, assets or property with the intention of 
permanently depriving the older person or vulnerable person of the ownership, use, 
benefit or possession of his money, assets or property; or 
      (b) Convert money, assets or property of the older person or vulnerable person with 
the intention of permanently depriving the older person or vulnerable person of the 
ownership, use, benefit or possession of his money, assets or property. 

31



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 30 of 90 

 As used in this subsection, “undue influence” does not include the normal influence 
that one member of a family has over another. 
      3.  “Isolation” means willfully, maliciously and intentionally preventing an older 
person or a vulnerable person from having contact with another person by: 
      (a) Intentionally preventing the older person or vulnerable person from receiving his 
visitors, mail or telephone calls, including, without limitation, communicating to a 
person who comes to visit the older person or vulnerable person or a person who 
telephones the older person or vulnerable person that the older person or vulnerable 
person is not present or does not want to meet with or talk to the visitor or caller 
knowing that the statement is false, contrary to the express wishes of the older person or 
vulnerable person and intended to prevent the older person or vulnerable person from 
having contact with the visitor; or 
      (b) Physically restraining the older person or vulnerable person to prevent the older 
person or vulnerable person from meeting with a person who comes to visit the older 
person or vulnerable person. 
 The term does not include an act intended to protect the property or physical or 
mental welfare of the older person or vulnerable person or an act performed pursuant 
to the instructions of a physician of the older person or vulnerable person. 
      4.  “Neglect” means the failure of: 
      (a) A person who has assumed legal responsibility or a contractual obligation for 
caring for an older person or a vulnerable person or who has voluntarily assumed 
responsibility for his care to provide food, shelter, clothing or services which are 
necessary to maintain the physical or mental health of the older person or vulnerable 
person; or 
      (b) An older person or a vulnerable person to provide for his own needs because of 
inability to do so. 
      5.  “Older person” means a person who is 60 years of age or older. 

 
10. Pornography Involving a Minor: NRS 200.700 
 

A. The crime of involving a minor in pornography is defined in NRS 200.700, which makes it 
unlawful to produce or promote any sexual conduct or portrayal of a minor. Definitions 
include: 

 
1.  “Performance” means any play, film, photograph, computer-generated image, 
electronic representation, dance or other visual presentation. 
      2.  “Promote” means to produce, direct, procure, manufacture, sell, give, lend, 
publish, distribute, exhibit, advertise or possess for the purpose of distribution. 
      3.  “Sexual conduct” means sexual intercourse, lewd exhibition of the genitals, 
fellatio, cunnilingus, bestiality, anal intercourse, excretion, sado-masochistic abuse, 
masturbation, or the penetration of any part of a person’s body or of any object 
manipulated or inserted by a person into the genital or anal opening of the body of 
another. 
      4.  “Sexual portrayal” means the depiction of a person in a manner which appeals 
to the prurient interest in sex and which does not have serious literary, artistic, political 
or scientific value. 

  

32



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 31 of 90 

11. Human Trafficking: NRS 200.468 
 

A. The crime of Human Trafficking for illegal purposes is defined under NRS 200.468, which 
states: 

 
1.  A person shall not transport, procure transportation for or assist in the 
transportation of or procurement of transportation for another person into the State of 
Nevada whom he knows or has reason to know does not have the legal right to enter or 
remain in the United States with the intent to: 
      (a) Subject the person to involuntary servitude or any other act prohibited pursuant 
to NRS 200.463 or 200.465; 
      (b) Violate any state or federal labor law, including, without limitation, 8 U.S.C. § 
1324a; or 
      (c) Commit any other crime which is punishable by not less than 1 year 
imprisonment in the state prison. 

 
12. Stalking: NRS 200.575 
 

A. The crime of Stalking is defined under NRS 200.575, which states: 
 

1. A person who, without lawful authority, willfully or maliciously engages in a course of 
conduct that would cause a reasonable person to feel terrorized, frightened, 
intimidated or harassed, and that actually causes the victim to feel terrorized, 
frightened, intimidated or harassed, commits the crime of stalking. 

 
13. Kidnapping: NRS 200.310 
 

A. The crime of Kidnapping is defined under NRS 200.310, which states: 
 

1.  A person who willfully seizes, confines, inveigles, entices, decoys, abducts, conceals, 
kidnaps or carries away a person by any means whatsoever with the intent to hold or 
detain, or who holds or detains, the person for ransom, or reward, or for the purpose of 
committing sexual assault, extortion or robbery upon or from the person, or for the 
purpose of killing the person or inflicting substantial bodily harm upon him, or to exact 
from relatives, friends, or any other person any money or valuable thing for the return or 
disposition of the kidnapped person, and a person who leads, takes, entices, or carries 
away or detains any minor with the intent to keep, imprison, or confine him from his 
parents, guardians, or any other person having lawful custody of the minor, or with the 
intent to hold the minor to unlawful service, or perpetrate upon the person of the minor 
any unlawful act is guilty of kidnapping in the first degree which is a category A felony. 
      2.  A person who willfully and without authority of law seizes, inveigles, takes, 
carries away or kidnaps another person with the intent to keep the person secretly 
imprisoned within the State, or for the purpose of conveying the person out of the State 
without authority of law, or in any manner held to service or detained against his will, is 
guilty of kidnapping in the second degree which is a category B felony. 

 

33



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 32 of 90 

14. Terrorism: NRS 217.035; NRS 217.070; 18 U.S.C. § 2331(1) 
 

A. Acts of Terrorism as defined by 18 U.S.C. § 2331(1) include: 
 

(1) the term “international terrorism” means activities that—  
(A) involve violent acts or acts dangerous to human life that are a violation of the 
criminal laws of the United States or of any State, or that would be a criminal violation if 
committed within the jurisdiction of the United States or of any State;  
(B) appear to be intended—  
(i) to intimidate or coerce a civilian population;  
(ii) to influence the policy of a government by intimidation or coercion; or  
(iii) to affect the conduct of a government by mass destruction, assassination, or 
kidnapping; and  
(C) occur primarily outside the territorial jurisdiction of the United States, or transcend 
national boundaries in terms of the means by which they are accomplished, the persons 
they appear intended to intimidate or coerce, or the locale in which their perpetrators 
operate or seek asylum;  

 
Section Eight.  Eligibility Standards and Criteria 

 
1. General 
   

A. NRS 217.160 defines who may be approved by the VOCP. This section provides: 
 

NRS 217.160 Persons who may be awarded compensation. 
1.  The compensation officer may order the payment of compensation: 
(a) To or for the benefit of the victim. 
(b) If the victim has suffered personal injury, to any person responsible for the 
maintenance of the victim who has suffered pecuniary loss or incurred expenses as a 
result of the injury. 
(c) If the victim dies, to or for the benefit of any one or more of the dependents of the 
victim. 
(d) To a minor who is a member of the household or immediate family of a victim of a 
battery which constitutes domestic violence pursuant to NRS 33.018 who needs an 
assessment, a psychological evaluation or psychological counseling for emotional 
trauma suffered by the minor as a result of the battery. 
(e) To a member of the victim’s household or immediate family for psychological 
counseling for emotional trauma suffered by the member as a result of the crime of 
murder as defined in NRS 200.010. 

 
B. The VOCP assists victims of crime when the victim suffers “personal injury” as defined in 

NRS 217.050, which includes “actual” bodily harm or “threat” of bodily harm. 
 

C. The VOCP assists persons who are responsible for the victim, who have suffered financial 
loss from a victim’s injuries, such as assistance with emergency room bills, and other crime 
related expenses. This applies to minor victims and other victims who are not minors, but are 

34



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 33 of 90 

dependent for their care because of mental or physical incapacities or disabilities, or 
otherwise as approved by the compensation officer. 
 

D. The VOCP assists dependents of the victim who have suffered financial loss from a victim’s 
death, such as payment of survivor benefits, crime scene cleanup, and mental health 
counseling. 

 
E. The VOCP assists minors who witness domestic violence crimes, and minors and family 

members of murder victims, with mental health counseling. 
 
F. The VOCP compensation officer will issue a written determination if the applicant qualifies 

for the VOCP, or does not qualify, pursuant to NRS 217.090. The determination notice will 
avoid reference to sensitive information or details concerning the application or crime.  
 

G. In order for an applicant to qualify for the VOCP, the applicant must meet eligibility criteria 
set forth in NRS 217 and these policies.  
 

H. Crimes covered by the VOCP are referred to throughout these policies with citations to 
Nevada law. Any such reference is not by way of limitation, unless so stated. These policies 
are intended to provide for victims of federal crimes similar to those described herein. 
Changes to, or errors in statutory citations, will not affect the application of these policies.  

 
2. Physical Injury Claims 
 

A. A victim must suffer physical injury or death to qualify for certain benefits including 
payment of medical or dental bills, lost earnings or support, funeral expenses, crime scene 
clean up, prescription medication, and in most cases relocation expenses. NRS 217.070 (1). 

 
B. A physical injury or a death most likely will be documented in the Police Report. Crime 

related deaths are documented in the Coroners Report. Medical Reports, particularly 
emergency room reports, will document the victim’s injuries. These documents may help the 
compensation officer determine if a victim qualifies for benefits, as well as the scope of the 
claim. To avoid delays victims are encouraged to submit these reports and other supporting 
documents or bills with their applications or as soon as they become available after an 
application has been completed and submitted. 

 
C. Crimes that qualify for benefits associated with a physical injury claim in Nevada are:  

 
1) Murder, NRS 217.070 (1), NRS 217.160 (e), NRS 200.010  
2) Assault and Battery, NRS 217.070 (1), NRS 200.471, NRS 200.481 
3) Robbery, NRS 200.380  
4) Drunk Driving, NRS 217.070 (4), NRS 484.379 
5) Pedestrian Hit and Run, NRS 217.070 (5), NRS 484.219 
6) Any other violent crime identified in these policies or the laws of the State of Nevada, 

where the victim suffers physical injury. 
 

35



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 34 of 90 

3. Catastrophic Injury Claims 
 

A. Catastrophic Injuries are those that create a total and permanent disability for the victim, 
such as the loss of multiple extremities, paraplegia or quadriplegia, or loss of sight in both 
eyes.   

 
B. A Catastrophic Injury claim may be approved by the VOCP coordinator for up to $100,000 

as permitted by NRS 217.200.  Additional funds may be used to pay for items that directly 
assist the victim, such as medical care and surgeries, extended lost wages, making a home or 
vehicle accessible, job training and vocational rehabilitation, temporary home health care, or 
purchase of and/or training in the use of special appliances or prosthetic devices. 
 

C. A claim involving life-threatening injuries, where additional surgical or emergency medical 
care is required to save the life or when failure to receive necessary treatment will result in 
significant and permanent loss of an important bodily function, and where the cost of such 
necessary medical care exceeds the $35,000 limit set by these policies, may be approved for 
additional funding up to a maximum of $100,000 by the VOCP coordinator. 
 

D. When the VOCP determines that claim funding exceeding $100,000 is required to continue 
benefits to a victim of catastrophic injuries the VOCP coordinator may request that a the 
claim limit be extended by up to an additional $50,000, or up to a total of $150,000, by 
submitting a request as set forth in NRS 217.200 (4). This section states:  
 
 “Upon approval of the Board, an additional award of not more than $50,000 may be made 
to a victim. Before approving such an additional award, the Board must consider the 
amount of money remaining in the Fund for the Compensation of Victims of Crime created 
pursuant to NRS 217.260 and the particular circumstances of the victim.” 

 
E. Catastrophic Injury funds are not intended for long term nursing care or in-patient type 

services. These policies recognize that such claims will exhaust funds intended to provide 
life saving care or to assist in restoring mobility and access. Any requests for in-patient, 
nursing home, or other long term care will not be approved by the VOCP.  
 
 

 
4. Presumed or Emotional Injury Claims 
 

A. Certain crimes resulting in emotional or mental injuries only, may be eligible for mental 
health counseling, child care, relocation, home security repair, and emergency housing or 
living expenses. The compensation officer does not need to find physical injury in the 
following crimes: 

 
1) Sexual Assault, NRS 200.366  
2) Domestic Violence, NRS 217.160 (d), NRS 217.220 (3), NRS 200.485 
3) Spousal Rape, NRS 217.050 (3), NRS 200.366, NRS 200.377  
4) Child Abuse, Endangerment, Molestation, NRS 217.070 (3), NRS 432B.100, NRS 

200.508, NRS 201.230 

36



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 35 of 90 

5) Incest, NRS 201.180  
6) Elder Abuse, NRS 217.070 (6), NRS 200.5099 
7) Pornography Involving a Minor, NRS 217.050 (2) 
8) Human Trafficking, NRS 217.050 (3), NRS 200.467, NRS 200.468 
9) Stalking, NRS 200.575,  
10) Robbery, NRS 200.380 
11) An Act of Terrorism, NRS 217.035 (2), NRS 217.070 

 
B. If an applicant is a victim of a crime that is ongoing such as: domestic violence and child 

abuse, an application does not need to be filed for each incident. A series of incidents is 
considered one crime for application purposes.  
 

5. Threat of Injury Claims 
 

A. Certain crimes or threats resulting in emotional or mental injuries only may be eligible for 
mental health counseling benefits through the VOCP. NRS 217.050 defines personal injury 
as: “actual bodily harm or threat of bodily harm which results in a need for medical 
treatment”. 

 
B. A threat of physical injury includes, but is not limited to the following situations: 

 
1) The victim was directly threatened with a weapon; 
2) The victim was within sight and range or proximity of a person brandishing a weapon 

and reasonably felt threatened for their own safety; 
3) The victim was directly threatened with serious bodily injury and there was a reasonable 

probability that: 
4) The threat would be carried out; and 
5) Physical injury would result if the threat were carried out. 
 

C. Crimes that may qualify under threat of injury include: 
 

1) Robbery, NRS 200.380  
2) Kidnapping, NRS 200.320    
3) Involuntary servitude, NRS 200.463 
4) Trafficking in persons, NRS 200.467, NRS 200.468 
5) Stalking, NRS 200.575,  

        
6. Children’s Claims in Domestic Violence Cases 
 

A. A minor is presumed to have sustained an injury as a result of a domestic violence crime if 
the child witnessed a domestic violence crime. This presumption qualifies the victim for 
mental health counseling benefits as provided by these policies. 

 
B. The children of parties involved in domestic violence and assault, that are exposed to 

domestic violence, are entitled to independent VOCP claims and benefits, whether or not 
their parents file claims or have claims approved or denied. 

 

37



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 36 of 90 

C. A minor witnessed a domestic violence crime if the minor saw or heard an act constituting a 
domestic violence crime. NRS 217.160 provides: 

 
  “Persons who may be awarded compensation. 
  1.  The compensation officer may order the payment of compensation: 

(d) To a minor who is a member of the household or immediate family of a victim of a 
battery which constitutes domestic violence pursuant to NRS 33.018 who needs an 
assessment, a psychological evaluation or psychological counseling for emotional 
trauma suffered by the minor as a result of the battery.” 

 
7. Vehicle-Related Crimes 
 

A. Most vehicle-related crimes are not covered by the VOCP. Injuries from accidents caused by 
speeding, reckless or careless driving, and similar crimes are outside the scope of VOCP 
coverage. NRS 217.220 prohibits acceptance of motor vehicle accident injuries except in 
limited circumstances. NRS 217.220 provides: 

 
“Award of compensation prohibited under certain circumstances; exceptions. 
1. Except as otherwise provided in subsections 2 and 3, compensation must not be 
awarded if the victim: 
      (a) Was injured or killed as a result of the operation of a motor vehicle, boat or 
airplane unless the vehicle, boat or airplane was used as a weapon in a deliberate 
attempt to harm the victim or unless the driver of the vehicle injured a pedestrian, 
violated any of the provisions of NRS 484.379 or the use of the vehicle was punishable 
pursuant to NRS 484.3795 or NRS 484.37955”. 

 
B. The BOE acknowledges the misplaced comma after the word pedestrian, in Section 1(a), 

may be read to allow claims where the driver injured a pedestrian even if the driver was not 
intoxicated or did not leave the scene, as required in NRS 217.070. The BOE rejects this 
interpretation and declares that until the Legislature acts to correct this grammatical error, the 
intent of this section is to assist victims of intoxicated drivers as otherwise provided in this 
section.  

 
C. The following vehicle crimes qualify for the VOCP: 

 
1) Injury or death intentionally inflicted through the use of: a motor vehicle, aircraft, or a 

water vehicle. NRS 217.220 (1) a) 
2) Pedestrian injury or death caused by Hit and Run, NRS 217.070 (5). NRS 484.219 
3) Injuries caused by someone driving under the influence (DUI). NRS 217.070 (4), NRS 

484.379 
4) Vehicular Manslaughter. NRS 484.3775, NRS 217.220 (1) (a) 

 
8. DUI Crimes 
 

A. The compensation officer, when evaluating an application for a case involving DUI, will 
consider any of the following as evidence in support of an application: 

 

38



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 37 of 90 

1) Blood alcohol content report, 
2) Blood test for drugs, 
3) Breath test report, 
4) Evidence that driver failed roadside tests, 
5) Acceptance of case for prosecution for DUI, 
6) Other credible evidence including statements from officers investigating the crime that 

indicate the driver was driving under the influence of alcohol. 
 
9. Ineligible Crimes 
 

A. A crime, which does not result in physical injury, threat of injury, presumed injury, or death 
to the victim.  

 
B. Crimes that involve only property loss or damage.  

 
C. A crime that occurs in the workplace and is covered by workers compensation. 

 
D. Traffic crimes. 

 
E. Other ineligible crimes include fraud, theft, Identity theft, computer and web related crimes, 

property damage, trespass and vandalism. 
 
10. Prison or Jail Victims 
 

A. Individuals who are incarcerated at the time of their injury or death are not eligible for 
compensation by the VOCP pursuant to NRS 217.220 (1) (d). 

 
11. Residency and Citizenship Requirements 
 

A. Nevada law requires that applicants must be legally entitled to reside in the United States as 
a condition of acceptance by the VOCP. NRS 217.220 provides: 

 
“1. Except as otherwise provided in subsections 2 and 3, compensation must not be 
awarded if the victim: 
  (b) Was not a citizen of the United States or was not lawfully entitled to reside in 
the United States at the time the incident upon which the claim is based occurred or he is 
unable to provide proof that he was a citizen of the United States or was lawfully entitled 
to reside in the United States at that time”. 

 
C. The following documents will be accepted as proof of residency from victims who were not 

born in the United States:  
 

1) Unexpired Permanent Resident Card 
2) Unexpired Temporary Resident Card 
3) Valid, unexpired US Passport  
4) Resident Alien Card or I-551 Receipt 
5) Valid, unexpired Foreign Passport stamped “Processed for I-551” 

39



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 38 of 90 

6) Unexpired Employment Authorization document 
7) Unexpired Student Visa that permits residency in the US for a specific period 

 
D. Applications received from foreign visitors, tourists, and people living in Nevada without 

valid, unexpired legal documentation will be denied. 
 

12. Financial Eligibility Standards  
 

A. An application may be denied if the victim will not incur a serious financial hardship without 
VOCP assistance. In determining if a hardship exists the VOCP allows the victim to have up 
to one year’s earnings in savings or investments, plus the equity in a home and automobile, 
and still be financially eligible. NRS 217.220 (4) provides: 

 
“The compensation officer may deny an award if he determines that the applicant will 
not suffer serious financial hardship. In determining whether an applicant will suffer 
serious financial hardship, the compensation officer shall not consider: 
      (a) The value of the victim’s dwelling; 
      (b) The value of one motor vehicle owned by the victim; or 
      (c) The savings and investments of the victim up to an amount equal to the victim’s 
annual salary.” 

 
B. These policies recognize that few if any victims of violent crime have savings and assets 

equivalent to those set forth in this section of the law. These policies also establish an 
“institutional philosophy” that all victims deserve to be treated equally and deserve to be 
made whole regardless of their position in life. 
 

C. The VOCP does not require income, budget or other financial documentation to determine 
financial eligibility. This issue is addressed by having the victim sign a certification of 
eligibility, with the application, that the victim meets the criteria set forth in NRS 217.220. 

 
D. This certification supplants any requirement that an applicant provide detailed financial 

information to VOCP to establish “financial hardship”. It does not diminish the requirement 
that crime related resources, such as civil law suit proceeds, be used to reimburse the VOCP. 

 
Section Nine.  Limitations on Compensation 

 
1. Contribution: General Considerations 
 

A. To the extent the victim's acts or conduct provoked or contributed to the victim's injuries, the 
VOCP may deny the award to the applicant. 
 

B. To qualify for VOCP benefits, the applicant must not have participated in the crime that led 
to the victimization. A victim participated and is not eligible if they are a “coconspirator, 
codefendant, or accomplice ” in the crime, or if they are an adult passenger of a DUI driver.  

 
NRS 217.220 Award of compensation prohibited under certain circumstances; 
      1.  Except as otherwise provided in subsections 2 and 3, compensation must not be 

40



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 39 of 90 

awarded if the victim: … 
(c) Was a coconspirator, codefendant, accomplice or adult passenger of the 
offender whose crime caused the victim’s injuries: 

 
C. Claims may be denied where the victim was engaged in illegal activities, or was committing 

a crime under Nevada law at the time of their injuries. 
 
2. Contributory Conduct Considerations 
 

A. A victim who is involved in the events leading to the crime may not be eligible for VOCP 
benefits if the behavior of the victim contributed to the victim’s injuries.  
 

B. Sec. 2.  NRS 217.180 provides:  
 

1.  Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, in determining whether to make an 
order for compensation, the compensation officer shall consider the provocation, consent 
or any other behavior of the victim that directly or indirectly contributed to his injury or 
death, the prior case or social history, if any, of the victim, the need of the victim or his 
dependents for financial aid and other relevant matters.  
 2.  If the case involves a victim of domestic violence or sexual assault, the compensation 
officer shall not consider the provocation, consent or any other behavior of the victim 
that directly or indirectly contributed to his injury or death.  

  
C. Definition of contributory conduct:  

 
Contributory conduct is intentional conduct, willingly and knowingly engaged in by the 
victim that is both a direct cause, and a proximate cause, of the victim's injuries. 

 
D. Applications will not be denied based on contributory conduct where: 

 
1) The victim is a victim of sexual assault; 
2) The victim is a victim of domestic violence; 
3) The victim acts in self defense or defense of others; 
4) The victim acts are attributable to reasonable efforts by the victim to aid a crime victim, 

to prevent a crime from occurring in his presence, or to apprehend a person who has 
committed a crime in his presence. 

 
E. If an application is denied for issues related to contributory conduct and the applicant appeals 

the denial, the applicant will have the burden of establishing that their conduct meets the 
standards and criteria set forth in these policies. The VOCP will not be required to establish 
an applicant’s behavior did not meet the standards established by these policies. 

 
F. To qualify for benefits associated with physical injury claims an applicant must not act in a 

way that caused or contributed to their injury. The contributory conduct must be the 
“proximate cause” of the injury to disqualify an applicant from acceptance by the VOCP. 
Such conduct may be determined by the victim’s actions immediately before or during the 
crime. 

41



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 40 of 90 

  
G.  Applications for assistance may be denied in whole or in part if the victim suffered physical 

injury from: 
 

1) crimes in which the victim deliberately provoked the offender by means of fighting 
words, “road rage”, racial pejoratives or other taunting, or by threats coupled with overt 
actions indicating the victim's intent to carry out the threat; 

2) crimes in which the victim initiated or significantly escalated a physical altercation with 
the offender; 

3) crimes constituting acts of retaliation or retribution for a crime or crimes previously 
committed by the victim; 

4) crimes committed during the course of an illegal drug transaction in which the victim 
was a knowing and willing participant; 

5) crimes in which the victim's felony criminal record, coupled with the circumstances of 
the crime, lead to the reasonable inference that the crime for which the applicant seeks 
compensation was directly caused or provoked by the victim's criminal history.  

 
3. Mitigating Factors 
 

A. Contributory conduct may be mitigated or excused in some circumstances. In cases where 
contributory conduct has been raised, the following mitigating factors may be considered: 

 
1) The victim is a victim of presumed or threat of injury crimes.  

 
2) The victim suffered an injury that was significantly more serious than reasonably could 

have been expected from their involvement in the events leading to the crime. For 
example: victim agrees to a fistfight and is shot, or uses a racial pejorative and is stabbed. 

 
3) Another person involved in the events leading to the crime escalated their conduct in a 

manner not reasonably foreseeable by the victim. 
 
4) A third party interfered in a manner not reasonably foreseeable by the victim. 

 
4. Drug and Alcohol Intoxication Issues 
 

A. Alcohol or drug Intoxication is not a basis for the denial of benefits under these policies. 
 

B. Alcohol or drug intoxication may affect a victim’s memory and credibility concerning the 
events leading to and involving the crime. 

 
C. In some situations alcohol or drug intoxication may undermine apparent consent, such as in 

cases involving “date rape” drugs.   
 

D. These policies establish that drug or alcohol intoxication will not support a finding of 
consent and may be a mitigating factor in sexual assault and domestic violence cases. 

 

42



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 41 of 90 

5. Limited Claim Acceptance 
 

A. Where there are contributory conduct issues that suggest denial, and mitigating factors that 
may reduce applicants’ culpability only partially, the compensation officer may approve the 
claim for limited benefits, such as paying medical bills, but not lost wages or prescription 
medication benefits.  

 
6. Prior Case or Social History 
 

A. NRS 217.180(1) requires the compensation officer to consider whether the victim has prior 
VOCP applications or claims. A claim may be denied or benefits may be limited where the 
victim has filed previous or multiple claims or has a social history of crime or gang 
involvement. NRS 217.180(1) provides:  
 

“In determining whether to make an order for compensation, the compensation officer 
shall consider the provocation, consent or any other behavior of the victim which directly 
or indirectly contributed to his injury or death, the prior case or social history, if any, of 
the victim, the need of the victim or his dependents for financial aid and other relevant 
matters.” 

 
B. An applicant will not be denied compensation because of the applicant's or the victim's 

familial relationship with the offender or because of the sharing of a residence by the victim 
or applicant and the offender. 

 
C. The compensation officer may consider the victims social history, including their criminal 

history and criminal or gang affiliations. 
 

D. Claims may be denied where the circumstances of the crime are related to gang or criminal 
activity involving the victim, or where the victims’ background is consistent with the 
criminal activity leading to victims’ injuries. 

 
Section Ten.  Claim Limits and Payment Policies 

 
1. General 
 

A. The VOCP pays or reimburses victims for a variety of crime related expenses including 
medical, counseling, funeral, lost earnings, prescription medication, relocation and other 
crime related costs pursuant to NRS 217.200. This section provides: 
 

“Payment of compensation for expenses and losses; certificate for meritorious citizen’s 
service; limitations. 
1. The compensation officer may order the payment of compensation … to a victim for: 

(a) Medical expenses, expenses for psychological counseling and nonmedical 
remedial care and treatment rendered in accordance with a religious method of 
healing, that are actually and reasonably incurred as a result of the personal injury 
or death of the victim; 

43



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 42 of 90 

(b) Loss of earnings or support that is reasonably incurred as a result of the total or 
partial incapacity of the victim for not longer than 52 weeks; 
(c) Pecuniary loss to the dependents of a deceased victim; 
(d) Funeral expenses that are actually and reasonably incurred as a result of the 
death of the victim; and  
(e) Another loss which results from the personal injury or death of the victim and 
which the compensation officer determines to be reasonable. 

2. The compensation officer may order the payment of compensation for a person who 
pays the funeral expenses of a victim. 
3. An award must not be made for more than $100,000.” 

 
B. The VOCP may reimburse applicants for specified expenses incurred as a result of the crime, 

which are not reimbursed by other sources. Requests for reimbursement must be 
accompanied by verifiable receipts. Handwritten receipts for compensable expenses may be 
denied without corroborating evidence of payment.   
  

C. Medical expenses incurred by a deceased victim may be considered for reimbursement only 
in cases where the applicant has incurred a legal obligation for payment as a relative or 
dependent of the victim as defined in NRS 217.060 to include: 

 
1) A spouse, parent, grandparent or stepparent; 
2) A natural born, step or adopted child; 
3) A grandchild, brother, sister, half brother or half sister; or 
4) A parent of a spouse. 
 

D. The VOCP does not reimburse expenses or pay for property loss or pain and suffering. There 
is no cash payment, award or settlement. 

 
E. When expenses are submitted for payment, the VOCP will verify that the treatment or 

service was necessary as a result of the crime, and that it is payable under these policies.  
 

F. To detect and prevent possible billing errors or fraud, the applicant may be required to verify 
that treatments or services were received as billed, before payment to the provider is made. 
Payment may be denied where the VOCP is unable to verify service delivery. 

 
G. The VOCP does not pay foreign providers. If a victim obtains crime related treatment or 

services in a foreign country, those expenses will be considered discretionary benefits and 
subject to review and approval by the VOCP coordinator.  

 
 
2. Claim and Benefit Limits 
 

A. Section 3 of NRS 217.200 provides a limit on the Board of Examiner’s authority to approve 
benefit payments exceeding $100,000 per approved claim, or up to an additional $50,000 
upon specific approval by the BOE. 
 

44



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 43 of 90 

B. The claim limit established by these policies is $35,000 per approved claim, except in cases 
of catastrophic injuries, where limits may be extended up to $100,000 per claim upon 
approval of the VOCP coordinator, or up to an additional $50,000 per claim, for a total of  
$150,000 per claim upon approval of the BOE. 

 
C. The BOE may set the claim limit at any amount up to $100,000 pursuant to authority granted 

in NRS 217.150. This section states in part: 
 

“The Board shall, so far as practicable, formulate standards… in the determination of 
the amount of any compensation payable pursuant to NRS 217.010 to 217.270, 
inclusive.” 

 
D. Section 3 and 4 of NRS 217.200 provides for limits on claims: 

 
  3.  Except as otherwise provided in subsection 4, an award must not be made for more than 
$100,000.  
  4.  Upon approval of the Board, an additional award of not more than $50,000 may be 
made to a victim. Before approving such an additional award, the Board must consider the 
amount of money remaining in the Fund for the Compensation of Victims of Crime created 
pursuant to NRS 217.260 and the particular circumstances of the victim. 

 
E. The amount of compensation that is payable per approved claim is determined by the BOE 

after consideration of factors which include an evaluation of resources available to the VOCP 
and demands for services offered by the VOCP in the state. The BOE also considers the type 
and amount of compensation payable in other states.  

 
F. The claim limit is the total amount the VOCP can pay per approved claim, regardless of 

applicants’ expenses or the number, or type of benefits approved by the VOCP.  
 

For example, an applicant may be approved for lost wage benefits up to $18,000, 
prescription medication reimbursement up to $6,000, counseling up to $5,000 and 
payment of hospital bills up to $35,000. If the VOCP pays $9,000 in lost wage 
reimbursement, $3,000 for prescription medication, and $3,000 for counseling the 
remaining amount for the hospital is $20,000. The applicant may have hospital bills 
totaling $30,000, but since the claim limit is capped at $35,000 and $15,000 has been 
paid, or reserved for other benefit payments, the hospital would only receive up to 
$20,000. If the hospital accepts the payment of the lesser amount, the entire bill is 
deemed paid in full by NRS 217.245, and the applicant is relieved of any further legal 
obligation for that debt. 

 
G. The VOCP pays a variety of “benefits” on approved claims. Most benefits are defined and 

limited by these policies. These limits are a cap on expenditures in a specific benefit 
category, not a guarantee or right to such a benefit payment. Any benefit levels provided for 
in these policies may be adjusted from time to time as the BOE determines. 
 

H. A hearings or appeals officer may not order the compensation officer to pay any claim or 
benefit that exceeds the limits set by these policies. 

45



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 44 of 90 

 
I. The VOCP coordinator is authorized to approve payments that exceed the approved medical 

fee schedules or claim benefit levels when such approval is necessary: 
 

1) In emergencies, or  
2) As necessary to address unforeseen circumstances, or  
3) As required to meet a commitment by the VOCP to a medical or other provider or 

vendor, or 
4) For good cause as determined by the VOCP coordinator. 

 
J. Such approvals must be documented in the VOCP file. 

 
K. The VOCP may reimburse applicants for specified expenses incurred as a result of the crime, 

which are not reimbursed by other sources. When expenses are submitted, staff will verify 
that the treatment or service was necessary as a result of the crime and that it is covered by 
the VOCP. 

 
3. Verification Process 
 

A. Prior to the compensation officer approval of any single direct payment of $1,000 or more, to 
an individual who is not the applicant, or an established vendor in the VOCP claims 
management system, such as for reimbursement of funeral expenses, a staff member, other 
than the compensation officer, will contact the originating source of the receipt for 
reimbursable expenses, to confirm the provision of and payment for the services provided to 
the victim. The verifying party will document this secondary confirmation in the claim file.  
 

B. Prior to the compensation officer approval of any single direct payment of $1,000 or more to 
the applicant, such as for reimbursement of lost wages, funeral, relocation or crime scene 
cleanup expenses, a staff member, other than the compensation officer, will contact the 
originating source of the receipt for reimbursable expenses, to confirm the provision of and 
payment for the services provided to the victim. The verifying party will document this 
secondary confirmation in the claim file.  

 
4. Medical Bill Review 

 
A. VOCP policies establish maximum rates and service limitations for all compensation 

benefits. Medical, hospital, dental and other bills are reviewed by VOCP’s contracted bill 
review company, and reduced to established medical fee schedules, primarily Nevada 
workers compensation fee schedule. Other discounts may be applied, and usual and 
customary rates for specific treatments may be used.  

 
B. When adequate funding is available, bills are paid according to these fee schedule 

recommendations. When funding is less than the total of bills approved each fiscal quarter 
then the bills are paid at a reduced percentage of fee schedule amount, based on available 
funding. 

 

46



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 45 of 90 

5. Applicant or Provider Not Authorized to Obligate VOCP 
 

A. An applicant is never authorized to obtain medical or other services or products, including 
prescription drugs, with the expectation that such services will be paid for by the VOCP, 
without express, written authorization by the compensation officer.  

 
B. A medical or other provider or vendor is never authorized to provide a service or product to 

an applicant with the expectation that such services or product will be paid for by the VOCP, 
without express, written authorization by the compensation officer.  

 
6. Pre-Approval Required to Assure Payment 

 
A. Written pre-approval is required before any medical treatment or other service, will be 

assured approval and payment by the VOCP.  
 

B. Pre-approval for payment of any claim is valid for sixty days (60) from the date authorized, 
unless a different time is stated in the authorization. If a medical or other service is pre-
approved, the compensation officer will document their authorization in the claim file.  
 

C. Failure of the applicant or the medical provider to obtain pre-approval from the 
compensation officer may result in the denial of payment of the claim, if funds are not 
available under the claim, of if claim funds have been pre-authorized or committed to other 
purposes.  

 
D. Requests for pre-approval of treatment must identify by CPT or ADA codes the specific 

treatment that is planned. Pre-approval will not be given for undefined treatment. The VOCP 
will not pre-approve Physical Therapy, Chiropractic or Counseling providers for a specific 
number of visits. Available benefits are limited by amount, so pre-approval by number of 
visits cannot be accommodated.  

 
E. Claims for services provided to the victim prior to application approval, such as hospital 

emergency room bills, are paid at the end of each fiscal year quarter, and may be discounted 
below fee schedule as otherwise provided in these policies. Any medical or other provider, or 
any other person who accepts payment from VOCP, even significantly discounted or reduced 
payments, accepts the reduced rate as “payment in full” for the treatment or services 
provided to the victim as provided by NRS 217.245. The medical or other service provider or 
any other person cannot collect unpaid balances from the victim or the VOCP.  

 
7. Reimbursement to Applicants Limited to Fee Schedule  
 

A. Applicants may be reimbursed up to the fee schedule amount, or the amount determined by 
the VOCP to be “usual and customary, for any crime related medical or other bill approved 
for reimbursement by the VOCP.  
 

B. Approved applicants should not pay medical bills themselves in expectation of full 
reimbursement; since the VOCP may reimburse the applicant up to the fee schedule rate 

bboos � 6/15/09 10:16 AM
Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

47



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 46 of 90 

only. The fee schedule rate is usually significantly less than the billed amount paid by the 
applicant. 

 
8. Pre-existing Conditions are not payable by the VOCP 
 

A. Requests for the payment of treatment for needs that existed prior to the crime will be denied 
by the compensation officer, and will not be accepted as a part of the victim’s claim. For 
example, requests for the VOCP to pay for prescriptions that the applicant had been 
receiving prior to the crime will be denied. 

 
9. Second Opinions and Independent Medical Exams 
 

A. The VOCP retains the right to require an applicant to obtain a second opinion or IME from a 
medical provider chosen by the VOCP, before agreeing to pay any medical claim or 
medically prescribed treatment, prescriptions, medical device or other costs, or further 
medical benefits.  
 

B. If the applicant fails to cooperate with a request for a second opinion, the claim may be 
closed, and further benefits denied. 
 

C. All expenses associated with a VOCP required second opinion or IME will be paid from the 
victim’s claim as a medical expense. 

 
10. Co-Pays and Deductibles 
 

A. In cases where the victim is covered by insurance, and is liable for co-pays or deductibles, 
the compensation officer will determine whether the treatment was a direct result of the 
crime and authorize payments for co-pays or deductibles up to the maximum allowed 
pursuant to the applicable fee schedule rate or these policies.  

 
B. If the co-payment or balance due on any bill exceeds $1,000, VOCP’s contractor will review 

the original bill to VOCP bill review standards. If the amount already paid by the insurer is 
more than the VOCP would have paid, the Compensation Officer will pay 10% of the co-
payment or balance due to satisfy the debt. If the amount paid by the insurer is less than the 
VOCP would have paid, the Compensation Officer will pay the co-payment or balance due 
in full, or will pay the amount the VOCP would have paid less any payment made by the 
insurer, whichever is less. 
 

Section Eleven.  Available Benefits 
 
1. Medical and Dental Care 
 

A. The VOCP can assist the victim pay medical and dental expenses that have been incurred as 
a direct result of the crime up to a maximum of $35,000, upon receipt of an itemized 
statement from the provider for all medical or dental expenses incurred, including the 
business address, telephone number and federal taxpayer identification number.  
 

48



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 47 of 90 

B. The VOCP will only pay for medical treatment or other goods or services that are related to, 
and necessitated by the crime for which the application was approved. If the applicant is 
receiving treatment for a preexisting injury or condition at the time of the crime, and the 
injury or condition is aggravated by the crime, the VOCP will pay only the portion of the 
treatment related to the aggravation. For instance if the treatment is 50% crime related and 
50% necessitated by the preexisting condition, the VOCP will pay 50% of the cost of 
continued treatment.  
 

C. Except in cases of emergency or medical necessity, once an application has been approved 
by the VOCP, pre-approval may be required before any surgical treatment or other medical 
or dental care will be approved for payment by the VOCP. If approved, the compensation 
officer must document their authorization in the claim file. Failure of the applicant or the 
medical provider to obtain pre-approval from the compensation officer may result in the 
denial of payment of the claim. 

 
D. Dental implants will only be approved if deemed medically necessary. Cosmetic dental 

treatments, such as veneers and teeth whitening, will not be covered.  
 
E. Only Dental treatment initiated within 6 months of the date of crime will be considered. 

Dental treatment that occurs more than 1 year after the crime will not be covered.  
 
F. Cosmetic medical treatments, such as breast implants and rhinoplasty, will only be approved 

if deemed medically necessary. 
 
G. The compensation officer may approve payment for Sexual Assault exams in rural counties 

where funding for such testing is unavailable.  
 

 
2. Chiropractic Treatment and Physical Therapy 
 

A. Any chiropractic medical intervention, including physical therapy, prescribed on a claim is 
limited to a maximum of $5,000. The VOCP will consider the payment of these bills upon 
receipt of an itemized statement from the provider for all chiropractic treatment and/or 
physical therapy provided, including the business address, telephone number and federal 
taxpayer identification number of the provider.  

 
3. Ambulance or Medical Transport 
 

A. Ambulance services will be paid at 75% of the billed amount, upon receipt of an itemized 
statement from the provider, including the business address, telephone number and federal 
taxpayer identification number.  

 
4. Surgical Implants 
 

A. Surgical implants will be paid on a cost basis only, upon receipt of an itemized statement and 
invoice, including the business address, telephone number and federal taxpayer identification 
number.  

49



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 48 of 90 

 
5. Prescription Medication Benefits 
 

A. The VOCP may reimburse applicant for prescription medications prescribed for up to 6 
months after the crime. The VOCP may reimburse up to a maximum of $6,000 for 
prescription medication during this time. The applicant may be required to provide medical 
documentation that the prescription medication is crime related and medically necessary.  
 

B. These limits may be extended if the victim undergoes VOCP approved surgery or other 
major medical procedures, necessitated by complications from previous medical care, or 
medical care follow up, such as removal of bullets or reparative cosmetic or dental surgery. 
Requests for extensions may only be approved by the VOCP coordinator upon application of 
the compensation officer supported by medical documentation. 

 
C. The VOCP may pay for medically recommended HIV preventive prescription treatments on 

sexual assault claims, subject to benefit limits. 
 
6. Counseling and Mental Health Services 
 

A. Mental Health counseling benefits are available for all approved claims involving physical, 
emotional and presumed injuries. The VOCP may pay up to $5,000 for mental health 
counseling where required as a direct result of the crime, upon receipt of an itemized 
statement from the provider, including the business address, telephone number and federal 
taxpayer identification number. 

 
B. Hourly fees for professional counseling and drug or alcohol treatment or therapy services 

will be based on the following schedule. Other disciplines not listed will be paid at the rates 
closest to their level of credentials listed here: 

 
1) Psychiatrist (MD)     $125.00 
2) Psychologist (PHD)     $100.00 
3) Licensed Marriage/Family Therapist (LM/FT) $ 90.00 
4) Licensed Clinical Social Worker (LCSW),   $ 90.00  
5) Licensed Group Therapy    $ 50.00 
6) Certified Intern     $ 50.00 
 

C. An applicant requesting mental health counseling may be required to establish, through 
appropriate documentation, the need for medical or psychological treatment pursuant to the 
provisions of NRS 217.050, before payments are approved.  

 
D. The medical or counseling provider may be required to provide treatment plans and progress 

reports as may be necessary to verify the need for mental health counseling, treatment or 
therapy, and that such treatment is related to the crime. 

 
E. No payments shall be approved for in-patient admission to a psychiatric hospital or 

residential treatment facility. 
 

50



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 49 of 90 

 
7. Work Interruption Claims  

 
A. A compensation officer may recommend, to the VOCP coordinator, the approval of lost 

wage or income reimbursement claims for temporary, crime disabilities or work interruptions 
lasting up to ten (10) working days, or up to $700. This discretionary work interruption 
payment may be approved by the compensation officer, regardless of the type of crime or 
type or nature of injury.  
 

B. The compensation officer may require verification by the applicant and/or the employer that 
the applicant was absent from work as a consequence of the crime. 

 
C. The discretionary authority provided by this section may be exercised in the compensation 

officer’s sole discretion and only after approval by the VOCP coordinator. Any decision 
concerning the exercise of this authority is not appealable and a hearings or appeals officer 
may not order the use of such authority.  

 
8. Lost Wage Reimbursement Claims  

 
A. Lost wage reimbursement claims may be approved for crime related physical disabilities 

lasting more than ten (10) work days if the following conditions are met: 
 

1) The applicant provides a disability statement from their treating physician, on a form 
provided by the VOCP, verifying that the applicant was injured in the crime for which 
the application was filed, and the applicants disability was caused or worsened by the 
crime related injuries, and; 

2) The disability statement specifies the nature and length of the physical disability, and;  
3) The victim did not work during the disability period, and 
4) The victim was employed at the time of the crime and the wages paid have been verified 

with the employer; or 
5) The victim was self-employed. In such cases the VOCP shall require copies of the prior 

two years tax returns as evidence of the validity of the victim’s earnings. 
6) Verification that the employer provided no continuing wage benefits as part of its 

policies or practices. 
 
B. Loss of earnings may be paid at up to 100% of the victim’s take home pay, up to a maximum 

of $350 per week, not to exceed 52 weeks, or up to a maximum of $18,200. 
 
C. Lost wages will only be paid to the victim or the surviving dependents of a deceased victim. 

Family members, relatives or dependents are not entitled to lost wage reimbursement 
benefits of a living victim who may be entitled to lost wages.  

 
D. Lost wage claims may not be paid where applicant is entitled to workers compensation or 

other disability payments, whether or not the applicant has applied for, or is receiving such 
benefits. 

 
E. A self-employed applicant must submit the following documentation: 

51



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 50 of 90 

 
1) Copies of tax returns for the two years preceding the crime injuries. 
2) Copies of business licenses, permits, or other documentation of self-employed status and 

income. 
 

F. Lost wage or income benefits are intended to assist applicants with living expenses during a 
period of disability, not as a replacement for all lost wages or lost income.  
 

G. Retroactive lost wage reimbursement will not be made for more that 12 weeks of 
documented back pay. For example if an applicant applies for VOCP assistance 6 months 
after the crime, and is still disabled at the time of filing the application, they would be 
eligible for 12 weeks of back pay, plus current lost earnings from the date of the application, 
for up to 40 additional weeks. If the applicant is no longer disabled when they apply to the 
VOCP, they would be eligible for up to 12 weeks back wages only. 

 
H. All wage or lost income claims must be supported by a minimum of two forms of 

documentation evidencing the lost income. Claims for wages earned “under the table” i.e.: 
without documentation as required by these policies, will not be accepted.  

  
I. Evidence of loss of income may include: 
 

1) Copies of wage check stubs for periods immediately preceding the date of the crime 
2) Copies of federal income tax returns filed by the victim or applicant for the tax year 

immediately preceding the date of the crime or during the year of the crime 
3) A Statement of Wages or Income as used to file with federal or taxing authorities such as 

a W-2 IRS form actually filed with the taxing authorities 
4) A statement signed by the employer on a form approved by the VOCP, attesting to the 

payment of wages or income to the victim. The statement must include the name, 
telephone number and address of the employer or person who paid or would have paid 
the wages or income, and must be subject to verification by the VOCP. Unverified 
statements may be rejected and claims supported by them denied. 

 
J. A statement of disability must be signed by the treating physician or by a physician who has 

examined the victim, and include information concerning the diagnosis, the extent and 
expected duration of disability, and certification that the disability resulted directly from the 
crime.  
 

K. Post Traumatic Stress Disorder is not a covered disability for lost wage reimbursement 
claims.   

 
9. Survivor Benefits 
 

A. Loss of income or support payments may be paid to qualified dependents of a deceased 
victim, who was employed at the time of the crime. 

 
B. Approved support will only be paid directly to a dependant of the victim as described in NRS 

217.040. This section states: 

52



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 51 of 90 

 
“Dependent” means the relatives of a deceased or injured victim who were wholly or 
partially dependent upon his income at the time of his death or injury. 

 
C. Evidence of loss of income may include: 

 
1) Copies of wage check stubs of the victim for periods immediately preceding the date of 

the crime 
2) Copies of federal income tax returns filed by the victim or applicant for the tax year 

immediately preceding the date of the crime or during the year of the crime. IRS 
transcripts may be required.  

3) A Statement of Wages or Income of the victim as used to file with federal or taxing 
authorities such as a W-2 IRS form actually filed with the taxing authorities 

4) A statement signed by the employer of the victim attesting to the payment of wages or 
income to the victim, which includes the name, telephone number and address of the 
employer, or person who paid or would have paid the wages or income, and must be 
subject to verification by the VOCP.  

5) Unverified statements may be rejected and claims supported by them denied. 
 
D. Loss of support may be paid at up to 100% of the victim’s take home pay, up to a maximum 

of $350 per week, not to exceed 52 weeks, or up to a maximum of $18,200. Payment of this 
benefit will be divided on a pro rata basis in cases where multiple dependents submit valid 
claims.   

 
E. Retroactive loss of earnings or support payments will not be paid for more than 12 weeks 

from the date of application or up to $4,200.  
 
10. Funeral and Burial Expenses 

 
A. The VOCP may reimburse any individual who pays funeral and burial expenses for a 

deceased victim of crime. This benefit is not restricted to family members, but can be paid to 
any individual who has paid funeral and burial expenses for a qualified victim. The VOCP 
may reimburse up to $5,000 for a deceased victim’s funeral and burial expenses.  
 

B. Funeral Expenses Not Covered include: 
 

1) Costs of banquets or wake 
2) Food or beverages 
3) Floral Arrangements 
4) A pre-purchased funeral or grave 
5) Finance or interest charges 
6) Merchandise, with the exception of a casket or urn 

 
11. Relocation Expenses 

 
A. The VOCP can assist with relocation expenses in cases involving domestic violence, gang 

violence or home invasion where the victim will be in immediate danger of physical injury if 

53



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 52 of 90 

the victim is unable to relocate to a safe environment, away from the perpetrator. The 
relocation must be directly related to the crime, and required to avoid additional 
victimization by the perpetrator of the crime for which the application was approved. The 
relocation must be in close proximity to the crime and may not be used later than six months 
after the crime. The VOCP coordinator may approve benefits beyond the six month timeline 
in cases where the perpetrator is being released from jail, or for other good cause. 

 
B. In order to qualify for relocation expenses, the compensation officer may require verification 

from Law enforcement that the relocation is necessary for the victim’s personal safety.  
 

C. The applicant may be required to provide the VOCP with a signed rental agreement (if 
requesting rent or a security deposit) from an apartment or homeowner. The VOCP will not 
reimburse rental expense paid to friends, family members or paid to sublease space in an 
apartment or home leased by a third party.  
 

D. The total amount for all relocation expenses cannot exceed $2,500 per claim and may 
include: 

 
1) Rent, including security deposit and first and last month’s rent 
2) Utility deposits and connection fees 
3) Rental Trucks  
4) Telephone deposits and connection fees  
5) Temporary lodging expenses of no more than $500  
6) Other necessary expenses (airline, train, bus fares, credit check, etc.) 
7) Emergency food expenses  
8) Emergency clothing expenses 

 
12. Crime Scene Clean Up 

 
A. The Applicant, in a case involving a homicide, may request payment or reimbursement for 

professional crime scene clean up for up to $5,000.  Receipts, estimates or other 
documentation satisfactory to the compensation officer must support any request. 

 
13. Home Security 

 
A. A victim may be eligible to receive reimbursement of up to $1,500 for repairing or 

improving residential security. If the victim is deceased, a person who resided with the 
victim at the time of the crime may also be eligible. Some expenses that may be covered are: 

 
1) Damaged alarms, keypads, cameras or motion detectors 
2) Damaged locks, doors or windows 
3) Repairing or replacing window bars or security doors 
4) Replacing or increasing number of locks 
5) Self-defense courses 

 
B. The VOCP will not pay for:  

 

54



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 53 of 90 

1) Weapons (guns, mace, etc) or 
2) Guard dogs. 

 
14. Child Care 

 
A. Childcare expenses incurred by a victim or secondary victim as a direct result of a qualified 

crime may be approved. The total benefit available for all affected children, per crime, may 
not exceed $2,500. 
 

B. The following conditions will be considered before reimbursement of childcare expenses: 
 

1) The injured or deceased victim was a primary caregiver for the victim’s dependent 
children. 

2) The benefit may only be paid for victims who suffer physical injury or death as a result 
of the crime. 

3) The benefit may not be paid in addition to lost wage or income, or support payments. 
4) The benefit may only be paid for care provided up to 30 days after the date of the crime.  

 
C. The childcare expenses must be consistent with the usual and customary rates charge by the 

childcare provider for other children in the provider’s care or other providers in the area. 
 

15. Mileage/Travel Reimbursement 
 

A. Mileage reimbursement will not be paid by the VOCP. Applicants who are required to travel 
for medical treatment or counseling may submit their travel related receipts, such as gas 
receipts, commercial transportation receipts, hotel receipts and meal receipts for 
consideration of reimbursement. 
 

B. Meals will only be reimbursed in cases where overnight travel is medically required. 
Reimbursement for receipted meal expense will be limited to a maximum per diem of $50. 

 
C. Travel expense is classified as a compensation officer discretionary payment, and is subject 

to the policies and limitations of that benefit classification. 
 

 
16. COBRA Payments 

 
A. The VOCP may, at its sole discretion, choose to reimburse a victim for payments made to 

extend medical insurance under a COBRA plan. Payment of this expense will be considered 
when the reduction in current medical expense provided by the insurance is greater than the 
cost to the program of the COBRA coverage.  

 
17. Compensation Officer Discretionary Authority 
 

A. A compensation officer may recommend, to the VOCP coordinator, the approval of any 
crime related expense that is not specified in these policies, or the extension of a specified 
benefit. For instance a compensation officer may use up to $500 to provide additional crime 

55



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 54 of 90 

scene clean-up reimbursement, or additional mental health counseling, than the amount 
otherwise specified by these policies. Or the compensation officer may approve the repair or 
replacement of necessary items destroyed in the crime such as smashed windshields or 
slashed tires on an automobile used for transportation to work, or clothing seized as 
evidence.  
 

B. The discretionary authority provided by this section may be exercised in the compensation 
officer’s sole discretion and only after approved by the VOCP coordinator. Any decision 
concerning the exercise of this authority is not appealable and a hearing or appeals officer 
may not order the use of such authority. 

 
C. The VOCP coordinator may approve such requests where the request is supported by 

documentation satisfactory to the VOCP coordinator. Approval of discretionary requests 
must be documented in the claims file.  

 
D. With the approval of the VOCP coordinator, a compensation officer may approve 

reimbursement for up to $1,000 for a Sexual Assault exam in rural counties where funding 
for such testing is unavailable. 

 
E. With the approval of the VOCP coordinator, a compensation officer may approve payment 

of towing and impound fees for up to $2,500 incurred by a victim or dependent as a direct 
result of a qualified crime.  

 
F. Home accessibility renovations such as ramps, door widening, and auto renovations for 

handicap access may be considered by the VOCP coordinator on catastrophic claims.  

 
Section Twelve.  Claim Acceptance, Denial and Closure, and Reconsideration 

 
1. General 
 

A. NRS 217.110 requires the compensation officer to approve or deny claims within 60 days of 
application. The compensation officer must consider and apply the provisions of NRS 217 
and the policies set forth herein when considering applicants eligibility for VOCP benefits. 
This section provides: 

 
“Review of application; appeal of denial by compensation officer; investigation of claim; 
availability and confidentiality of reports concerning crime committed by minor; 
decisions. 
      1. Upon receipt of an application for compensation, the compensation officer shall 
review the application to determine whether the applicant qualifies for compensation. 
The compensation officer shall deny the claim within 5 days after receipt of the 
application if the applicant’s ineligibility is apparent from the facts stated in the 
application. ... 
      2. If the compensation officer does not deny the application pursuant to subsection 1, 
… he shall conduct an investigation and, except as otherwise provided in subsection 4, 

56



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 55 of 90 

render a decision within 60 days after his receipt of the application or order. If in 
conducting his investigation the compensation officer believes that: 
      (a) Reports on the previous medical history of the victim; 
      (b) An examination of the victim and a report of that examination; 
      (c) A report on the cause of death of the victim by an impartial medical expert; or 
      (d) Investigative or police reports, 
would aid him in making his decision, the compensation officer may order the reports. 
      3. Upon the request of a compensation officer pursuant to subsection 2 for 
investigative or police reports which concern a minor who committed a crime against the 
victim, a juvenile court or a law enforcement agency shall provide the compensation 
officer with a copy of the requested investigative or police reports. Any reports obtained 
by a compensation officer pursuant to this subsection are confidential and must not be 
disclosed except upon the lawful order of a court of competent jurisdiction. 
      4. When additional reports are requested pursuant to subsection 2, the compensation 
officer shall render a decision in the case, including an order directing the payment of 
compensation, if compensation is due, within 15 days after receipt of the reports.” 

 
2. Claim Acceptance 
 

A. When a claim is accepted the compensation officer will approve the payment of eligible 
benefits promptly upon receipt of documentation necessary to establish the following: 
 

1) The expense is related to injuries to victim during the crime for which the application is 
approved. 

2) The expense is for an approved benefit. 
3) The expense is for a service actually provided. 

 
B. A claim which has been accepted, may be denied and/ or closed where the compensation 

officer determines any of the following; 
 

1) The application was approved in error 
2) The application was approved based on false or fraudulent information 
3) The applicant fails or refuses to cooperate with the VOCP.  

 
3. Claim Denial 
 

A. NRS 217.110 provides: The compensation officer shall deny the claim within 5 days after 
receipt of the application if the applicant’s ineligibility is apparent from the facts stated in 
the application. 
 

B. Applications that do not meet the criteria set forth in NRS 217 and these policies may be 
denied at any time, even if previously accepted, whether benefits were paid or not. 
 

C. Applicants who would otherwise qualify under NRS 217 and these policies, but who have no 
financial need because the applicant’s injuries are covered by workers compensation, health 
or disability insurance, or other benefit or assistance programs, or who otherwise have no 
financial need for the assistance offered by the VOCP, may be denied. 

57



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 56 of 90 

 
D. When a claim is denied the compensation officer will notify the applicant of the denial citing 

the statute or BOE Policy reason for the denial. The notice of denial will advise the applicant 
of appeal rights and the procedure for filing an appeal.  

 
E. Denial of an application should not be construed as a finding of wrong doing by the 

applicant. Denial of an application or any benefit provided by the VOCP is simply a 
determination by the VOCP that the applicant has not met the criteria for approval. Denial 
for “contributory conduct”, “failure to cooperate”, or for other reasons is not intended to 
imply guilt or liability on any applicant denied VOCP benefits. 

 
F. If an applicant disagrees with a denial, and believes the compensation officer made a mistake 

in closing a claim or denying the application or a particular benefit, or has additional 
information, they may request reconsideration, or appeal the denial, by following the 
instructions on the notice of denial. 

 
4. Reasons for Denial 
 

A. The compensation officer may deny an application when it does not comply with NRS 217 
or BOE Policies. Common reasons for Application Denial include: 

 
1) Accident – Not Covered by NRS 217 
2) Application Filed Late/Not Excused 
3) Application Previously Denied or Consolidated 
4) Crime not Committed in Nevada 
5) Crime Not Covered by NRS 217 
6) Crime Reported After 5 Days 
7) Failure to Cooperate with Police 
8) Failure to Cooperate with VOCP  
9) Incomplete Application 
10) No Crime Described in Police Report 
11) No Physical Injury or Threat of Injury 
12) No Police Report Filed 
13) No Police Report Found by Police Department 
14) No Response from Applicant 
15) Police Department Denys Request for Police Report 
16) Police Report Indicates No Crime Occurred 
17) Police Report Indicates Victim Perpetrator/Aggressor 
18) Police Report Unreadable from Redactions 
19) Prison/Jail Applicant 
20) Vacated or Withdrawn 
21) Victim Adult Passenger of DUI 
22) Victim Contributed to their Injuries 
23) Victim Ineligible to File 
24) Victim Injured while Committing Crime 
25) Victim Not Listed in Police Report 
26) Victim Not Pedestrian – Hit & Run 

58



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 57 of 90 

27) Victim Not US Resident 
28) Workers Compensation Claim 

 
B. Applications for multiple incidents involving the same perpetrator will be consolidated with 

any prior, open applications filed by the applicant.  
 
5. Consolidated Applications 
  

A. Duplicate, Multiple, or Succeeding Applications will be denied or consolidated with any 
open prior application filed by an applicant.  
 

B. Applications for multiple incidents involving the same perpetrator will be consolidated with 
any open prior application filed by the applicant.  

 
6. Vacated Applications 
 

A. Applications withdrawn by the applicant will be considered vacated and will have no impact 
on the applicants’ ability to reapply.  
 

B. Applications that are incomplete, inadequate or otherwise not completed by the applicant 
may be vacated or denied by the compensation officer.  

 
7. Inactive Claims and Claim Closure 

 
A. Claims may be considered “inactive” where no documented claim billing activity, including, 

but not limited to further medical treatment or counseling activity occurs for a period of 180 
days or more from the last billing or claim activity. 
 

B. An inactive claim my be reopened to active status at any time upon the request of the 
applicant, for any of the following reasons: 

 
1) The applicant has additional crime related expenses 
2) The applicant wishes to resume mental health counseling 
3) The applicant needs additional crime related medical treatment or care 
4) Other reasons as approved by the compensation officer 
 

C. Claims may be closed for payment of further benefits when any of the following has 
occurred: 

 
1) All known, crime related expenses, as approved by the compensation officer have been 

paid. 
2) Newly discovered information indicates the claim was accepted in error or in violation of 

these policies. 
3) Suspected fraud, dishonesty or deceit. 
4) Harassment of VOCP staff or VOCP contractors.  
5) Failure to cooperate with VOCP staff or its contractors, or 

59



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 58 of 90 

6) The applicant has violated any of the provisions of NRS 217 or the policies adopted 
herein. 

 
D. Claims may be closed for the payment of further benefits when the compensation officer 

provides applicant with written notice that:  
 
1) the claim is being closed, and 
2) the applicant can request reconsideration, and 
3) The applicant has the right to appeal the claim closure. 
 

E. Notice of appeal rights will be provided with every notice of claim closure. 
 
F. In cases where maximum benefits have been paid, closure notice and appeal rights are not 

required. 
 

G. If an applicant appeals claim closure they must establish the following: 
 

1) the VOCP failed to pay an approved or approvable crime related expense; or, 
2) the VOCP failed to pay an approved or approvable crime related benefit; and  
3) there were claim funds available for their payment, or  
4) the compensation officer abused their discretion in applying these policies or the  

provisions of NRS 217 when closing the claim for further benefits. 
 

8. Reconsideration 
 
A. An applicant may request compensation officer reconsideration of closures or denials before 

or after filing an appeal. 
 

B. When requesting reconsideration the applicant should provide the information that cures the 
deficiency that led to the compensation officer’s decision to close or deny the claim.  
 

C. The request for reconsideration may be made instead of an appeal. If a written request for 
reconsideration is made, it will extend the time to appeal the compensation officer 
determination until the request for reconsideration is approved or denied. 

 
D. If the reconsideration is denied, the decision closing or denying the claim can then be 

appealed.  
 
9. Reopening 

 
A. An approved applicant, whose claim has been closed, may request reopening to request 

payment of documented crime related expenses, not paid at the time of claim closure, or to 
seek additional crime related medical care.  
 

B. Reopening will not be approved if the claim was closed for any of the following reasons: 
 
1) Fraud, deceit or dishonesty, 

60



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 59 of 90 

2) Harassment of VOCP staff or VOCP contractors,  
3) Failure to cooperate with VOCP staff or its contractors, or 
4) The applicant has violated any of the provisions of NRS 217 or the policies adopted 

herein. 
 
C. Claims reopened for payment of additional crime related expenses may be re-closed without 

further notice or appeal rights. Such closure does not affect an applicant’s ability to request 
reopening again. 

 
10. Protection from Collection Agencies 

 
A. It is illegal under Nevada law for a vendor or provider to bill or hold the applicant 

responsible for the difference between the billed amount and the amount paid by VOCP and 
accepted by the provider. NRS 217.245 provides that when a provider or vendor accepts 
payment from the VOCP the payment is considered payment in full. This section states: 

 
“Acceptance of payment from Board for certain services provided to victim constitutes 
payment in full. Notwithstanding another provision of law, if a person who provides a 
service to a victim for which compensation is ordered pursuant to paragraph (a) of 
subsection 1 of NRS 217.200 accepts payment from the Board for such a service, the 
person shall be deemed to have agreed to the condition that: 
      1. Such payment by the Board constitutes payment in full for the service provided; 
and 
      2. The person may not collect or attempt to collect further payment from the victim or 
person on whose behalf the payment is made by the Board.” 

 
B. If a bill collector, or anyone else, attempts to collect from the applicant after the bill has been 

paid by the VOCP, they should be told to cease all collection activities or risk criminal 
charges under NRS 217.245. VOCP staff will assist the victim in stopping collection activity 
after approved claims have been paid. 

 
Section Thirteen.  VOCP Subrogation Rights 

 
1. Subrogation Lien 
 

A. The VOCP is entitled to be reimbursed any funds expended on any claim in the event the 
applicant obtains any recovery, either by civil lawsuit, restitution, or any other crime related 
payment, settlement, or reimbursement. NRS 217.240 provides: 

 
“Recovery by applicant: Subrogation; duty of notice and payment. An applicant who 
accepts an award does so under the following conditions: 
      1. The State of Nevada is immediately subrogated in the amount of the award to any 
right of action or recovery the applicant may have against any party, and that right of 
subrogation may be diminished for attorney’s fees and other costs of litigation in 
obtaining a recovery from another source; and 
      2. If recovery from any source is obtained for damages caused by the crime, the 
applicant shall promptly notify the Department of Administration of the source and 

61



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 60 of 90 

amount of that recovery, and shall promptly pay to the Board the lesser of the amount of 
the award made pursuant to this chapter or the amount recovered less attorney’s fees 
and costs. The duty of notice and payment pursuant to this subsection continues until the 
amount of the award has been repaid to the State of Nevada.” 

 
B. If the applicant received money from another person or entity, including any collateral 

source, for any expense paid by the VOCP, the VOCP has the right to recover this money. 
 

C. The VOCP has the authority to seek restitution from the offender for any money paid by the 
VOCP, and is subrogated to any collateral source that is available to the victim. 

 
D. If it is discovered that an applicant was not actually eligible to receive an award of any 

payments or other benefits the VOCP may recover the payments made. 
 

2. Civil Suit by VOCP 
 

A. The VOCP may pursue a legal action to receive reimbursement, repayment, or subrogation. 
The VOCP has a right of reimbursement, repayment and subrogation from:  

 
1) The offender who was convicted of an offense, which resulted in an award. Multiple 

offenders are jointly and severally liable.  
2) A third party who has an expressed or implied contractual or legal relationship, which 

obligates them to pay any expenses.  
3) Ineligible applicants, or applicants who have been overpaid, or paid benefits they were 

not entitled to. 
 

B. Where the VOCP, commences an action against the person or persons responsible for the 
victim's injuries to recover monies compensated to a claimant, the claimant shall cooperate 
fully with the VOCP in pursuit of its action including, but not limited to, joining as a party to 
said action.  

 
3. Civil Suit by Applicant 

 
A. Applicants, who successfully pursue civil suits to recover damages, are entitled to a credit for 

their costs and attorney fees when determining the amount the applicant must pay to satisfy 
the VOCP subrogation lien.  

 
B. To receive credit for attorney fees and costs the applicant is required to provide the VOCP 

with information about the civil suit, including the amount recovered by judgment or 
settlement, and the amount of attorney fees and costs. The VOCP will not consider reducing 
its lien or sharing in the attorney fees and costs without this information. In such cases the 
applicant will be required to repay 100% of the VOCP lien without a credit for fees and 
costs. 

 
C. In calculating the value of attorney fees and costs the VOCP will apply the calculations set 

forth in the formula devised by the Nevada Supreme Court in Breen v. Caesar’s Palace, 715 

62



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 61 of 90 

P.2d 1080 (Nev. 1986). The formula used to determine the amount due the VOCP is 
calculated as follows:  

 
The maximum percentage of the VOCP share of attorney fees is determined by dividing 
the VOCP Lien Amount by the Amount of Settlement, less the Amount of attorney’s 
fees. Next multiply the percentage obtained by the attorney’s fees. This amount is 
deducted from the VOCP Lien Amount. For example, if the settlement was for $100,000, 
and the attorney’s fees were $33,333.33 and the VOCP lien was for $35,000.00, the 
VOCP’s share of the attorney’s fees would be 52.5% [$35,000/($100,000-$33,333.33)], 
or $17,500.00 and the net due to the VOCP in subrogation would be $17,500.00 [$35,000 
Lien less $17,500 in attorney’s fees]. 

 
D. VOCP liens may be waived entirely when the applicant demonstrates that the recovery is 

insufficient to adequately cover the damages suffered by the applicant due to the crime, and 
the VOCP determines the recovery by the victim outweighs the VOCP interest in its 
subrogation recovery. 
 

E. The VOCP Coordinator is authorized to approve all compromises, settlements or waivers of 
subrogation liens. All subrogation lien compromises, settlements or waivers will be 
documented in the VOCP case file. The amount recovered from subrogation payments or 
other recoveries may be credited back to the claim increasing available benefits by the 
credited amount. 

 
Section Fourteen.  Appeal Rights and Procedures 

 
1. Appeal Rights 
 

A. When a claim or benefit is denied, and appeal rights are stated in the determination denying 
the claim or benefit, an applicant has sixty (60) days to appeal the denial by filing a request 
for hearing with the Hearings Division of the Department of Administration.  
 

B. NRS 217.110 (1) provides: 
 

“Upon receipt of an application for compensation, the compensation officer shall review the 
application to determine whether the applicant qualifies for compensation. The 
compensation officer shall deny the claim within 5 days after receipt of the application if the 
applicant’s ineligibility is apparent from the facts stated in the application. The applicant 
may appeal the denial to a hearing officer within 60 days after the decision. If the hearing 
officer determines that the applicant may be entitled to compensation, the hearing officer 
shall order the compensation officer to complete an investigation and render a decision 
pursuant to subsection 2. If the hearing officer denies the appeal, the applicant may appeal 
to an appeals officer pursuant to NRS 217.117. “ 
 

C. Determinations that are appealable under these Policies or the provisions of NRS 217.112, 
will include appeal rights substantially similar to the following: 

 
APPEAL RIGHTS: 

63



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 62 of 90 

 
If you disagree with this decision, you have the right to appeal to the Hearing Officer. 
Appeals must be filed within sixty (60) days from the date of this letter by sending a copy of 
this letter with a written request for a hearing to:  
 

Department of Administration Hearing Division, 
Address and Fax # 

 
The VOCP website has appeal forms in English and Spanish, and helpful information about 
your appeal rights, and the appeals process at: www.voc.nv.gov 
 

2. Failure to Respond to Written Request 
 

A. The compensation officer will respond to the written requests concerning benefit or claim 
issues within 30 days of the receipt of the written request. 
 

B. If the compensation officer does not respond to a written request of the applicant, concerning 
claim or benefit issues provided for in these policies, within 30 days of the compensation 
officers’ receipt of the written request, the applicant may request a Hearing Officer review of 
the compensation officer’s failure to respond to the written request.  

 
C. The Hearing Officer may consider the request if the matter is within the Hearing Officers 

jurisdiction, or may remand the matter for review by the compensation officer. 
 

3. Non-Appealable Matters 
 

A. Applicants may only appeal written determinations of the compensation officer, or the failure 
to respond to a written request as provided for in these policies. Unless otherwise provided 
for in these policies, or by law, only written determinations by the compensation are subject 
to the jurisdiction of the Hearings Division under the provisions of NRS 217.112.  
 

4. Burden of Proof 
 
A. To qualify for the benefits offered by the VOCP, the applicant must meet certain criteria, and 

the crime must be an eligible crime. The applicant has the burden of proof, by clear and 
convincing evidence to establish eligibility for acceptance and payment of any benefit 
offered by the VOCP. 

 
B. This level of proof places the burden of establishing eligibility on the applicant or victim by 

clear and convincing evidence as opposed to merely by a preponderance of the evidence. For 
instance claims for benefits such as lost wages or relocation payments must be supported by 
original, valid, business documents, such as receipts or tax returns. The applicant, to the 
reasonable satisfaction of the VOCP, must answer questions concerning the legitimacy of 
such documents.  

 
C. It is not the responsibility of the VOCP to prove the documents are not legitimate but rather 

the applicants’ responsibility to prove they are. Doubt will be resolved in favor of the VOCP 

64



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 63 of 90 

decision, unless overcome by evidence that is clear in its validity and convincing in its 
application to the matter under review. 

 
5. Appeals Process 

 
A. The compensation officer will promptly notify the applicant if their application is denied, 

and the reason for the denial. The notification will include the applicant’s appeal rights as 
specified in NRS 217.112. An applicant may appeal any written determination where appeal 
rights are stated in the determination or as otherwise provided by law or these policies.  
 

B. To avoid disclosure of sensitive information, and possible embarrassment to the applicant, 
the reason stated for denial will refer to the general reasons for denial set forth in these 
policies and will not cite details of the crime.  

 
C. Hearings conducted in VOCP matters by hearings or appeals officers are not open to the 

public except with the consent of the applicant. 
 

D. Decisions of the hearings or appeals officers are confidential documents and not available to 
the public without the written consent of the applicant or as otherwise required by law or 
court order, or these policies. 

 
 
6. Appeal to a Hearing Officer 

 
A. If an applicant disagrees with a written determination of the compensation officer, which 

includes appeal rights as provided in these policies, the applicant may appeal the 
determination to a Hearing Officer as provided in NRS 217.112. This section requires the 
appeal to be filed within 60 days and states:  
 

      “1.  An applicant who is subject to the provisions of this chapter may request a 
hearing before a hearing officer on any matter within the hearing officer’s authority. The 
compensation officer shall provide with his decision the necessary information for 
requesting such a hearing. 
      2.  An applicant aggrieved by a compensation officer’s decision may appeal the 
decision by filing a request for a hearing before a hearing officer. Such a request must be 
filed within 60 days after the Clerk or compensation officer mailed the decision. 
      3.  Failure to file a request for a hearing within the period specified in subsection 2 
may be excused if the applicant shows by a preponderance of the evidence that he did not 
receive the notice of the decision and the information necessary to request a hearing. 
      4.  The applicant shall notify the compensation officer and the hearing officer in 
writing of a change of address within a reasonable time after that change.” 

 
B. The time allowed to file an appeal includes an additional 3 days for mailing. 

 
C. The hearing officer will conduct an informal hearing, usually within 30 days of a request for 

hearing. The applicant may attend the hearing in person, by telephone, or may submit a 
written statement in lieu of appearing in person or by phone. 

65



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 64 of 90 

 
D. The VOCP will, prior to the hearing, submit a written statement to the hearing officer and 

provide a copy of the statement to the applicant. The compensation officer may attend the 
hearing in person, by telephone, or may rely on the statement submitted to the hearing officer 
without appearing at the hearing. 

 
E. If the hearing officer does not resolve the matter, the applicant or the VOCP, may appeal the 

hearing officer decision to an appeals officer. 
 

7. Appeal to Appeals Officer 
 

A. If either the applicant or the VOCP appeals a decision of the hearing officer, the 
compensation officer will compile an evidentiary package for the appeals officer that will 
include, but not to be limited to, the following: 

 
1) A report or statement concerning the issue on appeal, and 
2) Documents in possession of the VOCP that were considered in the decision being 

appealed. 
 
B. Copies of this evidentiary package will be provided to the applicants address on file with the 

VOCP. Documents containing information considered confidential by law will be redacted. 
 
C. The compensation officer will be available to the appeals officer, either in person or by 

telephone or may submit the matter for decision based on the evidentiary package submitted 
to the appeals officer. 

 
8. Appeals to the Board of Examiners 
 

A. Appeals to the BOE are governed by NRS 217.117(3). This section allows the BOE to decide 
an appeal without a hearing, after reviewing the record, or if the BOE elects, it may schedule 
a hearing on the appeal. 
 

B. If either the applicant or the VOCP appeals a decision of the appeals officer to the BOE, the 
VOCP will notify the appeals officer, who will provide the BOE with a record of the appeals 
officer proceeding. The VOCP coordinator may also submit a written recommendation to the 
BOE. 

 
C. The BOE will review the decision of the Appeals Officer and may affirm or reverse the 

Appeals Officer decision, or may remand the matter to the appeals officer or the VOCP for 
further consideration or proceedings. 
 

D. If the BOE wishes to hear testimony or further information from the appellant it may defer a 
decision until a hearing is held. 

 
E. The BOE may schedule a hearing and provide notice to the applicant prior to the scheduled 

hearing date. 
 

66



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 65 of 90 

F. If the BOE elects to schedule a hearing it may affirm or reverse the Appeals Officer decision 
or may remand the matter to the appeals officer or the VOCP for further consideration or 
proceedings, after any such hearing or proceeding. 

 
9. Decisions of the Board of Examiners 
 

A. The BOE may make a decision in an appeal with or without conducting a hearing or 
considering any further evidence or statements beyond the record submitted by the Appeals 
Officer.  
 

B. A decision of the BOE concerning a hearing it conducted may be made at the conclusion of 
the hearing, or at a subsequent meeting. 

 
C. The BOE may adopt the written recommendation of the VOCP coordinator, or render its own 

decision in the matter. 
 
D. The decision of the BOE is effective upon its vote, unless otherwise stated in its decision. 

 
E. The Clerk of the BOE may sign any order or decision necessary to effectuate the decision of 

the BOE.  
 
F. The Clerk of the BOE will notify the VOCP coordinator of its decision. 

 
Section Fifteen.  Victim Advocates and Attorneys 

 
1. Advocate Assistance 

 
A. Victim advocates provide a variety of services to victims of crime. An important priority 

among their duties is providing assistance completing applications for compensation from 
the Victims of Crime Program. If an agency or program receives federal funding for victim 
of crime assistance they are required by law to assist victims complete the VOCP application 
and to assist them obtain VOCP benefits. 

 
B. These policies will assist victim advocates understand VOCP rules and identify available 

benefits. They will assist advocates comply with federal law by providing guidance to those 
submitting VOCP applications and in helping victims obtain appropriate crime related 
benefits. 

 
2. Federal Requirements 

 
A.   United States Code, Title 42, Chapter 112, § 10603, Crime Victim Assistance Section 10603 

(b)(1)(E) requires recipients of federal VOCA funds to assist victims’ complete VOCP 
applications. This federal law provides in part: 

 
“(1) A victim assistance program is an eligible crime victim assistance program for the 

purposes of this section if such program … 
(E) Assists potential recipients in seeking crime victim compensation benefits” 

67



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 66 of 90 

 
3. The Advocate’s Role in the Appeal Process 
 

A. The VOCP encourages victim advocates to assist the applicant in the appeals process. If a 
claim is denied an advocate may be a significant help to the victim by assisting the victim 
with the appeal. The majority of claim denials are because the victim failed to provide 
necessary information to the VOCP and failed to respond to a request for additional 
information from the VOCP.  
 

B. The victim advocate can help the victim complete the application process and help the victim 
respond to VOCP requirements or communications. The advocate can help the victim obtain 
and present required information or documents, such as police or medical reports, to the 
hearing officer. 
 

C. If the advocate chooses to assist the victim, they will receive copies of all correspondence 
from the VOCP related to the claim. If the advocate wishes to assist the applicant in the 
appeal process the applicant must sign the consent on the application.   
 

D. Advocates are not required to be licensed to practice law in order to assist an applicant with 
appeals of VOCP decisions. 
 

4. Attorney Fees 
 

A. Attorney fees may be allowed in payment to Nevada attorneys for legal services in assisting 
the victim apply and recover benefits available through the VOCP pursuant to NRS 217.140. 
This section states: 
 

     “1. The hearing officer may, as part of any order entered pursuant to the provisions of 
NRS 217.010 to 217.270, inclusive, allow reasonable attorney’s fees, but these fees may 
not exceed 10 percent of the award. 
      2. It is unlawful for any attorney to ask for, contract for or receive any larger sum 
than the amount so allowed.” 

 
B. The VOCP may pay attorney fees in an amount not to exceed 10% of the amount paid to the 

victim, or on the victims’ behalf, upon submission of an itemized statement for legal services 
provided and approval by the hearing officer.  
 

C. Attorney fees may be paid only to the extent claim balance funds are available at the time 
such fees are requested, and must be approved by a hearing officer as provided in NRS 
217.140. Attorney fees paid will be charged against the claim as a claim cost.  
 

Section Sixteen.  VOCP Claims Management System 
 
1. Paperless Claims Management System 

 
A. In conjunction with its contractor, the VOCP manages all VOCP claims via an Internet 

based, paperless, claims management system. This system provides for the imaging of all 

68



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 67 of 90 

documents related to a claim, upon receipt. All file documents can be viewed while logged 
on to the system, and claims can be processed, approved and paid electronically. 

 
B. In order to promote this technology, and the efficiencies of the paperless management 

system, these policies establish the electronic images of the original documents will be 
deemed to be an original document, as defined in NRS 52.205 for all purposes, including 
satisfying any requirements for original documents or signatures by any police agency, 
medical provider, employer or other party identified by these policies or the authorizations 
approved herein. 

 
2. File Retention 
 

A. After paper documents are imaged and uploaded to the claims management system, all 
documents will be destroyed by shredding, any time after 30 days of being scanned into the 
system. Electronic documents will be retained for a period of not less than 7 years after a 
claim closes, or in the case of a minor victim, 7 years after the victim reaches the age of 21. 
 

3. Systems Security and Backup 
 

A. All data contained in the claims management system is solely the property of the State of 
Nevada VOCP. The VOCP contractor will provide a full backup of the data and documents 
to the VOCP coordinator in electronic form on a monthly basis. The backup information will 
be provided on compact disks in a sealed envelope, and will be delivered to the VOCP 
coordinator office by the 5th of each month. The VOCP coordinator will maintain the back 
up disk in a secure location. 
 

B. The VOCP contractor is responsible for ensuring that all data and documents contained in 
the VOCP operating system and a fully functional version of the operating system is backed 
up daily and maintained in a secure offsite location. 
 

4. System Functionality 
 

A. To ensure compliance with VOCP Polices, the claims management system used by the 
program performs the following functions: 

 
1) Tracks all benefits paid on individual claims by benefit type 
2) Ensures benefits paid do not exceed benefit levels approved by the Board 
3) Allows program to reduce benefits paid on a percentage basis whenever necessary  
4) Allows benefit levels to be changed on individual claims with authorization of the 

coordinator or the Board 
5) Tracks and documents all critical changes to a claim 
6) Provides a multi-level approval process for all benefits paid 
7) Provides real-time reporting 
8) Allows remote access to system for authorized personnel for claims management and 

auditing purposes 
9) Provides vendor access to payment information and claim status verification 
10) Detects potential duplicate benefit payments  

69



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 68 of 90 

 
Section Seventeen.  Operating Procedures 

 
1. Application Processing 
 

A. Applications received at the VOCP office are sent to the VOCP contractor for processing 
within 1 business day of receipt. The VOCP contractor enters completed applications into the 
claims management system, and provides notification to the compensation officer and 
Administrative Assistant assigned to the claim. The application is scanned and saved in 
electronic format to the new claim established in the claims management system. 

 
B. The VOCP contractor will attempt to contact applicant or their designated representative as 

provided to the VOCP in the application by telephone or email for required information if the 
application submitted is incomplete. If the VOCP contractor is unable to obtain all 
information required to process the application in the system, the application will be returned 
to the applicant or their designated representative with a letter documenting what information 
is needed. 

 
2. Document Processing 
  

A. All documents associated with a claim are forwarded, upon receipt, to the VOCP contractor 
for scanning. Each document is identified by document type and saved in an electronic 
format in the appropriate claim file. All documents are retained by the VOCP contractor for a 
minimum of 30 days, after which time they are destroyed by shredding.  

 
3. Medical Bill Processing 
 

A. All medical bills, payment requests and receipts for payments are forwarded to the VOCP 
contractor upon receipt. Medical bills are subject to review, and are scanned into the system 
with an explanation of benefits form that shows the recommended payment amount based on 
medical fee schedules approved by the VOCP.  
 

B. Vendors must be set up in the claims management system before they are eligible to receive 
payments from the VOCP. All vendors must submit a completed W-9 form before they can 
be set up in the claims management system. The VOCP contractor is responsible for 
obtaining and maintaining all W-9’s and for adding and maintaining the vendors in the 
claims management system.  

 
C. Payments can only be approved by the compensation officer assigned to the claim. The 

compensation officer will review the bill to determine whether the service is directly related 
to the crime before approving for payment. Payments that require the approval of the VOCP 
coordinator should not be processed by the compensation officer until the approval has been 
obtained and noted in the claim file. All payments are subject to review and approval by the 
VOCP coordinator, and are also subject to review and approval by designated Administrative 
Services personnel.  

 

70



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 69 of 90 

4. Direct Payment Processing 
 

A. Payment requests and requests for reimbursement are sent to the VOCP contractor for 
scanning and are saved in electronic format in the appropriate claim file. Direct payments are 
payments made to an individual. Usually they are payments made to the applicant, but direct 
payments can also be made to reimburse individuals for payments made on behalf of the 
victim. Direct payments are not subject to withholding or reported as taxable benefits. 

 
B. Only the compensation officer assigned to the claim can approve direct payments. The 

compensation officer will review the bill to determine whether the request for payment is 
directly related to the crime before approving for payment. Payments that require the 
approval of the VOCP coordinator should not be processed by the compensation officer until 
the approval has been obtained and noted in the claim file. All payments are reviewed and 
approved by the VOCP coordinator, or the coordinators designee, and are also subject to 
review and approval by designated Administrative Services personnel. All direct payments to 
individuals for $1,000 or more are subject to the Verification Process outlined in Section 
Ten, paragraph 3 of these policies. 

 
C. The VOCP contractor will provide third party review services, checking all direct payments 

to confirm documented compliance with program policies before releasing the payments.  
 
5. Check Production 
 

A. Administrative Services personnel are responsible for creating the check run data files. 
Authorized employees will review the outstanding approved payments weekly. After 
insuring adequate funds are available to pay the outstanding checks the Authorized 
Employee will authorize checks to be produced. Check run data files can be created based on 
selected bill types, all bills pending, or can be restricted to non-vendor payments only. The 
claims management system shows the total number and amount of pending payments by 
category, allowing the Budget Office to manage the funding process.  

 
B. After the check run data file has been produced by Administrative Services, the VOCP 

contractor will print the checks and mail them directly to the payee indicated. Medical 
payments will be mailed with a copy of the explanation of benefits form.  

 
6. Stop Payments 
 

A. If a payment is not received and a stop payment needs to be made so that the check can be 
reissued, the compensation officer will contact the VOCP contractor to determine whether 
the original check has been paid. If the original has not been paid a notarized Affidavit must 
be completed by the payee, and forwarded to the VOCP contractor. Upon receipt of the 
Affidavit, the VOCP contractor will place a stop payment order on the check and void the 
payment in the claims management system. The compensation officer can then reissue the 
payment through the standard payment process. 

 

71



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 70 of 90 

B. If a payment is made in error, upon instruction from the VOCP Coordinator the contractor 
will attempt to place a stop payment on the check. The VOCP understands and acknowledges 
that payment must be made if the check is presented for payment by a holder in due course. 

 
7. Reconciliation of Bank Account 
 

A. Statements on the VOCP bank account will be mailed directly to the VOCP contractor. The 
VOCP contractor is responsible for reconciling the account and reporting the results each 
month to Administrative Services. Reconciliation reports will include: checks paid in period, 
checks outstanding and checks voided in period. 

 
8. Tax Reporting 
 

A. Before January 31st of each year, the VOCP contractor will produce and mail 1099’s to all 
vendors receiving payment from the Victims of Crime Program during the prior calendar 
year. The VOCP contractor is also responsible for obtaining and maintaining required W-9 
forms, filing required tax reports with the IRS and responding to B-Notices.  

 
9. Excluded Parties List 

 
A. The VOCP contractor will ensure that all vendors added to the VOCP claim system are not 

on the Federal Excluded Parties List. The VOCP coordinator will be notified immediately if 
any vendor providing services is found on the Excluded Parties List. Existing vendors found 
on the list will be suspended, and no payments will be issued until they are removed from the 
list.  

 
10. Deposits 
 

A. All payments received for deposit will be stamped with the VOCP endorsement stamp upon 
receipt by an Administrative Assistant. Refunds and other payments associated with a claim 
will be entered into the claim management system, and copies of the documents sent to the 
VOCP contractor for scanning into the claim file. 

 
B. After entering the information into the claims management system, the Administrative 

Assistant will send the payment to Administrative Services for processing. Payments will be 
sent to Administrative Services for depositing by Thursday of every week. Items over 
$10,000 will be sent immediately.  

 
Section Eighteen.  Operational Goals and Standards 

 
1. General 
 

A. To meet the mission of providing timely assistance to victims of crime, the program has 
adopted the following standards, with the goal of meeting or exceeding the stated standards 
at least 95% of the time. These standards are aspirational. Failure to meet any specified goal, 
in any case, will not be considered a violation of these policies: 

 

72



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 71 of 90 

1) Documents and applications received at the VOCP offices are to be sent to the contractor 
for processing within 1 business day of receipt. 

2) Applications are to be entered into the system and a claim number assigned within 1 
business day of receipt by the contractor. 

3) The contractor will make phone calls to applicants submitting incomplete applications 
within 1 business day of receipt of the application. 

4) The contractor will image documents into the system within 2 business days of receipt. 
5) The contractor will review medical bills containing required details within 2 business 

days of receipt. 
6) Compensation Officers will approve or deny completed applications within 1 business 

day of submission of a completed application as defined by these policies. 
7) Decision letters will be mailed within 2 business days from date of decision. 
8) For applications received without police reports, a written request for the police report 

will be initiated by the VOCP within 2 business days. 
9) Eligible benefit payments will be processed by the VOCP within 5 business days. 
10) Priority 1 and 2 payments will be paid weekly.  
11) The contractor will mail weekly benefits paid to victims the last working day of the 

week. 
12) The contractor will mail weekly benefits paid to providers with appropriate 

documentation within 2 business days from the date of the check.   
13) The contractor will mail quarterly payments with appropriate documentation within 10 

business days from the date of the check.  
 

 
 
 

Section Nineteen.  Reports 
 
1. Reports to the Legislature 
 

A. NRS 217.250 requires the BOE to report certain information to the Nevada Legislature when 
it meets biannually. This section states: 

 
“The Board shall prepare and transmit biennially to the Legislature a report of its 
activities, including: 
      1. The amount of compensation awarded; 
      2. The number of applicants; 
      3. The number of applicants who were denied compensation; and 
      4. The average length of time taken to award compensation, from the date of receipt 
of the application to the date of the payment of compensation.” 

 
B. The VOCP will prepare a report to the BOE that includes the information required by NRS 

217.250 and transmit the report to the BOE as it may require. 
 
2. Reports to the BOE 
 

73



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 72 of 90 

A. NRS 217.260 requires the BOE to estimate its revenue and anticipated expenses on a 
quarterly basis, and when anticipated expenses exceed anticipated revenue to pay claims at 
the same reduced rate as expenses exceed revenue. 

 
B. The VOCP coordinator will provide the BOE with a report at the end of each fiscal year 

quarter, which will include the information required by NRS 217.260. This report will 
include analysis and recommendations for paying claims pursuant to the standards set forth 
in these policies.  

 
Section Twenty.  VOCP Funding 

 
1. General 
 

A. Funding for the VOCP comes from fines, penalties and costs imposed by Nevada’s courts as 
well as court ordered restitution, prisoner wage deductions, bail bond assessments and 
forfeitures. The VOCP also accepts federal grant funding from the United States, Department 
of Justice: Office of Victims of Crime. The VOCP also accepts private grants and donations.  

 
2. State Funding Sources 
 

A. The following revenue sources make up the state funding sources for the VOCP and are 
identified by the Budget Office Revenue Source Code and authorizing statutory reference: 

 
1) 3739 FILING FEE: Fees collected by county justice of the peace per NRS 4.060. 
2) 3749 COURT ASSESSMENT: Administrative assessments collected for misdemeanor 

offenses per NRS 176.059.  
3) 4151 CIVIL PENALTIES: Revenue received from the Department of Motor Vehicles per 

NRS 484.3791.  
4) 4152 FINES/FORFEITURES/PENALTIES: Fees collected from persons charged with a 

gross misdemeanor or felony per NRS 178.518.  
5) 4201 REIMBURSEMENT: Forfeited property proceeds per NRS 179.118  
6) 4256 RESTITUTION COLLECTIONS: Undistributed court ordered restitution payments 

per NRS 176A.430.  
7) 4280 WAGE ASSESSMENT: Inmate wage assessments per NRS 209.247. 
 
 

B. NRS 176.059 Administrative assessment for misdemeanor: Collection; distribution; 
limitations on use.  …  

 
    8.  Of the total amount deposited in the State General Fund pursuant to subsections 5 
and 6, the State Controller shall distribute the money received to the following public 
agencies in the following manner: 
      (a) Not less than 51 percent to the Office of Court Administrator for allocation as 
follows: 
           (1) Eighteen and one-half percent of the amount distributed to the Office of Court 
Administrator for the administration of the courts. 
        (2) Nine percent of the amount distributed to the Office of Court Administrator for 

74



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 73 of 90 

the development of a uniform system for judicial records. 
         (3) Nine percent of the amount distributed to the Office of Court Administrator for 
continuing judicial education. 
          (4) Forty-eight percent of the amount distributed to the Office of Court 
Administrator for the Supreme Court. 
          (5) Three and one-half percent of the amount distributed to the Office of Court 
Administrator for the payment for the services of retired justices and retired district 
judges. 
          (6) Twelve percent of the amount distributed to the Office of Court Administrator 
for the provision of specialty court programs. 
       (b) Not more than 49 percent must be used to the extent of legislative 
authorization for the support of: 
             (1) The Central Repository for Nevada Records of Criminal History; 
            (2) The Peace Officers’ Standards and Training Commission; 
             (3) The operation by the Department of Public Safety of a computerized 
interoperative system for information related to law enforcement; 
             (4) The Fund for the Compensation of Victims of Crime; and 
             (5) The Advisory Council for Prosecuting Attorneys. 

  
 
3. OVC VOCA Victim Compensation Grant 
 

A. Federal grant funds are available to state compensation programs and are derived from 
criminal penalties assessed at the federal level. The federal grant currently provides a 60% 
match of all state funds paid on victim claims during the prior federal fiscal year. 

 
B. Each year the VOCP submits an application to the United States, Department of Justice, 

Office of Victims of Crime, for funding made available to the states pursuant to United 
States Code, Title 42, Chapter 112, §10602.  

 
C. Federal guidelines on the use of OVC VOCA Victim Compensation Grant funds are set forth 

in the OVC VOCA Victim Compensation Grant Program Guidelines (dated May 10, 2001) 
which provide: 
 

Section III.B: “Grant Period. Victim compensation grant funds are available for 
expenditure throughout the fiscal year (FY) of the award plus the next three fiscal years. 
The federal fiscal year (FFY) begins on October 1 and ends on September 30. State 
crime victim compensation programs may pay compensation claims retroactively to 
October 1, even though the VOCA grant may not be awarded until later in the fiscal 
year.” 
 
Section IV.B.4: Nonsupplantation. The state must certify that grants received under 
VOCA will not be used to supplant state funds otherwise available to provide crime 
victim compensation benefits or to administer the state crime victim compensation 
program. States may not decrease their financial commitment to crime victim 
compensation solely because they are receiving VOCA funds for the same purpose. 
Expenditure of VOCA funds received based on state certified payouts from previous 

75



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 74 of 90 

years does not constitute supplantation.” 
 

D. The OJP Financial Guide addresses the “Minimum Cash on Hand” Policy that all OJP 
grantees must adhere to: 
 

Part III, Chapter 1. Payments: Minimum Cash on Hand “Grant recipient organizations 
should request funds based upon immediate disbursement/reimbursement requirements. 
Funds will not be paid in a lump sum, but rather disbursed over time as project costs are 
incurred or anticipated (with the exception of block grant program such as Justice 
Assistance Grant (JAG), Juvenile Accountability Block Grants [JABG], and State 
Criminal Alien Assistance Program Grants [SCAAP] which are paid in a lump sum). 
Recipients should time their drawdown requests to ensure that Federal cash on hand is 
the minimum needed for disbursements/reimbursements to be made immediately or 
within 10 days.” 
 

E. Federal guidelines permit State Programs to set aside 5% of the total federal grant funds for 
VOCP administrative expenses. By utilizing federal funds for administrative purposes, state 
funding is freed up for payment of victim expenses thereby increasing the federal match of 
state funding. In order to maximize the federal matching funds the VOCP elects to exercise 
this option each fiscal year. Federal policy statements provide: 

 
Administrative and Training Funds usage: State grantees choosing to use a portion of the 
award for administrative and training purposes must report the percentage/amount of the 
total grant that will be used for these purposes. The Department of Justice 
Reauthorization Act of 2005 (Pub. L. No. 109-162) amended the Victims of Crime Act by 
expanding the purposes of the 5 percent administrative set aside for State Victim 
Compensation and Victim Assistance programs. Under 42 U.S.C. 10602(a)(3) and 
10603(b)(3) respectively, eligible State Victim Compensation and State Victim Assistance 
programs may set aside up to a total of 5 percent of the respective grant funds for 
administrative and training purposes.  

 
F. Federal funding may be carried forward for a maximum of four (4) years. The VOCP 

generally draws the full grant award each year, however the VOCP may carry forward funds 
where such action may be beneficial to the VOCP. 

 
Section Twenty-One.  Federal Policies Pursuant to: USC Title 42 

 
1. General 

 
TITLE 42, CHAPTER 112, § 1060: Crime victim compensation.  
(a) Authority of Director; grants 

(1) Except as provided in paragraph (2), the Director shall make an annual grant from 
the Fund to an eligible crime victim compensation program of 40 percent in fiscal year 2002 
and of 60 percent in subsequent fiscal years of the amounts awarded during the preceding 
fiscal year, other than amounts awarded for property damage. Except as provided in 
paragraph (3), a grant under this section shall be used by such program only for awards of 
compensation. 

76



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 75 of 90 

(2) If the sums available in the Fund for grants under this section are insufficient to 
provide grants of 40 percent in fiscal year 2002 and of 60 percent in subsequent fiscal years 
as provided in paragraph (1), the Director shall make, from the sums available, a grant to 
each eligible crime victim compensation program so that all such programs receive the same 
percentage of the amounts awarded by such program during the preceding fiscal year, other 
than amounts awarded for property damage. 

(3) Not more than 5 percent of a grant made under this section may be used for training 
purposes and the administration of the State crime victim compensation program receiving 
the grant. 

 
(b) Eligible crime victim compensation programs 

(1) A crime victim compensation program is an eligible crime victim compensation 
program for the purposes of this section if— 

a) Such program is operated by a State and offers compensation to victims and 
survivors of victims of criminal violence, including drunk driving and domestic 
violence for— 

(i) Medical expenses attributable to a physical injury resulting from 
compensable crime, including expenses for mental health counseling and care; 

(ii) Loss of wages attributable to a physical injury resulting from a 
compensable crime; and 

(iii) Funeral expenses attributable to a death resulting from a 
compensable crime; 

b) Such program promotes victim cooperation with the reasonable requests of 
law enforcement authorities; 

c) Such State certifies that grants received under this section will not be used to 
supplant State funds otherwise available to provide crime victim compensation; 

d) Such program, as to compensable crimes occurring within the State, makes 
compensation awards to victims who are nonresidents of the State on the basis of the 
same criteria used to make awards to victims who are residents of such State; 

e) Such program provides compensation to victims of Federal crimes occurring 
within the State on the same basis that such program provides compensation to 
victims of State crimes; 

f) Such program provides compensation to residents of the State who are victims 
of crimes occurring outside the State if— 

(i) The crimes would be compensable crimes had they occurred inside that 
State; and 

(ii) The places the crimes occurred in are States not having eligible crime 
victim compensation programs; 

g) Such program does not, except pursuant to rules issued by the program to 
prevent unjust enrichment of the offender, deny compensation to any victim because of 
that victim’s familial relationship to the offender, or because of the sharing of a 
residence by the victim and the offender; 

h) Such program does not provide compensation to any person who has been 
convicted of an offense under Federal law with respect to any time period during 
which the person is delinquent in paying a fine, other monetary penalty, or restitution 
imposed for the offense; and 

77



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 76 of 90 

i) Such program provides such other information and assurances related to the 
purposes of this section as the Director may reasonably require. 

 
(c) Exclusion from income, resources, and assets for purposes of means tests. Notwithstanding 
any other law (other than title IV of Public Law 107–42), for the purpose of any maximum 
allowed income, resource, or asset eligibility requirement in any Federal, State, or local 
government program using Federal funds that provides medical or other assistance (or payment 
or reimbursement of the cost of such assistance), any amount of crime victim compensation that 
the applicant receives through a crime victim compensation program under this section shall not 
be included in the income, resources, or assets of the applicant, nor shall that amount reduce the 
amount of the assistance available to the applicant from Federal, State, or local government 
programs using Federal funds, unless the total amount of assistance that the applicant receives 
from all such programs is sufficient to fully compensate the applicant for losses suffered as a 
result of the crime. 
 
(d) Definitions 
As used in this section— 

(1) The term “property damage” does not include damage to prosthetic devices, 
eyeglasses or other corrective lenses, or dental devices; 

(2) The term “medical expenses” includes, to the extent provided under the eligible 
crime victim compensation program, expenses for eyeglasses or other corrective lenses, for 
dental services and devices and prosthetic devices, and for services rendered in accordance 
with a method of healing recognized by the law of the State; 

(3) The term “compensable crime” means a crime the victims of which are eligible for 
compensation under the eligible crime victim compensation program, and includes crimes, 
whose victims suffer death or personal injury, that are described in section 247 of Title 18, 
driving while intoxicated, and domestic violence; and 

(4) The term “State” includes the District of Columbia, the Commonwealth of Puerto 
Rico, the United States Virgin Islands, and any other possession or territory of the United 
States. 

 
(e) Relationship to certain Federal programs 
Notwithstanding any other law, if the compensation paid by an eligible crime victim 
compensation program would cover costs that a Federal program, including the program 
established under title IV of Public Law 107–42, or a federally financed State or local program, 
would otherwise pay, 

(1) Such crime victim compensation program shall not pay that compensation; and 
(2) The other program shall make its payments without regard to the existence of the 

crime victim compensation program. 
 

Section Twenty-Two.  Federal Guidelines: VOCA Grant Program 
 
1. General 

 
27158 Federal Register/Vol. 66, No. 95/Wednesday, May 16, 2001/Notices 
 
DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE  

78



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 77 of 90 

Office for Victims of Crime [OJP(OVC)–1319]  
Victims of Crime Act Victim Compensation Grant Program  
AGENCY: Office for Victims of Crime, Office of Justice Programs, Justice.  
ACTION: Final program guidelines.  
SUMMARY: The Office for Victims of Crime (OVC), United States Department of Justice (DOJ) 
is publishing Final Guidelines to implement the crime victim compensation grant program as 
authorized by the Victims of Crime Act of 1984, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 10601, et seq., hereafter 
referred to as VOCA.  
EFFECTIVE DATE: These Final Guidelines are effective upon publication in the Federal 
Register or until reissuance by OVC.  
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:  
Carol R. Watkins, Director, State Compensation and Assistance Division, Office for Victims of 
Crime 810 Seventh Street, NW., Washington, DC 20531; phone: (202) 514–4696. (This is not a 
toll-free number). E- mail:watkinsc@ojp.usdoj.gov  
 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The Victims of Crime Act (VOCA) authorizes federal 
financial assistance to states for the purposes of compensating and assisting crime victims, 
funding training and technical assistance, and serving victims of federal crimes.  

 
2. These Final Guidelines provide information specifically for the administration and 
implementation of the VOCA crime victim compensation grant program as authorized in section 
1403 of VOCA, Public Law 98–473, as amended, codified at 42 U.S.C. 10602.    
 
These VOCA Final Guidelines are outlined as follows:  
I. Definitions  
II. Background  
III. Funding Allocations  
IV. State Eligibility Criteria  
V. State Certification  
VI. Application Process and Performance Reporting  
VII. Administrative Costs  
VIII. Financial Requirements  
IX. Monitoring  
X. Suspension and Termination of Funding 
  
I. Definitions  
For purposes of these Final Guidelines, the following terms are defined:  
 

A. Driving While Intoxicated. This includes drunk driving and driving under the influence of 
alcohol and/or other drugs. Specific definitions may be provided by state statutes, written 
rules, or other established policies.  
 
B. Federal Crime. A federal crime is any crime that is a violation of the United States 
Criminal Code or violation of the Code of Military Justice. In general, federal crimes are 
investigated by federal law enforcement agencies, including the Federal Bureau of 
Investigation (FBI), Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA), Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco 
and Firearms (BATF), U.S. Postal Service (USPS), Department of Interior (DOI), U.S. 

79



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 78 of 90 

Secret Service (USSS), U.S. Customs Service (USCS), and Immigration and Naturalization 
Service (INS). Federal crimes are prosecuted in Federal District Courts by U.S. Attorneys 
and the U.S. Department of Justice Criminal Division. Examples of Federal crimes include, 
but are not limited to:  
 

1. Crimes against Federal officials  
2. Crimes that take place on Federal property, including national parks and military 
bases, certain maritime and territorial jurisdictions, and buildings owned or leased by 
the Federal Government  
3. Bank robberies where the bank is insured or otherwise secured by the Federal 
Government  
4. Crimes affecting interstate activities, such as kidnapping, interstate domestic violence, 
and fraud via U.S. mail, telephone, or wire  
5. Crimes occurring in Indian Country or on reservations, where the Federal 
Government has criminal jurisdiction  
6. Trafficking of persons  
 

C. Federal Program, or a federally financed State or local program is a program that 
provides third party reimbursement for victim expenses and includes such funding sources as 
Medicaid, Medicare, and CHAMPUS or provides direct Federal appropriations for 
organizations that provide direct services such as Indian Health Service and the Veterans’ 
Administration.  
 
D. Mass Violence occurring within or outside the United States. The term mass violence is 
not defined in VOCA or in any statute amending VOCA nor is it defined in the U.S. Criminal 
Code. Thus, OVC has developed a working definition of this term. The term mass violence 
means an intentional violent criminal act, for which a formal investigation has been opened 
by the Federal Bureau of Investigation or other law enforcement agency, that results in 
physical, emotional or psychological injury to a sufficiently large number of people as to 
significantly increase the burden of victim assistance and compensation for the responding 
jurisdiction. If there is a discrepancy between the definition provided in these Final 
Guidelines and the Antiterrorism and Emergency Fund Guidelines for Terrorism and Mass 
Violence Crimes, the definition in the Antiterrorism and Emergency Fund Guidelines takes 
precedence.  
 
E. Mental Health Counseling and Care. Mental health counseling and care mean the 
assessment, diagnosis, and treatment of an individual’s mental and emotional functioning. 
Mental health counseling and care must be provided by a person who meets state standards 
to provide these services. 
 
F. Property Damage and Loss. Property damage is damage to material goods. Property loss 
is destruction of material goods or loss of money, stocks, bonds, etc. Property damage does 
not include damage to prosthetic devices, eyeglasses, other corrective lenses, dental devices, 
or other medically related devices.  
 
G. Restitution. Restitution is payment made by the offender to the victim who was injured in 
the crime, to the legal guardian of a vulnerable adult or child victim, or to beneficiaries of 

80



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 79 of 90 

the victim of homicide. Restitution does not refer to the general collection of fines, fees, and 
other penalties from offenders that provide basic revenue for a compensation program and 
are not attributable to reimbursement of payouts on a specific claim.  
 
H. State. The term state includes the 50 states, the District of Columbia, the U.S. Virgin 
Islands, Guam, Puerto Rico and any other possession or territory of the United States.  
 
I. Terrorism occurring within the United States. The term terrorism means an activity that... 
(1) involves a violent act or an act dangerous to human life that is a violation of the criminal 
laws of the United States or of any State, or that would be a criminal violation if committed 
within the jurisdiction of the United States or any State; and (2) appears to be intended ... (a) 
to intimidate or coerce a civilian population, (b) to influence the policy of a government by 
intimidation or coercion, or (c) to affect the conduct of a government by assassination or 
kidnapping (18 U.S.C. 3077).  
 
J. Terrorism Occurring Outside the United States. The Antiterrorism and Emergency 
Reserve Fund Guidelines for Terrorism and Mass Violence Crimes.  
 
In any fiscal year in which Fund deposits are greater than the amount deposited in fiscal 
year 1998, an amount equal to 50 percent of the increase in the amount from fiscal year 
1998 shall be available for Child Abuse Prevention and Treatment Grants in addition to the 
base amount of $10 million. The total amount allocated for Child Abuse Prevention and 
Treatment grants for any fiscal year refers to the term terrorism, when occurring outside the 
United States, as international terrorism to mean an activity that... (1) involves a violent act 
or an act dangerous to human life that is a violation of the criminal laws of the United States 
of any State, or that would be a criminal violation if committed within the jurisdiction of the 
United States or of any State; (2) appears to be intended ... (a) to intimidate or coerce a 
civilian population; (b) to influence the policy of a government by intimidation or coercion; 
or (c) to affect the conduct of a government by assassination or kidnapping; and (3) occur 
primarily outside the territorial jurisdiction of the United States, or transcend national 
boundaries in terms of the means by which they are accomplished, the persons they appear 
intended to intimidate or coerce, or the locale in which their perpetrators operate or seek 
asylum (18 U.S.C. 2331). 
  

II. Background  
 
In 1984, VOCA established the Crime Victims Fund (hereinafter referred to as the Fund) in the 
U.S. Treasury to receive deposits from fines, penalties, and bond forfeitures levied on criminals 
convicted of federal crimes. The Fund is administered by OVC to support the activities authorized 
by VOCA. OVC makes annual VOCA crime victim compensation grants from the Fund to eligible 
states and territories. The primary purpose of these grants is to supplement state efforts to provide 
financial assistance and reimbursement to crime victims throughout the Nation for costs 
associated with crime, and to encourage victim cooperation and participation in the criminal 
justice system. With the exception of most property damage and loss as explained in these Final 
Guidelines, state crime victim compensation programs may use VOCA compensation grant funds 
to pay for eligible expenses allowed by state compensation statute, rule, or other established 
policy. 

81



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 80 of 90 

  
III. Funding Allocations  
 

A. Distribution. By statute, deposits are to be allocated as follows:  
1. Child Abuse Prevention and Treatment Grants. Up to $20 million1of the first amounts 
deposited in the Fund are allocated to Child Abuse Prevention and Treatment Grants. Of 
these funds, 85 percent are forwarded to the Department of Health and Human Services. 
The remaining 15 percent is retained by OVC to assist Native American Indian tribes in 
developing, establishing and operating child abuse programs.  
2. Federal Criminal Justice System.  
Specific amounts are earmarked by Congress annually for improving services for the 
benefit of crime victims in the Federal criminal justice system.  
3. Remaining Fund Deposits. The remaining fund deposits are distributed as follows:  

a. Victim Compensation Grants. Forty- eight and one half percent (48.5%) is 
available to eligible state programs for crime victim compensation.  
b. Victim Assistance Grants. Forty- eight and one half percent (48.5%) is available to 
states for victim assistance grants. Unused funds from the victim compensation 
portion of the deposits are added to this amount.  
c. Discretionary Grants. Three percent (3%) is available to OVC for demonstration 
projects, training and technical assistance grants, and financial support for services 
to victims of federal crime.  
d. Antiterrorism and Emergency Fund. If monies in the Fund are sufficient to fully 
provide VOCA grants to the states, and deposits total 110 percent of the previous 
fiscal year, or if any funds are deobligated, the OVC director may retain up to $100 
million in an emergency fund. These funds are to be used (1) for Victims of terrorism 
within and outside the United States and for victims of other mass violence crimes; (2) 
for supplementing State Compensation and Assistance Programs’ basic state 
compensation and assistance awards at the discretion of the OVC Director; and (3) to 
pay benefits under the newly authorized international compensation program. 
  

B. Grant Period. Victim compensation grant funds are available for expenditure throughout 
the fiscal year (FY) of the award plus the next three fiscal years. The federal fiscal year 
(FFY) begins on October 1 and ends on September 30. State crime victim compensation 
programs may pay compensation claims retroactively to October 1, even though the VOCA 
grant may not be awarded until later in the fiscal year.  
 
C. VOCA Victim Compensation Grant Formula. The Director of OVC is required to make 
an annual grant to eligible crime victim compensation programs that is equal to 40 percent 
of the amount awarded by the state program to victims of crime from state revenues during 
the fiscal year preceding the year of deposits in the Fund (two years prior to the grant 
year). If the amount in the Fund is insufficient to award each state 40 percent of its prior 
year’s compensation payout from state revenues, all states will be awarded the same 
reduced percentage of their prior year payout from the available funds. To determine the 
amount available, each state must submit with its annual application a certification of the 
amount expended by the crime victim compensation program in the previous federal fiscal 
year. See Section V. for additional information. 
  

82



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 81 of 90 

IV. State Eligibility Criteria  
 

A. Grantee. The grantee must be an operational state-administered crime victim 
compensation program. A new compensation program is entitled to a VOCA grant after it 
has awarded benefits that can be matched under VOCA. VOCA may not be used as start- up 
funds for a new state compensation program. In the event that a state chooses to administer 
its compensation program in a decentralized fashion, the state remains accountable to 
VOCA for expenditure of these funds.  
 
B. Program Requirements. For a state to meet or maintain eligibility for a VOCA crime 
victim compensation grant, it must satisfy the following requirements:  
 

1. Compensable Crimes.  
(a) VOCA Mandated Crimes. At a minimum, VOCA specifically requires the grantee 
to offer compensation to crime victims and survivors of victims of criminal violence 
for certain identified expenses (see below) resulting from physical injury from a 
compensable crime as defined by the state. VOCA requires that states include as 
compensable crimes those crimes whose victims suffer death or physical injury as a 
result of terrorism, driving while intoxicated, and domestic violence. In addition, 
VOCA requires that states include as compensable crimes those crimes whose victims 
suffer death or personal injury as a result of the intentional or attempted defacement, 
damage, or destruction of any religious real property because of (1) its religious 
character or the obstruction, by force or threat of force, of any person’s enjoyment of 
the free exercise of religious beliefs when the crime is covered by interstate or foreign 
commerce; (2) the race, color, or ethnic characteristics of any individual associated 
with the religious property. (b) Coverage of Other Crimes. VOCA places priority on 
violent crime, but it does not prohibit coverage of nonviolent crime. States may choose 
to broaden the range of compensable crimes to include those involving threats of 
injury or economic crime where victims are traumatized but not physically injured. In 
doing so, they may include payments to victims for compensable expenses for these 
crimes on the state’s certification of funds expended for the compensation program.  

 
2. Compensable Expenses.  
 

(a) VOCA Mandated Expenses. At a minimum, VOCA requires states to award 
compensation for the following expenses when they are attributable to a physical 
injury resulting from a compensable crime:  

i. Medical Expenses. This may include eyeglasses and other corrective lenses, 
dental services, prosthetic or other devices, and other services rendered in 
accordance with a method of healing recognized by state law.  
ii. Mental health counseling and care.  
iii. Lost wages.  
iv. Funeral expenses attributable to a death resulting from a compensable crime.  

(b) Other Allowable Expenses. State grantees may offer compensation for other types 
of expenses as authorized by state statute, rule, or other established policy.  

(i) Property Damage and Loss.  
Amounts awarded for property damage and loss cannot be included in the amount 

83



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 82 of 90 

certified as a basis for the award of VOCA compensation grants except as listed 
under Section IV.B.2(b)(ii)4&5 of these Final Guidelines.  
(ii) In addition to VOCA mandated expenses, other allowable expenses may be 
included in the certified payout amount such as:  

1. Travel and transport for survivors of homicide victims to secure bodies of 
deceased victims from another country or state.  
2. Temporary lodging.  
3. Necessary building modification and equipment to accommodate physical 
disabilities resulting from a compensable crime.  
4. Replacement costs for clothing and bedding held as evidence.  
5. Replacement or repair of windows and locks.  
6. Crime scene cleanup, as defined by state statute, rule or other established 
policy. Crime scene cleanup does not include replacement of lost or damaged 
property, except for locks and windows, and for clothing and bedding held as 
evidence.  
7. Attorneys’ fees related to a victim’s claim for compensation, for establishing 
guardianship, settling estates, and other activities related to the crime.  
8. Payments related to forensic sexual assault examinations (1) If such 
payments are made from funds administered by the compensation programs 
and are allowable under state statute, rule, or other established policy; and (2) 
to the extent that other funding sources such as state appropriations 
specifically earmarked for these exams are unavailable or insufficient.  
9. Dependent care to allow victims to participate in criminal justice activities 
or secure medical treatment and rehabilitation services.  
10. Financial counseling services for victims of economic crime, domestic 
violence, survivors of homicide victims, and other victims faced with financial 
difficulty as a result of a crime. Allowable activities provided to crime victims 
by financial counselors include but are not limited to: analysis of a victim’s 
financial situation such as income producing capacity and crime related 
financial obligations; assistance with restructuring budget and debt; 
assistance in accessing insurance, public assistance and other benefits; 
assistance in completing financial impact statements for criminal courts; and 
assistance in settling estates and handling guardianship concerns. Financial 
counseling must be provided by a person who meets state standards for 
provision of this service.  
11. Pain and suffering.  
12. Annuities for loss of support for children of victims of homicide.  
13. Victim Cooperation With Law Enforcement. Crime victim compensation 
programs must promote victim cooperation with the reasonable requests of 
law enforcement authorities. State crime victim compensation programs 
maintain the authority and discretion to establish their own standards for 
victim cooperation with the reasonable requests of law enforcement. VOCA’s 
cooperation with the reasonable requests of law enforcement requirement may 
be fulfilled by using the following criteria or by any other  
criteria the state believes is necessary and acceptable to encourage and 
document victim cooperation with law enforcement. For example, a state may: 

 a. Require a victim to report the crime to a law enforcement agency;  

84



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 83 of 90 

b. Require a victim to report the crime to an appropriate government 
agency, such as child and/or adult protective services, family court, or 
juvenile court;  
c. In the case of a child or a vulnerable adult, accept a crime report to law 
enforcement or to a child or adult protective services agency from a 
mandated reporter or other person knowledgeable about the crime;  
d. Accept proof of the completion of a medical evidentiary examination, 
such as medical reports, x-rays, medical photographs, and other clinical 
assessments as evidence of cooperation with law enforcement.  

14. Nonsupplantation. The state must certify that grants received under VOCA 
will not be used to supplant state funds otherwise available to provide crime 
victim compensation benefits or to administer the state crime victim 
compensation program. States may not decrease their financial commitment to 
crime victim compensation solely because they are receiving VOCA funds for 
the same purpose. Expenditure of VOCA funds received based on state 
certified payouts from previous years does not constitute supplantation.  
15. Compensation for Residents  
Victimized Outside Their Own State. A state must provide compensation to 
state residents who are victims of crimes occurring outside the state if the 
crimes would be compensable crimes had they occurred inside that state and 
the crimes (1) occurred in a state without an eligible VOCA crime victim 
compensation program, or (2) in cases of terrorism, occurred outside the 
territorial jurisdiction of the United States. The state must make these awards 
according to the same criteria used to make awards to those who are 
victimized while in the state. 6. Compensation for Nonresidents of a State. The 
state, in making awards for compensable crimes occurring within the state, 
must make compensation awards to nonresidents of the state on the basis of 
the same criteria used to make awards to victims who are residents of the 
state. 7. Victims of Federal Crime. The state must provide compensation to 
victims of federal crimes occurring within the state on the same basis that the 
program provides compensation to victims of state crimes. 8. Unjust 
Enrichment. States cannot deny compensation to a victim based on the victim’s 
familial relationship to the offender or because the victim shares a residence 
with the offender. States must adopt a rule or other written policy to avoid 
unjust enrichment of the offender, but it cannot have the effect of denying 
compensation to a substantial percentage of victims of violence perpetrated by 
family members or others with whom the victim shares a residence. In 
developing a rule, or other written policy, states are encouraged to consider 
the following:  

a. The legal responsibilities of the offender to the victim under the laws of 
the state and collateral resources available from the offenders to the 
victim. For example, legal responsibilities of the offender may include 
court-ordered restitution or family support under the domestic, marital 
property or child support laws of the state. Collateral resources may 
include insurance or pension benefits available to the offender to cover 
the costs incurred by the victim as a result of the crime. Victims of family 
violence must not be penalized when collateral sources of payment are not 

85



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 84 of 90 

viable. Examples of such situations include when the offender refuses to, 
or cannot, pay restitution or other civil judgments within a reasonable 
period of time or when the offender impedes direct or third party (i.e., 
insurance) payments.  
b. Payments to victims of family violence that only minimally or 
inconsequentially benefit offenders. These payments are not considered 
unjust enrichment. For example, denial of medical or dental expenses 
solely because the offender has legal responsibility for the charges, but is 
unwilling or unable to pay them, could result in the victim not receiving 
treatment. When indicated, the state has the option of seeking 
reimbursement from the offender.  
c. Consultation with social services and other concerned government 
entities, and with private organizations that support and advocate on 
behalf of victims of violence perpetrated by family members.  
d. The special needs of child witnesses to violence and child victims of 
criminal violence, especially when the perpetrator is a parent who may or 
may not live in the same residence. 9. Discrimination Prohibited. No 
person shall on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, 
disability, or sex, be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, 
subjected to discrimination under, or denied employment in connection 
with, any undertaking funded in whole or in part with sums made 
available under VOCA. States must comply with these VOCA 
nondiscrimination requirements, the Federal civil rights statutes and 
regulations cited in the Assurances that accompany the grant award 
document, and all other applicable civil rights requirements. States with 
decentralized operations must assure that all operations comply with 
these requirements.  

10. Additional Information Requested by the OVC Director. The state must provide other 
information and assurances as the Director of OVC may reasonably require.  
 

   VOCA Funds and Collateral Federal Programs  
 

1. Means Testing. Federal, state, or local government programs that use federal funds 
are prohibited from including victim compensation benefits when determining income 
eligibility for an applicant, until the total amount of medical or other assistance that the 
applicant receives from all programs is sufficient to fully compensate the applicant for 
losses suffered as a result of the crime. VOCA requires this policy when an applicant 
needs medical or other assistance, in full or in part, because of the commission of a 
crime against the applicant. VOCA gives the OVC Director authority to determine 
whether such medical or other assistance is necessary to an applicant for victim 
compensation because of the commission of a crime against the applicant. Through these 
Final Guidelines, the Director’s authority is delegated to state VOCA crime victim 
compensation administrators.  
 
2. Payer of Last Resort. The compensation program is the payer of last resort with 
regard to federal or federally financed programs. When a victim is eligible to receive 
benefits from a federal program such as Veterans’ benefits, Medicare, and Social 

86



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 85 of 90 

Security Disability or federally financed state or local program, such as Medicaid the 
state compensation program shall not use VOCA funds to pay costs that another federal 
or federally financed program covers. The federal or federally financed program must 
make payments without regard to benefits awarded to a crime victim by a state crime 
victim compensation program. To facilitate victim access to other funding resources, 
OVC recommends that VOCA compensation administrators coordinate their activities 
and provide appropriate referrals to other programs that provide financial assistance 
and services to crime victims, whether funded by federal, state or local governments. 
Examples of such programs include worker’s compensation, vocational rehabilitation, 
and VOCA victim assistance subgrantee programs. Outreach to other programs can 
result in mutual understanding of eligibility requirements, application processing, time 
lines, and other program specific requirements. As payer of last resort, it is in the 
compensation program’s discretion to make exception for victim needs that are not 
adequately met by collateral sources. Additionally, this provision does not mandate that 
states require victims to apply for or use other federally funded programs prior to 
accessing the crime victim compensation program.  
 
V. State Certifications State grantees must provide information about crime victim 
compensation claim payouts including all available funding sources, deductions, and 
recovery costs on a certification form provided by OVC. The Office of Budget and 
Management Services, Office of Justice Programs, uses this information to calculate 
allocations for VOCA eligible crime victim compensation programs. A. Program 
Revenue. States must report on the certification form all sources of revenue to the crime 
victims compensation programs during the federal fiscal year. In some instances, funds 
are made available to the crime victim compensation programs from other departments 
or agencies, from supplemental appropriations, donations, or unspent funds carried over 
from prior years. The amount of certified revenue, excluding VOCA funds, but including 
all other sources, including carried over funds, must meet or exceed the amount of 
certified payments to crime victims. B. Program Expenditures. The total amount to be 
certified by the state program must include only those amounts paid from state funding 
sources that are allowable under Section IV.B.1&2 to, or on behalf of, crime victims 
during the federal fiscal year (October 1 to September 30).  
 

C. Amounts to be Excluded.  
 
Compensation for property damage or loss except for items found in Section 
IV.B.2.(b)ii.4&5 of these Final Guidelines; audit costs; personnel costs; costs related to the 
collection of offender fines, fees, penalties, and other revenues that provide basic program 
funding; and, any other program administrative costs.  
 
D. Deductions. Deductions are receipts or refunds that offset or reduce expense items that 
are allocable to a particular crime victim compensation claim. These include funds received 
through a state’s subrogation interest in a claimant’s civil law suit recovery, restitution, 
refunds, or other reimbursements. For purposes of applicable credits, the term restitution 
means payment made by the offender to the victim who was injured in the crime, to the legal 
guardian of a vulnerable adult or child, or to beneficiaries of the victim of homicide. 
Restitution does not refer to the costs of general collection of fines, fees and other penalties 

87



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 86 of 90 

from offenders that provides the basic revenue for the compensation program and are not 
attributable to reimbursement of payouts on a specific claim. Refunds include amounts from 
overpayment, erroneous payments made to claimants, and uncashed checks. Additional 
guidance regarding applicable credits can be found in OMB Circular A–87, Cost Principles 
for State and Local Governments.  
 
F. Recovery Costs. Salary and benefits costs for personnel directly involved in recovery 
efforts may be offset against the amount of income received from such reimbursement. 
Recovery efforts are those activities that are directly attributable to obtaining restitution, 
refunds, and other reimbursements for the expenses of specific crime victims who have 
received compensation from the state program. Expenses shall be limited to the percentage 
of those salaries and benefits incurred by the state for individual employees whose primary 
responsibilities (not less than 75 percent of each individual employee’s work time) are 
directly and specifically related to recovering restitution and other reimbursements on 
behalf of compensated victims. Additional allowable recovery costs are garnishment fees, 
service of legal documents, costs of legal publication, and subpoena fees related to 
collecting reimbursements. Recovery costs cannot be claimed for employees whose salary 
and benefits are derived from federal administrative grant funds. Recovery costs do not 
include the collection of fines, fees, and other penalties that provide the basic revenue for 
the compensation program and are not identifiable to reimbursement of payouts on a 
specific victim claim.  
 

G. Sources of Payments to Crime Victims. There is no financial requirement that state 
compensation programs identify the source of individual payments to crime victims as either 
federal or state dollars, nor are there any requirements that restitution recoveries or other 
refunds be tracked to federal or state dollars paid out to the victim.  
 
H. Incorrect Certifications. If it is determined that a state has made an incorrect certification 
of payments of crime victims compensation from state funding sources and a VOCA crime 
victim compensation grant is awarded in error, one of the following two courses of action 
will be taken:  
 

1. Overcertification. In the event that an overcertification comes to the attention of OVC 
or the Office of the Comptroller, OJP, the necessary steps will be taken to recover funds 
that were awarded in error. OVC does not have the authority to permit states to keep 
amounts they were not entitled to as a result of overcertification. Generally, it is the policy 
of OVC to reduce the amount of the subsequent year VOCA victim compensation award 
by the amount of the overpayment.  
 
2. Undercertification. If a state undercertifies amounts paid to crime victims, OVC and the 
Office of the Comptroller, OJP, will not supplement payments to the state to correct the 
state’s error since this would require recalculating allocations to every state VOCA 
compensation and assistance program and cause disruption in administration of these 
programs. 
  

VI. Application Process and Performance Reporting  
 

88



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 87 of 90 

A. Application for Federal Assistance.  
 

Each year, OVC issues to each eligible state an application package that contains the 
necessary forms and detailed information required to apply for VOCA crime victim 
compensation grant funds. The amount for which each state may apply is included with the 
application package. States shall use the Standard Form 424, Application for Federal 
Assistance, and its attachments to apply for VOCA victim compensation grant funds. 
Applications for VOCA crime victim compensation grants may only be submitted by the state 
agency designated by the governor to administer the VOCA victim compensation program 
and grant. Completed applications must be submitted on or before the stated deadline, as 
determined by OVC. If an eligible state fails to apply for its crime victim compensation 
allocation by the prescribed deadline, OVC will redistribute federal VOCA crime victim 
compensation dollars to the VOCA victim assistance grant program, after all states have 
received the statutorily prescribed percentage of their prior years’ payout.  
 
B. Annual Performance Report.  
 
States receiving VOCA crime victim compensation grant funds must submit an annual OVC 
Performance Report. The Performance Report is due January 15 of each year for the 
preceding federal fiscal year.  
 

VII. Administrative Costs  
 

A. Administrative Costs Allowance.  
 
VOCA allows states to use up to 5 percent of crime victim compensation grant funds for 
administering the crime victim compensation grant program. Any portion of the allowable 5 
percent that is not used for administrative purposes must be used for awards of 
compensation to crime victims. The intent of this provision is to support and advance 
program administration in all operational areas including claims processing, staff 
development and training, public outreach, and program funding by supporting activities 
that will improve program effectiveness and service to crime victims. 
 
If a state elects to use up to 5 percent of the VOCA compensation grant for administrative 
purposes, only those costs directly associated with administering the program, enhancing 
overall program operations, and ensuring compliance with federal requirements can be 
expended with administrative grant funds. State grantees are not required to match the 
portion of the grant that is used for administrative purposes. The state administrative agency 
may charge a federally approved indirect cost rate to this grant, but this cost is capped by 
the limits of these 5 percent administrative funds.  
 
States must certify that VOCA funds used for administrative purposes will not supplant state 
or local funds but increase the amount of funds available for administering the compensation 
program. For the purpose of establishing a baseline level of effort, states must maintain 
documentation on the overall administrative commitment of the state prior to their use of 
VOCA administrative grant funds. State grantees will not be in violation of the 
nonsupplantation clause if there is a decrease in the state’s previous financial commitment 

89



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 88 of 90 

toward the administration of the VOCA grant programs in the following situations:  
 
(1) if serious loss of revenue occurs at the state level, resulting in across-the-board budget 
restrictions, and 
 
 (2) if there is a decrease in the number of state-supported staff positions used to meet the 
state’s effort in administering the VOCA grant programs.  
 
State grantees using administrative funds must notify OVC if there is a decrease in the 
amount of its previous state financial commitment to the cost of administering the VOCA 
program. Only staff activities directly related to compensation functions can be funded with 
VOCA administrative funds. Similarly, any equipment purchases or other expenditures 
charged to the VOCA administrative funds can be charged only in proportion to the 
percentage of time used by the compensation program.  
 
B. Allowable Costs. 
 
Allowable administrative costs include but are not limited to, the following:  
 
1. Salaries and benefits for staff and consultant fees to administer and manage the financial 
and programmatic aspects of the crime victim compensation program. Staff supported by 
administrative funds under the VOCA crime victim compensation grant must work directly 
for the compensation program in the same proportion as their level of support from VOCA 
grant funds. If the staff performs other functions unrelated to the provision of compensation 
to crime victims, the proportion of time spent working on the compensation program must be 
documented using some reasonable method of valuation at regular measurable intervals, 
e.g., time and attendance records. The documentation must provide a clear audit trail for the 
expenditure of grant funds. Temporary or periodic personnel support, such as qualified peer 
reviewers for medical and mental health claims, and data processing support services are 
also allowable. These services may be obtained through means deemed acceptable by state 
administrative procedures.  
 
2. Training and technical assistance includes attendance at training and technical assistance 
meetings and conferences that address issues relevant to state administration of victim 
compensation programs. Allowable costs may include travel, registration fees, and other 
such expenses.  
 
3. Monitoring compliance with federal and state requirements. 
 
4. Automation, including the study, design, and implementation of claims processing and 
other relevant systems; purchase and maintenance of equipment for the state grantee, 
including computers, software, FAX machines, copying machines, and TTYs; and services 
required to support the use of technology to enhance services to crime victims.  
 
5. Training to victim services providers, criminal justice personnel, and health, mental 
health and social services providers about the crime victim compensation program.  
 

90



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 89 of 90 

6. Memberships in crime victim organizations and victim-related informational materials.  
 
7. Prorated program audit costs for the crime victim compensation program.  
 
8. Indirect costs at a federally approved rate that, when applied, does not exceed the 5 
percent administrative cost allowance.  
 
9. Participation in improving coordination efforts on behalf of crime victims with other 
federal, state, and local agencies and organizations. This includes development of protocols, 
policies, and procedures that promote coordination of victim compensation with other 
financial and victim service programs that improve responses to crime victims. Such 
participation includes the development and coordination of criminal crisis response teams.  
 
10. Informational materials including development of applications, brochures, posters, 
training manuals and other relevant publications that describe the compensation application 
process, eligibility criteria, and the range of benefits available for crime victims. This 
includes related printing costs.  
 
11. Development of strategic and financial plans, conduct of surveys, and needs assessments, 
survey of victim satisfaction with the program, and employment of geographic information 
systems (GIS) technology for planning.  
12. Toll-free telephone numbers, Internet access to claim information, and other such 
program enhancements.  
 
C. Requirements to Notify OVC of Use of Administrative Funds. State grantees that elect to 
use administrative funds under the VOCA compensation grant are required to include with 
their annual application, notification of their intent to use administrative funds, the 
percentage of funds, and the purposes for which they will be used. Grantees will be expected 
to include in their annual performance report, documentation of actual use of administrative 
funds.  
 
D. Confidentiality of Research Information. Except as otherwise provided by federal law, no 
officer or employee of the Federal Government or recipient of monies under VOCA shall use 
or reveal any research or statistical information gathered under this program by any person, 
and identifiable to any specific private person, for any purpose other than the purpose for 
which such information was obtained, in accordance with VOCA. Such information, and any 
copy of such information, shall be immune from legal process and shall not, without the 
consent of the person furnishing such information, be admitted as evidence or used for any 
purpose in any action, suit, or other judicial, legislative, or administrative proceeding. This 
provision is intended, among other things, to assure confidentiality of information provided 
by crime victims to employees of VOCA-funded victim compensation programs. However, 
there is nothing in VOCA or its legislative history to indicate that Congress intended to 
override or repeal, in effect, a state’s existing law governing the disclosure of information, 
which is supportive of VOCA’s fundamental goal of helping crime victims. For example, this 
provision would not act to override or repeal, in effect, a state’s existing law pertaining to 
the mandatory reporting of a suspected child abuse. See Pennhurst State School and 
Hospital vs. Halderman, et al., 451 U.S. 1 (1981).  

91



Nevada Victims of Crime Program Policies 

Adopted April 2014   Page 90 of 90 

 
VIII. Financial Requirements  
 
As a condition of receiving a grant, states must agree to ensure adherence to the general and 
specific requirements of the OJP Financial Guide (effective edition) and all applicable OMB 
Circulars and Common Rules. This includes the maintenance of books and records in accordance 
with generally accepted government accounting principles. 
 
For copies of the OJP Financial Guide, call or write the OJP Office of the Comptroller, 810 7th 
Street NW., Washington, DC 20531, Customer Service Center 1/800–458–0786; or visit the 
website at: www.ojp.usdoj.gov/ FinGuide/ IX. Monitoring A. Office of the Comptroller/General 
Accounting Office/Office of the Inspector General. The U.S. Department of Justice, Office of 
Justice Programs, Office of the Comptroller; the General Accounting Office; and the U.S. 
Department of Justice, Office of the Inspector General, conduct periodic reviews of the financial 
policies and procedures and records of VOCA state grantees. Therefore, upon request, states must 
provide authorized representatives with access to examine all records, books, papers, case files, 
or other documents related to the expenditure of funds received under this grant.  
 
B. Office for Victims of Crime. OVC conducts onsite monitoring in accordance with its monitoring 
plan. While on the site, OVC personnel review various documents and files including (1) Program 
manuals; (2) procedures; (3) program reports; (4) claimant application, eligibility requirements, 
and determination and appeal process; (5) a random sampling of victim compensation claim files; 
and (6) other applicable state records and files. Grantees are notified in writing of their 
compliance with requirements of VOCA.  
 
X. Suspension and Termination of Funding  
 
If, after reasonable notice to the grantee, OVC finds that a state has failed to comply substantially 
with the following: VOCA, the state’s application for funding, the OJP Financial Guide Crime 
Victim Compensation Grant Program Guidelines, or any implementing regulation or federal 
requirements, the OVC Director may suspend or terminate funding to the state and/or take other 
appropriate action. Under the procedures of 28 CFR part 18, states may request a hearing on the 
record on the justification for the suspension and/or termination of VOCA funds.  
 
 
 

92













1 | P a g e  

R e v i s e d  1 1 / 8 / 2 0 1 3  

 

 

REQUEST FOR CHANGES TO THE STATE ADMINISTRATIVE MANUAL (SAM) 

 

Agency Code: 086 

Department: Department of Administration 

Division: Administrative Services Division 

Appointing authority:  Evan Dale 

Agency contact: Evan Dale, 775-684-0281, edale@admin.nv.gov  

Budget Division Analyst: Stacey Johnson, 775-684-0239, s_johnson@admin.nv.gov  

Proposed BOE date: 04/08/2014 

 

1. Reason/purpose for requested change: 

 

This change will reduce administrative burden and expedite processing for State 

employees and contractors.  In addition, this change will reduce postage and other carrier 

expenses. 

 

2. Existing and recommended language in SAM (blue bold italics is new language being 

proposed and red strikethrough is deleted language being proposed). 

 

3. Explain how the recommended change(s) will benefit agencies or create consistencies or 

efficiencies, etc. (provide examples if applicable): 

 

This change will reduce administrative burden for State employees and contractors as 

well as reduce carrier expenses. 

 

Currently, SAM requires three copies of a contract for BOE.  All three copies must bear 

original “wet” signatures from all parties.  As a result, the process must allow for transit 

time and carrier expenses to route the documents to all parties.  In addition, it’s not 

unusual for a party to omit one or more copies thus causing additional delay.   

 

On occasion, the signature routing process causes an agency to miss the submittal 

deadline for the target BOE meeting.  Such events effectively delay the underlying 

project by at least one month.  This change will substantially ease that burden. 

 

4. Will recommended change have a fiscal impact (if yes, explain): 

 

Postage and carrier expenses will be lower. 

 

5. Proposed effective date: 

 

Upon approval of the Board of Examiners. 

 

 

BOARD OF EXAMINERS APPROVAL DATE:__________________________________ 

                    (for BOE use only) 

mailto:edale@admin.nv.gov
mailto:s_johnson@admin.nv.gov


2 | P a g e  

R e v i s e d  1 1 / 8 / 2 0 1 3  

 

Agency Code: 080 

Department: Administration 

Division (if applicable): Budget 

Appointing authority: Julia Teska 

Agency contact (name, phone and e-mail): Mike Torvinen, 684-0226, mjtorvinen@admin.nv.gov 

Budget Division Analyst (name, phone and e-mail): Statewide SAM policy  - Affects all Budget 

Analysts 

Proposed BOE date: May 2014 

Proposed effective date: Upon approval 

 

 

1. Reason/purpose for requested change:  

 

This is a recommended change to SAM 0328 Lease Contracts.  Currently SAM is 

not consistent with statute in regards to operating leases and whether they require 

approval by the BOE.  There is a specific exemption from required BOE approval 

for capital leases and installment contracts. 

 

2. Explain how the recommended change(s) will benefit agencies or create consistencies or 

efficiencies, etc. (provide examples if applicable): 

 

The recommended changes will clarify the proper treatment of operating leases and 

provides a specific reference to the controlling NRS. 

 

3. Will recommended change have a fiscal impact (if yes, explain): 

 

No 

 

4. Existing and recommended language in SAM (blue bold italics is new language being 

proposed and red strikethrough is deleted language being proposed). (please provide 

requested change as an attachment): 

 

See Attached 

 

 

 

BOARD OF EXAMINERS APPROVAL DATE:__________________________________ 

                    (for BOE use only) 

 



3 | P a g e  

R e v i s e d  1 1 / 8 / 2 0 1 3  

 

0324 Independent Contract Review Procedure 

 
The following procedures should be adhered to when submitting a contract for review:  

1. Contracts should be submitted to the Clerk of the Board of Examiners by the deadline established 

by the Clerk and disseminated to State agencies via agency memorandums.  

 

2. Each contract must include a clause that specifically states that the State is not obligated under the 

agreement before approval by the Board of Examiners.  

 

3. The contract should consist of the Attorney General’s approved contract form for independent 

contractors, the State’s solicitation and the successful vendor’s proposal. Any negotiated items or 

clarifications should be reduced to writing and incorporated into the contract document as a separate 

attachment. It is important, when listing the order of the attachments within a contract, to give 

consideration to the order of precedence to prevent potential conflict in the terms.  

 
4. Three copies of the contract must be submitted; each copy must include have the original 

signatures of the Attorney General or representative, the responsible agency representative and the 

contractor.  The signature requirement may be met in counterparts and with facsimile and/or 

electronically scanned copies of the signature page.  Contract distribution is as follows: one copy for 

the Fiscal Analysis Division of the Legislative Counsel Bureau; one copy to be returned to the 

agency; and one copy for the independent contractor. Access to all submitted proposals shall be made 

available by the soliciting agency and will be retained for the life of the contract or six (6) years, or 

for a period of time as determined by the soliciting agency’s records retention schedule, whichever is 

longer.  

 

 



4 | P a g e  

R e v i s e d  1 1 / 8 / 2 0 1 3  

 

0328 Lease Contracts 

 
State Offices - The Administrator of the State Public Works Division has the authority to lease and 

equip office rooms space outside of State buildings whenever sufficient office space cannot be 

provided within State buildings. No such office space lease may extend beyond the term of one (1) 

year unless it is reviewed and approved by the Board of Examiners regardless of the total cost. (NRS 

331.110).  The exception is leased space used strictly for storage.  In this instance, agencies may 

directly negotiate their own leases and they are subject to the same approval thresholds as 

operating leases.  The Attorney General shall approve each lease entered into pursuant to this section 

as to form and compliance with law.  

 

Land - The Division of State Lands acquires and holds all lands and interests in land owned or 

required by the State except:  

 

1. Lands or interests used or acquired for highway purposes;  

 

2. Lands or interests the title to which is vested in the Board of Regents of the Nevada System of 

Higher Education.  

 

3. Office buildings leased by the Administrator of the State Public Works Division; or  

 

4. Lands used or acquired for the Legislature or its staff.  

 

Equipment - The Purchasing Administrator has sole authority to contract for equipment unless 

otherwise specifically provided by law (NRS 333.150). Agencies requiring equipment lease contracts 

should contact the Purchasing Division. (SAM 1500)  

 

NRS 353.500 to NRS 353.630 outline provisions of law related to the purchase of real or personal 

property via installment purchase agreements or lease-purchase agreements.  These agreements 

contemplate the State taking ownership of the property at the end of the agreement term.  Lease- 

purchase agreements are also referred to as capital leases.  NRS 353.580 exempts these types of 

agreements from Board of Examiners approval.   

 

Conversely, an operating lease agreement is an agreement where ownership of the property does 

not transfer to the State at the end of the agreement term. Operating leases are not exempt from 

Board of Examiners approval.   
 

Lease contracts must be ratified by appropriate official action of the governing body of each 

party to the contract as a condition precedent to its entry into force.   Lease contracts ranging in 

cost from zero to $1,999 require approval of the agency head; lease contracts ranging in cost 

from $2,000 to $9,999 require the approval of the Clerk of the Board of Examiners, or designee, 

on behalf of the Board of Examiners; lease contracts totaling $10,000 or more require the 

approval of the Board of Examiners. Operating leases ranging in cost from zero to $1,999 require 

approval of the agency head; operating leases ranging in cost from $2,000 to $49,999 require the 

approval of the Clerk of the Board of Examiners, or designee, on behalf of the Board of 

Examiners; operating leases totaling $50,000 or more require the approval of the Board of 

Examiners.  



5 | P a g e  

R e v i s e d  1 1 / 8 / 2 0 1 3  

 

 

If a lease contains an option to take ownership of the property at some later date but the decision 

to take ownership has not been made, the lease should be treated as an operating lease and 

forwarded to the Board of Examiners for approval in accordance with the thresholds contained in 

this section. 

 

A Contract Summary Form must accompany all operating leases submitted for review and 

approval. 



6 | P a g e  

R e v i s e d  1 1 / 8 / 2 0 1 3  

 

0336 Amendments to Contracts 

 
All contracts requiring Board of Examiners' review may be amended if such an amendment is 

deemed to be in the best interest of the State. Amendments include, but are not limited to, additional 

money or time required to complete the scope of work of the of the contract, any change in the basis 

of payment for the contract or any substantive change to the scope of work which would affect the 

anticipated results of the contract.  

 

Except for those contracts waived under SAM 0326, all amendments to contracts require Board 

review and approval. Such review may determine that it is in the best interest of the State to have a 

new contract with another contractor rather than amend the contract with the current contractor. The 

Clerk or his 32 designee may, on behalf of the Board, approve amendments that which extend the 

time of the contract with no additional money and amendments that increase the contract by less than 

$10,000. Amendments increasing the total amount of the contract above $50,000 will need to be 

submitted to the Board of Examiners. The Clerk may also approve contract amendments that change 

the scope of work if such a change is deemed to not adversely affect the State's interest.  

 

All amendments must include language that clearly identifies the applicable change/revision; i.e., 

amount of monetary increase and new maximum amount, change of effective/termination date from 

00/00/00 to 00/00/00, etc.  

 

Amendments should be submitted in the following format: one copy of the amendment with a copy 

of the original contract, complete with any prior amendments to the contract and all attachments (e.g. 

the State’s solicitation, contractor’s response, etc.) attached as Exhibit A. All remaining copies of the 

amendment should be submitted with a copy of the original contract and any prior amendments 

attached as Exhibit A.  

 

Three copies of the amendment must be submitted for Board of Examiners’ approval. Each copy 

must include have the original signatures of the Attorney General or representative, the responsible 

agency representative and the contractor. The signature requirement may be met in counterparts and 

with facsimile and/or electronically scanned copies of the signature page.  Contract distribution is as 

follows: One copy for the Fiscal Analysis Division of the Legislative Counsel Bureau; one copy to be 

returned to the agency; and one copy for the independent contractor. 

 



1 | P a g e  

R e v i s e d  0 3 / 2 0 / 2 0 1 4  

 

REQUEST FOR CHANGES TO THE STATE ADMINISTRATIVE MANUAL (SAM) 

 

 

 

Agency Code: 080 

Department: Administration 

Division (if applicable): Enterprise Information Technology Services 

Appointing authority: Julia Teska 

Agency contact (name, phone and e-mail): Mike Torvinen, 684-0226, mjtorvinen@admin.nv.gov 

Budget Division Analyst (name, phone and e-mail):  Statewide SAM Policy – Affects all Budget 

Analysts 

Proposed BOE date:  May 2014 

Proposed effective date:  Upon Approval 

 

 

1. Reason/purpose for requested change:  

 

This is a proposed change to the Cellular Telephone policy in SAM 1616.  The 

current policy is based upon cellular service plans that are out of date and obsolete.   

 

2. Explain how the recommended change(s) will benefit agencies or create consistencies or 

efficiencies, etc. (provide examples if applicable): 

 

This recommended change recognizes the current technology and the fact many 

employees have their own personal devices upon which they can access email and 

other parts of the State’s IT infrastructure while not at their workstation.  The 

proposed SAM change dictates that each Department director establish a cellular 

telephone, tablet, or other mobile device policy based upon their respective 

Department’s needs.    The policy recognizes current trends referred to as Bring 

Your Own Device or BYOD policies being implemented both in the public and 

private sector.  The policy addresses IT security issues and issues regarding the 

record of the devices use potentially being public records subject to discovery. 

 

3. Will recommended change have a fiscal impact (if yes, explain): 

 

The proposed revision provides 3 different methods of paying for the cellular 

telephone/tablet/mobile device; the state pays the entire cost, the state pays an 

employee a stipend to use the employee’s personal device, or the employee 

voluntarily uses their personal device and receives no reimbursement.  For state 

fiscal years ending June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2015, statewide, the budgeted cell 

phone costs are $1.7 million per year.  The proposed changes are intended to both 

update the current policy which is woefully outdated and hopefully see a reduction 

in State costs for the technology.   

 

 



2 | P a g e  

R e v i s e d  0 3 / 2 0 / 2 0 1 4  

 

4. Existing and recommended language in SAM (blue bold italics is new language being 

proposed and red strikethrough is deleted language being proposed). (please provide 

requested change as an attachment): 
 

See attached 

 

 

 

 

BOARD OF EXAMINERS APPROVAL DATE:__________________________________ 

                    (for BOE use only) 



3 | P a g e  

R e v i s e d  0 3 / 2 0 / 2 0 1 4  

 

1616 Cellular Telephones 
Personal phone calls are not to be placed or received from State owned cellular telephones 

except in an emergency. When personal calls are placed, the employee will reimburse the State 

within five working days of receipt of the bill from the Division for all costs associated with the 

personal telephone call.  

The State will reimburse employees for the cost of all State business calls placed from their 

personal cellular telephone. The State will not reimburse any portion of the monthly service 

charges associated with personal cellular telephones nor will the State accept any fiscal or legal 

liability for a personal cellular telephone used for business. Agencies may develop policies 

limiting or prohibiting employees from making business calls on personal cellular telephones. 

 

1616 Cellular Telephones /Tablets/Mobile Devices 

Each department of the State of Nevada must develop a cellular telephone,  portable tablet, or 

other mobile device policy that meets the department’s specific needs regarding the necessary 

use of such devices for work-related activities while operating within budget authority, 

addressing the potential legal issues regarding access to the record of the devices’ use, and 

being compliant with the State’s personnel rules associated with requiring employees to be 

available for contact after their regular working hours.  The departmental policy must fully 

address security issues and must specifically identify criteria to determine eligibility to receive 

a cellular telephone, portable tablet, or other mobile device at state expense or a stipend for the 

use of a personal device.   There must be a compelling reason directly related to efficiencies to 

be gained and the employee’s job duties and responsibilities that necessitates a cellular 

telephone, tablet, or other mobile device for business purposes. 

There are 3 acceptable methods to provide for employee use of a cell phone, tablet, or other 

mobile device: 

1. State issued device – the agency provides the employee with an approved State device 

pursuant to the state contract for such services and pays the monthly charges directly 

to the service provider.  The device remains the property of the State and the employee 

must comply with all policies regarding personal use of state devices.  If the employee’s 

personal use of the device results in additional costs to the State, the employee must 

reimburse the State for such charges at least monthly.  Agencies must take care to 

choose the appropriate plan level for the needed use for State purposes.  This may 

include prepaid phones that only include voice services.  Upon separation from the 

agency that issued the device, the employee shall return the device.  Departmental 

policy must include acknowledgement of receipt of device and terms and conditions of 

use that should be retained in employee file. 



4 | P a g e  

R e v i s e d  0 3 / 2 0 / 2 0 1 4  

 

2. Stipend paid by State for employee using personal device for State purposes – the State 

pays an employee a monthly stipend to use their personal device to conduct State 

business.  The base plan cost is understood to include cellular telephone, internet, 

and/or data services.  The stipend amount will remain the same regardless of the 

amount of State business conducted on the personal device.  The employee is 

responsible for contracting with a service provider, paying for any initial plan charges, 

the cost of the device, and paying the monthly bills. The State is not responsible for any 

penalties should the employee terminate the contract with the service provider. 

Because the cellular telephone, tablet or other mobile device is owned personally by the 

employee, the employee may use the device for both personal and business purposes as 

needed.  Use of the device in any manner contrary to local, state or federal laws will 

constitute misuse and will result in immediate termination of the stipend.   

The stipend will be taxable income to the employee and will be reported on their W-2, 

Wage and Tax Statement. 

The stipend amount will be established by each Department director when they develop 

the policy for their respective Department. 

3. Employee voluntarily uses personal device to conduct State business without 

compensation. 

Employees must be aware that it is possible the record of use for any device used for State 

business, could be considered a public record.  

Regardless of the reimbursement method used, each employee using a device for State 

business or connected to the State’s IT infrastructure must sign an “Acceptable Use 

Agreement” and an “Agreement for Use of a Mobile Device.”    The respective Department 

policy must be attached to each “Acceptable Use Agreement” and “Agreement for Use of a 

Mobile Device” and shall be retained in the employee’s file.   

An agency may rescind a state issued device or stipend at any time if the business necessity or 

budget authority no longer exists. 

Employees are expected to comply with all applicable laws regarding the use of cellular 

devices while operating a motor vehicle.  Each department policy shall include a reference to 

SAM 1320. 

 



1 | P a g e  

R e v i s e d  1 1 / 8 / 2 0 1 3  

 

REQUEST FOR CHANGES TO THE STATE ADMINISTRATIVE MANUAL (SAM) 

 

 

 

Agency Code: 084 

Department: Department of Administration                  

Division (if applicable): Fleet Services     

Appointing authority: Keith Wells         

Agency contact: Keith Wells, 775-684-1883, kdwells@admin.nv.gov  

Budget Analyst: John Borrowman, 775-684-0224, borrowman@admin.nv.gov   

Proposed BOE date: 04/08/2014 

 

 

1. Reason/purpose for requested change: 

 

 To revise SAM to reflect the name change of the State Motor Pool to the Fleet Services 

Division 

 

2. Existing and recommended language in SAM (blue bold italics is new language being 

proposed and red strikethrough is deleted language being propose 

 

3. Explain how the recommended change(s) will benefit agencies or create consistencies or 

efficiencies, etc. (provide examples if applicable): 

 

 Changes are required to update SAM with the Fleet Services name change and policy 

changes.  

 

4. Will recommended change have a fiscal impact (if yes, explain): 

 

 No 

 

5. Proposed effective date: 

 

 

 Upon approval of the April Board of Examiners meeting. 

 

 

 

BOARD OF EXAMINERS APPROVAL DATE:__________________________________ 

             (for BOE use only) 

 

mailto:kdwells@admin.nv.gov
mailto:borrowman@admin.nv.gov


2 | P a g e  

R e v i s e d  1 1 / 8 / 2 0 1 3  

 

 

 

 

0204 Board of Examiners' Travel Policy 

 State policies may differ and supersede the established federal guidelines or policy. It is 

the Board of Examiners’ policy that travel should be by the least expensive method 

available when such factors as total travel time, salary of traveler, availability of agency 

cars or State motor pool Fleet Services Division cars, and costs of transportation are 

considered. 

 

0218 Use of Rental Cars 

 The Motor Pool Fleet Services Division must be used when available before rental cars 

for in-state travel. When not available, or when travelling out-of-state, a rental car may be 

used when rented from companies with which the State has agreements. Visit the 

Purchasing Division’s website at http://purchasing.state.nv.us for the names of these 

companies and the guidelines on how to access these contracts. When renting from these 

companies, it is not necessary to purchase collision damage waivers, as these protections 

are already included in the negotiated overriding agreement. Should an employee be 

required to rent a vehicle outside of these agreements, he/she should, if possible, rent the 

vehicle using the State facilitated credit card (currently Diners Club), which provides 

coverage for physical damage to the rented car. 

 

 

               

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://purchasing.state.nv.us/


1 | P a g e  

R e v i s e d  1 1 / 8 / 2 0 1 3  

 

REQUEST FOR CHANGES TO THE STATE ADMINISTRATIVE MANUAL (SAM) 

 

 

 

Agency Code: 084 

Department: Department of Administration                        

Division (if applicable): Fleet Services     

Appointing authority:   Keith Wells       

Agency contact: Keith Wells, 775-684-1883, kdwells@admin.nv.gov  

Budget Analyst: John Borrowman, 775-684-0224, borrowman@admin.nv.gov  

Proposed BOE date:  04/08/2014 

 

 

1. Reason/purpose for requested change: 

 

 To revise SAM to reflect the name change of the State Motor Pool to the Fleet Services 

Division 

 

2. Existing and recommended language in SAM (blue bold italics is new language being 

proposed and red strikethrough is deleted language being propose 

 

3. Explain how the recommended change(s) will benefit agencies or create consistencies or 

efficiencies, etc. (provide examples if applicable): 

 

 Changes are required to update SAM with the Fleet Services name change and policy 

changes.  

 

4. Will recommended change have a fiscal impact (if yes, explain): 

 

 No 

 

5. Proposed effective date: 

 

 Upon approval of the April Board of Examiners meeting. 

 

 

 

BOARD OF EXAMINERS APPROVAL DATE:__________________________________ 

                    (for BOE use only) 

 

mailto:kdwells@admin.nv.gov
mailto:borrowman@admin.nv.gov


2 | P a g e  

R e v i s e d  1 1 / 8 / 2 0 1 3  

 

 

 

 

0504 Insurance and Self-Insurance 

o RENTAL VEHICLES - Vehicles must be rented from companies with whom the 

Purchasing Division and State Motor Pool Fleet Services Division have 

negotiated overriding agreements. It is not necessary for the agency to purchase 

additional insurance when renting under those agreements as part of the 

negotiated contract rates, includes insurance coverage. As such, usage of the 

negotiated contracts is mandatory. Any agency renting outside those agreements 

will be responsible for their own insurance coverage and for any accident claims. 

 



1 | P a g e  

R e v i s e d  1 1 / 8 / 2 0 1 3  

 

REQUEST FOR CHANGES TO THE STATE ADMINISTRATIVE MANUAL (SAM) 

 

 

 

Agency Code:  084  

Department: Department of Administration                        

Division (if applicable): Fleet Services     

Appointing authority:  Keith Wells        

Agency contact: Keith Wells, 775-684-1883, kdwells@admin.nv.gov  

Budget Analyst: John Borrowman, 775-684-0224, borrowman@admin.nv.gov  

Proposed BOE date:  04/08/2014 

 

 

1. Reason/purpose for requested change: 

 

 To revise SAM to reflect the name change of the State Motor Pool to the Fleet Services 

Division 

 

2. Existing and recommended language in SAM (blue bold italics is new language being 

proposed and red strikethrough is deleted language being propose 

 

3. Explain how the recommended change(s) will benefit agencies or create consistencies or 

efficiencies, etc. (provide examples if applicable): 

 

 Changes are required to update SAM with the Fleet Services name change and policy 

changes.  

 

4. Will recommended change have a fiscal impact (if yes, explain): 

 

 No 

5. Proposed effective date: 

 

 Upon approval of the April Board of Examiners meeting. 

 

 

 

BOARD OF EXAMINERS APPROVAL DATE:__________________________________ 

                    (for BOE use only) 

 

mailto:kdwells@admin.nv.gov
mailto:borrowman@admin.nv.gov


2 | P a g e  

R e v i s e d  1 1 / 8 / 2 0 1 3  

 

 

1303 Authorized operators of State Vehicles 

1. State employees’, temporary employees’ or volunteers’ conducting official State business 

and within the course and scope of employment. 

A State vehicle will be covered for Auto Physical Damage when driven by a State 

employee, temporary employees, board members, volunteers, contracted employees and 

those working in conjunction with the State of Nevada while conducting official State 

business and within the course and scope of employment. 

 

The Defensive Driving course is required for all “Executive” branch employees whose job 

functions require driving a State vehicle for State business.  Reference the Risk 

Management Division’s website for further details and exceptions at http://risk.state.nv.us. 

 

1304 Complaint Procedure 

 Direct all complaints concerning misuse of State automobiles to the Motor Pool Fleet 

Services Division Administrator who will then notify the agency head regarding possible 

misuse of a State vehicle. The agency head shall investigate the complaint, discuss the 

complaint with the offender's supervisor, ascertain that all facts are obtained and request 

appropriate supervisory action. 

1316 Records 

 Agencies are required to maintain vehicle maintenance records. Records must be 

established and maintained for each vehicle the agency owns and/or leases. Agencies are 

required to maintain the manufactures maintenance requirements and/or schedules for 

owned and leased vehicles. Agencies leasing vehicles from State Motor Pool Fleet 

Services Division are exempt from this requirement. 

 

http://risk.state.nv.us/


1 | P a g e  

R e v i s e d  1 1 / 8 / 2 0 1 3  

 

REQUEST FOR CHANGES TO THE STATE ADMINISTRATIVE MANUAL (SAM) 

 

 

 

Agency Code:  084  

Department:  Department of Administration  

Division (if applicable): Fleet Services 

Appointing authority:  Keith Wells 

Agency contact: Keith Wells, 775-684-1883, kdwells@admin.nv.gov  

Budget Analyst: John Borrowman, 775-684-0224, borrowman@admin.nv.gov  

Proposed BOE date:  04/08/2014 

 

 

1. Reason/purpose for requested change: 

 

 To revise SAM section 1400 to reflect the change of the division’s name from State 

Motor Pool to Department of Administration / Fleet Services Division 

 To update antiquated language  

 

 

2. Existing and recommended language in SAM (blue bold italics is new language being 

proposed and red strikethrough is deleted language being proposed). 

 

 

3. Explain how the recommended change(s) will benefit agencies or create consistencies or 

efficiencies, etc. (provide examples if applicable): 

 

 Changes are required to update SAM with the Fleet Services name change and policy 

changes.  

 

 

4. Will recommended change have a fiscal impact (if yes, explain): 

 

 No 

 

 

5. Proposed effective date: 

 

 Upon approval of the April 2014 Board of Examiners meeting.  

 

 

 

 

BOARD OF EXAMINERS APPROVAL DATE:__________________________________ 

                    (for BOE use only) 

mailto:kdwells@admin.nv.gov
mailto:borrowman@admin.nv.gov


2 | P a g e  

R e v i s e d  1 1 / 8 / 2 0 1 3  

 

Table of Contents  

 1400 State Motor Pool Fleet Services Division 

1400 State Motor Pool Fleet Services Division 

1402 Purpose 

This section advises State agencies how employees may obtain Motor Pool Division vehicles for 

travel or to transport articles on official State business. 

The division provides safe, efficient, environmentally friendly, and cost-effective 

transportation solutions to state employees.  

 

1404 Policy 

It is the Motor Pool Division's policy to  

1. To ensure insure economical utilization of State-owned vehicles, eliminate unauthorized 

use of State-owned vehicles, provide a ready means of transportation for State employees 

on State business, reduce the need for use of private vehicles on official State business 

and to provide central administration for maintenance, care and operation. 

 

 

1405 Services Provided 

1. Long-term assigned vehicles. The division maintains a diverse inventory of vehicles for 

agency use. 

2. Short-term assigned vehicles (motor pool operations). The division maintains a diverse 

inventory of vehicles for agency use. 

3. Maintenance and repairs 

4. Fueling network 

5. Washing facilities 

6. Vehicle acquisition and disposal 

7. Agencies utilizing vehicles owned by their respective department may utilize any of the 

services provided by the Fleet Services Division on a charge-back basis. 



3 | P a g e  

R e v i s e d  1 1 / 8 / 2 0 1 3  

 

 

 

1406 Motor Pool Division Charges 

Vehicles are charged out either on a daily basis or assigned to an agency on a monthly basis. 

Daily rates apply on a 24-hour basis. Vehicles kept longer than 14 calendar days require the 

Motor Pool Administrator's approval and are charged the full monthly basis. For specific rate or 

billing information contact the Motor Pool Division at 775-684-1880. 

1. Vehicle usage is charged either on a daily basis or on a monthly basis. Daily rates 

apply on a 24-hour basis. For specific rate or billing information contact the Fleet 

Services Division at 775-684-1880 or reference the Fleet Services website 

http://fleetservices.nv.gov 

2. Fleet Services will not be responsible for reimbursement of vehicle expenses resulting 

from running out of fuel; charges for lost or misplaced keys; parking charges; towing, 

when not a result of mechanical failure; failure to obtain fuel at designated State fuel 

facilities (except for emergencies) or citations issued for violations of traffic laws or 

parking ordinances. 

3. Agencies assigned vehicles on a monthly basis must submit a Fleet Services Monthly 

Trip report form MP-3 to the Carson City Fleet Services Office within five working 

days after the end of the month. Failure to submit timely reports will result in a late fee 

assessment for each day late. In the event circumstances prevent timely submission, 

contact the Fleet Services Administrator in advance and request a time extension. 

 

1407 Vehicle Utilization Guidelines 

The current use requirement for monthly assigned vehicles must meet the utilization 

requirements pursuant to the State Administrative Manual section 1322. Agencies leasing Motor 

Pool vehicles on a monthly basis not meeting the aforementioned guidelines will be contacted by 

the Motor Pool administrator and their vehicle(s) usage will be reviewed for possible 

reassignment. 

Refer to section 1322 of the State Administrative Manual for current vehicle utilization 

requirements.  

 

 

 



4 | P a g e  

R e v i s e d  1 1 / 8 / 2 0 1 3  

 

 1408 Division Location and Hours Facility Locations and 

Hours of Operation 

Listed below are Motor Pool facility locations and telephone numbers: 

Reno, Nevada 89502 

  

2550 Terminal Way 

Phone: 775-688-1325 

Hours: 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. - Monday through Friday 

 

Reno 

  

2550 Terminal Way, Reno NV 89502 

Phone: 775-688-1325 

Fax: 775-688-1309 

Email: rnomp.admin.nv.gov 

Hours: 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. - Monday through Friday 

 Carson City, Nevada 89701  

750 East King Street 

Phone: 775-684-1880 

Hours: 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. - Monday through Friday 

Carson City  

750 East King Street, Carson City, NV 89701 

Phone: 775-684-1880 

Fax: 775-684-1888 

Email: ccmpool@admin.nv.gov 

Hours: 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. - Monday through Friday 

 Las Vegas, Nevada 89119  

5085 Rent - A - Car Road 

Phone: 702-486-7050 

Hours: 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. - Monday through Friday 

http://www.motorpool.state.nv.us/webpages/rnohome.htm
http://www.motorpool.state.nv.us/webpages/rnohome.htm
http://www.motorpool.state.nv.us/webpages/CChome.htm
http://www.motorpool.state.nv.us/webpages/CChome.htm
http://www.motorpool.state.nv.us/webpages/LVhomepage.htm


5 | P a g e  

R e v i s e d  1 1 / 8 / 2 0 1 3  

 

 

Las Vegas  

7060 La Cienega St. Las Vegas, NV 89119 

Phone: 702-486-7050 

Fax: 702-486-7042 

Email: lvmp@admin.nv.gov 

Hours: 7:00 a.m. to 7:30p.m. - Monday through Friday 

 

Note: The Motor Pool office hours as listed are subject to change based on airline schedule 

changes. Please call the Motor Pool you will be utilizing for current hours of operation. 

1409 Authorized Operators of Fleet Services Vehicles 

A State vehicle will be covered for Auto Physical Damage when driven by a State 

employee, temporary employees, board members, volunteers, contracted employees and 

those working in conjunction with the State of Nevada while conducting official State 

business and within the course and scope of employment. 

 

The Defensive Driving course is required for all “Executive” branch employees whose job 

functions require driving a State vehicle for State business.  Reference the Risk 

Management Division’s website for further details and exceptions at http://risk.state.nv.us. 

 

1410 Vehicle Requisitioning How to Request a Vehicle  

1. All employees must have a valid driver's license of the appropriate class, as defined by 

the Nevada Department of Motor Vehicles, in their possession while operating a State 

vehicle. All State vehicles must be operated in a safe, courteous and responsible manner 

and in complete compliance with all motor vehicle traffic laws, including parking 

regulations. 

2. State employees, board members and contract workers or volunteers may operate a State 

vehicle with the authorization of the hiring agency head prior to vehicle use. Any other 

people riding as passengers or driving vehicles is prohibited. 

3. Paragraph 2 does not prohibit agencies from transporting clients, patients or other 

passengers where written authorization from the agency head has been given in 

connection with official State business. 

4. Requesters will present to the Motor Pool Division a completed Vehicle Requisition 

(MP-2) signed by an authorized agency employee. A vehicle suitable for the trip will be 

provided.  

a. The attendant will enter the vehicle number and starting mileage on the 

requisition. If the trip destination is away from division service areas, the driver 

http://www.motorpool.state.nv.us/webpages/LVhomepage.htm
http://risk.state.nv.us/
http://motorpool.state.nv.us/webpages/forms.htm
http://motorpool.state.nv.us/webpages/forms.htm


6 | P a g e  

R e v i s e d  1 1 / 8 / 2 0 1 3  

 

will be furnished fuel cards. The Motor Pool will retain the Vehicle Requisition 

while the vehicle is in service. 

b. On return, the driver will note in the remarks section of the requisition any 

discrepancies encountered. Emergency service, if necessary, will be provided as 

instructed by the attendant, but vehicles shall not be driven in an unsafe condition. 

c. A copy of the requisition or computer return ticket will be given to the driver 

when the trip is completed. 

5. When using Motor Pool vehicles, drivers are expected to report any defects or 

irregularities in the vehicle to a Motor Pool attendant upon return of the vehicle. 

6. Motor Pool will not be responsible for reimbursement of vehicle expenses resulting from 

running out of fuel; charges for lost or misplaced keys; parking charges; towing, when 

not a result of mechanical failure; failure to obtain fuel at designated State fuel facilities 

(except for emergencies) or citations issued for violations of traffic laws or parking 

ordinances. 

7. Vehicle Requisition and Trip Reports for assigned vehicles must be submitted in 

complete form to the Carson City Motor Pool Office within five working days after the 

end of the month. Failure to submit timely reports will result in a late fee assessment for 

each day late. In the event circumstances prevent timely submission, contact the Motor 

Pool Administrator in advance and request a time extension. 

8. Reservations not cancelled prior to the time the vehicle is requested will result in a charge 

of one day's basic rate for that class of vehicle. Cancellations whether by phone or fax 

will be confirmed by fax by the Motor Pool. Agencies disputing no-show charges will be 

required to show evidence of cancellation, i.e., fax. 

9. At times the Motor Pool Division has insufficient vehicles to cover anticipated rentals. At 

these times the Motor Pool Division utilizes outside car rental agencies to provide 

vehicles. These rentals are charged to the using agencies at State contract rates. The State 

Motor Pool will make all arrangements for rental vehicles and assume responsibility for 

the necessary paperwork when the vehicles are reserved through the Motor Pool. The 

Motor Pool will not assume liability for payment for rental cars booked directly with the 

rental company by the agency. 

10. The Motor Pool will arrange transportation to the rental company location for drivers 

getting rental vehicles in lieu of Motor Pool vehicles. 

 

Short-term assignments - 30 days or less: 

1. Reservations may be made online at http://fleetres.nv.gov or 

2. Email or fax a Fleet Services Rental Request form (MP-2) to the location where you will 

be picking up the vehicle. 

3. At times, the division may have insufficient vehicles to cover anticipated rentals. At these 

times, the division utilizes outside rental car agencies to provide additional vehicles.  

4. Fleet Services will make all arrangements for rental vehicles and assume responsibility 

for the necessary paperwork when the vehicles are reserved through the Fleet Services 

Division.  

http://fleetres.nv.gov/


7 | P a g e  

R e v i s e d  1 1 / 8 / 2 0 1 3  

 

5. The Fleet Services Division will not assume liability for payment for rental cars booked 

directly with the rental company by the using agency. 



8 | P a g e  

R e v i s e d  1 1 / 8 / 2 0 1 3  

 

 

Long-Term Assignment – Assigned on a Monthly Basis 

1. Requests for long-term assignment should be included in the agency’s biennial budget 

request.  This will allow the Fleet Services Division a chance to review the available 

inventory and make adjustments as needed to provide for the request. 

2. Submit a Fleet Services Vehicle Request form (MP-5) to the Carson City Fleet Services 

office. 

3. If the request was not included in the agency’s budget request, every attempt will be 

made to full-fill requests as inventory levels permit. 

1412 Care and Maintenance of State Vehicles 

Refer to the State Motor Pool  Vehicle Use Manual located in all Motor Pool vehicles and local 

Motor Pool offices for the care and maintenance of State vehicles. 

Refer to the Fleet Services Vehicle Use Manual for the care and maintenance of State 

vehicles. Vehicle use manuals are located in the glove box of each fleet services vehicle. 

Copies may also be downloaded from the fleet services website http://fleetservices.nv.gov  

1414 Insurance and Accident Reporting 

 Accident  

Refers to any collision involving a State vehicle with a pedestrian(s), other vehicle(s) 

and/or other fixed or stationary object(s), whether or not any physical damage or bodily 

injury occurs. 

 Incident  

Refers to non-accident personal injury or physical damage; i.e., vandalism, window or 

body damage from flying objects, lost or stolen vehicle parts or accessories, vehicle body 

damage from tire snow chains, etc. 

All accidents or incidents involving a State vehicle must be reported within 48 hours to the 

Motor Pool Division and to the Torts Claims Manager of the Office of the Attorney General in 

Carson City. An accident report packet is located in the glove box. Agencies utilizing Motor 

Pool Division vehicles will be billed backed the insurance deductible for accidents when their 

employees are found to be at fault for initiating the accident. 

 All accidents or incidents involving a Fleet Services vehicle must be reported within 48 

hours to the Fleet Services Division and to the Torts Claims Manager of the Office of 

the Attorney General in Carson City. An accident report packet is located in the glove 

http://fleetservices.nv.gov/


9 | P a g e  

R e v i s e d  1 1 / 8 / 2 0 1 3  

 

box of each vehicle. Accidents reports may be downloaded from the fleet services 

website http://fleetservices.nv.gov . 

 

If you are involved in an accident, follow these procedures: 

1. Stop at once. 

2. Render aid to the injured. 

3. Notify police, give exact location and advise if there are injuries. 

4. Obtain name, address and vehicle license number of other party(s), and obtain names and 

addresses of all witnesses. 

5. Complete police and State accident reports. Do not sign or make a statement as to 

responsibility. 
6. As soon as possible notify your supervisor and request he notify Motor Pool (775-684-

1880) within 24 hours. (In the event of weekends or holidays, notify on the next working 

day.) 

7. In the event there is bodily injury or substantial property damage the supervisor shall 

phone the Tort Claims Manager of the Office of the Attorney General as soon as possible 

and follow up with a written report. 

8. Within 24 hours of an accident submit one copy of State of Nevada Vehicle Accident 

Report (Form No. RSK-001) to Motor Pool and send or fax one copy to the Torts Claims 

Manager of the Office of the Attorney General, and one copy to Risk Management. 

Accident reports must include supervisor's signature. (SAM 0512) 

Note: Nevada State law requires that the driver submit a report on Form Number SR-1 to the 

Department of Motor Vehicles and Public Safety within 10 days in the event that property 

damage exceeds $350 to any one person or for any personal injury or death. 

1415 Driver Responsibility 

Driving on government business carries with it responsibilities. Observe all traffic laws and drive 

defensively. Failure to observe Motor Pool policies while operating a State vehicle may subject 

the individual to liability for vehicle expenses incurred and/or revocation of Motor Pool vehicle 

use privileges. Drivers are prohibited from smoking in daily rental vehicles. A fee will be 

charged for cleaning vehicles that have been smoked in and drivers smoking in vehicles may be 

reported to their agency head. 

1. Driving on government business carries with it responsibilities. Observe all traffic laws 

and drive defensively. Failure to observe all Fleet Services policies while operating a 

State vehicle may subject the individual to liability for vehicle expenses incurred and/or 

revocation of Fleet Services privileges.  

2. All employees must have a valid driver's license of the appropriate class, as defined by 

the Nevada Department of Motor Vehicles, in their possession while operating a State 

vehicle. All State vehicles must be operated in a safe, courteous and responsible 

http://fleetservices.nv.gov/
http://risk.state.nv.us/Accident%20Form%203.pdf
http://risk.state.nv.us/Accident%20Form%203.pdf
http://www.dmvnv.com/pdfforms/sr1.pdf


10 | P a g e  

R e v i s e d  1 1 / 8 / 2 0 1 3  

 

manner and in complete compliance with all motor vehicle traffic laws, including 

parking regulations. 

3. Smoking is prohibited in all Fleet Services vehicles. A fee will be charged for cleaning 

vehicles that have been smoked in and drivers smoking in vehicles may be reported to 

their agency head. 

4. The Defensive Driving course is required for all “Executive” branch employees whose 

job functions require driving a State vehicle for State business.  Reference the Risk 

Management Division’s website for further details and exceptions at 

http://risk.state.nv.us. 

1416 Vehicle Fuel and Service Available to Other Agencies 

Motor Pool Division has an agreement with the Department of Transportation to allow State 

agencies to use fuel facilities at various locations within the State. These locations are listed in 

the State Motor Pool Vehicle Use Manual. Additionally, all Motor Pool Division fueling 

facilities are available to State agencies owning their own vehicles and using the Western 

Energetix fuel card. 

Western Energetix fuel cards are issued to each vehicle for use when Motor Pool or Department 

of Transportation facilities are not available or otherwise uneconomical or time-consuming to 

use. Directions for use of Western Energetix fuel cards are in each vehicle or are available from 

all Motor Pool offices. 

The cost savings to the State by using these facilities are substantial. 

Agencies owning their individual vehicles are encouraged to contact the Carson City Motor Pool 

Division for information and a listing of service locations. 

Fuel cards are imprinted with the same number as the license number of the assigned vehicle. Do 

not use this fuel card for any other vehicle. 

Do not use fuel cards for normal vehicle maintenance or purchases of auto parts, tires or 

accessories without the expressed authorization and purchase order number from the nearest 

Motor Pool facility. Agencies will be billed for any unauthorized fuel card charges. 

Lost or stolen fuel cards must be reported immediately to the Motor Pool Division, Carson City, 

Nevada. Agencies will be charged for replacement of lost fuel cards. 

1. Fleet Services utilizes the Department of Transportation fueling network and the 

current State contracted fuel provider’s commercial card lock fueling network. For 

current information please contact your local Fleet Services office or reference the 

Fleet Services website http://fleetsrvices.nv.gov  

2. Fuel cards are assigned to each individual Fleet Services vehicle and are prohibited to 

be used for any other vehicle than which the card is assigned.  Agencies will be 

http://risk.state.nv.us/
http://fleetsrvices.nv.gov/


11 | P a g e  

R e v i s e d  1 1 / 8 / 2 0 1 3  

 

charged for unauthorized purchases and may be reported to the Attorney General’ 

Office.  

3. Do not use fuel cards for normal vehicle maintenance or the purchase of auto parts, 

tires or accessories without the expressed authorization of the Fleet Services Division. 

Agencies will be billed for all unauthorized fuel card charges. 

4. Lost or stolen fuel cards must be reported immediately to the  Fleet Services  Division  

 

1417 Long Term Assigned Vehicle Request 

Any agency requesting a vehicle to be assigned for a period of more than 14 days shall submit 

such request to the Motor Pool Administrator on Form No. MP-5. Upon review, the Motor Pool 

Administrator will make a determination based on the information submitted, availability of 

vehicles for assignment and other additional information concerning past and proposed vehicle 

use. Agencies anticipating the need for additional vehicles as part of their biennial budget request 

are instructed to submit a completed MP-5 form to the Motor Pool Administrator no later than 

May 1 of the year their biennial budget request is submitted. 

1418 Energy Management 

The Motor Pool Division is researching ways to conserve gas consumption and may change 

various policies to accomplish this. Agencies will be notified by memorandum of any revision to 

the present policy. The Motor Pool, by law, must incorporate alternatively fueled vehicles into 

the fleet. Any questions or comments on their use may be referred to the Motor Pool 

Administrator. Agencies using alternative fueled vehicles must use the approved alternative fuel 

in these vehicles in Clark and Washoe counties. 

Note: Policies pertaining to the use of State vehicles are provided as an aid to State employees. 

Should any questions arise concerning these policies, contact the Motor Pool Administrator's 

office, Carson City, Nevada, 775-684-1880. 

1. The Fleet Services Division, by law, must incorporate alternatively fueled vehicles into 

the fleet.  . The division has traditionally been proactive in purchasing, utilizing and 

advocating the use of alternative fueled vehicles. The division is proactive in exploring 

and embracing all future alternative fuel opportunities. Please direct any questions or 

concerns to the division administrator.  

2. Agencies assigned alternative fueled vehicles must use the approved alternative fuel in 

these vehicles in while operating in Clark and Washoe counties. 

 

 

http://motorpool.state.nv.us/Word%20Docs/MP-5%20Vehicle%20Request%20Form.doc.pdf


1 | P a g e  

R e v i s e d  1 1 / 8 / 2 0 1 3  

 

REQUEST FOR CHANGES TO THE STATE ADMINISTRATIVE MANUAL (SAM) 

 

 

 

Agency Code:  084  

Department:  Department of Administration                       

Division (if applicable): Fleet Services     

Appointing authority:  Keith Wells        

Agency contact: Keith Wells, 775-684-1883, kdwells@admin.nv.gov  

Budget Analyst: John Borrowman, 775-684-0224, borrowman@admin.nv.gov  

Proposed BOE date:  04/08/2014 

 

 

1. Reason/purpose for requested change: 

 

 To revise SAM to reflect the name change of the State Motor Pool to the Fleet Services 

Division 

 

2. Existing and recommended language in SAM (blue bold italics is new language being 

proposed and red strikethrough is deleted language being propose 

 

3. Explain how the recommended change(s) will benefit agencies or create consistencies or 

efficiencies, etc. (provide examples if applicable): 

 

 Changes are required to update SAM with the Fleet Services name change and policy 

changes.  

 

4. Will recommended change have a fiscal impact (if yes, explain): 

 

 No 

 

5. Proposed effective date: 

 

 Upon approval of the April Board of Examiners meeting. 

 

 

 

BOARD OF EXAMINERS APPROVAL DATE:__________________________________ 

                    (for BOE use only) 

mailto:kdwells@admin.nv.gov
mailto:borrowman@admin.nv.gov


2 | P a g e  

R e v i s e d  1 1 / 8 / 2 0 1 3  

 

2904 What to Do in the Event of an Accident or Potential 

Claim 

Automobile Accident 

In event of an Accident you must: 

1. Notify the proper authority, e.g., local law enforcement agency or fire department, if 

applicable. 

2. Call your supervisor as soon as possible. If a Motor Pool Fleet Services Division Vehicle 

is involved, the Motor Pool Fleet Services Division shall also be notified. You must 

complete the vehicle accident report – RSK001. A copy should be in the packet in the 

glove compartment of the State vehicle. You should also gather all relevant facts, take 

photos, tag and preserve any evidence and forward copies to the Tort Claims 

Administrator at 100 N. Carson St., Carson City Nevada 89701 and Risk Management at 

201 S Roop Street, Suite 201., Carson City, Nevada 89701 as they become available. 

 































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15468

Legal Entity
Name:

TECHNICAL ASSOCIATES INC

Agency Name: ATTORNEY GENERAL'S OFFICE Contractor Name: TECHNICAL ASSOCIATES INC
Agency Code: 030 Address: 9030 STONY POINT PKWY STE 580
Appropriation Unit: 1038-10
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip RICHMOND, VA 23235-1967

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null804/272-5363
Vendor No.: T81020365
NV Business ID: NV20101363660

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2018
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Regulatory Assessments 103800

Agency Reference #: BCP Contract # 10963

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 05/17/2018
Contract term: 4 years and 17 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Professional Service

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract that provides ongoing expert witness litigation support for financing dockets related to utility
company resource acquisition plans and cost recovery. It includes, but is not limited to, utility integrated resource
plans, energy supply plans, purchase gas adjustments, and renewable portfolio standards dockets before the Public
Utilities Commission of Nevada (PUCN), any board, commission, legislature, or court with jurisdiction over Nevada's
regulated utilities.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $199,400.00
Payment for services will be made at the rate of $175.00 per hour maximum
Other basis for payment: All invoices must itemize work performed (by time and date of service) and submitted monthly.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Statutory requirement to represent consumers' interests in matters before the Public Utilities Commission.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Expert assistance and advice that is not available in State agencies is required by the Bureau of Consumer Protection to
adequately protect the public interest.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15468 1



a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Professional Service (As defined in NAC 333.150)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
This contractor was chosen for their experience, expertise, availability, and reasonable rates.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
The contractor has been engaged under contract by the Bureau of Consumer Protection in 1981, 1982, 1984, 1988~2004,
2005~present and all work performed has been satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval hrobinso 03/25/2014 16:12:50 PM
Division Approval hrobinso 03/25/2014 16:12:55 PM
Department Approval hrobinso 03/25/2014 16:12:59 PM
Contract Manager Approval hrobinso 04/21/2014 13:28:17 PM
Budget Analyst Approval myoun3 04/21/2014 15:15:44 PM
BOE Agenda Approval sbrown 04/22/2014 15:34:44 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15468 1



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15155 Amendment

Number:
2

Legal Entity
Name:

Bingham McCutchen LLP

Agency Name: ATTORNEY GENERAL'S OFFICE Contractor Name: Bingham McCutchen LLP
Agency Code: 030 Address: 3 Embarcadero Center
Appropriation Unit: All Budget Accounts - Category 04
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip San Francisco, CA 94111

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null415-393-2000
Vendor No.: T32002651
NV Business ID: NV20131670288

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2015
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Statutory Contingency Fund

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 10/09/2013

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

06/30/2015

Contract term: 1 year and 264 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Outside Counsel

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the second amendment to the original contract, which continues ongoing legal services in the defense of a
lawsuit filed against the State of Nevada/Department of Health and Human Services.  This amendment increases the
maximum amount from $388,000 to $1,513,000  because the services required of this vendor in the defense of this
lawsuit have exceeded what was originally requested.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $49,000.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $339,000.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $1,125,000.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $1,513,000.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The State of Nevada, Department of Health and Human Services was named in a lawsuit filed by the City and County of San
Francisco.  Pursuant to NRS 41.03435, which states in part: the Office of the Attorney General may employ special counsel
subject to the approval of the State Board of Examiners, if the Attorney General determines at any time prior to trial that it is
impracticable, uneconomical or could constitute a conflict of interest for the legal service to be rendered by the Attorney
General or a deputy attorney general.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The Attorney General has decided that it was impracticable and uneconomical to have State of Nevada employees defend
the State in this lawsuit.

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15155 2



9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Professional Service (As defined in NAC 333.150)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Pursuant to NAC 333.150, a contract for professional services, including the services of an attorney, do not require a
solicitation.

d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
LLP

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval mradu 04/02/2014 17:04:26 PM
Division Approval clesli1 04/03/2014 08:39:40 AM
Department Approval chowle 04/03/2014 14:48:09 PM
Contract Manager Approval ngarci1 04/03/2014 15:50:05 PM
Budget Analyst Approval myoun3 04/18/2014 09:09:24 AM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 04/18/2014 09:15:09 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15155 2



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15549

Legal Entity
Name:

Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP

Agency Name: TREASURER - TREASURER'S
OFFICE

Contractor Name: Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP

Agency Code: 050 Address: One Chase Manhattan Plaza
Appropriation Unit: 1082-04
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip New York, NY 10005

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Ronald Grosser 212-820-9423
Vendor No.: T29014355
NV Business ID: Pending

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2018
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % X Bonds 100.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 06/01/2014

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2018
Contract term: 4 years and 30 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Professional Service

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide bond counsel and/or disclosure counsel services for the issuance of State
securities. The State uses separate law firms to act as bond counsel and disclosure counsel for each issuance of
bonds/notes or other securities of the State. The State selected a pool of legal firms to provide bond and disclosure
counsel services. Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP are one of the firms selected. The firms selected as bond and/or
disclosure counsel are not guaranteed to be used as counsel on any specific State debt issuance; therefore the
state does not guarantee any firm a minimum amount of work or compensation. Compensation for securities
issuance work, other than special projects, is dependent upon the successful closing of an issuance.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $2,500,000.00
Other basis for payment: See Attachment DD - Bond Counsel and Disclosure Counsel Cost Worksheet. (Attachment E from
Contractor's Response)

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Per NRS 226.110.10.b: Employ necessary legal services in connection with the issuance of debt securities.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Specialized professional expertise in the sale of securities is needed.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15549 3



a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
A pool of vendors was selected by the Solicitation evaluation committee based on the vendor's experience and qualification,
from review of quantitative and qualifying criteria. Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP was one of the firms chosen.
d. Last bid date: 02/27/2014 Anticipated re-bid date: 02/28/2018

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP was contracted from 2010-2014 with the Treasurer's Office as Bond and/or Disclosure
Counsel and has been verified as satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is NOT registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
LLP
Pending

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
No b. If "No", is an exemption on file with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
No If "No", to a. AND b., please explain why the contractor does not have an SBL or an exemption.

Pending

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
No b. If "NO", please explain.

Pending

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval lchatwoo 04/14/2014 09:41:42 AM
Division Approval lchatwoo 04/14/2014 09:41:46 AM
Department Approval lchatwoo 04/14/2014 09:41:50 AM
Contract Manager Approval jolive2 04/14/2014 09:42:54 AM
Budget Analyst Approval sbarkdul 04/16/2014 06:54:38 AM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 04/16/2014 09:10:15 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15549 3



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15543

Legal Entity
Name:

McKenna Long & Aldridge LLP

Agency Name: TREASURER - TREASURER'S
OFFICE

Contractor Name: McKenna Long & Aldridge LLP

Agency Code: 050 Address: Sun Trust Plaza, Ste 5300
Appropriation Unit: 1082-04 303 Peachtree St NE
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Atlanta, GA 30308

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Thomas P. Lauth 404-527-4000
Vendor No.: T81201548
NV Business ID: Pending

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2018
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % X Bonds 100.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 06/01/2014

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2018
Contract term: 4 years and 30 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Professional Service

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide bond counsel and/or disclosure counsel services for the issuance of State
securities. The State uses separate law firms to act as bond counsel and disclosure counsel for each issuance of
bonds/notes or other securities of the State. The State selected a pool of legal firms to provide bond and disclosure
counsel services. McKenna Long & Aldridge LLP are one of the firms selected. The firms selected as bond and/or
disclosure counsel are not guaranteed to be used as counsel on any specific State debt issuance; therefore the
state does not guarantee any firm a minimum amount of work or compensation. Compensation for securities
issuance work, other than special projects, is dependent upon the successful closing of an issuance.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $2,500,000.00
Other basis for payment: See Attachment DD - Bond Counsel and Disclosure Counsel Cost Worksheet. (Attachment E from
Contractor's Response)

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Per NRS 226.110.10.b: Employ necessary legal services in connection with the issuance of debt securities.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Specialized professional expertise in the sale of securities is needed.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15543 4



a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
A pool of vendors was selected by the Solicitation evaluation committee based on the vendor's experience and qualification,
from review of quantitative and qualifying criteria. McKenna Long & Aldridge was one of the firms chosen.
d. Last bid date: 02/24/2014 Anticipated re-bid date: 02/24/2018

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
McKenna Long & Aldridge LLP was contracted from 2010-2014 with the Treasurer's Office as Bond and/or Disclosure
Counsel and has been verified as satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is NOT registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
LLP
Pending.

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
No b. If "No", is an exemption on file with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
No If "No", to a. AND b., please explain why the contractor does not have an SBL or an exemption.

Pending

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
No b. If "NO", please explain.

Pending

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval lchatwoo 04/14/2014 09:38:37 AM
Division Approval lchatwoo 04/14/2014 09:38:40 AM
Department Approval lchatwoo 04/14/2014 09:38:43 AM
Contract Manager Approval jolive2 04/14/2014 09:39:23 AM
Budget Analyst Approval sbarkdul 04/16/2014 06:53:55 AM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 04/16/2014 09:12:13 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15543 4



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15542

Legal Entity
Name:

Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP

Agency Name: TREASURER - TREASURER'S
OFFICE

Contractor Name: Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP

Agency Code: 050 Address: 450 Howard St
Appropriation Unit: 1082-04
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip San Francisco, CA 94105

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Roger L. Davis 415-773-5758
Vendor No.: T80917349
NV Business ID: Pending

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2018
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % X Bonds 100.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 06/01/2014

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2018
Contract term: 4 years and 30 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Professional Service

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide bond counsel and/or disclosure counsel services for the issuance of State
securities. The State uses separate law firms to act as bond counsel and disclosure counsel for each issuance of
bonds/notes or other securities of the State. The State selected a pool of legal firms to provide bond and disclosure
counsel services. Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP are one of the firms selected. The firms selected as bond and/or
disclosure counsel are not guaranteed to be used as counsel on any specific State debt issuance; therefore the
state does not guarantee any firm a minimum amount of work or compensation. Compensation for securities
issuance work, other than special projects, is dependent upon the successful closing of an issuance.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $2,500,000.00
Other basis for payment: See Attachment DD - Bond Counsel and Disclosure Counsel Cost Worksheet. (Attachment E from
Contractor's Response)

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Per NRS 226.110.10.b: Employ necessary legal services in connection with the issuance of debt securities.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Specialized professional expertise in the sale of securities is needed.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15542 5



a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
A pool of vendors was selected by the Solicitation evaluation committee based on their experience and qualification, from
review of quantitative and qualifying criteria. Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP was one of the firms chosen.
d. Last bid date: 02/27/2014 Anticipated re-bid date: 02/27/2018

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP was contracted from 2010-2014 with the Treasurer's Office as Bond and/or Disclosure
Counsel and has been verified as satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is NOT registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
LLP
Pending.

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
No b. If "No", is an exemption on file with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
No If "No", to a. AND b., please explain why the contractor does not have an SBL or an exemption.

Pending.

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
No b. If "NO", please explain.

Pending.

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval lchatwoo 04/14/2014 09:36:20 AM
Division Approval lchatwoo 04/14/2014 09:36:23 AM
Department Approval lchatwoo 04/14/2014 09:36:27 AM
Contract Manager Approval jolive2 04/14/2014 09:38:43 AM
Budget Analyst Approval sbarkdul 04/16/2014 06:53:33 AM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 04/16/2014 09:09:10 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15542 5



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15541

Legal Entity
Name:

Sherman & Howard L.L.C.

Agency Name: TREASURER - TREASURER'S
OFFICE

Contractor Name: Sherman & Howard L.L.C.

Agency Code: 050 Address: 50 W Liberty St, Ste 100
Appropriation Unit: 1082-04
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Reno, NV 89501

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: John O. Swendseid 775-323-1980
Vendor No.: T81201653
NV Business ID: NV19931003394

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2018
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % X Bonds 100.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 06/01/2014

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2018
Contract term: 4 years and 30 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Professional Service

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide bond counsel and/or disclosure counsel services for the issuance of State
securities. The State uses separate law firms to act as bond counsel and disclosure counsel for each issuance of
bonds/notes or other securities of the State. The State selected a pool of legal firms to provide bond and disclosure
counsel services. Sherman and Howard are one of the firms selected. The firms selected as bond and/or disclosure
counsel are not guaranteed to be used as counsel on any specific State debt issuance; therefore the state does not
guarantee any firm a minimum amount of work or compensation. Compensation for securities issuance work, other
than special projects, is dependent upon the successful closing of an issuance.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $2,500,000.00
Other basis for payment: See Attachment DD - Bond Counsel and Disclosure Counsel Cost Worksheet. (Attachment E from
Contractor's Response)

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Per NRS 226.110.10.b: Employ necessary legal services in connection with the issuance of debt securities.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Specialized professional expertise in the sale of securities is needed.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15541 6



a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
A pool of vendors was selected by the Solicitation evaluation committee based on the vendor's experience and qualification,
from review of quantitative and qualifying criteria. Sherman & Howard was one of the firms chosen.
d. Last bid date: 02/27/2014 Anticipated re-bid date: 02/27/2018

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Sherman & Howard was contracted from 2010-2014 by the Treasurer's Office as Bond and/or Disclosure Counsel and has
been verified as satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
LLC

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval lchatwoo 04/10/2014 13:18:25 PM
Division Approval lchatwoo 04/10/2014 13:18:30 PM
Department Approval lchatwoo 04/10/2014 13:18:38 PM
Contract Manager Approval jolive2 04/10/2014 13:19:54 PM
Budget Analyst Approval sbarkdul 04/16/2014 06:53:13 AM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 04/16/2014 09:03:26 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15541 6



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15544

Legal Entity
Name:

Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth

Agency Name: TREASURER - TREASURER'S
OFFICE

Contractor Name: Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth

Agency Code: 050 Address: 275 Hill St, Ste 270
Appropriation Unit: 1082-04
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Reno, NV 89501

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Scott W. Shaver 775-393-1950
Vendor No.: Pending
NV Business ID: NV20131061828

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2018
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % X Bonds 100.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 06/01/2014

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2018
Contract term: 4 years and 30 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Professional Service

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide bond counsel and/or disclosure counsel services for the issuance of State
securities. The State uses separate law firms to act as bond counsel and disclosure counsel for each issuance of
bonds/notes or other securities of the State. The State selected a pool of legal firms to provide bond and disclosure
counsel services. Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth are one of the firms selected. The firms selected as bond and/or
disclosure counsel are not guaranteed to be used as counsel on any specific State debt issuance; therefore the
state does not guarantee any firm a minimum amount of work or compensation. Compensation for securities
issuance work, other than special projects, is dependent upon the successful closing of an issuance.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $2,500,000.00
Other basis for payment: See Attachment DD - Bond Counsel and Disclosure Counsel Cost Worksheet. (Attachment E from
Contractor's Response)

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Per NRS 226.110.10.b: Employ necessary legal services in connection with the issuance of debt securities.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Specialized professional expertise in the sale of securities is needed.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15544 7



a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
A pool of vendors was selected by the Solicitation evaluation committee based on the vendor's experience and qualification,
from review of quantitative and qualifying criteria. Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth was one of the firms chosen.
d. Last bid date: 02/27/2014 Anticipated re-bid date: 02/27/2018

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval lchatwoo 04/14/2014 09:40:10 AM
Division Approval lchatwoo 04/14/2014 09:40:13 AM
Department Approval lchatwoo 04/14/2014 09:40:18 AM
Contract Manager Approval jolive2 04/14/2014 09:42:19 AM
Budget Analyst Approval sbarkdul 04/16/2014 06:54:17 AM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 04/16/2014 09:06:16 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15544 7



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 14024 Amendment

Number:
1

Legal Entity
Name:

DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION

Agency Name: DIVISION OF HUMAN RESOURCE
MANAGEMENT

Contractor Name: DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION

Agency Code: 070 Address: HEARINGS DIVISION
Appropriation Unit: 1363-11 2200 S RANCHO DR STE 220
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip LAS VEGAS, NV 89102

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null702/486-2527
Vendor No.: D08000001
NV Business ID: Not applicable

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2013-2016
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Personnel Assessments

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 02/12/2013

Anticipated BOE meeting date 06/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

06/30/2014

Contract term: 3 years and 138 days

4. Type of contract: Interlocal Agreement
Contract description: Hearing Officers

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the first amendment to the original contract, which provides ongoing Appeals Officers to hear Executive
Branch employee "Whistle Blower" complaints and appeals regarding suspensions, demotion, involuntary
transfers, and terminations.  This amendment extends the termination date from June 30, 2014 to June 30, 2016 and
increases the maximum amount from $100,000 to $300,000 due to the continued need for these services.  This
amendment also revises the Scope of Work to include additional clarification.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $100,000.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $0.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $200,000.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $300,000.00

and/or the termination date of the original contract has changed to: 06/30/2016

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Per NRS employees are entitled to a hearing should they be a whistle blower and are retaliated against.  Also, employees
are entitled to appeal personnel decisions regarding suspensions, demotions, involuntary transfer and terminations.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The Division employees are not qualified as hearing officers.

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 14024 8



9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval csweeney 04/04/2014 07:36:20 AM
Division Approval csweeney 04/04/2014 07:36:22 AM
Department Approval csweeney 04/04/2014 07:36:24 AM
Contract Manager Approval csweeney 04/04/2014 07:36:26 AM
Budget Analyst Approval cwatson 04/09/2014 11:52:28 AM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 04/09/2014 11:52:34 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 14024 8



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 12806 Amendment

Number:
2

Legal Entity
Name:

TRUGREEN LANDCARE OF NEVADA

Agency Name: STATE PUBLIC WORKS DIVISION Contractor Name: TRUGREEN LANDCARE OF NEVADA
Agency Code: 082 Address: LLC
Appropriation Unit: 1349-12 4221 W OQUENDO RD
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip LAS VEGAS, NV 89118-3004

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null702/385-4590
Vendor No.: T29004589
NV Business ID: NV20001008059

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2012-2016
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % X Fees 100.00 % Building Rent Income Fees
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 01/01/2012

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

06/30/2014

Contract term: 4 years

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: landscaping services

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the second amendment to the original contract, which continues ongoing landscaping services to the
Department of Motor Vehicles, 8250 Flamingo; Department of Motor Vehicles, 4110 Donovan; Department of Health
and Human Services, 620 & 628 Belrose; and the Sahara Complex, which consists of the Department of Motor
Vehicles, 2701 E. Sahara; Bradley Building, 2501 E. Sahara; and Public Works Division-Buildings and Grounds
Section, 2621 E. Sahara, Las Vegas, Nevada; and provides $10,000 for extra services at the above mentioned
buildings and various State buildings in the Las Vegas area as needed and requested and approved by the
Buildings and Grounds Section designee.  This amendment extends the termination date from June 30, 2014 to
December 31, 2015, and increases the contract amount from $187,096 to $374,192, to continue ongoing needed
services, which includes a corresponding increase to the extra services amount from $10,000 to $20,000.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $187,096.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $0.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $187,096.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $374,192.00

and/or the termination date of the original contract has changed to: 12/31/2015

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The necessity to keep the grounds outside of State buildings in a clean and safe condition.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Page 1 of 2Contract #: 12806 9



Lack of manpower and equipment.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
The Evaluation Committee for RFP#1073 awarded TruGreen LandCare the highest overall weighted score.
d. Last bid date: 07/01/2011 Anticipated re-bid date: 07/01/2013

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
2008-2014, Buildings & Grounds, service satisfactory

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Other Foreign Limited Liability Company

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval csweeney 03/27/2014 10:24:00 AM
Division Approval csweeney 03/27/2014 10:24:02 AM
Department Approval csweeney 03/27/2014 10:24:04 AM
Contract Manager Approval mkossman 03/27/2014 10:28:01 AM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 03/28/2014 14:28:08 PM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 04/09/2014 11:01:51 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 12806 9



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15430

Legal Entity
Name:

VARSITY CONTRACTORS INC

Agency Name: ADMIN - STATE PUBLIC WORKS
DIVISION

Contractor Name: VARSITY CONTRACTORS INC

Agency Code: 082 Address: 2151 CENTURY WAY
Appropriation Unit: 1349-12
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip BOISE, ID 83715

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null800/507-5084
Vendor No.: T29004070
NV Business ID: NV19771003754

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2018
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Building Rent Income Fees

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 06/01/2014

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 05/31/2018
Contract term: 4 years

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Janitorial Services

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract that provides ongoing janitorial services, including semi-annual hard floor & carpet
cleanings, and annual blind & window cleanings, for the Department of Wildlife and the Department of Agriculture in
Las Vegas.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $69,333.20
Other basis for payment: Dept of Wildlife-$9,630.02 per year; Dept of Agriculture-$6453.28 per year; Extra Services (as
needed only)-$5,000

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
State buildings need to be cleaned.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Lack of manpower and equipment.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15430 10



c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
This vendor presented the lowest bid.
d. Last bid date: 02/18/2014 Anticipated re-bid date: 02/18/2018

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
May 2010 to May 2014 - Buildings and Grounds; Quality of Service - Satisfactory

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval csweeney 04/17/2014 15:27:28 PM
Division Approval csweeney 04/17/2014 15:27:31 PM
Department Approval csweeney 04/17/2014 15:27:34 PM
Contract Manager Approval mkossman 04/17/2014 15:34:13 PM
Budget Analyst Approval cwatson 04/18/2014 07:13:29 AM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 04/18/2014 07:13:32 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15430 10



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15525

Legal Entity
Name:

AUSENCO PSI LLC

Agency Name: ADMIN - STATE PUBLIC WORKS
DIVISION

Contractor Name: AUSENCO PSI LLC

Agency Code: 082 Address: 1150 Financial Blvd., Suite 10
Appropriation Unit: 1550-27
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Reno, NV 89502

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775-828-9595
Vendor No.:
NV Business ID: NV19921050131

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % X Bonds 2.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 98.00 % Transfer from Treasurer - Reallocated Bond

Authority
Agency Reference #: 95758

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2014
Contract term: 60 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Arch/Eng Serv

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide professional architectural/engineering services to upgrade door control panels at
the Lovelock Correctional Center phase I; Project No. 13-M06; Contract No. 95758.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $302,858.00
Other basis for payment: monthly progress payments based on services provided

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
2013 CIP

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Professional  Services are provided by SPWD to support the State Capital Improvement Program.  Consultants are selected
based on their ability to provide design and engineering services to meet the goals established by the Legislature.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15525 11



b. Soliciation Waiver: Professional Service (As defined in NAC 333.150)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Demonstrated the required expertise for work on this pojrect
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
SPWD, currently and/or in the past for various amounts with satisfactory results.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval dgrimm 04/08/2014 11:25:23 AM
Division Approval dgrimm 04/08/2014 11:25:25 AM
Department Approval dgrimm 04/08/2014 16:16:54 PM
Contract Manager Approval dgrimm 04/08/2014 16:16:56 PM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 04/09/2014 12:25:57 PM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 04/11/2014 11:17:31 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15525 11



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15532

Legal Entity
Name:

Q&D CONSTRUCTION INC

Agency Name: ADMIN - STATE PUBLIC WORKS
DIVISION

Contractor Name: Q&D CONSTRUCTION INC

Agency Code: 082 Address: 1050 S 21ST ST
Appropriation Unit: 1567-16
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip SPARKS, NV 89431-5596

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775/786-2677
Vendor No.: T81009604
NV Business ID: NV19671000639

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2018
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

X General Funds 28.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % X Bonds 38.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 34.00 % Transfer from Treasurer - Reallocated Bond

Authority
Agency Reference #: 98981

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2018
Contract term: 4 years and 61 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: CMAR-PRE-CON AGR

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide owner Construction Manager at Risk pre-construction services for advanced
planning - Northern Nevada Veterans Home, Project No. 13-P07; Contract No. 98981.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $87,103.00
Other basis for payment: monthly progress payments based on services provided

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
2013 CIP

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Professional  Services are provided by SPWD to support the State Capital Improvement Program.  Consultants are selected
based on their ability to provide design and engineering services to meet the goals established by the Legislature.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15532 12



b. Soliciation Waiver: Professional Service (As defined in NAC 333.150)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Demonstrated the required expertise for work on this project.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:

SPWD, currently and/or in the past for various amounts with satisfactory results.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval dgrimm 04/09/2014 13:53:00 PM
Division Approval dgrimm 04/09/2014 13:53:02 PM
Department Approval dgrimm 04/09/2014 13:53:05 PM
Contract Manager Approval dgrimm 04/09/2014 13:53:08 PM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 04/11/2014 15:44:34 PM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 04/14/2014 07:40:51 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15532 12



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15022 Amendment

Number:
1

Legal Entity
Name:

VAN WOERT BIGOTTI ARCHITECTS

Agency Name: ADMIN - STATE PUBLIC WORKS
DIVISION

Contractor Name: VAN WOERT BIGOTTI ARCHITECTS

Agency Code: 082 Address: 1400 S VIRGINIA ST STE C
Appropriation Unit: 1567-16
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip RENO, NV 89502-2836

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775/328-1010
Vendor No.: T60080600
NV Business ID: NV19781005709

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

X General Funds 28.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % X Bonds 38.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 34.00 % Transfer from Treasurer - Reallocated Bond

Authority
Agency Reference #: 86741

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 11/12/2013

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

06/30/2017

Contract term: 3 years and 230 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Arch/Eng Serv

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the first amendment to the original contract, which provides advanced planning for the Northern Nevada
Veterans Home; Project No. 13-P07; Contract No. 86741. This amendment increases the maximum amount from
$1,840,000 to $1,960,000 to provide specialty consulting for programming and staffing needs for the planned home
in accordance with Federal Community Living Center design requirements for federally approved veterans homes.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $1,840,000.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $0.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $120,000.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $1,960,000.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
2013 CIP

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Professional  Services are provided by SPWD to support the State Capital Improvement Program.  Consultants are selected
based on their ability to provide design and engineering services to meet the goals established by the Legislature.

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15022 13



9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Professional Service (As defined in NAC 333.150)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
demonstrated the required expertise for work on this project
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
SPWD, currently and/or in the past for various amounts with satisfactory results.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval dgrimm 04/08/2014 11:51:58 AM
Division Approval dgrimm 04/08/2014 11:52:01 AM
Department Approval dgrimm 04/08/2014 11:52:04 AM
Contract Manager Approval dgrimm 04/08/2014 16:18:37 PM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 04/11/2014 15:41:47 PM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 04/14/2014 07:39:24 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15022 13



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15530

Legal Entity
Name:

CORE CONSTRUCTION SERVICES OF

Agency Name: ADMIN - STATE PUBLIC WORKS
DIVISION

Contractor Name: CORE CONSTRUCTION SERVICES OF

Agency Code: 082 Address: NEVADA INC DBA CORE
CONSTRCTN

Appropriation Unit: 1593-19 7150 CASCADE VALLEY CT
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip LAS VEGAS, NV 89128-0455

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null702/794-0550
Vendor No.: T81092744
NV Business ID: NV19861002524

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2018
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

X Highway Funds 87.50 % X Other funding 12.50 % transfer from DMV
Agency Reference #: 98979

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2018
Contract term: 4 years and 61 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: CMAR Pre-Con Agr

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide Construction Manager at Risk pre-construction services for planning for the
Sahara Department of Motor Vehicles replacement Building and planning for the Las Vegas Metro building
upgrades; Projects 13-P01 and 13-P02; Contract No. 98979.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $90,440.00
Other basis for payment: monthly progress payments based on services provided

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
2013 CIP

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Professional  Services are provided by SPWD to support the State Capital Improvement Program.  Consultants are selected
based on their ability to provide design and engineering services to meet the goals established by the Legislature.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15530 14



Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Professional Service (As defined in NAC 333.150)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Demonstrated the required expertise for work on this project.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
SPWD, currently and/or in the past for various amounts with satisfactory results.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval dgrimm 04/08/2014 16:17:35 PM
Division Approval dgrimm 04/08/2014 16:17:39 PM
Department Approval dgrimm 04/08/2014 16:17:42 PM
Contract Manager Approval dgrimm 04/08/2014 16:17:44 PM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 04/11/2014 15:26:13 PM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 04/14/2014 07:37:12 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15530 14



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15527

Legal Entity
Name:

PURCELL KROB ELECTRICAL PROF

Agency Name: ADMIN - STATE PUBLIC WORKS
DIVISION

Contractor Name: PURCELL KROB ELECTRICAL PROF

Agency Code: 082 Address: PK ELECTRICAL INC
Appropriation Unit: All Appropriations 681 SIERRA ROSE DR STE B
Is budget authority
available?:

No City/State/Zip RENO, NV 89511

If "No" please explain:
This is an agency funded CIP where the project will be
managed by the SPWD, but all funding and contractor
payment responsibilities will remain with the initiating
agency.  For this contract the funding and expenditure
authority will be the Account 3708,  Expenditure Category
26, VLA Windows Pro 7 Upgrade; Account 3710, Category
26, Oracle application Server License; Account 3763,
Category 26, Hardware Printer Network Laser Jet Mono
Lite Duty.

Contact/Phone: null775/826-9010

Vendor No.: T81016802
NV Business ID: NV19961128650

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2018
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Agency-funded CIP

Agency Reference #: 96993

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2018
Contract term: 4 years and 61 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Arch/Eng Serv

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide professional architectural/engineering services for the Department of Corrections
site assessments to assess the feasibility of the departments proposed kiosk installation project; Project No. 14-
A024; Contract No. 96993.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $85,000.00
Other basis for payment: monthly progress payments based on services provided

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Agency CIP

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15527 15



Professional  Services are provided by SPWD to support the State Capital Improvement Program.  Consultants are selected
based on their ability to provide design and engineering services to meet the goals established by the Legislature.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Professional Service (As defined in NAC 333.150)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Demonstrated the required expertise for work on this project
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
SPWD, currently and/or in the past for various amounts with satisfactory results.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval dgrimm 04/09/2014 13:11:21 PM
Division Approval dgrimm 04/09/2014 13:22:13 PM
Department Approval dgrimm 04/09/2014 13:22:16 PM
Contract Manager Approval dgrimm 04/09/2014 13:53:26 PM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 04/11/2014 15:50:34 PM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 04/14/2014 07:42:29 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15527 15



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15508

Legal Entity
Name:

TNS US, LLC

Agency Name: DTCA - COMMISSION ON TOURISM Contractor Name: TNS US, LLC
Agency Code: 101 Address: 302 WEST THIRD ST STE 700
Appropriation Unit: 1522-31
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip CINCINNATI, OH 85202

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: JOHN PACKER 513-345-2066
Vendor No.: T32002809
NV Business ID: NV20141183964

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2016
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % LODGING TAX

Agency Reference #: RFP # 2066

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2014

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2016
Contract term: 2 years

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Domstic Visitor Stdy

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract that continues an ongoing domestic visitor profile study allowing the Nevada Commission on
Tourism (NCOT) to obtain travel related information from recent Nevada visitors from all 50 US states as identified in
a syndicated (multiple partner states) tracking study.  NCOT will obtain additional information on cities and
attractions visited, activities experienced, along with corresponding expenditures by category (i.e. transportation
within the state, gaming, lodging, food and beverage) and competitive analysis of Nevada data against other states'
data sets.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $124,500.00
Other basis for payment: Upon receipt of Vendor's invoice when each milestone is completed and upon NCOT's approval,
not to exceed $61,500 for FY 2015 of the contract (includes $36,500 for Data Collection, $5,000 for Data Processing, $5,000
for Reporting, and $15,000 for Project Management); not to exceed $63,000 for FY 2016 of the contract (includes $38,000 for
Data Collection, $5,000 for Data Processing, $5,000 for Reporting and $15,000 for Project Management).

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
NRS 231.260 (Section 8) requires NCOT to compile (or obtain by contract), keep current, and disseminate statistics on travel
and tourism in Nevada.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
This study requires specialized online data collection programming/model and objective expertise not available to the agency
without this contract.

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15508 16



9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Pursuant to RFP #2066, and in accordance with NRS 333, the selected vendor was the highest scoring proposer as
determined by an independently appointed evaluation committee.
d. Last bid date: 01/29/2014 Anticipated re-bid date: 01/01/2016

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
The Nevada Commission on Tourism has contracted with this vendor for over 10 years, and the quality of service has been
very satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
LLC

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval kwilliam 04/01/2014 14:27:03 PM
Division Approval kwilliam 04/01/2014 14:27:05 PM
Department Approval kwilliam 04/01/2014 14:27:06 PM
Contract Manager Approval kwilliam 04/01/2014 14:27:08 PM
Budget Analyst Approval knielsen 04/10/2014 10:37:13 AM
BOE Agenda Approval sbrown 04/10/2014 11:44:46 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15508 16



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 13753 Amendment

Number:
3

Legal Entity
Name:

KPS 3 INC

Agency Name: GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Contractor Name: KPS 3 INC

Agency Code: 102 Address: 50 W LIBERTY ST STE 640
Appropriation Unit: 1526-11
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip RENO, NV 89501-1946

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775/686-7439
Vendor No.: PUR0004720
NV Business ID: NV19941094961

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2013-2016
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

X General Funds 93.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 7.00 % Interagency Transfer from DETR

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 09/11/2012

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

06/30/2016

Contract term: 3 years and 293 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Marketing

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the third amendment to the original contract, which provides full-service marketing of Nevada and the
Governor's Office of Economic Development to local, national, and international decision-makers. Additionally, the
agency handles strategy, branding, advertising, web design/development, collateral, and other marketing duties as
assigned.  The amendment increases the contract value by $70,000 from $293,000 to $363,000 to allow for additional
funding GOED received to market the new Emerging Small Business Program and meet other marketing needs
through the end of FY14.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $99,000.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $194,000.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $70,000.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $363,000.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 231

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
GOED does not have the expertise to provide this type of service

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 13753 17



Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Contracts were solicited through agency RFP#01-13.  Upon thorough review and evaluation, contractor clearly indicated an
understanding of the deliverables.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date: 04/01/2014

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval swoodbur 04/01/2014 14:34:49 PM
Division Approval swoodbur 04/01/2014 14:34:52 PM
Department Approval swoodbur 04/01/2014 14:34:56 PM
Contract Manager Approval ckiser 04/01/2014 15:19:13 PM
Budget Analyst Approval ekin4 04/07/2014 15:17:05 PM
BOE Agenda Approval jborrowm 04/07/2014 15:19:45 PM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 13753 17



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15518

Legal Entity
Name:

AT&T

Agency Name: ADMIN - ENTERPRISE IT SERVICES Contractor Name: AT&T
Agency Code: 180 Address: 2700 Watt Ave. Room 3349
Appropriation Unit: 1386-26
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Sacramento, CA 95821

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Michael Pfaff 916 806-4452
Vendor No.: PUR0005291
NV Business ID: NV19711002665

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2018
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Revenue

Agency Reference #: 5587

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 05/18/2018
Contract term: 4 years and 18 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Managed Internet Svs

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide internet service access to the division of Enterprise Information Technology
Services (ETIS) for Northern Nevada EITS customers utilizing AT&T bandwidth services.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $200,000.00
Payment for services will be made at the rate of $4,005.00 per month

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
User Agencies must have access to the Internet to provide their clients with Federal, State and local government services
throughout the Northern areas of Nevada and this contract will provide broadband services to those agencies.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
State employees are not equipped to provide Internet services.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15518 18



c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Pursuant to RFP # 3060, and in accordance with NRS 333, the selected vendor was the highest scoring proposer as
determined by an independently appointed evaluation committee.
d. Last bid date: 07/08/2013 Anticipated re-bid date: 07/08/2017

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval csweeney 04/08/2014 11:27:08 AM
Division Approval csweeney 04/08/2014 11:27:12 AM
Department Approval csweeney 04/08/2014 11:27:16 AM
Contract Manager Approval csweeney 04/08/2014 11:27:22 AM
Budget Analyst Approval ekin4 04/14/2014 15:33:10 PM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 04/16/2014 08:19:40 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15518 18



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 13280 Amendment

Number:
3

Legal Entity
Name:

Westcare Management, Inc.

Agency Name: OFFICE OF VETERAN'S SERVICES Contractor Name: Westcare Management, Inc.
Agency Code: 240 Address: 3155 River Road South
Appropriation Unit: 2561-04 Suite 100
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Salem, OR 97302

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Jason McArthur 502-362-5235
Vendor No.: T27007546
NV Business ID: NV20101384894

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2012-2016
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 50.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 50.00 % 50% Private funds

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 05/08/2012

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

05/31/2014

Contract term: 4 years and 24 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Medicare Reporting

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the third amendment to the original contract, which provides ongoing Medicare and Medicaid accounting,
consulting, and billing assistance to the Nevada State Veterans Home.  This amendment extends the termination
date from May 31, 2014 to May 31, 2016 and increases the maximum amount from $255,000 to $495,000 due to the
continued need for these services.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $75,000.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $180,000.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $240,000.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $495,000.00

and/or the termination date of the original contract has changed to: 05/31/2016

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
NRS449.470

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
No State employees are able to do this work because of Medicare and Medicaid preparation experience.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 13280 19



Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Professional Service (As defined in NAC 333.150)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Familiar with NSVH; experience in Medicare/Medicaid cost reporting.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Contractor has provided these services to Nevada State Veterans Home for the past 8 years.  All services have been
satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval kmill15 04/15/2014 09:42:22 AM
Division Approval kmill15 04/15/2014 09:42:29 AM
Department Approval kmill15 04/16/2014 11:00:59 AM
Contract Manager Approval mnobles 04/16/2014 11:12:43 AM
Budget Analyst Approval ekin4 04/16/2014 12:12:32 PM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 04/16/2014 13:24:52 PM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 13280 19



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15462

Legal Entity
Name:

Center for Innovative Technology

Agency Name: NDE - DEPARTMENT OF
EDUCATION

Contractor Name: Center for Innovative Technology

Agency Code: 300 Address: 2214 Rock Hill Rd. Ste 600
Appropriation Unit: 2709-56
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Herndon, VA 20170-4228

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null703-689-3044
Vendor No.: T32002795
NV Business ID: NV20141203500

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2015
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 100.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %
Agency Reference #: RFP #2064

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 05/14/2014

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2015
Contract term: 1 year and 47 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Nevada 2012 SLDS

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide and procure, develop/customize and implement a Nevada Statewide Longitudinal
Data System with the capacity to create unique state personal identifier for all students, teachers and other people
who enter K-12, higher education institutions and/or the work force in Nevada.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $2,150,000.00
Other basis for payment: As specified per Attachment AA - Negotiated Summary Schedule of Project Costs.  Invoicing will be
done on a monthly basis. (Note: Contract amount is based on a cost of $1,969,912 plus incentive fees of $180,088 for an
amount not to exceed $2,150,000.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
NDE received a federal grant for implementing Student Longitudinal Data System (SLDS) system linking P-20W in 2012.
This federal grant requires the work to be done for implementing the SLDS Linking project.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The required human resources, programmers/developers required for this project may not be available in the project timeline.
It would be also difficult for the State agencies to meet the estimated 12-15 months timeline to bring-to-production before the
end of the grant period.  Using a Vendor COTS solution that has been successfully implemented in Virginia reduces the
project risk and time to complete the project.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15462 20



Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Pursuant to RFP #2064, and in accordance with NRS 333, the selected vendor was the highest scoring proposer as
determined by an independently appointed evaluation committee.
d. Last bid date: 12/23/2013 Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? Yes

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Other Foreign Non-Profit Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval lpaulino 03/25/2014 14:44:36 PM
Division Approval rpawley 03/27/2014 15:19:42 PM
Department Approval rpawley 03/27/2014 15:19:45 PM
Contract Manager Approval lpaulino 03/27/2014 15:25:54 PM
DoIT Approval bbohm 04/15/2014 09:09:53 AM
Budget Analyst Approval cwatson 04/21/2014 07:54:08 AM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 04/21/2014 07:54:14 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15462 20



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15514

Legal Entity
Name:

BRUSTEIN & MANASEVIT PLLC

Agency Name: STATE PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL
AUTHORITY

Contractor Name: BRUSTEIN & MANASEVIT PLLC

Agency Code: 315 Address: 3105 SOUTH ST NW
Appropriation Unit: 2711-16
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip WASHINGTON, DC 20007-4419

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Leigh Manasevit 202/965-3652
Vendor No.: T27009273
NV Business ID: NV20141168490

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2016
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 100.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %
Agency Reference #: BRUMAN 2014-16

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2016
Contract term: 2 years and 61 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Fed Program legal sv

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide legal advice, analysis, mock audits and training on federal education grants
compliance.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $130,600.00
Payment for services will be made at the rate of $300.00 per hour
Other basis for payment: plus travel and expenses

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
We recently became the LEA for 18 schools sponsored by SPCSA  (NRS 386.513).

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:

Page 1 of 3Contract #: 15514 21



Tied to these dollars are several thousand of pages of rules and requirements that States, school districts, charter schools,
postsecondary institutions, and local workforce providers must follow. In an effort to mitigate any potential audit findings from
Nevada Department of Education, US Dept of Education, and Department of Justice, we have decided to use the education
lawyers that are established in this realm.  Brustein & Manasevit, PLLC is recognized for its federal education regulatory and
legislative practice.  Brustein & Manasevit, PLLC has provided legal advice regarding federal education programs such as
the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) (also known as the No Child Left Behind Act), the Individuals with
Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), the Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education Act (CTE) and Workforce Investment
Act (WIA), as well as the Higher Education Act. In addition, the firm regularly counsels clients on federal grants management
requirements, such as the Education Department General Administrative Regulations (EDGAR) the Office of Management
and Budget (OMB) Circulars, and the General Education Provisions Act (GEPA). The firm also assists clients in drafting,
proposing and reviewing legislation affecting education.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Professional Service (As defined in NAC 333.150)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
The U.S. Department of Education and U.S. Department of Labor currently allocate significant resources for education and
workforce development. Tied to these dollars are several thousand of pages of rules and requirements that States, school
districts, charter schools, postsecondary institutions, and local workforce providers must follow. The attorneys at Brustein &
Manasevit, PLLC:

* Provide opinions and legal advice to help States, school districts and other entities comply with federal rules and
requirements.
 * Represent entities in audit resolution.
 * Advise federal grant recipients on grants management systems.
 * Offer legislative services.

Brustein & Manasevit, PLLC has served as legal counsel to or provided advice and opinions to the following types of
educational entities:

* State Departments of Education
 * Boards of Education
 * State Superintendents of Public Instruction
 * School Districts (Local Educational Agencies)
 * Charter Schools
 * Public and Private Universities and Colleges
 * Community and Technical Colleges
 * Private Educational Service Providers (Educational Management Organizations; Third Party Providers; and Supplemental
Educational Service Providers)
 * State Workforce Education Agencies
 * Educational Advocacy Organizations
 * Accrediting Agencies
 * Private Auditing Firms
 * Education Associations
 * Non-profit agencies
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
Page 2 of 3Contract #: 15514 21



No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:
Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
LLC

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval akellog2 04/02/2014 15:58:27 PM
Division Approval akellog2 04/02/2014 15:58:30 PM
Department Approval akellog2 04/02/2014 15:58:36 PM
Contract Manager Approval akellog2 04/02/2014 15:58:38 PM
Budget Analyst Approval sbrown 04/13/2014 08:53:22 AM
BOE Agenda Approval sbrown 04/13/2014 08:53:25 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 3 of 3Contract #: 15514 21



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15424

Legal Entity
Name:

CARSON CITY LIBRARY

Agency Name: ADMIN - NEVADA STATE LIBRARY
AND ARCHIVES

Contractor Name: CARSON CITY LIBRARY

Agency Code: 332 Address: 900 N ROOP ST
Appropriation Unit: 2895-00
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip CARSON CITY, NV 89701

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775-887-2244
Vendor No.: T80993395
NV Business ID: Not applicable

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2019
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % X Fees 100.00 % Member fees
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2014

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2019
Contract term: 5 years

4. Type of contract: Cooperative Agreement
Contract description: Network of Libraries

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new cooperative revenue agreement which continues to maintain a regional network of libraries (per NRS
379.147-379.150) known as CLAN (Cooperative Libraries Automated Network) through joint agreement for the
improvement of library services and the sharing of resources.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $341,175.00
Payment for services will be made at the rate of $68,235.00 per Fiscal year
Other basis for payment: Annually, the CLAN Board will approve a budget, including member accessed fees and funds to be
received from the members of CLAN, which member fee will be paid annually by the Contractor,  Carson City Library, to
CLAN.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Per NRS 379.147-379.150 permits the parties to maintain a regional network of libraries known as CLAN through joint
agreement for the improvement of library services.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
CLAN, created by an agreement under NRS 277.080-279 and NRS 379.150, is a consortium of libraries and related
agencies that share vital library and technological resources.  In order to meet this goal, member libraries pool their
resources and make it economically feasible to do more together than one member on their own.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15424 22



Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Not applicable.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
CLAN has been doing contracts through Nevada State Library and Archives using cooperative agreements since 1981.  Per
NRS 379.147-379.150 to permit the parties hereto to maintain a regional network of libraries known as CLAN through joint
agreement for the improvement of library services, which allows for the sharing of resources by all.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval csweeney 03/14/2014 07:28:50 AM
Division Approval csweeney 03/14/2014 07:28:54 AM
Department Approval csweeney 03/14/2014 07:28:56 AM
Contract Manager Approval csweeney 03/14/2014 07:28:58 AM
Budget Analyst Approval ekin4 04/03/2014 10:45:21 AM
BOE Agenda Approval jborrowm 04/07/2014 14:48:28 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15424 22



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15473

Legal Entity
Name:

HUMBOLDT, COUNTY OF

Agency Name: ADMIN - NEVADA STATE LIBRARY
AND ARCHIVES

Contractor Name: HUMBOLDT, COUNTY OF

Agency Code: 332 Address: HUMBOLDT COUNTY LIBRARY
Appropriation Unit: 2895-00 85 E 5TH ST
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip WINNEMUCCA, NV 89445

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775-623-6388
Vendor No.: T40139500M
NV Business ID: Not applicable

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2019
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % X Fees 100.00 % Member fees
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2014

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2019
Contract term: 5 years

4. Type of contract: Cooperative Agreement
Contract description: Network of Libraries

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new cooperative revenue agreement that continues to maintain a regional network of libraries (per NRS
379.147-379.150) known as CLAN (Cooperative Libraries Automated Network) through joint agreement for the
improvement of library services and the sharing of resources.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $212,805.00
Payment for services will be made at the rate of $42,561.00 per Fiscal year
Other basis for payment: Annually, the CLAN Board will approve a budget, including member accessed fees and funds to be
received from the members of CLAN, which member fee will be paid annually by the Contractor, Humboldt County Library, to
CLAN.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
NRS 379.147-379.150 permits the parties to maintain a regional network of libraries known as CLAN through joint agreement
for the improvement of library services.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
CLAN, created by an agreement under NRS 277.080-279 and NRS 379.150, is a consortium of libraries and related
agencies that share vital library and technological resources.  In order to meet this goal, member libraries pool their
resources and make it economically feasible to do more together than one member on their own.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15473 23



Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Not applicable.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
CLAN has been doing contracts through Nevada State Library and Archives using cooperative agreements since 1981.  NRS
379.147-379.150 permits the parties hereto to maintain a regional network of libraries known as CLAN through joint
agreement for the improvement of library services, which allows for the sharing of resources by all.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval csweeney 03/27/2014 16:08:03 PM
Division Approval csweeney 03/27/2014 16:08:05 PM
Department Approval csweeney 03/27/2014 16:08:07 PM
Contract Manager Approval csweeney 03/27/2014 16:08:09 PM
Budget Analyst Approval ekin4 04/03/2014 10:41:10 AM
BOE Agenda Approval jborrowm 04/07/2014 14:49:04 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15473 23



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15425

Legal Entity
Name:

Nevada Supreme Court Library

Agency Name: ADMIN - NEVADA STATE LIBRARY
AND ARCHIVES

Contractor Name: Nevada Supreme Court Library

Agency Code: 332 Address: 201 S. Carson Street
Appropriation Unit: 2895-00
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Carson City, NV 89701-1662

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775-684-1640
Vendor No.:
NV Business ID: Not applicable

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2019
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % X Fees 100.00 % Member fees
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2014

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2019
Contract term: 5 years

4. Type of contract: Cooperative Agreement
Contract description: Network of Libraries

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new cooperative revenue agreement which continues to maintain a regional network of libraries (per NRS
379.147-379.150) known as CLAN (Cooperative Libraries Automated Network) through joint agreement for the
improvement of library services and the sharing of resources.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $73,575.00
Payment for services will be made at the rate of $14,715.00 per Fiscal year
Other basis for payment: Annually, the CLAN Board will approve a budget, including member accessed fees and funds to be
received from the members of CLAN, which member fee will be paid annually by the Contractor, Nevada Supreme Court
Library, to CLAN.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Per NRS 379.147-379.150 permits the parties to maintain a regional network of libraries known as CLAN through joint
agreement for the improvement of library services.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
CLAN, created by an agreement under NRS 277.080-279 and NRS 379.150, is a consortium of libraries and related
agencies that share vital library and technological resources.  In order to meet this goal, member libraries pool their
resources and make it economically feasible to do more together than one member on their own.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15425 24



Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Not applicable
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
CLAN has been doing contracts through Nevada State Library and Archives using cooperative agreements since 1981.  Per
NRS 379.147-379.150 to permit the parties hereto to maintain a regional network of libraries known as CLAN through joint
agreement for the improvement of library services, which allows for the sharing of resources by all.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval csweeney 03/14/2014 07:30:45 AM
Division Approval csweeney 03/14/2014 07:30:47 AM
Department Approval csweeney 03/14/2014 07:30:49 AM
Contract Manager Approval csweeney 03/14/2014 07:30:50 AM
Budget Analyst Approval ekin4 04/03/2014 10:49:09 AM
BOE Agenda Approval jborrowm 04/07/2014 14:47:50 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15425 24



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15382

Legal Entity
Name:

Carson City School District

Agency Name: DHHS - HEALTH CARE FINANCING
& POLICY

Contractor Name: Carson City School District

Agency Code: 403 Address: PO Box 603
Appropriation Unit: 3157-10
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Carson City, NV 89702

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null7752832304
Vendor No.:
NV Business ID: Governmental Entity

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2018
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % IGT from City for State Share

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2014

Anticipated BOE meeting date 06/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2018
Contract term: 4 years

4. Type of contract: Revenue Contract
Contract description: School Based Service

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new revenue contract that is ongoing and provides for the receipt of non-federal share for school based
Medicaid services, medical screening, and diagnostic services for children who are Nevada Medicaid/Checkup
eligible. This contract allows the Carson City School District to make payment of the state share of school based
services to the division by intergovernmental transfers.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $919,252.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
School Based Child Health Services was established to allow for Medicaid reimbursement for the medical screening and
diagnostic services provided by the School District to Nevada Medicaid/Check Up eligible children and medical treatment
services provided for Medicaid/Check Up eligible children who have an Individualized Education Program (IEP) and are
enrolled in the School Districts Special Education Program.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
State agencies do not have the expertise or availability to provide these services.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15382 25



b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Carson City has been contracted with the State for many years and service has been satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval cmoriart 02/27/2014 15:11:19 PM
Division Approval trooker 02/28/2014 09:44:44 AM
Department Approval ecreceli 04/04/2014 17:08:31 PM
Contract Manager Approval cmoriart 04/08/2014 13:05:02 PM
Budget Analyst Approval nhovden 04/14/2014 09:57:46 AM
BOE Agenda Approval nhovden 04/14/2014 09:57:50 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15382 25



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15410

Legal Entity
Name:

Division of Child and Family Services
(DCFS)

Agency Name: DHHS - HEALTH CARE FINANCING
& POLICY

Contractor Name: Division of Child and Family Services
(DCFS)

Agency Code: 403 Address: 4126 Technology Way, 3rd Floor
Appropriation Unit: 3158-11
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Carson City, NV 89706

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null7756844400
Vendor No.:
NV Business ID: Government Entity

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2018
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 100.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2014

Anticipated BOE meeting date 06/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2018
Contract term: 4 years

4. Type of contract: Interlocal Agreement
Contract description: Title XIX Admin

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new ongoing interlocal agreement to provide the Division of Child and Family Services the federal share of
costs associated with the Medicaid administrative activities such as outreach, utilization review and referral
services.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $5,221,716.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
DCFS performs Medicaid administrative activities including outreach, utilization review and referrals.  This contract allows
DHCFP as the "single State agency" for Medicaid, to receive and pass on federal funds to DCFS for these services.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
State employees are doing this work. State employees in DCFS perform duties because these are Child Welfare Medicaid
recipients.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15410 26



c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
DCFS has been contracted with DHCFP for many years and service has been satisfactory

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval cmoriart 03/07/2014 09:48:27 AM
Division Approval trooker 03/07/2014 17:22:18 PM
Department Approval ecreceli 04/04/2014 16:57:53 PM
Contract Manager Approval cmoriart 04/08/2014 13:03:14 PM
Budget Analyst Approval nhovden 04/14/2014 09:52:29 AM
BOE Agenda Approval nhovden 04/14/2014 09:52:33 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15410 26



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15482

Legal Entity
Name:

CHILDRENS CABINET INC, THE

Agency Name: DHHS - PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL
HEALTH

Contractor Name: CHILDRENS CABINET INC, THE

Agency Code: 406 Address: 1090 S ROCK BLVD
Appropriation Unit: 3222-18
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip RENO, NV 89502-7116

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775/856-0111
Vendor No.: T80943883
NV Business ID: NV19851020784

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 100.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %
Agency Reference #: C 14311

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 05/13/2014

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 09/30/2016
Contract term: 2 years and 141 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Home Visiting

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to expand evidence-base home visiting in the state's at risk rural communities. This contract
allows the division to expand the home visiting and Home Instruction for Parents of Preschool Youngsters program
into rural at risk communities and target low income families with pregnant women and children up to five years old.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $263,469.00
Payment for services will be made at the rate of $203.09 per family per month
Other basis for payment: Up to 50 families

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Usage of federal Early Head Start grant funds requires that these services be contracted to a domestic non-profit
organization.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
State employees do not have the resources necessary to carry out this work.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15482 27



b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
This vendor was not chosen in preference to others. All vendors solicited received a contract.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Department of Health and Human Services (BA 406,408 and 305) - 1999 through present - Satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Non-profit Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. Not Applicable

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval alaw1 03/31/2014 16:43:44 PM
Division Approval alaw1 03/31/2014 16:43:48 PM
Department Approval ecreceli 04/04/2014 16:52:47 PM
Contract Manager Approval alaw1 04/16/2014 09:35:28 AM
Budget Analyst Approval bberry 04/18/2014 09:43:47 AM
BOE Agenda Approval nhovden 04/18/2014 13:16:29 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15482 27



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15483

Legal Entity
Name:

HEAD START OF NORTHEASTERN

Agency Name: DHHS - PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL
HEALTH

Contractor Name: HEAD START OF NORTHEASTERN

Agency Code: 406 Address: NEVADA
Appropriation Unit: 3222-18 1280 GOLF COURSE
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip ELKO, NV 89801-3465

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775/738-5953
Vendor No.: T11897100
NV Business ID: NV19711002432

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 100.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %
Agency Reference #: C 14310

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 05/13/2014

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 09/30/2016
Contract term: 2 years and 141 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Home Visiting

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to expand evidence-base home visiting in the state's at risk rural communities. This contract
allows the division to expand the home visiting and Early Head Start programs into rural at risk communities and
target low income families with pregnant women and children up to five years old.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $201,427.00
Payment for services will be made at the rate of $532.00 per family per month
Other basis for payment: Up to 12 families

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Usage of federal Early Head Start grant funds requires that these services be contracted to a domestic non-profit
organization.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
State employees do not have the resources necessary to carry out this work.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15483 28



Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
This vendor was not chosen in preference to others. All vendors solicited received a contract.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Department of Health and Human Services (BA 406,408 and 305) - 1999 through present - Satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Non-profit Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. Not Applicable

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval alaw1 03/31/2014 16:43:16 PM
Division Approval alaw1 03/31/2014 16:43:21 PM
Department Approval ecreceli 04/04/2014 16:42:05 PM
Contract Manager Approval alaw1 04/16/2014 09:34:46 AM
Budget Analyst Approval bberry 04/16/2014 11:12:38 AM
BOE Agenda Approval nhovden 04/18/2014 13:20:26 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15483 28



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 13346 Amendment

Number:
3

Legal Entity
Name:

PUBLIC CONSULTING GROUP INC

Agency Name: WELFARE AND SUPPORT
SERVICES

Contractor Name: PUBLIC CONSULTING GROUP INC

Agency Code: 407 Address: DEPT LA 23564
Appropriation Unit: 3228-50
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip PASADENA, CA 91185-3564

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Mitch Dobbins 916/565-8090
Vendor No.: T32000898C
NV Business ID: NV20021466314

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2013-2015
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

X General Funds 4.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 96.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2012

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

06/30/2014

Contract term: 2 years and 183 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: IV&V

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the third amendment to the original contract, which provides independent verification and validation
services related to the design, development and implementation of the Health Care Reform Eligibility Engine. These
services include planning and administration, verification, validation, and quality assurance activities related to the
Eligibility Engine system requirements, computing platform, technical requirements, and security standards and
requirements. This amendment increases the maximum amount from $1,868,300.00 to $2,469,168.76, revises
Attachment AA - Deliverable Payment Schedule, revises the consideration language, and extends the termination
date from June 30, 2014 to December 31, 2014 due to additional time needed to complete the requirements.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $1,868,300.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $0.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $600,868.76
4. New maximum contract amount: $2,469,168.76

and/or the termination date of the original contract has changed to: 12/31/2014

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Independent Verification and Validation Services are required by Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) and
Center for Consumer Information & Insurance Oversight (CCIIO) to receive federal funding associated with the Affordable
Care Act.

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 13346 29



8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
State employees do not have the resources or expertise to provide this service.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Contractor was chosen based on a weighted average of evaluation criteria. Contractor had the highest overall score as
determined by an evaluation committee of three (3).
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Currently under contract with DHCFP and providing satisfactory service.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval tdufresn 03/20/2014 11:26:24 AM
Division Approval msmit5 03/27/2014 07:26:58 AM
Department Approval ecreceli 03/27/2014 16:28:17 PM
Contract Manager Approval ewatson 03/28/2014 12:53:02 PM
Budget Analyst Approval sjohnso9 04/07/2014 08:50:42 AM
BOE Agenda Approval nhovden 04/07/2014 13:46:08 PM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 13346 29



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15353

Legal Entity
Name:

VIATRON SYSTEMS INC

Agency Name: DHHS - WELFARE AND SUPPORT
SERVICES

Contractor Name: VIATRON SYSTEMS INC

Agency Code: 407 Address: 18233 S HOOVER ST
Appropriation Unit: 3228-50
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip GARDENA, CA 90248-4218

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null310/892-9855
Vendor No.: T27027292
NV Business ID: NV20121661882

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2015
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

X General Funds 4.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 96.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %
Agency Reference #: 3065

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2015
Contract term: 1 year and 90 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Document Imaging

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide services for electronic scanning, digitizing and indexing all existing Medicaid
paper case file (jacket) contents. Existing Medicaid case jackets must be imaged in a timely manner in order to
prepare for the wave of new applicants and ongoing re-determination processing that will occur by using new
Affordable Care Act rules and functionality.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $327,600.00
Other basis for payment: Upon invoice submitted by vendor, subject to agency approval. .039 per image scanned.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
This process must be completed by an outside vendor as the Division of Welfare Supportive Services capacity for imaging
new case data will be at maximum due to the increased Medicaid caseload expected with the implementation of the
Affordable Care Act (ACA).

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
State employees do not have the time or resources.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15353 30



a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Pursuant to RFP #3065, and in accordance with NRS 333, the selected vendor was the highest scoring proposer as
determined by an independently appointed evaluation committee.
d. Last bid date: 09/20/2013 Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? Yes

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval tdufresn 02/26/2014 14:44:46 PM
Division Approval msmit5 03/10/2014 07:39:42 AM
Department Approval ecreceli 03/10/2014 17:05:47 PM
Contract Manager Approval ewatson 03/12/2014 08:25:21 AM
DoIT Approval bbohm 03/17/2014 06:23:30 AM
Budget Analyst Approval sjohnso9 04/07/2014 08:44:18 AM
BOE Agenda Approval nhovden 04/07/2014 13:40:54 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15353 30



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15390

Legal Entity
Name:

ELKO, COUNTY OF

Agency Name: DHHS - WELFARE AND SUPPORT
SERVICES

Contractor Name: ELKO, COUNTY OF

Agency Code: 407 Address: ELKO COUNTY CLERK
Appropriation Unit: 3238-10 571 IDAHO ST FL 3
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip ELKO, NV 89801

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775/753-4600
Vendor No.: T81072742R
NV Business ID: Gov't Entity

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2018
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 66.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 34.00 % State Share of Collections

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2014

Anticipated BOE meeting date 06/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2018
Contract term: 4 years

4. Type of contract: Interlocal Agreement
Contract description: Hearing Masters

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new interlocal agreement, which continues ongoing services to provide hearing master and court services
for the Child Support Enforcement Program for the purpose of enforcing support obligations owed by non-custodial
parents to their children, locating non-custodial parents, establishing paternity, obtaining financial and medical
support, and adjusting support orders.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $306,454.00
Other basis for payment: Actual per Invoice

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Nevada Revised Statutes and Title IV-D of the Social Security Act requires that DWSS attempt to establish paternity, secure
support, and recover support debts for children who may or may not be receiving public assistance.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
This is a function performed by the Judges/Hearing Masters in the Judicial District Courts.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15390 31



b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Currently under contract with DWSS and providing satisfactory service.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval tdufresn 03/12/2014 07:55:41 AM
Division Approval msmit5 04/09/2014 07:47:20 AM
Department Approval ecreceli 04/14/2014 10:16:09 AM
Contract Manager Approval ewatson 04/17/2014 11:23:57 AM
Budget Analyst Approval sjohnso9 04/21/2014 11:03:02 AM
BOE Agenda Approval nhovden 04/22/2014 17:07:55 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15390 31



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15396

Legal Entity
Name:

WHITE PINE, COUNTY OF

Agency Name: DHHS - WELFARE AND SUPPORT
SERVICES

Contractor Name: WHITE PINE, COUNTY OF

Agency Code: 407 Address: SEVENTH JUDICIAL COURT/DEPT 1
Appropriation Unit: 3238-10 801 CLARK ST STE 7
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip ELY, NV 89301

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775/289-4813
Vendor No.: T80971176D
NV Business ID: Gov't Entity

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2018
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 66.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 34.00 % State Share of Collections

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2014

Anticipated BOE meeting date 06/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2018
Contract term: 4 years

4. Type of contract: Interlocal Agreement
Contract description: Hearing Masters

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new interlocal agreement for ongoing Hearing Master and Court Services for the Child Support
Enforcement Program for the purpose of enforcing support obligations owed by non-custodial parents to their
children, locating non-custodial parents, establishing paternity, obtaining financial and medical support, and
adjusting support orders.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $82,115.00
Other basis for payment: Actual per Invoice

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Nevada Revised Statutes and Title IV-D of the Social Security Act requires that DWSS attempt to establish paternity, secure
support, and recover support debts for children who may or may not be receiving public assistance.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
This is a function performed by the Judges/Hearing Masters in the Judicial District Courts.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15396 32



b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Currently under contract with DWSS and providing satisfactory service.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval tdufresn 03/12/2014 07:56:40 AM
Division Approval msmit5 03/24/2014 11:53:32 AM
Department Approval ecreceli 03/27/2014 14:11:25 PM
Contract Manager Approval ewatson 03/28/2014 12:46:16 PM
Budget Analyst Approval sjohnso9 04/07/2014 08:47:57 AM
BOE Agenda Approval nhovden 04/07/2014 13:49:10 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15396 32



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 12860 Amendment

Number:
2

Legal Entity
Name:

Cornerstone Programs

Agency Name: DIVISION OF CHILD AND FAMILY
SERVICES

Contractor Name: Cornerstone Programs

Agency Code: 409 Address: 800 N. Avenue F
Appropriation Unit: 3263-36
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Post, TX 79356

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null806-495-0266
Vendor No.: T29029126
NV Business ID: out of state

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2012-2016
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

X General Funds 50.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 50.00 % County Assesments

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 01/10/2012

Anticipated BOE meeting date 06/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

06/30/2014

Contract term: 4 years and 22 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Juvenile Justice

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the second amendment to the original contract, which continues ongoing delivery of required services and
programs conducive to the rehabilitation needs of either male or female juvenile offenders while maintaining sight
and sound separation from adult offender populations.  This amendment extends the termination date from June 30,
2014, to January 31, 2016, and increases the maximum amount from $199,260 to $665,260 due to the continued need
for these services.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $177,390.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $21,870.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $466,000.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $665,260.00

and/or the termination date of the original contract has changed to: 01/31/2016

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
This is a secure juvenile correctional facility for both male and female youth that will provide room and board, twenty four
hours per day, seven days per week, including supervision, routine medical examination and treatment within the facility
including an approved educational program, recreation facility, and counseling to each youth.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:

Page 1 of 3Contract #: 12860 33



The State does not offer a high security female youth correctional facility.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Sole Source Contract (As Approved by Chief of Purchasing)
        Approval #: 110916
        Approval Date: 03/14/2014
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
This is the only vendor found who can provide secure care to out of state youth.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Yes, with DCFS and service has been satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is NOT registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation
All services are provided in Texas.

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
No b. If "No", is an exemption on file with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
No If "No", to a. AND b., please explain why the contractor does not have an SBL or an exemption.

All services are provided in Texas.

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
No b. If "NO", please explain.

All services are provided in Texas.

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval jmorro5 04/08/2014 09:02:27 AM
Division Approval jmorro5 04/08/2014 11:17:13 AM
Department Approval ecreceli 04/15/2014 10:51:49 AM
Contract Manager Approval ihyman 04/15/2014 15:43:25 PM
Budget Analyst Approval eobrien 04/22/2014 15:16:26 PM
BOE Agenda Approval nhovden 04/23/2014 10:28:28 AM

Page 2 of 3Contract #: 12860 33



Page 3 of 3Contract #: 12860 33



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15417

Legal Entity
Name:

Allpro Services LLC

Agency Name: DHHS - DIVISION OF CHILD AND
FAMILY SERVICES

Contractor Name: Allpro Services LLC

Agency Code: 409 Address: Five Star Painting
Appropriation Unit: 3646-07 6955 N Durango #394
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Las Vegas, NV 89149

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null702-659-8900
Vendor No.: t27034427
NV Business ID: nv20111339463

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2018
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

X General Funds 40.90 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 56.60 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 2.50 % Rental Income

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2014

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2018
Contract term: 4 years

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: painting services

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide exterior and interior painting service on state owned buildings located at 6171 W
Charleston Blvd in Las Vegas.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $80,000.00
Payment for services will be made at the rate of $45.00 per hour
Other basis for payment: plus cost of materials consumed to complete the project

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
There are 11 buildings on the W Charleston campus.  It is important to maintain the finish, weather resistance, and
appearance of State buildings.  Not keeping buildings properly painted can cause further damage to a building's
infrastructure.  State Public Works has been recommending the agency paint its buildings from as far back as their facility
condition and analysis reports from 1998.  Even more so, studies have shown that keeping the appearance of a building in
good condition can have a positive effect on the mood of clients and staff.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The agency has two maintenance workers and one supervisor, who are responsible for 11 buildings (over 120,000 square
feet) and handling requests from four other neighborhood family service centers.  Additionally, they respond to maintenance
requests from the agency's 300 employees as well as county workers that are leasing space with the State.  While other
agencies have painter positions in their budget, budget account 3646 does not.  With that said, the existing staff's workload
would be over burdened with the immense time that would need to be committed to paint the aging facilities on the W
Charleston campus.

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15417 34



9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
This vendor best meets the needs of the agency.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
LLC

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval jmorro5 03/10/2014 16:01:59 PM
Division Approval jmorro5 03/10/2014 16:02:02 PM
Department Approval ecreceli 03/14/2014 09:41:10 AM
Contract Manager Approval ihyman 03/14/2014 11:38:46 AM
Budget Analyst Approval eobrien 04/02/2014 13:22:07 PM
BOE Agenda Approval nhovden 04/03/2014 10:17:36 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15417 34



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15342

Legal Entity
Name:

Triangle Builders of Nevada, Inc.

Agency Name: DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS Contractor Name: Triangle Builders of Nevada, Inc.
Agency Code: 440 Address: DBA Deckade Advanced Flooring
Appropriation Unit: 3716-95 2085 E. Greg St
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Sparks, NV 89431

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Matthew J. Revak, President 775/355-
0303

Vendor No.: T27030250
NV Business ID: NV19981341760

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2015
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

X General Funds 100.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

Agency Reference #: RFP 201409

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2015
Contract term: 1 year and 60 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Replace Tile Floor

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide for the removal and replacement of tile flooring in the dining hall at Warm Springs
Correctional Center.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $79,848.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The existing floor tiles are broken and some are missing.  The cracks in the tiles leave areas for water born bacteria to grow
in an area where food is prepared and consumed.  Removal and replacement of the existing tiles is for the health and safety
of NDOC staff and inmates.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Historically the Department has outsourced specialty services to a contractor with the required license and expertise that
meets the scope of work classification requirements for the project, and will be able to complete the project in a timely
professional manner.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15342 35



b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Triangle Builders of Nevada, Inc. DBA Deckade Advanced Flooring Systems was the only respondent to the RFP 201409.
E-mails were sent to the approved vendor list located on State Purchasing website. The RFP was advertised in the Las
Vegas Review Journal, Reno Gazette Journal and was posted to State Purchasing website "Other Agency RFP
Opportunities".
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval ssergent 03/12/2014 11:55:05 AM
Division Approval dmartine 03/13/2014 07:35:32 AM
Department Approval bfarris 03/14/2014 12:45:50 PM
Contract Manager Approval jhardy 03/21/2014 15:29:25 PM
Budget Analyst Approval cmurph3 03/31/2014 09:20:06 AM
BOE Agenda Approval sbrown 04/10/2014 08:09:13 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15342 35



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 10742 Amendment

Number:
1

Legal Entity
Name:

Solix, Inc.

Agency Name: PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION Contractor Name: Solix, Inc.
Agency Code: 580 Address: 30 Lanidex Plaza West
Appropriation Unit: 3920-04
Is budget authority
available?:

No City/State/Zip Parsippany, NJ 07054

If "No" please explain:  Fees for services under this
contract are paid directly from the Nevada Universal
Services Fund. No fiscal impact to the agency.

Contact/Phone: Josephine Farkas 973-581-5282

Vendor No.:
NV Business ID: NV20051804228

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2011-2016
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Fees for services are paid directly from the

Nevada Universal Service Fund.

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2010

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

06/30/2014

Contract term: 6 years and 1 day

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Financial Services

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the first amendment to the original contract, which continues ongoing fiscal agent duties required by NAC
704.6804 through NAC 704.68056 to administer the Nevada Universal Service Fund. This amendment extends the
termination date from June 30, 2014 to June 30, 2016 and increases the maximum amount from $193,000 to
$290,052.59 due to the continued need for these services.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $193,000.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $0.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $97,052.59
4. New maximum contract amount: $290,052.59

and/or the termination date of the original contract has changed to: 06/30/2016

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
NRS 704.040 states that an independent administrator shall administer the Nevada Universal Service Fund (NUSF).

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
NRS 704.040 states that an independent administrator shall administer the Nevada Universal Service Fund (NUSF).

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 10742 36



9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Solix, Inc. was the only vendor that responded to the RFP.

The agency verified the vendor has a Nevada business license and is in good standing in all areas of the Secretary of State's
business requirements.
d. Last bid date: 09/17/2009 Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Public Utilities Commission of Nevada, September 1999 - current. The quality of service provided has been verified as
satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval nshafer 03/26/2014 13:17:49 PM
Division Approval nshafer 03/26/2014 13:17:52 PM
Department Approval dskau 03/26/2014 13:25:19 PM
Contract Manager Approval nshafer 03/26/2014 13:50:48 PM
Budget Analyst Approval bberry 03/28/2014 12:46:36 PM
BOE Agenda Approval nhovden 04/03/2014 09:24:35 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 10742 36



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15478

Legal Entity
Name:

Goserco Inc.

Agency Name: DPS-RECORDS & TECHNOLOGY Contractor Name: Goserco Inc.
Agency Code: 655 Address: 7165 E. University Dr, Ste 180
Appropriation Unit: 4702-50
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Mesa, AZ 85207

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Shawn Andrews 480-964-8911
Vendor No.: PUR0005456
NV Business ID: NV20021411265

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2018
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Cost Allocation

Agency Reference #: RFP #3097

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 05/13/2014

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2018
Contract term: 4 years and 49 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Dispatch Digital Rec

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide hardware, software, installation, ongoing maintenance and 24/7 support for the
provision of a Dispatch Digital Recording System installed at dispatch centers located in Carson City, Las Vegas
and Elko, Nevada.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $262,637.56
Other basis for payment: Upon invoice submitted by vendor, subject to agency approval.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The current analog Dispatch Recording System has reached its anticipated shelf life and cannot be repaired. A new digital
system is required to ensure accurate and complete the recordings of telephone and radio transmissions for the three DPS
Dispatch Centers for public safety purposes.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
State agencies do not have the ability or capacity to provide hardware, software, installation, ongoing maintenance and 24/7
support for the provision of a Dispatch Digital Recording System.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15478 37



b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Pursuant to RFP #3097, and in accordance with NRS 333, the selected vendor was the highest scoring proposer as
determined by an independently appointed evaluation committee.
d. Last bid date: 01/01/2014 Anticipated re-bid date: 01/01/2018

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? Yes

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval kdaly 03/27/2014 15:48:37 PM
Division Approval jdibasil 04/10/2014 16:00:15 PM
Department Approval mteska 04/10/2014 16:19:56 PM
Contract Manager Approval jbauer 04/10/2014 17:42:36 PM
DoIT Approval csweeney 04/17/2014 15:40:14 PM
Budget Analyst Approval jstrandb 04/17/2014 15:42:21 PM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 04/18/2014 07:15:24 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15478 37



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15517

Legal Entity
Name:

Gnomon, Inc.

Agency Name: DCNR - DIVISION OF WATER
RESOURCES

Contractor Name: Gnomon, Inc.

Agency Code: 705 Address: 1601 Fairview Dr., Suite F
Appropriation Unit: 4211-10
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Carson City, NV 89701

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Eric Ingbar 775-885-2305
Vendor No.: T81005218
NV Business ID: NV19941043248

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2019
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 100.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %
Agency Reference #: RFP #3112

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 05/14/2014

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 05/31/2019
Contract term: 5 years and 18 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: TCID Mapping Project

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide a system of quality assurance/quality control review for a mapping project of the
Truckee Carson Irrigation District's (TCID) Newlands Water Rights Project.  This would include the delineation of
line work and the accounting of water right issued contracts to land holders within the TCID.  The contractor will
maintain the website for quality control review and create a Geographic Information System and tabular editing
interfaces for use by the State Engineer's Office staff.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $295,670.00
Other basis for payment: Quality Control  system workflow - $32,670.00; Quality Control - $237,160.00; meetings,
coordination and managment - $25,840.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
A provision of getting the grant from the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The U.S. Bureau of Reclamation requires an outside entity to do the QA/QC.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15517 38



a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Pursuant to RFP #3112, and in accordance with NRS 333, the selected vendor was the highest scoring proposer as
determined by an independently appointed evaluation committee.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? Yes

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Legislative Counsel Bureau has a current contract with Gnomon, Inc., and they are very satisfied with their service.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval bkordono 04/03/2014 11:07:44 AM
Division Approval bkordono 04/03/2014 11:07:49 AM
Department Approval bkordono 04/03/2014 11:09:29 AM
Contract Manager Approval bkordono 04/03/2014 11:09:35 AM
DoIT Approval bbohm 04/15/2014 07:51:07 AM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 04/21/2014 12:27:18 PM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 04/21/2014 12:55:45 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15517 38



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15536

Legal Entity
Name:

Milliman Inc

Agency Name: B&I - INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS DIV Contractor Name: Milliman Inc
Agency Code: 742 Address: 1301 Fifth Ave Suite 3800
Appropriation Unit: 4680-04
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Seattle, WA 89101

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Arthur L. Baldwin III  (206) 504-55
Vendor No.: T81104425
NV Business ID: NV20011420475

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2015
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Workers' Compensation and Safety Fund

Assessment
Agency Reference #: RFP#3088

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 05/13/2014

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 01/30/2015
Contract term: 262 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: WCS Med Fee Schedule

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide information regarding fees and charges to develop a new Nevada Medical Fee
Schedule.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $234,200.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The Division of Industrial Relations needs to have information to develop a new Medical Fee Schedule.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
This is a specialized information gathering service that State employees cannot do.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15536 39



Pursuant to RFP #3088, and in accordance with NRS 333, the selected vendor was the highest scoring proposer as
determined by an independently appointed evaluation committee.
d. Last bid date: 11/26/2013 Anticipated re-bid date: 11/01/2015

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
The contractor was engaged under contract in Jan 2002, with the Division of Industrial Relations. Yes, the services provided
to the agency have been verified and was in a satisfactory standing.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
No b. If "No", is an exemption on file with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval afrantz 04/15/2014 07:44:54 AM
Division Approval afrantz 04/15/2014 07:44:57 AM
Department Approval afrantz 04/16/2014 07:04:59 AM
Contract Manager Approval kjackso4 04/16/2014 07:08:24 AM
Budget Analyst Approval sjohnso9 04/16/2014 07:33:00 AM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 04/18/2014 07:49:33 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15536 39



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 13298 Amendment

Number:
1

Legal Entity
Name:

INTELLECTUAL TECHNOLOGY INC

Agency Name: DEPT OF MOTOR VEHICLES Contractor Name: INTELLECTUAL TECHNOLOGY INC
Agency Code: 810 Address: 1901 CAMINO VIDA ROBLE STE 204
Appropriation Unit: 4741-40
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip CARLSBAD, CA 92008

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null760/476-9100
Vendor No.: T27006453
NV Business ID: NV20101412115

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2012-2014
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Fee Funded

Agency Reference #: RFP # 2025

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 06/05/2012

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

05/31/2014

Contract term: 1 year and 360 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: OHV-Automated

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the first amendment to the original contract to provide an autmated method of collecting electronic data,
printing secure and non-secure documents, finishing mail preparation, transportation to the U.S. Postal Service for
the same day mail entry and tracking of the documents for Off-Highway Vehicles.  This amendment extends the
termination date from May 31, 2014 to May 31, 2016 and increases the maximum amount from $1,110,176.00 to
$1,300,052.27 to cover the two year extension.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $1,110,176.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $0.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $189,876.27
4. New maximum contract amount: $1,300,052.27

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
SB 394 was passed during the 2009 Legislative Session and provides for a program to register and title Off-Highway
Vehicles in Nevada under NRS 490.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
This was RFP was done as a cost savings measure to the state in lieu of hiring additional employees to perform this service.

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 13298 40



9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
This was the only vendor to submit a proposal, and in reviewing the proposal the Department of Motor Vehicle staff, it was
found to be acceptable.
d. Last bid date: 02/08/2012 Anticipated re-bid date: 01/01/2014

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
No b. If "No", is an exemption on file with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval bmacke1 03/26/2014 15:03:18 PM
Division Approval akeillor 03/26/2014 15:08:22 PM
Department Approval akeillor 03/26/2014 15:08:27 PM
Contract Manager Approval hazevedo 03/26/2014 17:04:08 PM
Budget Analyst Approval cwatson 04/09/2014 10:59:58 AM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 04/09/2014 11:00:03 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 13298 40



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: CONV5322 Amendment

Number:
2

Legal Entity
Name:

Reno Salvage

Agency Name: DEPT OF MOTOR VEHICLES Contractor Name: Reno Salvage
Agency Code: 810 Address: 301 Montello Street
Appropriation Unit: 6220-00
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Reno, NV 89505

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Stan Shane 7753237109
Vendor No.: T41875700
NV Business ID: NV19661001308

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2008-2018
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

X Highway Funds 100.00 % Other funding 0.00 %
Agency Reference #: ZA0400

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 05/13/2008

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

06/30/2014

Contract term: 10 years and 50 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Speciality Services

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the second amendment to the original contract, which provides for the removal and destruction of scrap
metal aluminum and steel material from the department's License Plate Manufacturing Plant inside the Nevada State
Prison.  The vendor will destroy all material by high tonnage compression, sell material on the scrap metal market
and remit proceeds to the department for deposit into Motor Vehicle Fund.  This amendment extends the
termination date from June 30, 2014 to June 30, 2018 and increases the maximum amount from $300,000 to $900,000
to cover the extension.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $300,000.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $0.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $600,000.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $900,000.00

and/or the termination date of the original contract has changed to: 06/30/2018

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Manufacturing process of license plates generate large volume of unusable material which needs to be removed.  Out of
state license plates and obsolete Nevada license plates collected by Department offices need to be destroyed to prevent
unauthorized use.

Page 1 of 2Contract #: CONV5322 41



8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Lack of equipment and expertise to perform this task.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
State Purchasing performed an RFP (#2053) on 10/1/13 which resulted in no responses. Another RFP (#2061)was
performed and remained open for approximately 2 months. only one vendor responded and was unwilling to negotiate on
pricing as well as other terms within the State Contract form.  State Purchasing advised the Department to request a contract
extension with the current vendor due to these circumstances.
d. Last bid date: 12/01/2013 Anticipated re-bid date: 12/01/2017

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval bmacke1 04/08/2014 15:25:06 PM
Division Approval cmunoz 04/08/2014 15:26:56 PM
Department Approval cmunoz 04/08/2014 15:26:59 PM
Contract Manager Approval hazevedo 04/08/2014 15:27:25 PM
Budget Analyst Approval cwatson 04/09/2014 11:09:58 AM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 04/09/2014 11:10:03 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: CONV5322 41



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15477

Legal Entity
Name:

SKY Construction and Engineering

Agency Name: DETR - REHABILITATION DIVISION Contractor Name: SKY Construction and Engineering
Agency Code: 901 Address: 5815 N Black Canyon Hwy #203
Appropriation Unit: 3253-10
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Phoenix, AZ 85015

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Scott Young 602.595.4178
Vendor No.: T29034313`
NV Business ID: NV20141073481

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Business Set Aside

Agency Reference #: #1891-14-BEN

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 05/13/2014

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2014
Contract term: 48 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: AZ Look-out Remodel

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide for the remodel of the Arizona Look-out Gift Shop.  Work shall include, but not be
limited to, painting and associated preparation and clean-up; installation of sliding interior doors; removal and
replacement of ceiling tiles;  removal and replacement of interior counters; installation of shelving, hooks and
baskets; removal and replacement of interior carpet; removal and replacement of ceiling mounted lighting fixtures
and relocating other existing ceiling lighting fixtures.   Work is anticipated to be completed prior to the 2014
Memorial Day weekend.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $100,525.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Remodel of the location is necessary for the safety of the employees and visitors to the Dam.  It is also required to keep the
location up to standards in accrodance with the Bureau of Reclamation.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
State employees are not trained in all disciplines required to perform the scope of work.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15477 42



b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
This was the only responsive bid received and vendor was open to reducing their costs to meet the project budget.
d. Last bid date: 02/04/2014 Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval khawkin1 03/27/2014 15:41:39 PM
Division Approval shendren 03/30/2014 11:57:15 AM
Department Approval mcost1 04/02/2014 08:40:43 AM
Contract Manager Approval mcost1 04/10/2014 14:30:46 PM
Budget Analyst Approval knielsen 04/10/2014 14:38:12 PM
BOE Agenda Approval sbrown 04/13/2014 08:43:54 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15477 42



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15566

Legal Entity
Name:

JERROLD M SHERMAN MD INC

Agency Name: DETR - REHABILITATION DIVISION Contractor Name: JERROLD M SHERMAN MD INC
Agency Code: 901 Address: 2801 OCEAN PARK BLVD PMB 162
Appropriation Unit: 3269-09
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip SANTA MONICA, CA 90405-2905

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Anita Sherman 310/393-9829
Vendor No.: T80998995
NV Business ID: NV19961112349

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2018
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 100.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 05/13/2018
Contract term: 4 years and 13 days

4. Type of contract: Provider Agreement
Contract description: Consultative Exams

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new provider agreement that is ongoing and provides Consultative Exams to assist the Bureau of Disability
Adjudication in the disability determination process.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $1,200,000.00
Other basis for payment: Established fee schedule for services

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The Social Security Administration (SSA) requires disability claims to be processed through the Bureau of Disability
Adjudication for review. Part of the review process requires a consultative exam from an acceptable medical source to obtain
information to make the disability determination as defined by the SSA and the Social Security Act.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Documentation of the existence of a claimant's impairment must come from medical professionals defined by SSA's
regulations as "acceptable medical sources".

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15566 43



c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval khawkin1 04/16/2014 10:45:14 AM
Division Approval shendren 04/16/2014 14:18:35 PM
Department Approval mcost1 04/16/2014 16:13:45 PM
Contract Manager Approval mcost1 04/16/2014 16:13:49 PM
Budget Analyst Approval knielsen 04/21/2014 09:46:26 AM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 04/21/2014 09:57:40 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15566 43



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15565

Legal Entity
Name:

MEDICAL SUPPORT LOS ANGELES

Agency Name: DETR - REHABILITATION DIVISION Contractor Name: MEDICAL SUPPORT LOS ANGELES
Agency Code: 901 Address: PO BOX 93787
Appropriation Unit: 3269-09
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip PASADENA, CA 91109

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: AARON HERNANDEZ 626/440-7001
Vendor No.: T29007478A
NV Business ID: NV20071629866

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2018
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 100.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 05/13/2018
Contract term: 4 years and 13 days

4. Type of contract: Provider Agreement
Contract description: Consultative Exams

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new provider agreement that is ongoing and provides Consultative Exams to assist the Bureau of Disability
Adjudication in the disability determination process.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $2,100,000.00
Other basis for payment: Established fee schedule for services

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The Social Security Administration (SSA) requires disability claims to be processed through the Bureau of Disability
Adjudication for review. Part of the review process requires a consultative exam from an acceptable medical source to obtain
information to make the disability determination as defined by the SSA and the Social Security Act.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Documentation of the existence of a claimant's impairment must come from medical professionals defined by SSA's
regulations as "acceptable medical sources".

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15565 44



c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval khawkin1 04/16/2014 10:45:44 AM
Division Approval shendren 04/16/2014 14:47:28 PM
Department Approval mcost1 04/17/2014 07:54:32 AM
Contract Manager Approval mcost1 04/17/2014 07:54:40 AM
Budget Analyst Approval knielsen 04/21/2014 09:42:03 AM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 04/21/2014 09:58:23 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15565 44



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 10484 Amendment

Number:
5

Legal Entity
Name:

Capgemini Government Solutions

Agency Name: EMPLOYMENT SECURITY DIVISION Contractor Name: Capgemini Government Solutions
Agency Code: 902 Address: 1900 Campus Commons Dr.
Appropriation Unit: 4771-77 STE 250
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Reston, VA 20191

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Michael O'Malley 571-336-1610
Vendor No.: T32001021
NV Business ID: NV20101213337

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2010-2016
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 100.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %
Agency Reference #: 1473-11-UIMOD

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 02/09/2010

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? Yes
If "Yes", please explain
Based on the need for Capgemini to comply with the sequestration rules for the UI program, the Department
respectfully requests the approval of a retroactive contract effective date of April 11, 2013.

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

06/30/2014

Contract term: 6 years and 112 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Unempl. Ins Sys Mod

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the fifth amendment to the original contract, which continues ongoing provisions for an automated computer
system to process wage, contributions, benefits, appeals, & other information related to Nevada's statewide
Unemployment Insurance (UI) programs, replacing the department's UI Legacy applications. This amendment
extends the termination date from June 30, 2014 to May 31, 2016 and increases the maximum amount from
$32,384,375 to $32,584,375 due to change order 130411-49 implementing the U. S. Department of Labor FY2013 UI
Sequestration process, which increases the contract amount by $200,000, and change order 130604-11 separating
the final Release 2 implementation into Benefits, Appeals and Contributions sub-releases, which extends the
contractual termination date to accommodate a 12 month warranty period.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $27,943,902.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $4,440,473.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $200,000.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $32,584,375.00

and/or the termination date of the original contract has changed to: 05/31/2016

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?

Page 1 of 3Contract #: 10484 45



The new automated Unemployment Insurance (UI) system will replace the current DETR UI legacy program to process
wage, contributions, benefits, appeals, and other information related to Nevada's statewide Unemployment Insurance
programs.  The legacy system does not accommodate new UI benefit types, does not use modern database features and
functions, is batch oriented and does not contain sufficient online real-time data edits,  does not provide adequate web
features to properly support Nevada's UI customers,  and has security issues and other technology deficiencies related to 30
year old applications,

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Recent modernized UI systems implemented for other sister States use new  technologies and commercially available
products to enhance UI processess. DETR does not have the products, manpower, expertise, and available time to fully
implement an automated Unemployment Insurance program of this size by itself.  External resources are required to
complete the task.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Contractor was chosen based on a weighted average of evaluation criteria.  Contractor had the highest overall score as
determined by an evaluation committee of six (6).
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? Yes

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval mcost1 04/14/2014 16:46:44 PM
Division Approval mcost1 04/14/2014 16:46:48 PM

Page 2 of 3Contract #: 10484 45



Department Approval mcost1 04/14/2014 16:46:52 PM
Contract Manager Approval mcost1 04/14/2014 16:46:57 PM
DoIT Approval csweeney 04/16/2014 14:23:54 PM
Budget Analyst Approval knielsen 04/16/2014 15:33:37 PM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 04/17/2014 10:05:07 AM

Page 3 of 3Contract #: 10484 45



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 13447 Amendment

Number:
2

Legal Entity
Name:

OREGON UNIVERSITY SYSTEM DBA

Agency Name: DETR ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES Contractor Name: OREGON UNIVERSITY SYSTEM DBA
Agency Code: 908 Address: UNIVERSITY OF OREGON
Appropriation Unit: 3273-26 PO BOX 3237
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip EUGENE, OR 97403-0237

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null541/346-1055
Vendor No.: T80944277
NV Business ID: Government Entity

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2013-2015
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % State Career Enhancement Funds

Agency Reference #: 1742-13-DETR

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2012

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

06/30/2014

Contract term: 2 years and 364 days

4. Type of contract: Interlocal Agreement
Contract description: Licensing Agreement

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the second amendment to the original interlocal agreement that continues ongoing licensing for the Career
Information System for utilization in the State of Nevada.  This amendment extends the termination date from June
30, 2014 to June 30, 2015 and increases the maximum amount from $137,200 to $205,600 due to the extended term
of the licensing agreement.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $68,800.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $68,400.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $68,400.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $205,600.00

and/or the termination date of the original contract has changed to: 06/30/2015

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
A licensing agreement is required to enter into this contract for the Career Information System (CIS) components, inclusive of
CIS content, CIS software, and CIS materials.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
State employees do not have the capacity to perform this work.

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 13447 46



9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Exempt (Per statute)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Interlocal Agreement with another public agency.  The Career Information System is a proprietary service offered by the
University of Oregon.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
The University of Oregon has been under contract with the Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation since
1992 and their performance has been satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval mcost1 04/02/2014 16:24:18 PM
Division Approval mcost1 04/02/2014 16:24:22 PM
Department Approval mcost1 04/02/2014 16:24:25 PM
Contract Manager Approval mcost1 04/02/2014 16:25:48 PM
Budget Analyst Approval knielsen 04/10/2014 10:51:32 AM
BOE Agenda Approval sbrown 04/10/2014 11:49:23 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 13447 46



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15510

Legal Entity
Name:

HOMETOWN HEALTH PROVIDERS

Agency Name: PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' BENEFITS Contractor Name: HOMETOWN HEALTH PROVIDERS
Agency Code: 950 Address: INSURANCE CO INC - PPO PREMIUM
Appropriation Unit: 1338-10 830 HARVARD WAY
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip RENO, NV 89502-2055

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775/982-3181
Vendor No.: T29003541
NV Business ID: NV19871019956

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2019
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % 63% State Subsidy/ 37% Premium Revenue

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2014

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2019
Contract term: 5 years

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Statewide PPO

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract that continues the ongoing service of providing an in state (inside Nevada) Preferred Provider
Organization medical network for participants of the Public Employees' Benefits Program.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $8,033,380.00
Payment for services will be made at the rate of $0.00 per per participant per month
Other basis for payment: $3.90 (Year 1), $4.10 (Year 2), $4.30 (Year 3), $4.51 (Year 4), $4.74 (Year 5)

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
PEBP offers a statewide medical PPO network for participants of the program who choose to enroll in the high deductible
health plan.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The state of Nevada does not contract or lease a medical network of its own.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15510 47



c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
This vendor was selected by the evaluation committee because of pricing, network access and pricing transparency.
d. Last bid date: 12/01/2013 Anticipated re-bid date: 12/01/2018

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Hometown Health and Sierra Healthcare Options is PEBP's current medical PPO network provider.  PEBP is very satisified
by the work and services offered by Hometown Health and Sierra Healthcare Options.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval mstron1 04/02/2014 09:05:48 AM
Division Approval mstron1 04/02/2014 09:05:50 AM
Department Approval mstron1 04/02/2014 09:05:52 AM
Contract Manager Approval mstron1 04/02/2014 09:05:54 AM
Budget Analyst Approval jstrandb 04/10/2014 10:40:53 AM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 04/11/2014 11:14:41 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15510 47



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15503

Legal Entity
Name:

STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY

Agency Name: PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' BENEFITS Contractor Name: STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY
Agency Code: 950 Address: 1100 SW 6TH AVE
Appropriation Unit: 1338-12
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip PORTLAND, OR 97204-1010

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null971/321-3601
Vendor No.: T29000017
NV Business ID: NV19971294431

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2020
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % paid via automatic payroll deductions from

participants who choose to enroll for this
benefit

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2014

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2020
Contract term: 6 years and 1 day

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Voluntary Life

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract that continues ongoing Voluntary Group Life Insurance for participants of the Public
Employees Benefit Program who choose to enroll in this benefit.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $22,500,000.00
Other basis for payment: paid via automatic payroll deductions for participants who choose to enroll for this service

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
This is a voluntary life insurance benefit  by the PEBP Board.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
State employees are not licensed to provide this service.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15503 48



This is the incumbent vendor and was chosen by the evaluation committee for having the best pricing with the best group
rates and value added services.
d. Last bid date: 02/01/2014 Anticipated re-bid date: 02/01/2020

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Standard Insurance is PEBP's current vendor for voluntary life insurance, voluntary short term disability insurance and group
life insurance.  PEBP is very satisfied with the services provided by Standard.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval mstron1 04/01/2014 09:53:02 AM
Division Approval mstron1 04/01/2014 09:53:05 AM
Department Approval mstron1 04/01/2014 09:53:07 AM
Contract Manager Approval mstron1 04/01/2014 09:53:09 AM
Budget Analyst Approval cwatson 04/09/2014 11:03:14 AM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 04/09/2014 11:03:23 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15503 48



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15504

Legal Entity
Name:

STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY

Agency Name: PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' BENEFITS Contractor Name: STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY
Agency Code: 950 Address: 1100 SW 6TH AVE
Appropriation Unit: 1338-12
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip PORTLAND, OR 97204-1010

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null971/321-3601
Vendor No.: T29000017
NV Business ID: NV19971294431

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2020
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % paid via automatic payroll deductions from

participants who choose to enroll for this
benefit

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2014

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2020
Contract term: 6 years and 1 day

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Voluntary STDI

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract that continues ongoing Voluntary Short Term Disability Insurance for participants of the
Public Employees Benefit Program who choose to enroll in this benefit.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $2,000,000.00
Other basis for payment: paid via automatic payroll deductions for participants who choose to enroll for this benefit

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
This is a voluntary benefit approved by the PEBP Board.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
State employees are not licensed to provide this service.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15504 49



This is the incumbent vendor and was selected by the evaluation committee because they had the best pricing and best
value added services.
d. Last bid date: 02/01/2014 Anticipated re-bid date: 02/01/2020

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Standard Insurance is PEBP's current vendor for voluntary life insurance, voluntary short term disability insurance and group
life insurance.  PEBP is very satisfied by the services provided by Standard.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval mstron1 04/01/2014 10:52:44 AM
Division Approval mstron1 04/01/2014 10:52:53 AM
Department Approval mstron1 04/01/2014 10:52:52 AM
Contract Manager Approval mstron1 04/01/2014 10:52:59 AM
Budget Analyst Approval jstrandb 04/07/2014 14:54:44 PM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 04/11/2014 11:16:45 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15504 49



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15513

Legal Entity
Name:

Golden Gate Petroleum of Nevada, LLC

Agency Name: MSA MASTER SERVICE
AGREEMENTS

Contractor Name: Golden Gate Petroleum of Nevada,
LLC

Agency Code: MSA Address: 1340 Arnold Dr.
Appropriation Unit: 9999 - All Categories
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Marinez, CA 94553

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Pat O'Keefe 928-228-2222
Vendor No.:
NV Business ID: NV20071086512

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2016
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Various

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 05/13/2014

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 01/31/2016
Contract term: 1 year and 263 days

4. Type of contract: MSA
Contract description: Bulk Fuel Purchase

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract for bulk fuel purchase and delivery services statewide on an as needed basis for state owned
tanks.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $5,000,000.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
State agencies have the need for bulk fuel and delivery service.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The State does not employ bulk fuel and delivery services for the State.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Pursuant to RFQ 3064 and in accordance with NRS 333, this vendor met the qualifications of the RFQ and is on of 12
Vendors selected by the appointed eval. committee.

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15513 MSA 1



d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date: 10/01/2015

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval sberry 04/08/2014 10:05:32 AM
Division Approval sberry 04/08/2014 10:05:36 AM
Department Approval sberry 04/08/2014 10:05:39 AM
Contract Manager Approval nfese1 04/08/2014 10:50:31 AM
Budget Analyst Approval sjohnso9 04/09/2014 09:18:37 AM
BOE Agenda Approval sbrown 04/10/2014 09:55:57 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15513 MSA 1



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15349

Legal Entity
Name:

IPC (USA) Fuel Distribution

Agency Name: MSA MASTER SERVICE
AGREEMENTS

Contractor Name: IPC (USA) Fuel Distribution

Agency Code: MSA Address: 20 Pacifica
Appropriation Unit: 9999 - All Categories Suite 650
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Irvine, CA 92618

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Blanca Hurtado  949-648-5620
Vendor No.:
NV Business ID: NV20031416500

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2016
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Various

Agency Reference #: RFQ 3064

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 01/31/2016
Contract term: 1 year and 275 days

4. Type of contract: MSA
Contract description: Bulk Fuel Purchase

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract for bulk fuel purchase and delivery services statewide on an as needed basis for state owned
tanks.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $5,000,000.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
State agencies have the need for bulk fuel and delivery services.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The State does not employ bulk fuel and delivery services for the State.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15349 MSA 2



Pursuant to RFQ 3064 and in accordance with NRS 333, this vendor met the qualifications of the RFQ and is one of 11
Vendors selected by the appointed eval. committee.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date: 10/01/2015

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval sberry 03/19/2014 10:07:52 AM
Division Approval sberry 03/19/2014 10:07:55 AM
Department Approval sberry 03/19/2014 10:07:57 AM
Contract Manager Approval nfese1 03/20/2014 09:05:32 AM
Budget Analyst Approval sjohnso9 04/07/2014 09:02:03 AM
BOE Agenda Approval sbrown 04/10/2014 08:31:54 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15349 MSA 2



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15520

Legal Entity
Name:

Inter-State Oil Company

Agency Name: MSA MASTER SERVICE
AGREEMENTS

Contractor Name: Inter-State Oil Company

Agency Code: MSA Address: 50 Lillard Dr.
Appropriation Unit: 9999 - All Categories
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Sparks, NV 89434

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Jim Motsinger 775-359-1586
Vendor No.:
NV Business ID: NV19781011589

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2016
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Various

Agency Reference #: RFQ 3064

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 05/13/2014

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 01/31/2016
Contract term: 1 year and 263 days

4. Type of contract: MSA
Contract description: Bulk Fuel Purchase

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract for bulk fuel purchase and delivery services statewide on an as needed basis for state-owned
tanks.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $5,000,000.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
State agencies have the need for bulk fuel and delivery services.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The State does not employ bulk fuel and delivery for the State.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15520 MSA 3



Pursuant to RFQ 3064 and in accordance with NRS 333, this vendor met the qualifications of the RFQ and is one of 13
Vendors selected by the appointed eval. committee.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date: 10/01/2015

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval sberry 04/08/2014 10:11:03 AM
Division Approval sberry 04/08/2014 10:11:06 AM
Department Approval sberry 04/08/2014 10:11:10 AM
Contract Manager Approval nfese1 04/08/2014 10:51:47 AM
Budget Analyst Approval sjohnso9 04/14/2014 07:22:18 AM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 04/18/2014 07:45:39 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15520 MSA 3



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 05/13/2014

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 11974 Amendment

Number:
3

Legal Entity
Name:

RADCO COMMUNICATIONS, LLC

Agency Name: MASTER SERVICE AGREEMENTS Contractor Name: RADCO COMMUNICATIONS, LLC
Agency Code: MSA Address: 450 US HIGHWAY 395 N
Appropriation Unit: 9999 - All Categories
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip CARSON CITY, NV 89704-9581

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775/826-6338
Vendor No.: T29007652
NV Business ID: NV20051105274

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2011-2015
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Various

Agency Reference #: RFP 1877

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 04/12/2011

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

04/12/2015

Contract term: 4 years and 1 day

4. Type of contract: MSA
Contract description: Communications

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the third amendment to the original contract to provide communication site parts and services including
general maintenance on an as needed basis.  This amendment increases the maximum amount from $600,000 to
$750,000 based on usage for the Enterprise Information Technology Services Division.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $200,000.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $400,000.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $150,000.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $750,000.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
State agencies do not have the expertise to perform the array of communication site maintenances.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The State does not have the staffing capacity, technical expertise or resources to fulfill this work requirement.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 11974 MSA 4



a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
This vendor was one of the nine highest ranked vendors selected from eleven proposers.

d. Last bid date: 10/25/2010 Anticipated re-bid date: 10/24/2014

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? Yes

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Contracted with DoIT in 2006; service rating was satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval ldeloach 03/31/2014 14:11:54 PM
Division Approval ldeloach 03/31/2014 14:11:57 PM
Department Approval ldeloach 03/31/2014 14:12:01 PM
Contract Manager Approval gburchet 04/01/2014 15:19:55 PM
DoIT Approval bbohm 04/03/2014 06:17:30 AM
Budget Analyst Approval sjohnso9 04/08/2014 11:41:29 AM
BOE Agenda Approval sbrown 04/10/2014 08:20:53 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 11974 MSA 4



15.      INFORMATIONAL ITEM  

 
Pursuant to AB 41 of the 2013 Legislative Session, the Clerk of the Board may approve 

all contract transactions for amounts less than $50,000. Per direction from the August 13, 

2013 meeting of the Board of Examiners, the Board wished to receive an informational 

item listing all approvals applicable to the new threshold ($10,000 - $49,999). Below is a 

list of all applicable approvals for contracts and amendments approved from              

April 1, 2014 through April 30, 2014. 

 

 

CONTRACT 

# 

STATE AGENCY  CONTRACTOR 
CONTRACT/ 

AMENDMENT  
AMOUNT 

15363 Department of Health and 

Human Services – Public and 

Behavioral Health  

Nye Communities 

Coalition, Inc. 

Contract $10,549 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract to sustain and support diabetes self-management (DSME) programs in Nye, Esmeralda and Lincoln 

Counties. 

15509 Department of Administration 

– State Public Works Division 

Rounds Engineering, Ltd. 

Dba CR Engineering 

Contract $15,000 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract to provide professional architectural/engineering services for the United States Property and Fiscal Office 

Boiler Replacement; Project No. 14-A013-14; Contract No. 97005. 

15511 Department of Conservation 

and Natural Resources – State 

Parks Division 

Impact Construction Contract $19,480 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract to provide sand removal of approximately 6000 cubic yards and reseal asphalt at the Lahontan State 

Recreational Area - Beach 3 day use area. 

15505 Department of Conservation 

and Natural Resources – State 

Parks Division 

Brad Leonard Painting Contract $17,008 

Contract Description: This is a new contract to provide repair and painting on Valley of Fire State Park structures. 

15444 Department of Training, 

Rehabilitation and 

Employment – Employment 

Security Division  

Curtis Meyer dba Superior 

Janitorial Services 

Contract $23,880 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract that continues ongoing janitorial services for the Elko Job Connect office located at 172 6th Street, Elko, 

NV 89801. 

15474 Department of Administration 

– Hearings and Appeals 

Division 

Olivia Rienshagen-

Hernandez 

Contract $24,999 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract which provides for Spanish interpretation services during Administrative hearings, required by NRS 645B, 

to non-English speaking injured workers so they are appropriately represented at appeal hearings. 

 

  



CONTRACT 

# 

STATE AGENCY  CONTRACTOR 
CONTRACT/ 

AMENDMENT  
AMOUNT 

15524 Board of Accountancy Kaempfer, Crowell, 

Renshaw, Gronauer & 

Fiorentino 

Contract $47,250 

Contract Description: 

This is a new contract to provide government affairs assistance to the Nevada State Board of Accountancy.  This government 

affairs support will provide the Nevada State Board of Accountancy with assistance in preparing, planning and responding to 

legislative issues brought forth concerning Nevada Certified Public Accountants and Nevada citizens.  In addition the contractor 

will provide professional assistance to the Nevada State Board of Accountancy during the statute and regulation drafting process 

when responding to statute changes, regulation changes and public protection issues.  The skill and expertise provided by the 

contractor will ensure the Nevada State Board of Accountancy protects the public by actively participating and responding to each 

legislative issue in a proficient and productive manner. 

15433 Department of Conservation 

and Natural Resources – 

Forestry Division  

Wayne Weaver Contract $24,000 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract to provide ongoing routine maintenance of the water cooling and heating system as the Sierra Front 

Interagency Dispatch Center. 

15522 Department of Administration –

State Public Works Division  

URS Corporation Contract $20,960 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract to provide professional architectural/engineering services to recondition existing water tanks, Phase I 

(Indian Springs Prison complex); Project No. 13-M42; Contract No. 95780. 

15507 Department of Health and 

Human Services – Department 

of Child and Family Services  

Watertech, Inc. Contract $19,905 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract that continues ongoing water treatment maintenance for the two chillers located on State owned property at 

6171 W Charleston Blvd in Las Vegas. 

15506 Department of Health and 

Human Services – Department 

of Child and Family Services 

Stephen Galloway Contract $43,200 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract that continues ongoing psychological consultation and assessment evaluations for youth located at Nevada 

Youth Training Center. 

15537 Department of Administration –

Nevada State Library & 

Archives – CLAN  

Lincoln County Contract $18,550 

Contract Description: 

This is a new cooperative revenue agreement, which continues to maintain a regional network of libraries (per NRS 379.147-

379.150) known as CLAN (Cooperative Libraries Automated Network) through joint agreement for the improvement of library 

services and the sharing of resources. 

15384 Department of Agriculture San Joaquin Chemicals, 

Inc. 

Contract $22,642 

Contract Description: 

This is new contract to provide inspection services for the department's cooling tower.  Cooling towers must be inspected for 

scale, corrosion and fouling and serviced as needed to bring it back into compliance.  The contract will test the water to determine 

if additional special chemicals are needed to bring back into code. 

 

  



CONTRACT 

# 

STATE AGENCY  CONTRACTOR 
CONTRACT/ 

AMENDMENT  
AMOUNT 

15515 Department of Training, 

Rehabilitation and Employment 

– Rehabilitation Division 

Cheryl Abbott Contract $27,000 

Contract Description: 

This is a new contract to provide an independent monitor to monitor the effectiveness of the Rehabilitation Services 

Administration Independent Living (RSA/IL) grant administration.  The grant is administered under the auspices of the Aging and 

Disability Services Division (ADSD).  The goals of the monitoring activities are to gauge customer satisfaction, measure the 

impact of the services on the ability of the individuals with disabilities to attain or retain independent living and to verify the 

expenditures were appropriately administered.  The review is designed to meet the need to assure quality services are provided.  

The vendor shall be paid at the completion of each monitoring period's interviews and the acceptance of the final report by the 

Division. 

15427 Department of Agriculture Life Technologies 

Corporation dba Applied 

Biosystems/Invitrogen  

Contract $36,207 

Contract Description: 

This is a new contract to provide certification and full-service maintenance for the Lifetech 7500 Real Time PCR (polymerase 

chain reaction) system and the Lifetech 7500 FAST Real Time PCR system in the Animal Disease and Food Safety Laboratory 

that can do real time animal testing.  Annual maintenance contracts for analytical equipment are required to achieve and maintain 

IOS17025 (International Organization for Standardization) certification. Laboratories use IOS17025 to implement a quality 

system aimed at improving their ability to consistently produce valid results.  The quality assurance programs in diagnostic 

laboratories have to meet this international standard in order to generate legally defensible results.   

15429 Department of Administration – 

Fleet Services Division 

Ideco NV, Inc. Contract $10,000 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract to provide repair, maintenance and certification of gasoline and diesel fuel dispenser equipment such as fuel 

tanks, fuel pumps, and fuel monitoring equipment and fuel dispensers in the Las Vegas area. 

15512 Attorney General’s Office William N. Morrison, Inc. Contract $10,000 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract to provide expert witness services for an accident reconstruction in the defense of a lawsuit filed against the 

State of Nevada. 

15496 Attorney General’s Office White Pine County 

District Attorney 

Contract $25,000 

Contract Description: 
This is a new revenue contract to provide prosecution services on behalf of the Office of the District Attorney, White Pine 

County. 

15476 Department of Employment, 

Training and Rehabilitation –

Rehabilitation Division  

Department of 

Administration 

Contract $20,000 

Contract Description: 

This is a new intrastate interlocal contract that continues on-going services to provide neutral, knowledgeable, and experienced 

attorney Hearing Officer services for hearings as requested; have attorney Hearing Officers attend training offered by the 

Rehabilitation Division or other appropriate entities; have the Chief Hearing Officer assign fair hearings to the appropriate 

attorney Hearing Officer; take and preserve a record of the fair hearing proceedings including providing for audio recordings; as 

needed, prepare a record of the proceedings and transmit it to the applicable court jurisdiction within the time frame established 

by NRS 233B.131(1), or other time frame established by law; and promptly forward any request for a certified court reporter to 

the department. 

13387 Department of Administration –

State Public Works Division  

Roseville Termite & Pest 

Control 

Amend #1 $17,000 

Contract Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original new contract, which provides ongoing pest control services, exterior and interior, on an 

as-needed basis for various state buildings in the Carson City and Reno area, upon the request and approval of a Buildings and 

Grounds designee.  This amendment increases the maximum amount from $20,000 to $37,000 due to an increased need for these 

services. 

 

  



CONTRACT 

# 

STATE AGENCY  CONTRACTOR 
CONTRACT/ 

AMENDMENT  
AMOUNT 

15540 Department of Conservation 

and Natural Resources 

Department of Interiors 

dba Bureau of Land 

Management 

Contract $14,748 

Contract Description: 

This is a new interlocal agreement to conduct an environmental site assessment to provide State Parks and State Lands necessary 

information required to acquire title to the federal land, designated in the Lincoln County and White Pine County Bills to transfer 

to Kershaw Ryan, Cathedral Gorge, Beaver Dam and Ward Charcoal Ovens State Parks. 

15554 Department of Administration –

State Public Works Division 

Coda Architecture Contract $12,600 

Contract Description: 
This is a new contract to provide professional architectural/engineering services to rehabilitate the historic building (Old Las 

Vegas Mormon Fort Park); Project No. 13-M53; Contract No. 95800. 

14243 Department of Employment, 

Training and Rehabilitation –

Rehabilitation Division  

Naval Supply Center – 

San Diego Code 200  

Amend #4 $3,965.17 

Contract Description: 

This is the fourth amendment to the original contract to provide full food service support at the Naval Air Station in Fallon, 

Nevada. This amendment increases the maximum amount from $1,084,743.12 to $1,088,708.29 due to the need for emergency 

food services provided as a result of a plane crash at the Fallon Naval Air Base. 

10876 Department of Employment, 

Training and Rehabilitation –

Employment Security Division  

Las Vegas Interpreters 

Connection, LLC. 

Amend #5 $20,000 

Contract Description: 

This is the fifth amendment to the original contract, which continues ongoing English/Spanish interpretation services at 

Unemployment Insurance hearings and other meetings where interpreters need to be fluent in both languages and the 

interpretation must be on a word-for-word basis for clients. This amendment increases the maximum amount from $185,000 to 

$205,000 due to a continued need for these services. 

14896 Department of Administration – 

Enterprise Information 

Technology Services  

Mentor Services 

Corporation 

Amend #1 $18,000 

Contract Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original contract, which provides Introduction to Removable Media Manager and Hardware 

Management Console Operation training in Carson City, Nevada.  This amendment extends the termination date from          

March 31, 2014 to March 31, 2016, and increases the maximum amount from $12,000 to $30,000 due to continued need for 

training. 

 











Nevada Silver State Health Insurance 

Exchange 

 
 

 

Assessment Report 

April 25, 2014 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 1 - 

Table of Contents 

Executive Summary 2 

Approach 3 

Current State Observations 6 

Option Analysis 17 

Appendices 27 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 2 - 

Executive Summary 

Background 

Deloitte Consulting LLP (Deloitte) was engaged to conduct an assessment of the current state of the 

Silver State Health Insurance Exchange (SSHIX) functionality, supporting processes, and technologies. 

The purpose of the assessment was to identify key strengths, gaps, issues, and remediation options. 

The cooperation of the many stakeholders engaged was integral to the successful completion of the 

assessment. The comments and suggestions refer to all parties unless otherwise identified. 

Key Observations 

Over the course of the assessment, six key improvement opportunities emerged: 

I. Project Management and Governance: A robust project governance framework is necessary for 

successful monitoring, control, stakeholder input, and execution 

II. Solution Functionality: A basic level of functionality must be operational so that the system is 

accessible and usable for consumers and provides insurers with necessary services  

III. Call Center: Targeted improvements in Call Center processes would positively impact consumer 

and public perception 

IV. Technology – Systems Development Life Cycle (SDLC): Adherence to common software 

development practices is necessary to deliver a reliable portal for end-users 

V. Technology – Infrastructure: IT infrastructure and operations must be robust so that the 

Exchange can provide consistent support to its end users 

VI. Technology – Security: Governance over security and visibility into information security controls is 

necessary to secure citizens’ data 

Options 

While there are many options, given the observations gathered during the time of the assessment, 

Deloitte identified three principal options for the Exchange to consider in order to remediate current 

state challenges and meet the deadline for a successful 2015 open enrollment: 

 Option 1 – Remediate the Current System: The SSHIX would continue to use the current 

technology but undertake significant remediation and enhancements 

 Option 2 – Transfer a State Based Marketplace (SBM): The SSHIX would import a functioning 

State Based Marketplace from one of the states that was granted approval by CMS to build and 

operate an SBM 

 Option 3 – Transition to the Federally Facilitated Marketplace (FFM): The SSHIX would 

transition to the FFM for both Individual and Small Business Health Option (SHOP) Exchanges 



Approach 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 4 - 

The assessment addressed six key categories 

 Conducted 109 interviews 

 Received and reviewed over 100 documents 

 Completed sample end-to-end system testing 

 Reviewed coding practices 

 Reviewed operations for data center and Call 

Center 

 

Analysis Discovery 

 Documented observations and analyses 

 Tested, analyzed, and validated preliminary 

observations 

 Summarized current state observations 

 Developed remediation options 

I. Project Management & 

Governance 

II. Solution Functionality 

III. Call Center 

IV. Technology –  

Systems Development  

Life Cycle (SDLC) 

V. Technology – 

Infrastructure 

VI. Technology –  

Security 

1 2 

To efficiently divide project aspects for the assessment and provide an overview of the operational status of the SSHIX, 

Deloitte organized the assessment into these six main categories: 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 5 - 

I. Project 

Management & 

Governance 

II. Solution 

Functionality 

III. Call 

 Center 

IV. Technology 

- SDLC  

V. Technology 

- Infrastructure 

VI. Technology 

- Security 

 

 

 Requirements 

 Release 

Management 

 Design 

 Development 

 Testing  

 Operations 

 Enrollment 

 Brokers 

 Small Business 

Health Option 

(SHOP) 

 Administrative 

 Electronic Data 

Interchange (EDI) 

 Eligibility 

 Plan Management 

 Financial 

Management 

 Testing 

 Configuration 

Management 

 Capacity 

Management 

 Virtualization 

 Performance 

 Backup/Disaster 

Recovery 

 Infrastructure-as-a-

Service (IaaS) 

 Network 

 Security 

Documentation 

 Security 

Architecture 

 Security 

Governance 

 

 

 Organizational 

Management 

 Scope 

Management 

 Communication 

Management 

 Quality 

Management 

 Risk/Issue 

Management 

 Resource 

Management 

 Change 

Management 

 Schedule 

Management 

 Stakeholder 

Management 

The assessment included a detailed analysis across the following 41 focus areas 

 Call Center 

Operating Model 

 Employee 

Engagement 

 Facilities 

 Interactive Voice 

Response (IVR) 

 Learning & 

Development 

 Operating 

Infrastructure 

 Workforce 

Management 



Current State Observations 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 7 - 

I. Project Management & Governance 

Current State Observation 

 Despite being understaffed in roles that support 

business and IT operations, the Exchange continues to 

be dedicated and works tirelessly for the success of the 

program 

 
 Despite many challenges and open issues with the 

program, the Exchange has been able to enroll more 

than 100K Medicaid and 32K Qualified Health Plan 

(QHP) enrollees 

 Project governance lacks structure and a clear 

definition of relationships, roles, and responsibilities for 

contractor, subcontractors, and the Exchange 

 
 Implementing a sound governance framework that is 

interdependent with project management would more 

clearly define the relationships, roles, and 

responsibilities of all internal project team members 

and promote more efficient and timely decision-making 

 

 External stakeholders perceive: 

− issues and concerns are not addressed in a 

timely manner  

− there is infrequent communication throughout 

the duration of the project 

 
 Creating communication pathways to address the 

issues and concerns of key stakeholders would result 

in greater transparency of information and more timely 

issue resolution 

 A lack of pairing of key staff (contractor and the 

Exchange) results in incomplete or delays in 

dissemination of time-sensitive information critical to 

supporting Exchange consumers 

 
 Creating one-to-one counterpart pairing in key staff 

between the Exchange’s and contractor’s key staff 

would facilitate clearer communications and more 

informed and expedient decision making 

Remediation Effect 

  
A robust project governance framework is necessary for successful 

monitoring, control, stakeholder input, and execution 

*Please see appendix for additional current state observations 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 8 - 

I. Project Management & Governance (continued) 

 There appears to be many organizational silos and gaps 

in the contractor’s team structure, which when coupled 

with a geographically dispersed and highly complex 

environment, contribute to misalignment among 

workstreams and fragmentation of responsibilities 

 
 Putting cross-functional decision-making processes in 

place would facilitate better alignment of objectives 

and outcomes among workstreams 

 Formal risk/issue escalation processes and a Change 

Control Board (CCB) are in place for the project but are 

not consistently followed 

 
 Enforcing the formal process to mitigate risks and 

issues would facilitate a more effective and consistent 

approach to problem resolution 

 Project documentation is outdated or incomplete. As of 

this report, 31 of 53 required Xerox deliverables were 

approved (58%). Undocumented changes of priorities, 

resources, and other contingencies have created an 

uncertainty around the current state of the project and its 

priorities 

 
 Keeping documentation up-to-date is critical to 

enabling the Exchange to exert proper oversight of the 

Business Operations Solution (BOS) 

 All significant project management activities (e.g., risk 

and issue management, deliverable management) in the 

contractor Project Management Office (PMO) are 

constrained by a limited number of resources 

 
 Assigning appropriate project management resources 

in the contractor PMO to match the level of 

responsibility and effort would help facilitate greater 

process adherence and enforcement 

Remediation Effect 

  

*Please see appendix for additional current state observations 

A robust project governance framework is necessary for successful 

monitoring, control, stakeholder input, and execution 

Current State Observation 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 9 - 

 Enhancements to check routing and disbursement from 

the P.O. Box have been implemented 

 

 
 Improving the business processes of check routing, 

disbursement, and issue resolution have resulted in a 

significant drop in unallocated payments 

 

 Key basic functionality is missing in the  BOS. As of April 

1, 2014, there are 143 “fast-follow” items that are 

planned (“fast-follow” items refer to functionality gaps 

and in-scope functionality that were deferred until after 

October 2013). In addition, there are 1,500+ outstanding 

defects, of which 500+ are considered higher severity. 

The release plan is not complete 

 
 Addressing the critical functionality gaps and fixing 

outstanding defects in the BOS solution are necessary 

to stabilize the solution and improve the ability for end 

users to use the system effectively. Improving the 

functionality will likely decrease the volume of Call 

Center inquiries and increase Call Center 

representatives’ ability to resolve consumer calls 

 Carriers receive incorrect, missing, and inconsistent 

enrollment and payment information 

 
 Improving the EDI processes may reduce the delays in 

consumers’ health coverage as well as carriers’ 

submission of payments to brokers 

 The Call Center does not have the capacity to accept 

phone calls on a consistent basis during high volumes, 

and when the BOS is inaccessible, the Call Center 

cannot service callers 

 
 Reducing BOS issues and outages would enable the 

Call Center to deliver a higher level of customer 

service and improve the public’s perception of the 

Exchange 

 The testing (Staging) environment is unreliable and does 

not replicate the full end-to-end production environment  

 
 A stable end-to-end Staging environment would enable 

impacted parties (e.g., Exchange, carriers, DWSS) to 

thoroughly test the integration between their systems 

and mitigate issues prior to production release 

II. Solution Functionality 

Remediation Effect 

A basic level of functionality must be operational so that the system is 

accessible and usable for consumers and provides insurers with necessary 

services  

*Please see appendix for additional current state observations 

Current State Observation 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 10 - 

II. Solution Functionality (continued) 

 The BOS solution provides inconsistent results: 

– Advanced Premium Tax Credit (APTC) calculations 

have been inconsistent and APTC is displayed 

incorrectly for adult dental/catastrophic plans 

– The eligibility results screen displays incorrectly and 

provides inconsistent potential eligibility results 

– Carriers have received incorrect cost sharing 

reduction tiers 

 
 Correcting the missing or inconsistent functionality 

would automate the reconciliation of premiums, 

enrollments, and coverage dates for stakeholders, 

including brokers and carriers, while reducing errors 

and improving the user experience 

 

 Brokers and other in-person assisters are often unable 

to use their dedicated portal. Many were never given 

access 

 

 
 Resolving the data integrity challenges would enable 

brokers and other in-person assisters would be able to 

view their lists of clients through the portal, cutting 

down on the need for manual tracking and improving 

their ability to assist in client applications and inquiries 

 The user interface (UI) presents challenges in screen 

navigation. The UI lacks directional guides and useful 

help functionality 

 

 
 Adding directional guides and simplifying language 

and screen flow may improve the overall navigation of 

the BOS solution, reducing consumer errors and 

misunderstanding of rates, premiums, and benefits 

Remediation Effect 

A basic level of functionality must be operational so that the system is 

accessible and usable for consumers and provides insurers with necessary 

services (continued) 

*Please see appendix for additional current state observations 

Current State Observation 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 11 - 

Targeted improvements in Call Center processes would positively impact 

consumer and public perception 

III. Call Center 

 Call Center staff exhibits strong customer facing skills, 

providing information and support in spite of process 

and system issues 

 

 
 Reducing system issues and outages would enable 

the Call Center to deliver an even higher level of 

customer service and develop consistent and 

sustainable processes to better support customers 

over time. This will improve customers’ experience 

and the public’s perception 

 

 A large number of choices in the interactive voice 

response system (IVR) design is confusing to callers 

and prevents many consumers from having a positive 

experience 

 

 
 Redesigning the IVR to identify each caller’s intent 

and route the call to the appropriately skilled agent 

would reduce the need for transfers that negatively 

impact the customer experience 

 

 A manual and ineffective workforce management 

process, which includes forecasting, scheduling, and 

adherence, contributes to long call wait times and high 

rates of abandonment 

 
 Automating the workforce process to respond to 

changes in staffing, call volume, and schedule 

adherence would result in appropriate staffing levels, 

shorter hold times, and improved customer service 

 The Call Center’s learning and development program 

lacks a dedicated call center training environment, and 

the training curriculum has key gaps, including soft 

skills, leadership, and continuous learning 

 
 Developing additional training that addresses learning 

gaps will enable agents to more consistently deliver a 

high level of customer service and reduce instances 

of incorrect information being disseminated 

Remediation Effect 

*Please see appendix for additional current state observations 

Current State Observation 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 12 - 

 The Requirements Traceability Matrix (RTM) and the 

Requirements Specification Document (RSD) are not 

kept up to date with the “fast-follow” user stories that are 

developed 

 

 
 Comprehensive traceability is necessary to ensure that 

all applicable requirements are addressed in the “fast-

follow” user stories, system design, and test cases. Not 

having such traceability creates risks of requirements not 

being met and such issues not being identified until after 

implementation 

 The Software Design Document (SDD) outline is 

approved by the Exchange. However, the detailed 

content of the SDD is being tracked for completion for a 

future date. The contractor is currently working on 

updating the design document in two phases – Phase 

One: Update the design document to reflect the system 

as on production release (Oct 2013). Phase Two: Update 

the design document to include all “fast-follow” changes  

 
 An updated and approved SDD is necessary to clearly 

define the system architecture expectations and facilitate 

the resolution and validation of defect fixes in the BOS 

solution. Relying on individual team members’ 

understanding of the system and requirements increases 

the risk that requirements may be misinterpreted and 

dependent application components may be negatively 

impacted when changes are made to the application 

 

 Based on the American with Disabilities Act (ADA) test 

execution report dated October 14, 2013, 24% of ADA 

compliance test cases failed. As of this report, there is no 

supporting documentation to validate whether these 

issues have been fixed 

 
 Addressing the ADA defects in the BOS solution would 

improve the user experience for individuals with physical 

and visual disabilities. CMS requires solutions developed 

with federal funding to meet ADA accessibility standards 

Adherence to common software development practices is necessary to 

deliver a reliable portal for end-users 

IV. Technology – SDLC 

Remediation Effect 

*Please see appendix for additional current state observations 

Current State Observation 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 13 - 

 A robust Configuration Management process in alignment 

with common software development practices is in place 

 
 Continuing this robust process will help effectively 

manage multiple versions of code in parallel streams, will 

help testing an integrated code base, and will result in 

successful implementation of the BOS solution 

 The BOS solution is not routinely or rigorously tested. 

There is no integrated test environment containing all 

solution components in which to perform end-to-end 

testing. New defects are introduced with new releases 

due to inadequate regression testing. System 

performance tests are not routinely conducted prior to 

releases to production. In addition, User Acceptance 

Testing (UAT) is performed by the vendor instead of by 

Exchange testers, and there are no formal test cases 

executed as part of UAT 

 

 
 Enhanced regression testing with adequate test case 

coverage is necessary to reduce the number of new 

defects introduced into the Production environment. 

Routine performance testing is needed to improve the 

system’s stability and reduce operational issues under 

peak load. A robust UAT should be performed by testers 

independent from the vendor as a critical Quality 

Assurance (QA) step before releasing software into 

production  

 The following key Service Level Agreements (SLAs) are 

not met consistently:   

– Up-time 

– Exchange response time 

– Resolution time 

 
 Service Level Agreement (SLA) monitoring and 

measurement processes need to be clearly documented. 

This process should account for Service Level alerting 

necessary when SLAs are close to the defined SLAs 

metrics. Alerting features help proactive measures be 

taken so that issues can be addressed before SLAs drop 

below the defined SLA metrics 

Adherence to common software development practices is necessary to 

deliver a reliable portal for end-users (continued) 

IV. Technology – SDLC (continued) 

Remediation Effect 

*Please see appendix for additional current state observations 

Current State Observation 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 14 - 

IT infrastructure and operations must be robust so that the Exchange can 

provide consistent support to its end users 

V. Technology – Infrastructure 

 The virtual machine (VM) provisioning process is highly 

manual. An automated process for immediate 

provisioning is required. A VM is a software 

implementation of a machine (e.g., a computer) that 

executes programs like a physical machine 

 

 
 Automating the VM provisioning process would reduce 

the VM provisioning time, improve overall system 

integrity, and lower IT infrastructure and operating 

costs 

 No disaster recovery (DR) test has been conducted 

(successful or otherwise). No confirmed ability to 

successfully restore to production exists; any DR 

synchronization issues could cause a ripple effect on 

other solution components, affecting the 72-hour 

Recovery Time Objective (RTO) key performance 

indicator (KPI) 

 
 Developing, testing, and implementing a sound 

disaster recovery solution would provide for the 

availability of operational data in the event of a disaster 

 Many incidents (including those with high priority) are 

being closed without conducting proper root cause 

analysis. The IT Help Desk Service Reports indicate that 

logged incidents are closed without proper resolution or 

reference to a technical solution 

 
 Conducting proper root cause analysis of all incidents 

would provide insight to core infrastructure issues 

impacting availability/performance and allow for a 

proactive approach to identify and resolve problems 

and issues before other users contact the Call Center 

or the Exchange or abandon their applications 

Remediation Effect 

*Please see appendix for additional current state observations 

Current State Observation 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 15 - 

VI. Technology – Security 

Governance over security and visibility into information security controls is 

necessary to secure citizens’ data 

*Please see appendix for additional current state observations 

Content has been removed for security purposes 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 16 - 

VI. Technology – Security (continued) 

Governance over security and visibility into information security controls is 

necessary to secure citizens’ data (continued) 

*Please see appendix for additional current state observations 

Content has been removed for security purposes 



Option Analysis 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 18 - 

Three options emerge to help remediate the current state challenges facing the SSHIX 

and prepare for a successful 2015 open enrollment 

Option 1:  

“Remediate the Current System” 

Apply business process and technical 

improvements to the current SSHIX 

system  

Option 3:  

“Transition to the Federally  

Funded Marketplace (FFM)” 

Employ the Federal Marketplace 

Option 2:  

“Transfer a State Based 

Marketplace (SBM)” 

Leverage a proven technological solution 

 A robust project governance framework is 

necessary for successful monitoring, control, 

stakeholder input, and execution 

 

 A basic level of functionality must be 

operational so that the system is accessible 

and usable for consumers and provides 

insurers with necessary services 

 

 Targeted improvements in Call Center 

processes would positively impact consumer 

and public perception 

 

 Adherence to common software development 

practices is necessary to deliver a reliable 

portal for end-users 

 

 IT infrastructure and operations must be 

robust so that the Exchange can provide 

consistent support to its end users 

 

 Governance over security and visibility into 

information security controls is necessary to 

secure citizens’ data 

Moving from Observations… ….To Actions 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 19 - 

Activities 

Project Management & Governance 

 Hold all development and application remediation until a functional 

project management and governance structure is established to 

avoid the creation of further issues and/or defects 

 Establish a cohesive governance structure across all project 

workstreams to improve communications and provide project 

oversight 

 Establish a formal escalation process to ensure a proactive and 

consistent approach to mitigating risks and issues 

 Close gaps in the current project management process to effectively 

manage the project deadlines, accountability, and activities 

 Identify additional funding for both state staff and contract services 

for both the Exchange and the contractor for remediation activities 

and ongoing operations activities  

 Establish sound communication and stakeholder management 

 

Call Center 

 Decouple the IVR system from the solution and bring menu, 

prompting, and routing structure into a more stable design of the 

IVR  

 Develop a workforce management playbook with proactive 

scheduling, forecasting, and adherence that accounts for staffing 

and call volume fluctuations 

 Update learning and development program to include additional 

training  

 Solution Functionality  

 Reprioritize scoping and implementation of “fast-follow” items and 

all outstanding defects to address the critical gaps in functionality 

 Design, develop, and implement key functions such as Qualified 

Life Event (QLE), Renewal, and EDI reconciliation  

 Develop user interface navigation tools to assist the user in filling 

out the application and understanding the solution 

 Address the 500+ high priority defects and user interface defects 

that aid in better user experience 

 Identify data integrity and corruption caused by previously fixed 

issues or outstanding issues in application data and resolve it so 

future updates to those applications avoid further issues 

 Conduct thorough reconciliation of 834, 820, and ACH data 

between BOS and carrier systems to confirm correct enrollment 

and disenrollment 

 Conduct thorough financial data reconciliation to account for all 

consumer payments and refund overpaid money 

 Review existing design and implementation with DWSS to reduce 

duplicate application submission for same individual 

 Review design of PDF submission to DWSS and simplify the 

implementation to speed up application process at DWSS 

 Enforce a process to have Department of Insurance (DOI) and 

carriers validate data for accuracy prior to consumers viewing 

carrier plan data in production 

 Resolve broker and navigator portal issues 

 Once the defects pertaining to data integrity issues have been 

addressed, a plan should be developed to scrub erroneous data 

from the BOS solution 

Description 
Continue to use the current technology but undertake significant remediation and enhancements 

Option 1: Remediate the Current System 

Option 2 

Option 3 Option 4 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 20 - 

Activities (continued) 

Technology – SDLC 

 Maintain comprehensive requirements traceability to ensure all 

requirements are developed, tested, and implemented 

 Update, approve, and maintain currency of a system design 

document to build against a consistent design including all pending 

“fast-follow” items 

 Implement a consistent approach and framework for all batch 

modules to facilitate greater maintainability and scalability 

 Develop a single set of coding standards across the different teams, 

developing each functional module to reduce readability and code 

maintainability issues during operations and maintenance 

 Address ADA defects to allow individuals with physical and visual 

disabilities to use the BOS solution 

 Enhance regression test with adequate test case coverage to 

reduce the number of new defects introduced in the production 

environment as part of ‘defect fix’ releases 

 Complete performance testing and application tuning to ensure that 

the application can operate at peak loads 

 Conduct a robust UAT, executing test cases with adequate 

coverage to reduce the number of defects being promoted into the 

production environment 

 Document SLA monitoring and measurement processes. Implement 

Service Level Alerting to alert when service levels are close to the 

defined SLA metrics. Such features help take proactive measures to 

address issues before service levels drop below the defined SLA 

metrics 

 

 

Technology – Infrastructure 

 Update and approve logical, physical, and network infrastructure 

documents for all hosted environments to support operations, 

maintenance, and backup and recovery 

 Implement proactive system management to identify and resolve 

operational issues impacting production 

 Implement virtual environment management processes to support 

hosted operations 

 Revise business continuity/disaster recovery plan and execute 

solution backup and restore test to ensure production continuity 

 

Technology – Security 

 Conduct a thorough current state security assessment of the BOS 

solution for the 288 security controls identified by CMS across the 

18 security domains 

 Document how the SSHIX addresses the security control 

requirement at the application, platform, and network layer, as 

applicable 

 Identify the status of each security control per CMS guidelines and 

document any security weaknesses based on the assessment 

 Develop a Plan of Action and Milestones (POA&M) using the CMS 

template that describes a corrective action plan for each gap 

identified, including points of contacts, timelines, and milestones for 

the respective gaps  

 

 

Description 

Option 1: Remediate the Current System (continued)  

Option 2 

Option 3 Option 4 

Continue to use the current technology but undertake significant remediation and enhancements 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 21 - 

Benefits 

 The contract with the current vendor has already been approved  

 CMS funding is in place 

 Functioning components of the existing solution can be leveraged 

for the future release 

 The state retains control of the Exchange 

 

 

Option 1: Remediate the Current System (continued)  

Risks 

 Remediating the current system requires an aggressive timeline 

and at present, there is no comprehensive work plan to remediate 

issues in time for the 2015 open enrollment 

 The current project team has not proven they can successfully 

deliver the required management, processes, or solution to 

successfully deliver an operational Exchange 

 Successfully achieving desired results requires adherence to an 

aggressive timeline and project milestones 

 Maintaining a high quality of service to existing clients in addition 

to addressing all remediation within the aggressive timeline may 

overburden resources and the current BOS solution, jeopardizing 

the successful completion of the next open enrollment period 

 The information available for analysis, along with project 

management and solution development issues evident at the time 

of the analysis, indicate that the full extent of the architectural and 

technical issues may emerge as remediation efforts progress 

 All key stakeholders have to be reengaged. Not being able to 

address their issues have caused relationship and trust issues 

and without resolution, the success of project is not feasible 

 Additional Exchange resources are needed to support 

remediation activities and ongoing operations  

 Additional CMS funding may be required 

 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 22 - 

Project Management & Governance 

 Obtain necessary federal, state, and board approvals 

 Establish a cohesive governance structure across all project work-

streams to improve communications and provide project oversight 

 Establish a formal escalation process to ensure a proactive and 

consistent approach to mitigating risks and issues leveraging the 

industry standard project management tools  

 Identify additional funding for both state staff and contract services for 

transition activities and ongoing operations activities  

 Establish sound communication and stakeholder management 

 Develop an application development project plan, including detailed 

tasks, work breakdown structures, milestones, and deliverables 

 

Solution Functionality 

 Analyze all pending development and application remediation items 

to minimize the development that is required to continue operations 

until the new system is operational 

 Conduct a “conference room pilot” approach and identify design gaps 

between the functioning SBM and the Nevada-specific needs 

 Configure and deploy SBM based on design gap analysis 

 Develop robust training approach and conduct training for key 

stakeholders 

 Finalize and execute approach for pre-implementation, cut-over, and 

post production release support 

 

Call Center 

 Decouple the IVR system from the solution and bring menu, 

prompting and routing structure into a more stable design of the 

IVR 

 Develop workforce management playbook with proactive 

scheduling, forecasting, and adherence that accounts for staffing 

and call volume fluctuations 

 Update learning and development program to include training for 

new system 

 

Technology – SDLC 

 Verify SBM based system architecture documents and technical 

design documents for each functional module 

 Update, design, configure, customize, and test the SBM solution 

functionality including system interfaces to communicate with the 

Carriers, the Federal Hub, and Nevada State Systems (ACCESS 

NV, Eligibility Engine) 

 Conduct a robust UAT, with user testing, executing test cases 

with adequate coverage to reduce the number of defects being 

promoted into the production environment 

 

 

Activities 

Description 

Transfer a proven, functioning State Based Marketplace (SBM) from one of the states that were granted approval 

by CMS to build and operate an SBM 

 

Option 1 

Option 3 Option 4 

Option 2: Transfer a State Based Marketplace (SBM) 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 23 - 

Technology – Infrastructure 

 Leverage environment infrastructure and network connectivity 

 Configure and validate IT operations 

 Implement a proactive system management to identify and resolve 

operational issues impacting production 

 

Technology – Security 

 Hire IT / Security Officer(s) who have oversight of stabilizing the 

current system and transitioning to the SBM 

 Conduct a security assessment of the identified future SBM 

environment 

 Identify status of each security control per CMS guidelines and 

document any security weaknesses based on the assessment 

 Develop a Plan of Action and Milestones (POA&M) using the 

CMS template that describes a corrective action plan for each 

gap identified, including Points of Contacts, timelines, and 

milestones for the respective gaps  

 

Activities 

Transfer a proven, functioning State Based Marketplace (SBM) from one of the states that were granted approval 

by CMS to build and operate an SBM 

 

Option 1 

Option 3 Option 4 

Option 2: Transfer a State Based Marketplace (SBM) (continued) 

Description 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 24 - 

Benefits 

 The solution is a good strategic fit, satisfying business and 

functional requirements for the Exchange 

 

 The solution is already built and successfully deployed by another 

state; as such, initial ease of use and functionality has been 

achieved  

  

 Solution includes necessary operational procedures, training, 

change management, and documentation 

 

 The solution includes complete design documentation, 

Requirements Traceability, and test scripts, allowing the 

Exchange to reduce the work required before the 2015 open 

enrollment period 

 

 Major solution components such as the user interface have 

already been developed by another state 

 

 The state retains control of the Exchange 

 This allows the Exchange to reengage key stakeholders under 

new project governance 

Risks 

 The implementation timeline for this option requires an immediate 

“go” decision to meet aggressive timelines 

 

 The project timeline is on a critical path and therefore no schedule 

slippage is allowed 

 

 A broad communication and education program will be required 

to assist the public and current enrollees during the system 

transition 

 

 The transferred system will need additional validation to ensure 

interoperability with State of Nevada systems 

 

 There may be additional stress on Call Center capabilities due to 

increased call volume and workforce attrition  

 

 Additional CMS funding may be required 

 

 Additional Exchange resources are needed immediately to 

support transfer activities and ongoing operations until the 2015 

enrollment period 

Option 2: Transfer a State Based Marketplace (SBM) (continued) 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 25 - 

Activities 

Project Management and Governance 

 Nevada to make decision regarding Assessment versus 

Determination Model 

 Identify existing FFM States using the chosen FFM Model and 

conduct lessons learned for the Nevada FFM Transition 

 Obtain necessary federal, state, and board approvals 

 Maintain sufficient operations structure, including training, over the 

next six months to ensure seamless transition to FFM 

 Establish a cohesive governance structure and project plan across 

all project work streams to improve communications and provide 

project oversight 

 Establish formal escalation process to ensure a proactive and 

consistent approach to mitigating risks and issues leveraging 

industry standard project management tools 

 Develop an application development project plan, including detailed 

tasks, work breakdown structures, milestones, and deliverables 
 

Solution Functionality 

 Analyze all pending development and application remediation items 

to minimize the development that is required to continue operations 

until the new system is operational 

 Identify design gaps between the functioning SBM and the Nevada-

specific needs 

 Setup file transfers and required interfaces with CMS for Medicaid 

 Create front-end CMS / FFM interface for Nevada residents  

 Remove APTC / QHP rules from the current eligibility engine 
 

Technology – Security 

 Hire IT / Security Officer(s) who have oversight of stabilizing and 

decommissioning the BOS 

Call Center 

 Maintain operations until the 2015 open enrollment 

 Update staffing model and workforce playbook as required and 

develop ramp down plan 

 Create personnel retention strategy to ensure service levels 

 Train staff on FFM and how to communicate changes with 

constituents including current enrollees 

 Create transition plan for all Call Center activities  
 

Technology – SDLC 

 Conduct elaboration sessions to validate and finalize requirements 

for current system stabilization and FFM transition 

 Configure, customize, and develop solution functionality for current 

system stabilization and FFM transition including carriers and the 

eligibility solution [Access NV, Eligibility Engine] 

 Develop test scenarios and test cases that map to system 

requirements. Conduct integration testing to validate that the 

solution modifications operate effectively together and basic 

functional objectives are being achieved for current system 

stabilization and FFM transition 

 Conduct a robust UAT, executing test cases with adequate 

coverage to reduce the number of defects being promoted into the 

production environment 
 

Technology – Infrastructure 

 Ensure sufficient capacity exists to accept additional volume to 

redirect traffic from the state to the FFM through the ACCESS NV 

system. ACCESS Nevada is the online application system for 

residents of Nevada to apply for social services 

Description 

Currently 27 states utilize the Federally Facilitated Marketplace (FFM). Nevada could transition to this marketplace for both the 

Individual and SHOP Exchanges using one of two models: 1. Assessment Model – The FFM makes an initial assessment of 

Medicaid eligibility and the State Medicaid agency makes final Medicaid determination; 2. Determination Model – The FFM 

makes the final Medicaid eligibility determination and transmits this determination to the State 

The required statutory and regulatory changes are a key driver in determining the timeline as well as the level of effort and cost 

for designing, developing, and testing the file transfer process with CMS in order to transition to the FFM 

 

Option 3:Transition to the Federally Facilitated Marketplace (FFM) 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 26 - 

Benefits 

 There is low technical risk to the State of Nevada as file transfer 

requirements and specifications are already defined by the CMS 

 This relieves the State of Nevada of the responsibility for 

supporting brokers, SHOP, and other future changes and 

enhancements to the Exchanges or the underlying federal 

legislation 

 Transferring responsibilities may reduce long run state costs as 

state personnel, infrastructure, and facilities are replaced with 

CMS resources 

 The solution is already built and successfully deployed for other 

states as such, initial ease of use and functionality has been 

achieved 

Risks 

 The state does not retain control of the health insurance market 

place 

 Transitioning from the SBM to an FFM model for the 2015 open 

enrollment requires that a transition Blueprint be submitted to 

CMS by June 1, 2014 (according to federal guidelines)  

 Additional CMS funding may be required 

 The project timeline is on a critical path and therefore no schedule 

slippage is allowed 

 A broad communication and education program will be required 

to assist the public and current enrollees during the system 

transition 

 CMS may not have the capability to enable transition of the State 

of Nevada to the FFM 

 Delays in legislative and regulatory approval could impact the 

ability to meet the 2015 open enrollment 

 The transition to the FFM may require significant changes to the 

existing eligibility solution 

 Successfully achieving desired results requires adherence to an 

aggressive timeline and project milestones 

 There may be additional stress on Call Center capabilities due to 

increased call volume and workforce attrition  

 Additional Exchange resources, in areas such as PMO, 

technology, operations, and security, are needed to support 

remediation activities and ongoing operations until the 2015 

enrollment period 

Option 3:Transition to the Federally Facilitated Marketplace (FFM) (continued)  



Appendix A:  

Glossary 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 28 - 

Acronym Dictionary 

ACH – Automated Clearing House 

ADA – Americans with Disabilities Act 

APTC – Advanced Premium Tax Credit 

BI/DW – Business Intelligence/Data Warehouse 

BOS – Business Operations Solution 

CCB – Change Control Board  

CHIP – Children’s Health Insurance Program 

CMS – Centers for Medicare & Medicaid 

CPU – Central Processing Unit 

CRM – Customer Relationship Management  

CSR – Cost Sharing Reductions 

DB – Database 

DD&I – Design, Development, & Implementation 

DOI – Division of Insurance 

DR – Disaster Recovery 

DWSS – Division of Welfare and Supportive Services  

EDI – Electronic Data Interchange 

FFM – Federal Funded Marketplace 

HIPAA – Health Insurance Portability & Accountability Act 

HIX – Health Insurance Exchange 

HTTP – Hypertext Transfer Protocol 

HW – Hardware 

IaaS – Infrastructure-as-a-Service  

IRS – Internal Revenue Service 

IS – Information Systems 

IT – Information Technology 

IVR – Interactive Voice Response 

KPI – Key Performance Indicator 

LOE – Level of Effort 

M&O – Maintenance & Operations 

NOMADS – Nevada Operations of Multi-Automated Data Systems 

NSF – Non-Sufficient Funds 

PCP – Primary Care Physician 

PII – Personally Identifiable Information 

PMC – Project Management Center 

PMO – Project Management Office 

Glossary (1 of 2) 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 29 - 

Acronym Dictionary 

POA&M – Plan of Action and Milestones 

PR – Public Relations 

QA – Quality Assurance 

QC – Quality Control 

QHP – Quality Health Plans 

QLE – Qualifying Life Events 

RAC – Real Application Clusters 

RFP – Request for Proposal 

RPO – Recovery Point Objective  

RSD – Requirements Specification Document 

RTO – Recovery Time Objective  

RTM – Requirements Traceability Matrix  

SaaS – Software-as-a-Service 

SBM – State Based Marketplace 

SDD – System Design Document  

SDLC – Systems Development Life Cycle 

SHOP – Small Business Health Options 

SLA – Service Level Agreement 

SME – Subject Matter Expert 

SPR – Safeguard Protection Report 

SSP – System Security Plan  

SQL – Standard Query Language 

SI – Systems Integrations 

SIT – System Integration Testing  

SSHIX – Silver State Health Insurance Exchange  

SSP – System Security Plan 

SW – Software 

UAT – User Acceptance Testing 

UCS – Unified Computing Systems 

UI – User Interface  

VM – Virtual Machine 

XTCM – Xerox Transactional Content Manager 

Glossary (2 of 2) 



Appendix B:  

Resource Enhancement 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 31 - 

Description 
The Exchange should consider adding additional resources in order to support the scope and timeline for a 

successful open enrollment in 2015 

Resource Enhancement 

Option 2 

Option 3 Option 4 

Team Responsibilities 
Anticipated 

FTE(s) 
Estimated Duration 

Project Manager 
Responsible for coordinating activities of all individuals and organizations involved with the 

project; provides overall direction, decisions, and oversight for the Exchange and vendor 

staff 
1 

May 2014 –  

December 2015 

PMO 
Responsible for overseeing project governance, project scope, project planning, and 

administration (including managing the project schedule), the CCB, issues, risks, deliverable 

management and approvals, CMS gate reviews, and overall project coordination 
2 

May 2014 –  

December 2015 

Technical 

Responsible for overseeing the overall technical design and architecture, system security, 

infrastructure and performance, and the review and approval of technical deliverables; 

participates in elaboration sessions; supports troubleshooting technical issues in UAT and 

production 

2 
May 2014 –  

December 2015 

Operations 

Responsible for overseeing ongoing decisions on policy and solution requirements for the 

State of Nevada; participates in elaboration sessions; involved with the prioritization of 

system defects, ad-hoc report coordination, the Call Center, UAT management, including 

test script development; oversees training materials development and execution, 

coordinates progress reports and production readiness; grants approval of data fixes to 

production 

4 
May 2014 –  

December 2015 

UAT Testers 
Responsible for developing solution acceptance scenarios and performing testing on all 

system components; logs and retests defects 
15 

July 2014 –  

November 2014 

*Anticipated FTE numbers estimated based upon Deloitte analysis for comparable organizations 



Appendix C:  

Detailed Current State Observations 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 33 - 

Sub-Dimension Current State Observations Impact 

Change Management 

 The contractor transitioned in different teams and 

subcontractors throughout the project without developing and 

maintaining transition plans 

 Continuity in points of contact would reduce stakeholder 

frustration and perception of continually having to explain 

the same issues 

Change Management  There is an absence of a Change Control Board (CCB) 

 A CCB allows for escalation and visibility if a change 

request is determined to be high risk 

 A CCB prioritizes changes, identifies dependencies 

between changes and determines whether complete 

analysis has been conducted before changes are made 

Change Management 
 There is no documented turnaround time for each step in the 

Change Management approval process  

 Conspicuous approval times reduce delays in getting 

change requests approved and reduce impact on 

operations  

Change Management 
 There is no categorization of change requests (e.g., Normal, 

Standard, Emergency) 

 Having a streamlined process for changes recognized as 

urgent or low-risk would help transition the change through 

the approval process, and result in higher priority items 

being address earlier 

Communication 

Management 

 The process of granting permissions to the SharePoint project 

repository is frequently delayed for select staff, including Call 

Center leads 

 Critical documents, such as the Operations Playbook, 

training manuals, knowledgebase articles, and related 

artifacts should be made accessible to those who require 

them to perform their role 

 Providing the official version of documentation to 

stakeholders avoids mistakes made from relying on 

previous versions or the knowledge of another project 

resource 

I. Project Management & Governance 

I. Project 

Management & 

Governance 

II. Solution 

Functionality 
III. Call Center 

IV. Technology- 

SDLC 

V. Technology- 

Infrastructure 
VI. Technology- 

Security 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 34 - 

Sub-Dimension Current State Observations Impact 

Organizational 

Management  

 There appears to be many organizational silos and gaps in the 

governance structure 

 Organizational siloes can cause communication barriers 

and create a lack of uniformity across sections; 

this can lead to inconsistent status reporting between the 

various “towers” and an inability to provide a concise, 

project-wide status view 

Quality Management 

 There is a lack in formal training documentation  

 Training material is not housed in a centralized location for 

stakeholder access 

 Having formal and accessible training documentations 

would help prevent inconsistency in training resources and 

improve the quality of services to consumers 

Quality Management  Defect reports show tickets are frequently re-opened  

 Having a structured process for troubleshooting tickets, 

establishing root causes and testing resolutions may 

prevent them from being re-opened multiple times  

I. Project Management & Governance 

I. Project 

Management & 

Governance 

II. Solution 

Functionality 
III. Call Center 

IV. Technology- 

SDLC 

V. Technology- 

Infrastructure 
VI. Technology- 

Security 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 35 - 

Sub-Dimension Current State Observations Impact 

Quality Management 
 Roles and responsibilities for User Acceptance Testing (UAT) 

are unclear 

 Having clearer roles and responsibilities for UAT 

participants could reduce inconsistency in the testing 

process and prevent testing from being bypassed and 

changes going directly to production 

Quality Management 
 There is no process or regular meetings to review outstanding 

Help Desk tickets 

 Holding regular meetings to review outstanding Help Desk 

tickets would reduce the length of time tickets are left open 

Resource Management 

 There is a resource management constraint within the 

contractor’s PMO with all significant project management 

activities (e.g., risk and issue management, deliverable 

management) constrained to few resources 

 The resource management constraint could result in a lack 

of process adherence and enforcement 

Resource Management 
 Responsibilities of the Call Center manager appear to be 

unclear and overlapping to those of an operations manager 

 Clearly outlining the responsibilities of the Call Center 

manager and operations manager will help prevent 

overlapping of responsibilities 

Resource Management 
 Help Desk tickets get reassigned to multiple groups before they 

are addressed  

 Taking measures to decrease reassignments of the Help 

Tickets will improve response and closure time 

Resource Management 
 There is a high turn-over rate of subcontractors supporting the 

SSHIX 

 A formal knowledge transfer process would facilitate 

knowledge retention when subcontractors leave the project 

I. Project Management & Governance 

I. Project 

Management & 

Governance 

II. Solution 

Functionality 
III. Call Center 

IV. Technology- 

SDLC 

V. Technology- 

Infrastructure 
VI. Technology- 

Security 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 36 - 

Sub-Dimension Current State Observations Impact 

Risk/Issue Management  There is an absence of a formal risk/issue escalation process  

 The existence of a formal risk/issue escalation process 

would help prevent a reactionary and inconsistent 

approach to mitigating risks and issues 

Risk/Issue Management 

 Call Center workarounds are not formally documented and 

stored; they are distributed primarily through word-of-mouth and 

on an ad hoc basis 

 Disseminating accurate information to all Call Center staff 

and employees would prevent conflicting messages and a 

variety of workarounds for a particular issue 

Risk/Issue Management 

 Risks and issues are not stored in the SharePoint database and 

team members have not been assigned ownership and 

responsibilities as described in the Quality Management Plan 

 Having a method for tracking risks and issues and 

documenting ownership would facilitate timely issue 

resolution 

Schedule Management 

 The master project work plan provided for analysis has not 

been updated since August 2013 to reflect accurate status, 

priority, interdependency, and ownership of tasks and phases 

 

 The work plan is the primary document governing the 

activity of the project team; without the work plan it is 

difficult to identify critical issues and timeframes necessary 

to make the project successful 

 

Schedule Management 

 Maintenance & Operations (M&O) should have begun 

01/01/2014, but the project is delayed and is still in the Design, 

Development & Implementation (DD&I) phase 

 Open enrollment beginning November 2014 is at risk  

I. Project Management & Governance 

I. Project 

Management & 

Governance 

II. Solution 

Functionality 
III. Call Center 

IV. Technology- 

SDLC 

V. Technology- 

Infrastructure 
VI. Technology- 

Security 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 37 - 

Sub-Dimension Current State Observations Impact 

Scope Management 

 Project scope is not being managed using the project schedule 

to track the overall schedule of the project, detailed tasks, 

responsible parties, percentage complete, and dependencies 

as described in the Scope Management Plan 

 Managing rigorously to the project schedule would reduce 

delays in tasks and milestones and reduce scope creep  

Scope Management 

 There is a lack in prioritization of in-scope requirements; the 

higher priority requirements were not implemented by 

production release 

 Implementing the high priority and critical in-scope 

requirements will decrease the likelihood of an 

unsatisfactory user experience 

Stakeholder 

Management 

 There is minimal evidence of the Exchange’s involvement in the 

Call Center operations 

 Increasing the Exchange’s involvement in the Call Center 

operations would increase oversight and visibility 

I. Project Management & Governance 

I. Project 

Management & 

Governance 

II. Solution 

Functionality 
III. Call Center 

IV. Technology- 

SDLC 

V. Technology- 

Infrastructure 
VI. Technology- 

Security 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 38 - 

Sub-Dimension Current State Observations Impact 

Eligibility 

 By design, applications sent from BOS to Nevada Operations of 

Multi-Automated Data Systems (NOMADS) who are known to 

DWSS require a PDF submission, rather than pre-populating 

application data directly into the DWSS system  

 

 As an example, 22,000 applications are awaiting DWSS 

registration (i.e. entry of application data into NOMADS, not 

eligibility determination)  

 Auto pre-populating applications for known individuals in 

DWSS would decrease the number of hours needed to 

resolve such applications 

 

 

Eligibility 
 ID proofing is turned off in the solution 

 

 Turning on ID proofing would help fix the following: 

– Individuals cannot type in wrong data so no worker 

intervention would be required 

– Duplicate applications would be prevented and no 

duplicate benefits could be allowed 

– Multiple accounts could be linked to the same user 

– Call Center could easily identify duplicate applications 

 

 Turning on ID proofing could also have a negative impact 

on people applying for health insurance. The Exchange 

should evaluate the impact of turning on ID proofing 

II. Solution Functionality 

I. Project 

Management & 

Governance 

II. Solution 

Functionality 
III. Call Center 

IV. Technology- 

SDLC 

V. Technology- 

Infrastructure 
VI. Technology- 

Security 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 39 - 

Sub-Dimension Current State Observations Impact 

Eligibility 

 The solution user interface can be confusing to end consumers 

 

 Examples: 

– When asking for monthly income, there is also a drop down 

to indicate frequency of income (weekly, monthly, bi-

weekly, etc.). The individual’s period calculates income 

based on the drop down, not monthly as shown on the 

screen 

– On the individual’s dashboard, the top right flag icon 

hyperlink to tasks is not working 

– When there is a 3-year-old baby girl, the system asks if she 

is pregnant 

– There is 1+ seconds of load time when moving to next 

pages, loading radio button selections, etc. 

– At the start of the application when the first applicant is 

entered, it overwrites income to 0 when there is a missing 

required field 

– If a person is applying as an individual, it asks if he or she 

wants a group or individual qualified health plan selection 

– Asking for date of birth multiple times for the same person 

– Inability to go back to edit information during application 

intake 

– The solution does not save employer contributions after 

clicking "save and continue“. Instead, the "recalculate" 

button must be selected first 

– The solution does not clearly explain how cost sharing 

reduction benefits can only be applied to Silver level plans. 

– The solution does not allow for electronic upload (e.g. via 

Excel) of employer rosters 

 Improvements in the user interface would allow consumers 

to complete the application seamlessly without creating 

duplicate accounts or applications  

 

 Consumers would not need to call the Call Center as often, 

reducing Call Center volumes 

 

 Brokers or in-person assisters can help consumers enroll in 

a timely manner  

 

 Providing a clear explanation of cost sharing reduction 

benefits would allow consumers to make a better choice 

when selecting plans 

 

 If electronic employee roster upload is implemented, the 

time and effort to enroll employees would be reduced 

II. Solution Functionality 

I. Project 

Management & 

Governance 

II. Solution 

Functionality 
III. Call Center 

IV. Technology- 

SDLC 

V. Technology- 

Infrastructure 
VI. Technology- 

Security 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 40 - 

Sub-Dimension Current State Observations Impact 

Financial Management 
 Check routing and disbursement from the P.O. Box has 

improved because of business process improvements 

 Sending benefit checks to the proper processing location 

would prevent delinquency and potential disenrollment 

Financial Management 

 After consumers make a payment online, the activity does not 

appear in the Pending Payment section of the consumer’s 

dashboard 

 Acknowledging processing payments will inform users and 

reassure them that the process is moving forward 

Financial Management 

 There is no financial management reporting 

– No monthly report of individuals enrolled in qualified health 

plans showing amounts of advanced premium tax credit 

and cost-sharing reduction 

– No payment exception reports and notifications to 

individuals are produced 

– No annual financial report is produced 

– No detailed reports to support and reconcile the annual 

financial report 

– No data and reports on trends in premiums 

– No reports on individual premium payments 

 Once proper financial reports can be produced, 

stakeholders, CMS, and IRS will be updated on the 

progress of the Exchange 

 

 Analysis on financial management data can be performed 

once accurate reports are produced 

Financial Management  Grace periods functionality is currently in development 

 Once the functionality is fully implemented, the system will 

automatically track delinquent members and prevent 

members from receiving benefits without paying 

Financial Management 
 Individual) are not informed if their checks do not clear because 

of non-sufficient funds (NSF) 

 If consumers were promptly notified of any NSF payments, 

they could correct the issue and prevent becoming 

delinquent 

Financial Management 
 Invoices/statements are only available via U.S. mail each 

month 
 Individuals are unable to view their invoices via the portal 

II. Solution Functionality 

I. Project 

Management & 

Governance 

II. Solution 

Functionality 
III. Call Center 

IV. Technology- 

SDLC 

V. Technology- 

Infrastructure 
VI. Technology- 

Security 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 41 - 

Sub-Dimension Current State Observations Impact 

Testing 
 The Staging environment is unreliable and builds are deployed 

without contacting impacted parties 

 With a stable test environment and proactive build 

deployment communication, the amount of test coverage 

could increase for each production build 

EDI 

 For certain carriers, reconciliation issues between 834's, 820's, 

and automated clearing house (ACH) payments are proactively 

being identified and spreadsheets of the issues are being sent 

to the carriers with the corresponding EDI files 

 Proactive identification of EDI reconciliation issues results 

in decreased amounts of issue triage required by the 

carriers, decreased amount of time to resolve issues, and 

quicker member enrollment with carriers 

EDI 
 If there are delays in receiving EDI files, carriers are notified 

proactively 

 Carriers are able to adjust their plans accordingly if EDI 

files are not going to be sent by the Exchange 

EDI 

 Health Link does not have the ability to accept 999 response 

files from carriers to confirm that the EDI files were successfully 

received by the carriers 

 By incorporating the ability to receive 999 response files, 

there will be a decreased chance for EDI files to be missed 

by the carriers without the Exchange knowing 

EDI  Carrier defect resolution process is inconsistent and untimely 

 Improving the carrier defect resolution process would 

reduce the amount of effort required for carriers to report 

and view the current status of their issues, decrease the 

turnaround time for issue resolution, reduce the amount of 

redundant issues reported, and decrease the chance for 

issues to become lost and remain unresolved 

II. Solution Functionality 

I. Project 

Management & 

Governance 

II. Solution 

Functionality 
III. Call Center 

IV. Technology- 

SDLC 

V. Technology- 

Infrastructure 
VI. Technology- 

Security 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 42 - 

Sub-Dimension Current State Observations Impact 

EDI 

 The EDI files are formatted correctly to be processed 

electronically by carriers once the reconciliation and invalid data 

issues have been resolved 

 Once the EDI data reconciliation and invalid data issues 

have been resolved, the amount of time required for 

consumers to enroll with carriers will be decreased as the 

EDI files could be processed electronically 

EDI 

 There are consistent data reconciliation issues between the 

834's, 820's, and the automated clearing house (ACH) payments; 

834 and 820 files contain invalid and missing data 

 

 834/820 reconciliation issues include: 

– Members that were part of an ACH payment but had no 

corresponding record in the 820 file 

– Members that did not have matching records in 834/820 

files  

– Different advanced premium tax credit (APTC) amounts 

present on the 834 and 820 files 

 

 834/820 invalid and missing data include: 

– Missing broker licenses 

– Missing Primary Care Physician (PCP) information for 

products that require PCPs 

– Invalid coverage effective dates 

– Duplicate member records 

– Medicaid enrollments that have been sent to qualifying 

health plans 

– Enrollments for the wrong carrier 

– Incorrect APTC amounts 

– Incorrect cost-sharing reduction amounts 

 Resolution of the EDI data reconciliation and invalid data 

issues would result in: 

– Reduced amount of time for members to receive 

health insurance coverage 

– Decreased potential for members to make a payment 

through the Exchange without receiving an enrollment 

record or ID card with the carriers 

– Increased accuracy of enrollment status in the 

Business Operations Solution (BOS) 

– Decreased Exchange Call Center call volume  

– Decreased carrier Call Center call volume 

– Increased levels of customer satisfaction 

– Reduced amount of effort required to manually correct 

EDI issues downstream 

II. Solution Functionality 

I. Project 

Management & 

Governance 

II. Solution 

Functionality 
III. Call Center 

IV. Technology- 

SDLC 

V. Technology- 

Infrastructure 
VI. Technology- 

Security 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 43 - 

Sub-Dimension Current State Observations Impact 

EDI 

 Enrollments are being processed through various EDI 

workarounds by carriers as opposed to being processed 

automatically through the standardized EDI process 

 

 Examples of EDI manual workarounds by carriers include: 

– Manually keying the enrollment data based on contingency 

spreadsheets that contain the data from the 834/820 files 

– Developing a routine to load the contingency spreadsheet 

data into their enrollment system instead of using the 

834/820 files 

– Developing a 834/820 cleanup routine to remove records 

with invalid data prior to processing the 834/820 files 

electronically 

 Processing the EDI files through the standardized electronic 

process would result in: 

– Reduced member demographic errors due to reduced 

amounts of manual data entry 

– Ability to generate automated EDI error reports of 

member records that failed to process 

– Decreased potential for members to make a payment 

through the Exchange without receiving an enrollment 

record or ID card with the carriers 

– Reduced amount of time for members to receive 

health insurance coverage 

– Decreased opportunity for member records to become 

lost during the enrollment process due to reduced 

manual intervention 

– Decreased Exchange Call Center volume  

– Increased levels of customer satisfaction 

EDI 
 Broker license information is inconsistent in the 834 and the 

contingency 834 files 

 Resolution of broker license issues on EDI files will result in 

more timely broker commission payments and increased 

overall enrollment numbers due to improved broker 

satisfaction 

II. Solution Functionality 

I. Project 

Management & 

Governance 

II. Solution 

Functionality 
III. Call Center 

IV. Technology- 

SDLC 

V. Technology- 

Infrastructure 
VI. Technology- 

Security 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 44 - 

Sub-Dimension Current State Observations Impact 

Design - Interfaces 
 Premium payment relies on a manual process to update 

records in the BOS solution after the user makes a payment 

 Users who have made their payment do not always receive 

the credit. Their plan enrollment gets delayed until their 

payment to UMB bank is marked successful 

Design - Interfaces 

 The enrollment process has incomplete code implementation 

according to the Design Document and quality assurance 

checks. This results in manual intervention for sending 

enrollments to the carriers 

 Automating or revising the current manual process would 

reduce effort required by the carriers and accelerate the 

enrollment of users to their plans 

Broker 

 

 By design, the solution does not save the Broker/other in-

person linkage to individual or employer accounts when initially 

completing an enrollment 

 If the solution linked Brokers or in-person assisters to 

individual or employer accounts: 

– Brokers would be able to address their clients' 

questions and concerns about their enrollments and 

expedite responses to clients 

– Brokers and in-person assisters would receive 

payments consistently and in a timely manner 

Broker/Training 

 Most broker and in-person assisters indicated that training was 

very high-level and did not include system specifics or a system 

walkthrough 

 The Exchange implemented a hands-on training program 

in October 2013 to provide a better training experience 

II. Solution Functionality 

I. Project 

Management & 

Governance 

II. Solution 

Functionality 
III. Call Center 

IV. Technology- 

SDLC 

V. Technology- 

Infrastructure 
VI. Technology- 

Security 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 45 - 

Sub-Dimension Current State Observations Impact 

Broker 

 At the Exchange’s direction, brokers and other in-person 

assisters are directed to use the individual portal instead of their 

dedicated assister portals  

 If the brokers and other in-person assisters are directed to 

the dedicated assister portals, this would have the following 

benefits: 

- Brokers and other in-person assisters can keep 

track of which clients(employers or individuals) 

are linked to them 

- They will be better able to address their clients' 

questions and concerns about their enrollments 

through the solution, minimizing delayed 

responses to clients 

- Brokers and other in-person assisters will be able 

to view correspondences directed to them and 

their clients. They will also be able to track their 

client accounts, which is normally allowed by the 

portal 

- Manual processes to maintain the linkage 

between the broker/in person assisters and their 

clients would be minimized 

- Brokers and other in-person assisters would 

receive full and timely payments for clients 

II. Solution Functionality 

I. Project 

Management & 

Governance 

II. Solution 

Functionality 
III. Call Center 

IV. Technology- 

SDLC 

V. Technology- 

Infrastructure 
VI. Technology- 

Security 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 46 - 

Sub-Dimension Current State Observations Impact 

SHOP 

 After an employee is enrolled in a plan, the solution displays 

aggregate payments, but does not display plan information in 

either the employee or the employer's accounts 

 If the solution accurately displays plan information in both 

the employer and employee accounts, the employee will 

clearly understand the status of his/her SHOP health 

coverage, leading to decreased calls to the employer, the 

Call Center, and the Exchange. In addition, the employer 

and the Call Center will be able to verify the employee's 

coverage status or plan information 

SHOP 

 Plan selection defects hamper employers’ ability to determine 

employee plans and contribution amount. 

- Employer plan selections screen does not always 

display the correct premium amounts 

- When choosing plans, employers are unable to sort 

plans by carrier, carrier/metal levels, or all plans 

 If the plan selection defects are resolved, employers will 

consistently be able to more consistently assess how much 

a plan would cost the employer/employee and set a fixed 

dollar value for employee contribution 

 

 The ability for employers to sort plans by carrier, 

carrier/metal levels, or all plans would provide more 

flexibility for employers to when selecting plans 

SHOP 

 SHOP is rarely used due to few plan options, little perceived 

benefit to employers and employees, and website issues. Even 

if the website was fixed, there is uncertainty as to whether 

SHOP will be used 

 The SHOP module is infrequently utilized by Nevada's 

employers and their employees 

Enrollment 
 An automated delinquency and disenrollment process is yet to 

be implemented 

 If an automated delinquency/disenrollment process is 

implemented, clients with delinquent accounts will not 

continue to receive services and carriers will not have to 

pend claims for those clients, resulting in fewer unpaid or 

delayed payments to providers 

II. Solution Functionality 

I. Project 

Management & 

Governance 

II. Solution 

Functionality 
III. Call Center 

IV. Technology- 

SDLC 

V. Technology- 

Infrastructure 
VI. Technology- 

Security 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 47 - 

Sub-Dimension Current State Observations Impact 

Enrollment 

 Portal user interface can be confusing to end consumers. As an 

example, the client home page in the portal displays a "resume" 

button or a "pending" status for the policy even when a client 

has confirmed Medicaid eligibility and has chosen a plan. If a 

client clicks the resume button the solution takes the client to a 

blank application. Clients may conclude that they are to 

complete another application. For SHOP, the solution displays 

that an employee is part of a pending employer enrollment but 

does not display plan information and the employer's account 

displays aggregated payments but does not display the plans in 

which the employees have enrolled 

 If the solution provides individuals a confirmation regarding 

the true status of their enrollment, consumers would have 

visibility into the true status of their enrollment and Call 

Center, DWSS and employer call volumes would be 

reduced 

Enrollment 

 Clients cannot easily understand the cost-sharing tier for which 

they are eligible. A drop down list with six cost-sharing options 

is displayed, but there are no explanations/frequently asked 

questions provided 

 If the solution provides an intuitive interface for the user to 

understand the cost-sharing tier, the consumer would be 

able understand what cost-sharing tier they qualify for and 

how the CSRs apply to a given plan, reducing Call Center 

volume and the workload of brokers/Exchange enrollment 

facilitators 

Enrollment 

 Throughout the application intake, plan selection, and payment 

initiation screens, the system experiences unresolvable errors 

that occur in an unpredictable manner 

 If the errors are identified and resolved, users will be able 

to complete their applications in a timely manner, reducing 

the workload for contact center workers 

Enrollment 

 During the open enrollment period, some carriers reported 

frequently receiving enrollments with retroactive coverage 

effective dates 

 If the Exchange transmits enrollment information correctly 

(via an automated EDI process rather than contingency 

files), there will be less manual effort required from the 

carrier and Exchange to reconcile incorrect coverage 

effective dates 

II. Solution Functionality 

I. Project 

Management & 

Governance 

II. Solution 

Functionality 
III. Call Center 

IV. Technology- 

SDLC 

V. Technology- 

Infrastructure 
VI. Technology- 

Security 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 48 - 

Sub-Dimension Current State Observations Impact 

Enrollment 

 Cost-sharing reduction tiers and corresponding calculations are 

inconsistent. Carriers have reported receiving weekly correction 

reports from the Exchange 

 If CSR premium subsidy calculation are calculated 

correctly, this will result in the following: 

- Users would receive ID cards with the correct 

cost-sharing tier 

- Provider claims would not need to be re-

adjudicated and refunds and copays would not 

need to be collected 

- Carriers would not have to collect or refund from 

HHS 

- Provider and member would not be confused 

regarding the correct CSR premium subsidy 

Enrollment 

 The solution does not allow users to make changes to their 

application (e.g. Qualifying Life Events) via the self-service 

portal. The consumers can only report changes through the Call 

Center 

 If the solution offers users a way to report Qualifying Life 

Events through the portal, a manual workaround through 

the Call Center will not be required, decreasing effort 

required by both consumers as well as Call Center 

representatives 

Enrollment 

 There appear to be several advanced premium tax credit 

(APTC) related issues, including:  

- Plan selection screens often display APTC amounts 

inaccurately 

- APTC amounts are sometimes incorrectly applied to 

catastrophic and adult dental plans 

- Invoices display APTC amounts inaccurately and 

inconsistently 

 If APTC issues are resolved, consumers will pay – and 

carriers will receive – correct premiums. In addition, the 

manual effort involved in reconciling APTC and premiums 

will be reduced, minimizing impact on consumers' end of 

year IRS reconciliation 

II. Solution Functionality 

I. Project 

Management & 

Governance 

II. Solution 

Functionality 
III. Call Center 

IV. Technology- 

SDLC 

V. Technology- 

Infrastructure 
VI. Technology- 

Security 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 49 - 

Sub-Dimension Current State Observations Impact 

Administrative 

 When an individual has previously been denied Medicaid during 

DWSS final determination, Call Center representatives have 

created a workaround of adjusting the individual's income to 

result in an automatic denial of Medicaid in order to force 

eligibility for qualified health plans (QHP)/advanced premium 

tax credit (APTC) 

 If the solution automatically redetermines eligibility for 

QHP/APTC after an individual is found ineligible for 

Medicaid, the individual would not have to start a new 

application with different income data 

Administrative 

 QHP/APTC consumers have 90 days to send documentation, 

but some customer service representatives (CSR) are unaware 

of processes to follow up and verify what was sent is valid 

 Having formal processes for verifying individuals’ 

documentation would prevent ineligible clients from 

receiving benefits  

Administrative 
 Dis-enrollments are not happening when consumers do not 

send in verification documentation 

 Automatically dis-enrolling consumers who do not submit 

verification documentation would prevent ineligible clients 

from receiving benefits 

Administrative 
 The Call Center in Tallahassee handles call overflows from the 

Henderson Call Center during heavy call volume periods 

 The Tallahassee Call Center handling overflow results in 

fewer calls being abandoned during periods of heavy call 

volumes 

Administrative 

 Manual workarounds are not incorporated into the core 

operating processes at the Call Center. Ad hoc troubleshooting 

is common practice 

 Consumers and brokers would receive consistent and 

accurate information from the Call Center if best practices 

for issue resolution were shared or documented uniformly 

II. Solution Functionality 

I. Project 

Management & 

Governance 

II. Solution 

Functionality 
III. Call Center 

IV. Technology- 

SDLC 

V. Technology- 

Infrastructure 
VI. Technology- 

Security 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 50 - 

Sub-Dimension Current State Observations Impact 

Administrative 

 New customer service representative training programs do not 

include interactive training. Customer service representatives 

sometimes rely on word of mouth to compensate for training 

program deficiencies, inaccessible frequently asked questions, 

standard operating procedures, and a lack of comprehensive 

knowledge management system 

 Interactive training at the Call Center would increase new 

agent efficiency and accuracy and would decrease 

customer and broker frustration and average handle times 

 

 A comprehensive knowledge management system would 

ensure that Information provided to clients and brokers is 

consistent across customer service representatives 

Administrative 

 Knowledge of processes for triaging, escalating, tracking, and 

resolving errors is not uniformly employed or understood. 

Sometimes customer service representatives follow up 

with/notify consumers, and sometimes the customer service 

representatives tell the customer to come back in a few days to 

initiate a new application 

 Formal processes for error resolution would ensure 

consistent customer service and user experience for 

individuals and brokers 

Administrative 

 Customer service representatives are unable to view payments 

made by an individual. To determine if a payment has been 

made, customer service representatives must escalate to 

Finance Team 

 

 Customer service representatives have created a manual 

workaround to determine receipt of payment in which they view 

the image of the scanned payment envelope in the XTCM 

(document management system), as Call Center does not scan 

checks into XTCM. CSRs are potentially giving out incorrect 

payment information 

 If the solution displayed payment information, consumers, 

carriers, and customer service representatives would be 

able to verify payment status without escalation 

II. Solution Functionality 

I. Project 

Management & 

Governance 

II. Solution 

Functionality 
III. Call Center 

IV. Technology- 

SDLC 

V. Technology- 

Infrastructure 
VI. Technology- 

Security 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 51 - 

Sub-Dimension Current State Observations Impact 

Call Center Operating 

Model 

 Performance metrics are not representative of generally 

observed levels for Call Centers (e.g., 90/30 – 90% of calls must 

be answered within 30 seconds while industry norm is 80/20) 

 Call center operations and performance is hampered by multiple 

changes to the organization model, roles, and responsibilities 

 The Call Center governance model and immature change 

management processes hinder the Call Center’s ability to rapidly 

adapt to the changing landscape 

 Stronger programs and processes would enable the Call 

Center to better respond to changes / fluctuations in a timely 

manner 

 A negative customer experience contributes to a negative 

public perception  

 Confidence in reporting impairs the Call Center and 

Exchange's ability to understand current operations 

Employee Engagement 

 Call Center staff (agents) are very professional and helpful in 

their efforts to address the various customer concerns, escalating 

issues as appropriate 

 This results in a positive impact to Nevada consumers, 

helping to improve the public’s perception of the Exchange 

Facilities 

 Facilities are not representative of mature call centers; the 

physical layout, desk setup, and ergonomics all require 

improvements (e.g., desk ergonomics, construction materials, 

and equipment) 

 An improved physical environment can increase employee’s 

productivity, morale, and retention, and contribute to a better 

customer experience 

 There is a limited ability to scale in the current location 

Inbound Technology 

(IVR) 

 The interactive voice response system (IVR) does not adhere to 

industry best practices and the Call Center lacks a continuous 

improvement process for IVR review 

 There is an ineffective capacity strategy, specifically for scaling to 

large call volume 

 An improved IVR design would be less cumbersome and 

more considerate of consumers’ needs and time, provide 

optimized self service to reduce call volume, and streamline 

access to the right CSR  

III. Call Center 

VI. Technology- 

Security 

I. Project 

Management & 

Governance 

II. Solution 

Functionality 
III. Call Center 

IV. Technology- 

SDLC 

V. Technology- 

Infrastructure 
VI. Technology- 

Security 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 52 - 

Sub-Dimension Current State Observations Impact 

Learning & 

Development 

 A dedicated training environment for the Call Center training 

team is needed to develop and maintain consistency 

 The training curriculum is underdeveloped and has gaps in 

training including soft skills, leadership, and continuous learning 

 Additional training would improve customer service, agent 

effectiveness, retention and reduce, the instances of 

incorrect information being disseminated 

Operating 

Infrastructure 

 A key business critical system supporting and enabling the Call 

Center (Interactive Intelligence), does not have a maintenance 

contract in place 

 Call Center technology could be enhanced to include functionality 

such as barge-in, scheduled callbacks, and metric wall boards 

and screens 

 Additional Interactive Intelligence functionality would enable 

more consumers to reach a CSR and have their issues 

resolved in a timely manner 

 Support and maintenance contracts would enable rapid 

response and the addition of new enhancements and 

technologies during a system outage 

 Expanded technology functionality would enable 

management and agents to better respond in real time to 

fluctuations in call volume 

Workforce 

Management 

 The workforce planning organization has several highly manual 

processes (e.g., reporting) 

 Forecast models have been unable to keep pace with actual call 

volume 

 The workforce planning organization lacks a workforce 

management playbook 

 A more robust workforce planning organization will allow the 

Call Center to respond to changes and fluctuations in a 

timely manner to meet contracted SLAs and enable a 

positive customer experience and an improved public 

perception 

III. Call Center 

VI. Technology- 

Security 

I. Project 

Management & 

Governance 

II. Solution 

Functionality 
III. Call Center 

IV. Technology- 

SDLC 

V. Technology- 

Infrastructure 
VI. Technology- 

Security 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 53 - 

Sub-Dimension Current State Observations Impact 

Development - 

Processes 

 A robust Configuration Management process is in line with 

leading practices in the industry 

 Continuing this process would help control multiple 

versions of code in parallel streams 

Release Management – 

“Fast-Follow” 

 There are 143 “fast-follow” items that are still outstanding 

A release plan for the outstanding "fast-follow" items has not 

been finalized 

 Addressing critical functionality gaps in the BOS solution 

would improve the ability for end users to use the system 

effectively 

Release Management - 

Defect Fixes 

 There are currently more than 500+ sev1/sev2 defects and 

1,000+ sev3/sev4 defects, and a release plan for the defect 

fixes has not been put in place 

 A release plan for defect fixes would provide the Exchange 

with visibility into when these defects would be resolved 

Design - 

Documentation 

 The Software Design Document (SDD) outline is approved by 

the Exchange. However, the detailed content of the SDD is 

being tracked for completion for a future date. The contractor is 

currently working on updating the design document in two 

phases – Phase One: Update the design document to reflect 

the system as on production release (Oct 2013). Phase Two: 

Update the design document to include all “fast-follow” changes 

 

 Currently, defect resolution is highly dependent on the 

institutional knowledge of the team who designed and 

architected the system 

 An updated and approved SDD is necessary to clearly 

define the system architecture expectations and facilitate 

the resolution and validation of defect fixes in the BOS 

solution. Relying on individual team members’ 

understanding of the system and requirements increases 

the risk that requirements may be misinterpreted and 

dependent application components may be negatively 

impacted when changes are made to the application 

IV. Technology - SDLC 

VI. Technology- 

Security 

I. Project 

Management & 

Governance 

II. Solution 

Functionality 
III. Call Center 

IV. Technology- 

SDLC 

V. Technology- 

Infrastructure 
VI. Technology- 

Security 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 54 - 

Sub-Dimension Current State Observations Impact 

Requirements - 

Traceability  

 The Requirements Traceability Matrix (RTM) and the 

Requirements Specification Document (RSD) are not kept up to 

date with the “fast-follow” user stories that are developed 

 Comprehensive traceability would help ensure that all 

applicable requirements are addressed in the “fast-follow” 

user stories and test cases. Not having such traceability 

creates risks of requirements not being met and not 

identifying such issues until after implementation 

Release 

Management - 

Documentation 

 Rapid changes are made to the application without updating 

associated documentation such as the System Design, Test 

Cases, or Training Manuals 

 Keeping design, testing, and training documentation 

consistent with the application would stabilize code and 

facilitate more accurate training for brokers, navigators, Call 

Center, and production operations staff 

Design - Interfaces 

 The enrollment process has incomplete code implementation 

according to the Design Document and quality assurance 

checks. This results in manual intervention for sending 

enrollments to the carriers 

 Automating or revising the current manual process would 

reduce the effort required by the carriers and accelerate the 

enrollment of users to their plans  

Design - Interfaces 
 Premium payment relies on a manual process to update records 

in the BOS solution after the user makes a payment 

 Users who have made their payment do not always receive 

the credit. Their plan enrollment gets delayed until their 

payment to UMB bank is marked successful 

IV. Technology - SDLC 

VI. Technology- 

Security 

I. Project 

Management & 

Governance 

II. Solution 

Functionality 
III. Call Center 

IV. Technology- 

SDLC 

V. Technology- 

Infrastructure 
VI. Technology- 

Security 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 55 - 

Sub-Dimension Current State Observations Impact 

Design - Security 
 Identity proofing is currently turned off; therefore, Deloitte was 

unable to validate this functionality 

 BOS solution is currently unable to validate Personally 

Identifiable Information (PII) of the user resulting in user 

application inconsistencies and duplication of applications 

Development - 

Exception Handling 

 BOS solution code is inconsistently handling exception 

scenarios 

 Consistent handling of all error scenarios in the code would 

increase the likelihood of the application giving a correct 

error message to the user. In addition, customer service 

representatives would be able to more effectively resolve 

user issues 

Operations - SLA 

Compliance 

 The Service Level Agreement is not met for the following key 

performance indicators:  

- Up-Time (October 2013 - March 2014) 

- Down Time (October 2013 - March 2014) 

- Exchange Resolution Time (January 2014 - February 

2014) 

- Resolution Time (October 2013 - March 2014) 

- Image Availability (December 2013 - February 2014) 

 Consistent performance meeting the defined Service Level 

Agreements would improve the end user experience 

Testing- ADA 

Compliance 

 Based on the ADA Test execution report dated 10/14/2013, 

24% of ADA compliance test cases failed. There is no 

supporting documentation to validate whether these issues 

have been fixed 

 Addressing these defects would enable individuals with 

physical and visual disabilities to use the BOS solution 

more effectively and accurately  

Testing- Defect 

Management 

 23% of the 1,200+ pending defects logged in the defect 

management tool lack key information needed to perform root 

cause analysis 

 The SSHIX is unable to draw meaningful analysis and 

properly plan defect fixes due to gaps in recorded data  

IV. Technology - SDLC 

VI. Technology- 

Security 

I. Project 

Management & 

Governance 

II. Solution 

Functionality 
III. Call Center 

IV. Technology- 

SDLC 

V. Technology- 

Infrastructure 
VI. Technology- 

Security 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 56 - 

Sub-Dimension Current State Observations Impact 

Testing- Performance 

Testing 

 System performance tests are not routinely conducted prior to 

releases to production 

 Routine performance testing would improve the system’s 

stability and reduce operational issues under peak load 

Testing- Regression  
 New defects are introduced with 'Defect Fix' releases due to 

inadequate regression testing 

 Enhanced regression testing would reduce the number of 

new defects introduced in the production environment to be 

observed by users of the BOS solution 

Testing- UAT 

 User Acceptance Testing (UAT) is performed by Xerox instead 

of by users. There is no dedicated UAT test environment and 

there are no test cases executed as part of UAT 

 A robust UAT performed by users is missing critical Quality 

Assurance step in the Systems Development Lifecycle 

(SDLC), reducing the number of fixes being promoted to 

the production environment 

Testing- Environments 
 There is no integrated test environment with all solution 

components to perform end-to-end testing 

 Integrated testing in the lower environments will help to 

uncover application issues and reduce the likelihood of 

defects in the production environment 

Design - Batches 
 System batches have not been developed using a consistent 

approach or framework. Batch error notification is inconsistent 

 A consistent approach for all batches would facilitate 

greater maintainability and scalability 

IV. Technology - SDLC 

VI. Technology- 

Security 

I. Project 

Management & 

Governance 

II. Solution 

Functionality 
III. Call Center 

IV. Technology- 

SDLC 

V. Technology- 

Infrastructure 
VI. Technology- 

Security 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 57 - 

Sub-Dimension Current State Observations Impact 

Development - Coding 

Standards 

 Coding standards are inconsistently implemented. Development 

teams do not have a coding standards document for reference 

during coding 

 A single set of coding standards across the different teams 

that develop each functional module would reduce 

readability issues and code maintainability issues during 

operations and maintenance 

 Proper code governance would reduce memory leakages 

and improve system performance issues 

Operations - SLA 

Monitoring 

 The process to measure the 'Exchange Response Time' SLA 

only captures the time it takes for the BOS solution homepage 

to load. It does not measure the response time for any 

transactions within the BOS solution 

 A redefined SLA measurement would provide a more 

accurate indication of the transaction response time 

experienced by the end users 

IV. Technology - SDLC 

VI. Technology- 

Security 

I. Project 

Management & 

Governance 

II. Solution 

Functionality 
III. Call Center 

IV. Technology- 

SDLC 

V. Technology- 

Infrastructure 
VI. Technology- 

Security 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 58 - 

Sub-Dimension Current State Observations Impact 

Incident Management 

 Many incidents (including high priority) were closed without 

proper root cause analysis done or logged in the IT Help Desk 

Service Reports. This suggests there is low adoption of standard 

incident management processes  

 There is no traceability between the incidents and defects raised. 

As a result there is no validation that deployed fixes address 

known incidents 

 Conducting proper root cause analysis of all incidents would 

provide insight to core infrastructure issues impacting 

availability/performance 

 Having the traceability and visibility of right resolution 

analysis would show the current situation and help detect 

recurring incidents, which could not be unearthed without 

proper root cause analysis 

Document 

Management  

 Information populated in approved documents such as the 

“Hosting Environment Document” is invalid when compared to 

the current solution deployment state. This was caused by a last 

minute move of the BOS solution hosting from Choice Data 

center to Xerox data centers 

 Published documents are severely out dated and the availability 

of the current in-production BOS solution operational plan is 

unknown 

 Developing a complete standardized and documented BOS 

solution operational plan would lead to adoption of standard 

operational processes 

 Currently, all of the operational knowledge is undocumented 

so the contractor has had to rely heavily on personnel who 

implemented the solution for ongoing support 

 The operational group responsible for BOS solution from 

both Nevada Exchange and Leadership perspective will not 

have the necessary documentation on the solution’s 

expectations 

Configuration 

Management 

 The majority of the memory utilization issues identified in the IT 

monthly service desk reports have been hypothesized as a 

problem by Microsoft, whose fix was deployed on 02/22/14 

 The March 2014 IT monthly service desk report was needed to 

confirm the hypothesis, which was not provided 

 Overall response of the solution will be slower during the 

SQL synchronization 

 If the web portal memory leak issue is not fixed, then users 

may still experience significant latency and HTTP 500/501 

errors 

V. Technology - Infrastructure 

II. Solution 

Functionality 
III. Call Center 

IV. Technology- 

SDLC 

V. Technology- 

Infrastructure 

VI. Technology- 

Security 

I. Project 

Management & 

Governance 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 59 - 

Sub-Dimension Current State Observations Impact 

Virtualization Cloud 

Operations 

 Provisioning of workloads and virtual machines (VMs) for the 

BOS solution from VM templates is done manually instead of by 

using an automated process indicating a low level of cloud 

adoption maturity and capabilities 

 Migration of the hosting of the BOS solution from the Choice data 

center to the Xerox data center was done as equal clone of VMs. 

All the capacity planning and sizing configurations were taken 

from the Choice-hosted solution. There was no independent 

capacity planning and sizing that was done taking variables 

specific to Xerox into account 

 Any change in configuration of workload or VM template 

currently would require substantial manual exercise in both 

data centers on every VM 

 Automating the VM provisioning process would reduce the 

VM provisioning time, improve overall system integrity, and 

dramatically lower IT infrastructure and operating costs 

 Automation would also significantly reduce the IT service 

desk incidences showing unavailability of servers/services, 

storage constraints, and high CPU utilization, which are 

currently affecting the solution availability  

IaaS-Storage 
 There is no formal data archival and retention process in place 

 

 Having a formal data retention policy defined would eliminate 

the current problem of continuous data growth in the primary 

data store and DR facility. It would also reduce current 

problems in performance and storage capacity/availability, 

and would reduce the financial burden to procure and 

maintain increasing capacity demands of the primary data 

store and DR facility  

Disaster Recovery 

 According to the contractor, there has never been a disaster 

recovery test (successful or otherwise), Therefore they have 

never confirmed the ability to successfully restore to production. 

Additionally, there are no defined Recovery Point Objectives 

(RPO) and RTO remains loosely defined as 72 hours 

 Any DR synchronization issues could cause a ripple effect 

on other solution components affecting the 72 hour 

Recovery Time Objective (RTO) key performance indicator 

(KPI) 

 Developing, testing, and implementing a sound disaster 

recovery solution would provide for the availability of 

operational data in the event of a disaster 

V. Technology - Infrastructure 

II. Solution 

Functionality 
III. Call Center 

IV. Technology- 

SDLC 

V. Technology- 

Infrastructure 

VI. Technology- 

Security 

I. Project 

Management & 

Governance 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 60 - 

Sub-Dimension Current State Observations Impact 

SLA 

 The KPI requirement on the Xerox SLA to provide 99.9% uptime 

of the BOS solution (which equals 43.2 minutes of maximum 

downtime) has not been met consistently  

 Due to ongoing performance issues and the unavailability of 

significant components, the BOS Solution will continue to 

see unplanned outages and consumers will continue to have 

trouble accessing the solution 

Capacity Management 

 Some of the BOS solution servers are consistently running out of 

storage space due to logs filling up the space. This is due to the 

granularity and details at which logs are stored. There is no 

automated cleanup processes in place, suggesting a reactive, 

rather than proactive, solution  

 When the data centers moved from Choice Administrators to 

Xerox, no independent capacity planning was done taking 

Xerox's data center operational environment variables into 

account. This suggests that workload configurations may not 

have been calculated correctly, taking all variables into 

consideration, causing regular out of space issues 

 This might cause service availability issues for various 

components of the BOS solution  

Network  BOS solution services availability has been lower than expected 
 The BOS solution has been unable to meet the State's 

expectations for up-time 

V. Technology - Infrastructure 

II. Solution 

Functionality 
III. Call Center 

IV. Technology- 

SDLC 

V. Technology- 

Infrastructure 

VI. Technology- 

Security 

I. Project 

Management & 

Governance 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 61 - 

Sub-Dimension Current State Observations Impact 

Performance -

Virtualization 

 CPU Utilization has exceeded 90% on some of the BOS solution 

servers, which can result in performance issues for the whole 

BOS solution  

 This might cause service availability issues for various 

components of the BOS solution  

Performance-DB 

 BI/DW database server in production environment is Oracle RAC, 

however the non-production environments (Dev & Test) use 

Oracle Enterprise server  

 Long running queries developed in future could impact 

performance of BI/DW component 

 Major platform shifts between Dev/test and Prod often 

resulting performance issues and limited ability to trace and 

resolve issues 

Cloud Configuration 

 Xerox maintains two separate private clouds based on Cisco 

UCS and VMware vSphere, one in Pittsburgh and one in Dallas. 

BOS SaaS solution (Single Tenant) is deployed in primary data 

center (Pittsburgh) and the DR solution for BOS is located in 

Dallas. Primary data center for BOS Call Center is in Dallas with 

DR solution located in Pittsburg 

 Separation of two clouds have limited the capacity of 

resource pools which could impact temporary requirements 

for cloud burst between Xerox data centers. This also limits 

provisioning between data centers and is making 

interoperability between data centers impossible 

IaaS-DB 
 Oracle RAC and Oracle Enterprise Servers are running on 

physical machines and are not virtualized  

 Any additional requirements related to performance increase 

of Oracle database would require provisioning and 

procurement of new hardware and reconfiguration and 

testing of the Oracle DB as well as significant downtime of 

production BI/DW component  

V. Technology - Infrastructure 

II. Solution 

Functionality 
III. Call Center 

IV. Technology- 

SDLC 

V. Technology- 

Infrastructure 

VI. Technology- 

Security 

I. Project 

Management & 

Governance 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 62 - 

Sub-Dimension Current State Observations Impact 

VI. Technology - Security 

II. Solution 

Functionality 
III. Call Center 

IV. Technology- 

SDLC 

V. Technology- 

Infrastructure 
VI. Technology- 

Security 

I. Project 

Management & 

Governance 

Content has been removed for security purposes 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 63 - 

Sub-Dimension Current State Observations Impact 

VI. Technology - Security 

II. Solution 

Functionality 
III. Call Center 

IV. Technology- 

SDLC 

V. Technology- 

Infrastructure 
VI. Technology- 

Security 

I. Project 

Management & 

Governance 

Content has been removed for security purposes 



Appendix D:  

Code Review Meetings Conducted 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 65 - 

Item Agenda Presenter 

1 

Continue with overview of framework components  

 Core Framework 

– Batch/Interface  

 Data persistence Framework 

– Data persistence mechanism (ORM tool) 

– Transaction 

– Concurrency 

– Change data capture 

Xerox 

2 
Code walkthrough of 2 to 3 defects fixes included in the last Release to 

Production 
Xerox 

3 

EDI Interface (EDI file creation, XML-X12 Translation, Communication 

with Carriers) 

 Functional overview  

 Code walkthrough 

Xerox 

4 

Single Streamlined application - Account Management and Application 

Registration 

 Functional overview  

 Code walkthrough 

Xerox 

5 

Single Streamlined application – Plan Management (Rating Engine, 

SHOP, and Shopping) 

 Functional overview  

 Code walkthrough 

Xerox 

6 

Billing and Payment (Interface with Great Plains, Reconciliation of 

Financial Transactions) 

 Functional overview  

 Code walkthrough 

Xerox 

Code Review Meetings (1 of 2) 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 66 - 

Item Agenda Presenter 

7 
Interfaces (DWSS, Federal Hub – Remote Identify Proofing ) 

 Functional overview  

 Code walkthrough 

Xerox 

8 
Batches, notices, and correspondence 

 Functional overview  

 Code walkthrough 

Xerox 

Code Review Meetings (2 of 2) 



Appendix E:  

Interviews Conducted 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 68 - 

Interviews Conducted (1 of 4) 

Mtg. No. Organization Interview Subject Interview Date 

1 Exchange Pre-Interviews 3/19 

2 Exchange Pre-Interviews 3/19 

3 Exchange Pre-Interviews 3/19 

4 Exchange Project Management 3/19 

5 Exchange Pre-Interviews 3/20 

6 Natoma Testing Environment 3/20 

7 
State of Nevada, Natoma, 

Cognizant, Xerox 
Testing Environment 3/20 

8 Exchange Pre-Interviews 3/21 

9 Exchange Pre-Interviews 3/21 

10 DWSS General 3/24 

11 Carriers - UnitedHealthCare Other Stakeholders 3/25 

12 PCG General 3/25 

13 State of Nevada Technical 3/25 

14 Exchange Technical 3/25 

15 Patrick Casele & Asso. Other Stakeholders 3/26 

16 Xerox Security 3/26 

17 Brokers - Carothers Ins. Other Stakeholders 3/26 

18 Xerox Initial Conversation 3/26 

19 Natoma Other Stakeholders 3/26 

20 Xerox General 3/26 

21 Xerox Security 3/26 

22 Xerox Executive 3/26 

23 Xerox General 3/26 

24 Xerox Individual Enrollment (including interface with DWSS) 3/26 

25 Xerox Individual Eligibility 3/26 

26 Exchange General 3/26 

27 DWSS Post-Interviews 3/26 

28 Xerox Technical 3/27 

29 DWSS Project Management 3/27 

30 Xerox Technical 3/27 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 69 - 

Interviews Conducted (2 of 4) 

Mtg. No. Organization Interview Subject Interview Date 

31 Xerox General 3/27 

32 DWSS Technical 3/27 

33 Cognizant “Fast-Follow” 3/28 

34 Board Executive 3/28 

35 Board Executive 3/31 

36 Xerox Infra/Arch 3/31 

37 Xerox Infra/Arch 3/31 

38 Xerox Contact Center 4/1 

39 Clark & Associates Other Stakeholders 4/1 

40 Board Executive 4/1 

41 Exchange General 4/1 

42 Exchange General 4/1 

43 Xerox Technical 4/1 

44 Xerox EDI reconciliation process with carriers 4/1 

45 Xerox PMO & Governance 4/1 

46 Exchange General 4/1 

47 Xerox Contact Center 4/1 

48 Xerox General 4/1 

49 Cognizant General 4/2 

50 Xerox Technical 4/2 

51 DWSS Other Stakeholders 4/2 

52 Xerox Defect Reporting in UAT 4/2 

53 Cognizant Release Management 4/2 

54 Xerox Release Management 4/2 

55 Xerox Compliance, Carrier, Reporting 4/2 

56 Xerox Technical 4/2 

57 DWSS Technical 4/2 

58 Broker General 4/2 

59 Cognizant Testing 4/2 

60 Xerox General 4/2 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 70 - 

Interviews Conducted (3 of 4) 

Mtg. No. Organization Interview Subject Interview Date 

61 Board Executive 4/2 

62 DWSS General 4/2 

63 Xerox Contact Center 4/2 

64 Xerox Contact Center 4/2 

65 Xerox Contact Center 4/2 

66 Xerox General 4/2 

67 Xerox General 4/2 

68 Exchange Security 4/2 

69 Xerox Contact Center 4/2 

70 Xerox General 4/3 

71 DWSS Data Analytics & Reporting 4/3 

72 Cognizant/Natoma General 4/3 

73 Cognizant/Natoma General 4/3 

74 Cognizant General 4/3 

75 Xerox Contact Center 4/3 

76 Xerox, Cognizant, Natoma Code Review 4/3 

77 Xerox Contact Center 4/3 

78 DWSS Call Center 4/4 

79 Cognizant General 4/4 

80 Navigators Other Stakeholders 4/4 

81 Xerox Contact Center 4/4 

82 Xerox, Cognizant, Natoma Code Review 4/4 

83 Xerox Follow-up 4/4 

84 Xerox Follow-up 4/4 

85 DWSS Executive 4/7 

86 Division of Insurance General 4/7 

87 Cognizant Testing 4/7 

88 Broker General 4/7 

89 Xerox 
Defect prioritization of items from the Exchange and the 

Governor's office 
4/8 

90 DWSS Appeals 4/8 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 71 - 

Interviews Conducted (4 of 4) 

Mtg. No. Organization Interview Subject Interview Date 

91 DWSS Other Stakeholders 4/8 

92 Advocate/Navigator Other Stakeholders 4/8 

93 Xerox General 4/8 

94 Xerox Check Payments Processing 4/8 

95 Cognizant Follow-up 4/8 

96 Xerox Call Center Technology Review 4/8 

97 Xerox, Cognizant 
Release management process for the “Fast-Follow” user 

stories 
4/8 

98   Call Center Technology Review 4/8 

99 St. Mary’s Other Stakeholders 4/8 

100 Delta Dental Other Stakeholders 4/9 

101 Xerox M&O process 4/9 

102 Xerox Defect prioritization 4/9 

103 Xerox Plan Management 4/9 

104 Exchange “Fast-Follow” 4/9 

105 Navigators Other Stakeholders 4/9 

106 Carriers - Anthem BCS Other Stakeholders 4/10 

107 Xerox Check and payment processing 4/11 

108 DWSS Executive 4/11 

109 Carriers - Nevada COOP Other Stakeholders 4/14 



Appendix F:  

Documents Requested 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 73 - 

Document Request Status (1 of 6) 

# Document Name Document Group 
Date Document 

Requested 

Date Document 

Received 

1 Detailed Project Plan Project Management 3/19/2014 3/25/2014 

2  -Project Management Plan 

 - Change Management Plan 

 - Schedule Management Plan 

 - Cost Management Plan 

 - Quality Management Plan 

 - Staffing Plan 

 - Communication Management Plan 

 - Risk Management Plan 

 - Training Plan 

 - Implementation Plan 

Project Management 3/19/2014 3/25/2014 

3 Project Risks and Issues Log Project Management 3/19/2014 3/26/2014 

4 Semi-Monthly Project Status Reports Project Management 3/19/2014 3/25/2014 

5 Governance Review (s) Results Project Management 3/19/2014 4/1/2014 

6 Project Review (s) Results Project Management 3/19/2014 4/1/2014 

7 Gate Review: CMS Blueprint Support Project Management 3/19/2014 4/2/2014 

8 Gate Review: March 2013 CMS Review Project Management 3/19/2014 4/2/2014 

9 Gate Review: May 2013 CMS Review Project Management 3/19/2014 3/31/2014 

10 Gate Review: July 2013 CMS Review Project Management 3/19/2014 4/2/2014 

11 Gate Review: September 2013 CMS Review Project Management 3/19/2014 3/31/2014 

12 Gate Review: Final Certification CMS Review Project Management 3/19/2014 Unavailable 

13 Transition Plan Project Management 3/19/2014 3/25/2014 

14 Staffing Plan (from the Exchange) Project Management 3/19/2014 3/27/2014 

15 Vendor Management Plan (from the Exchange) Project Management 3/19/2014 3/27/2014 

16 Contract Management Plan (from the Exchange) Project Management 3/19/2014 3/27/2014 

17 Deliverable Review and Approval document (from the Exchange) Project Management 3/19/2014 3/27/2014 

18 Sustainability Report (from the Exchange) Project Management 3/19/2014 3/31/2014 

19 Carrier Management Plan and Companion Guide (from the Exchange) Project Management 3/19/2014 3/31/2014 

20 Navigator/Broker Management Plan (from the Exchange) Project Management 3/19/2014 3/31/2014 

21 Stakeholder Management Plan (from the Exchange) Project Management 3/19/2014 3/31/2014 

22 Risk Management Plan (from the Exchange) Project Management 3/19/2014 3/27/2014 

23 Issue Management Plan with details on the escalation process (from the Exchange) Project Management 3/19/2014 4/2/2014 

24 Cost Management Plan (from the Exchange) Project Management 3/19/2014 3/27/2014 

25 Resource Plan (from the Exchange) Project Management 3/19/2014 3/31/2014 

26 Program Management Plan (from the Exchange) Project Management 3/19/2014 3/27/2014 

27 Communication Plan with details on communications to the board, governor and other stakeholders (from the Exchange) Project Management 3/19/2014 Unavailable 

28 Requirements Specification Document Requirements 3/19/2014 3/25/2014 

29 Requirements Traceability Matrix Requirements 3/19/2014 4/2/2014 

30 Requirements Validation Review Requirements 3/19/2014 3/25/2014 

31 Change Order Documentation Requirements 3/19/2014 3/31/2014 

32 System Design including the following: Design 3/19/2014 3/27/2014 

33 a) Business Rule Specification Document: Design 3/19/2014 3/27/2014 

34 b) EDI 834, file layouts, requirements, corresponding error logs, and response files: for every month since these have been 

transmitted, 5 daily files 

Design 3/19/2014 3/27/2014 

*Documents that are listed as “unavailable” may include documents that were not created or may not be complete 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 74 - 

Document Request Status (2 of 6) 

# Document Name Document Group 
Date Document 

Requested 

Date Document 

Received 

35 c) EDI 820, file layouts, requirements, corresponding error logs, and response files: for every month since these have been 

transmitted, 5 daily files 

Design 3/19/2014 3/27/2014 

36 d) Eligibility decision tree Design 3/19/2014 3/27/2014 

37 e) Enrollment decision tree Design 3/19/2014 3/27/2014 

38 f) Auto renewal rules Design 3/19/2014 3/27/2014 

39 g) Business Logic Diagram Design 3/19/2014 3/27/2014 

40 h) All Functional Reports - a list and brief overview, a sample, their design docs Design 3/19/2014 3/27/2014 

41 Technical Architecture and Interface Architecture Design 3/19/2014 3/27/2014 

42 Hosting Environment Details including: 

 - Equipment make, model, and primary configuration that will be used to host the proposed solution 

 - SaaS/BOS solution Document explaining the XaaS layers of the solution in detail  

Design 3/19/2014 Unavailable 

43 The Network Design Document explicitly describing through pictographic view the different components of network design and 

explaining their properties  

Design 3/19/2014 3/25/2014 

44 Interface Specifications Document Design 3/19/2014 3/28/2014 

45 Low Level Technical Design Document (per Functional Module) Design 3/19/2014 Unavailable 

46 Logical Data Model Design 3/19/2014 3/27/2014 

47 Physical Data Model Design 3/19/2014 Unavailable 

48 Data Dictionary Design 3/19/2014 Unavailable 

49 Plan Management Spreadsheet (this should have been pulled from either the DOI or sent from the health plan to the DOI) Design 3/19/2014 4/3/2014 

50 Application Code with instructions to deploy code base Development 3/19/2014 4/3/2014 

51 Unit Test Check List and Unit Test Results Development 3/19/2014 4/7/2014 

52 Integration Test Cases and Test Results Development 3/19/2014 4/7/2014 

53 Test management Plan  Testing 3/19/2014 3/25/2014 

54 a) System Test Plan and Test Results Testing 3/19/2014 3/25/2014 

55 b) UAT Plan and Test Results Testing 3/19/2014 3/25/2014 

56 c) Regression Test Plan and Test Results Testing 3/19/2014 3/25/2014 

57 d) Stress/Load Test Plan and Test Results Testing 3/19/2014 3/25/2014 

58 e) Operations Readiness Test Plan and Test Results Testing 3/19/2014 3/26/2014 

59 f) ADA compliance test results Testing 3/19/2014 4/8/2014 

60 Defect Status Report (metrics per release) Testing 3/19/2014 3/27/2014 

61 Provide access to Testing Environment for the Deloitte Team Testing 3/19/2014 3/21/2014 

62 a) URL Testing 3/19/2014 3/21/2014 

63 b) provide accounts for the following roles - navigator, broker, CSE/CSR, admin Testing 3/19/2014 4/1/2014 

64 c) ability and instruction to advance time Testing 3/19/2014 3/26/2014 

65 d) ability to run batch jobs and view results Testing 3/19/2014 3/26/2014 

66 e) ability to run interface jobs and view results Testing 3/19/2014 3/26/2014 

67 f) Provide test data  Testing  3/19/2014 3/26/2014 

68 Configuration Management Plan Deployment 3/19/2014 3/25/2014 

69 Release Management Plan Deployment 3/19/2014 3/18/2014 

70 Support and Problem Escalation Plan Deployment 3/19/2014 3/25/2014 

71 Implementation Plan Site Readiness Report Deployment 3/19/2014 3/25/2014 

72 Information Technology Help Desk Service Monthly Report Deployment 3/19/2014 3/25/2014 

73 Capacity Plan Deployment 3/19/2014 3/25/2014 

74 Data Growth Plan document describing the current data growth and future projections Deployment 3/19/2014 3/25/2014 

75 Production Operations Procedures Deployment 3/19/2014 3/26/2014 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 75 - 

Document Request Status (3 of 6) 

# Document Name Document Group 
Date Document 

Requested 

Date Document 

Received 

76 User Manuals Deployment 3/19/2014 3/28/2014 

77 Training Plan and Training materials Deployment 3/19/2014 3/25/2014 

78 Daily Production Operations Report Production Operations 3/19/2014 3/18/2014 

79 Defects reported by criticality and severity in a sortable format with date created, date resolved for production Production Operations 3/19/2014 3/27/2014 

80 Defects reported by criticality and severity in a sortable format with date created, date resolved for non-production Production Operations 3/19/2014 3/27/2014 

81 Service Management Process 

Automated SLA Monitoring 

Monthly Service Level Agreement Report 

Corrective Action Report 

Production Operations 3/19/2014 3/27/2014 

82 Statistics on SHOP: how many employers, insurers, plans per county as well as which insurers plans were chosen by the 

employers 

Production Operations 3/19/2014 3/28/2014 

83 Enrollment reports - broken down by APTC, ESI, QHP, MA eligibility; with carrier plan product, by enrollment, by paid plans Production Operations 3/17/2014 3/18/2014 

84 List of appeals and hearings and consumer complaints and health plan complaints Production Operations 3/19/2014 3/28/2014 

85 List of manual workarounds currently in place Production Operations 3/19/2014 3/26/2014 

86 Data Retention, Recovery Services, Protection, and Data Management Plan Security 3/19/2014 3/25/2014 

87 Copy of the IRS SAFEGUARD PROCEDURES REPORT (SPR) Security 3/19/2014 3/28/2014 

88 Copy of completed applicable IRS Safeguard Computer Security Evaluation Matrix (SCSEM) Security 3/19/2014 3/28/2014 

89 Copy of the Plan of Action & Milestones (POA&M) document Security 3/19/2014 3/18/2014 

90 Evidence of periodic review and updates to the access control policy by appropriate personnel. (May be part of the policy document 

itself) 

Security 3/19/2014 4/1/2014 

91 Sample list of active system accounts along with the name of the individual associated with each account Security 3/19/2014 4/1/2014 

92 Copy of information system audit records. Security 3/19/2014 4/1/2014 

93 Evidence of periodic review evidence of the information system accounts. Security 3/19/2014 4/1/2014 

94 LDAP structure of group accounts and membership for application and infrastructure accounts Security 3/19/2014 4/1/2014 

95 For a sample of accounts created/disabled/changed, provide evidence that authorization is taken Security 3/19/2014 Unavailable 

96 Screenshots of the procedures for creating and removing the temporary and emergency accounts  Security 3/19/2014 Unavailable 

97 Evidence that temporary accounts are monitored Security 3/19/2014 4/1/2014 

98 For a sample of temporary and emergency accounts created, provide evidence that authorization is taken (Samples would be 

selected once total population is received)  

Security 3/19/2014 Unavailable 

99 Documentation on the tool that provides automated mechanisms to support account management functions Security 3/19/2014 4/1/2014 

100 Evidence that account management tool is configured to disable inactive accounts after 180 days. e.g. screenshot of the 

configuration from account management tool  

Security 3/19/2014 Unavailable 

101 Configuration settings of the tool to indicate that account creation, modification, disabling, and termination actions are audited Security 3/19/2014 Unavailable 

102 Evidence of monitoring of rogue accounts being created Security 3/19/2014 4/1/2014 

103 The latest list of authorization(User privileges) defined in the BOS solution. i.e. Role Matrix which will provide role to page / field 

level to access mapping. Example - Role Office Assistant – Application Home Page – Read Write Access 

Role Office Assistant – Application Registration Page – Read Write Access 

Security 3/19/2014 Unavailable 

104 Active Directory global settings on read - write permissions Security 3/19/2014 4/1/2014 

105 Evidence of Separation of Duties and Least Privilege analysis being performed on roles (Evidence of the process to review and 

update role matrix on regular basis) 

Security 3/19/2014 Unavailable 

106 Screenshot of the information system configuration settings i.e. account Lockout policy, concurrent session control and 

unsuccessful login attempts - Application and sample Infrastructure components 

Security 3/19/2014 Unavailable 

107 Document of the allowed methods of remote access to the information system and s usage restrictions and implementation 

guidance for each allowed remote access method 

Security 3/19/2014 4/1/2014 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 76 - 

Document Request Status (4 of 6) 

# Document Name Document Group 
Date Document 

Requested 

Date Document 

Received 

108 Evidence of monitoring of remote access methods to information system ( Is remote user access to information system 

/infrastructure being monitored?)  

Security 3/19/2014 Unavailable 

109 Listing of all wireless access points used by the organization.  

For a sample of them; provide evidence that they are approved by management. 

Security 3/19/2014 Unavailable 

110 Evidence of authentication and encryption method for wireless access. Security 3/19/2014 Unavailable 

111 EXCHANGE Parent System Communication Protection Policy and Procedure Security 3/19/2014 Unavailable 

112 Diagram of Security Architecture Security 3/19/2014 Unavailable 

113 Secure DNS deployment control policies and documentation Security 3/19/2014 Unavailable 

114 DNS architecture diagram Security 3/19/2014 Unavailable 

115 Evidence of periodic review and update of the policy and procedures by appropriate personnel within the organization (May be part 

of the policy document) 

Security 3/19/2014 Unavailable 

116 Organization's guidelines and procedures addressing the information eminence. Security 3/19/2014 Unavailable 

117 Organization's procedures addressing the cryptographic key management and establishment. Security 3/19/2014 Unavailable 

118 Organization's guidelines and procedures addressing public key infrastructure certificates Security 3/19/2014 Unavailable 

119 Organization's guidelines and procedures addressing the mobile code. Security 3/19/2014 Unavailable 

120 Organization's guidelines and procedures addressing usage restrictions and implementation guidance for Voice over Internet 

Protocol technologies. 

Security 3/19/2014 4/1/2014 

121 Organization's guidelines and procedures addressing secure name/address resolution service (authoritative source). Security 3/19/2014 Unavailable 

122 Organization's guidelines and procedures addressing architecture and provisioning for name/address resolution service. 

Additionally, a diagram to depict the name/address resolution service architecture (e.g. DNS architecture diagram) and how is the 

name/address resolution service secured. 

Security 3/19/2014 Unavailable 

123 A list of recent security flaw remediation actions performed on the information system (e.g., list of installed patches, service packs, 

hot fixes, and other software updates to correct information system flaws). 

Security 3/19/2014 Unavailable 

124 List of information system monitoring tools and techniques deployed by the organization.  Security 3/19/2014 Unavailable 

125 A list of most recent integrity scans performed. Security 3/19/2014 Unavailable 

126 Call Center Operations Playbook 

 - Including training materials 

Call Center 3/19/2014 3/27/2014 

127 Call Center Services 

 - Location, hours of operations, headcount, staffing matrix 

Call Center 3/19/2014 3/31/2014 

128 Call Center Planning 

 - Roadmap, initiatives, annual planning 

 - Staffing profile, models, etc. 

Call Center 3/19/2014 3/31/2014 

129 Call Center Governance Model Call Center 3/19/2014 3/27/2014 

130 Call Center Operations Metrics 

 - Volumes, service levels, FCR, AHT, ASA, Abandon, occupancy, shrinkage, turnover, etc. by channel and call type 

Call Center 3/19/2014 3/27/2014 

131 Call Center Self Service 

 - Planning, initiatives, etc. 

 - Self-service completion metrics 

Call Center 3/19/2014 Unavailable 

132 Voice of the customer metrics (e.g., surveys, results) Call Center 3/19/2014 Unavailable 

133 Call Center Organization Charts 

 - Staffing by level 

Call Center 3/19/2014 3/28/2014 

134 Call Center Technology Architecture 

 - Roadmaps, performance data, network diagram, voice platform diagram, desktop standards, etc. 

- Contact center specific technology architecture (e.g., CTI, ACD, PBX, WFM, QM, desktop, record) 

- The IVR architecture (I believe it’s called the FRS…Functional Requirements document) 

Call Center 3/19/2014 4/4/2014 

135 Workforce Management Playbook 

 - Forecast and scheduling process 

Call Center 3/19/2014 Unavailable 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 77 - 

Document Request Status (5 of 6) 

# Document Name Document Group 
Date Document 

Requested 

Date Document 

Received 

136 nDepends - need output of statisical analysis tool  Development 3/26/2014 4/2/2014 

137 Integrated project work plan with previous submission dates – last three submissions Project Management 3/26/2014 3/27/2014 

138 Go to green report indicates pending stories. Can we get story board exported so we can get details of those story with LOE and 

ETA for individual stories 

Project Management 3/26/2014 3/27/2014 

139 Release plan (we have received it). Need process document that lays out how release are planned, developed, tested, approved, 

deployed 

Deployment 3/26/2014 3/27/2014 

140 Steering Committee reports – Bill mentioned Kim will have those as meetings were occurring until last few weeks. Need Agenda, 

Status report, meeting minutes for three last steering committee report as well as report  

Project Management 3/26/2014 3/27/2014 

141 Ticket resolution process – Process flow that lays out ticket resolution either through response over call or through defect resolution Production Operations 3/26/2014 3/28/2014 

142 EDI spreadsheet that are sent to carriers Production Operations 3/27/2014 3/31/2014 

143 Virtualization Map with Physical/ VM and hypervisor/VM ratios Design 3/25/2014 Unavailable 

144 Monthly Production reports (includes SLA reporting) that Bill or Greg sends to Exchange from Sept '13 to March '14 Production Operations 3/26/2014 3/27/2014 

145 List of Test cases, Test scenarios and test execution reports for past releases; test results for Unit, System, Integration, UAT, and 

Regression tests 

Testing 3/26/2014 Unavailable 

146 A detailed list of all outstanding user stories (“fast-follow” items along with the target completion dates) Development 3/27/2014 4/3/2014 

147 Invoices, with at least one including multiple applicants (from January, February, and March) Production Operations 4/1/2014 4/9/2014 

148 Sample 834/820 EDI files being sent to carriers Production Operations 4/1/2014 4/3/2014 

149 Contingency 834/820 spreadsheets that contain the data from the 834/820 EDI files that are being sent to carriers Production Operations 4/1/2014 4/2/2014 

150 834/820 EDI Variance Reports (list of records where the data on the 820 and the 834 files do not match) that are being sent to 

carriers 

Production Operations 4/1/2014 4/3/2014 

151 Sample ACH payment log (breakdown of the ACH payment sent to carriers – contains a list of members and their payment amount) 

that are being sent to carriers 

Production Operations 4/1/2014 4/3/2014 

152 ACH Payment Variance reports (list of records where the data on the 820’s does not match the ACH payment log) that are being 

sent to carriers 

Production Operations 4/1/2014 4/2/2014 

153 SSP - updated Security 4/1/2014 4/4/2014 

154 IT Service Desk Monthly Report for the month of March 2014 Production Operations 4/1/2014 Unavailable 

155 Presentation shown in the workshop Production Operations 4/1/2014 4/4/2014 

156 Current Release Management Plan  Deployment 4/1/2014 Unavailable 

157 Current Performance and Scalability Plan Production Operations 4/1/2014 4/3/2014 

158 SLA Calculation Documents 

a. How do you calculate the service up time which is mentioned in the RFP of 99.9% (ITO Group) 

b. How is the click response time measured? Tools used for measuring / reporting of SLA.  

Production Operations 4/1/2014 4/3/2014 

159 6. Backup Operational Documents from Xerox  

a. Backup Map and retention period 

b. Backup encryption 

c. Backup Locations 

Design 4/1/2014 Unavailable 

160 Hardware Layout of Cloud Infrastructure Design 4/1/2014 4/8/2014 

161 Physical and Virtual Network layout design  Design 4/1/2014 4/8/2014 

162 Cloud Architecture , provisioning process and maintenance process of VM images Design 4/1/2014 4/8/2014 

163 Network diagram with router and zoning information Design 4/1/2014 4/8/2014 

164 List of Platforms 

a. Versions, DBs 

b. Assigned/Installed Software 

c. Datacenter to Platform mapping 

Design 4/1/2014 4/4/2014 

165 Monitoring & Administration Document 

a. List of different tools and mapping to the monitoring aspects  

Design 4/1/2014 4/8/2014 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 78 - 

Document Request Status (6 of 6) 

# Document Name Document Group 
Date Document 

Requested 

Date Document 

Received 

166 Solution Component Integration Map  Design 4/1/2014 4/4/2014 

167 Capability map 

a. All capabilities that are being provided by the datacenters/infrastructure team and tools that are being used to support the 

capabilities  

b. Tools to capabilities mapping 

Design 4/1/2014 4/8/2014 

168 Workload Map  

a. Describing the OS system, properties, platform, Software of all workloads 

Design 4/1/2014 4/8/2014 

169 Information Flow diagrams  Design 4/1/2014 Unavailable 

170 Resource usage reports.  

a. Usage of memory, storage, cpu at the workload and also at the hypervisor level 

Design 4/1/2014 4/8/2014 

171 DOORS application output for the requirements collected by KPMG Requirements 4/1/2014 4/2/2014 

172 Workflow steps for hitting different environments interfaces for the DWSS, Quoted, GP, IVR, etc. (David Jerkovic) Requirements 4/1/2014 4/8/2014 

173 Test environments configuration (Dev-Int, SIT0, SIT1, SIT2, SIT3, Staging, Training, Production) (Rajeev Siddappa) 

• Application functionality available in each environment 

• Infrastructure setup for hardware components 

• Latest software and patched applied  

Requirements 4/1/2014 4/8/2014 

174 A list of workarounds being used by the Customer Service Reps at the Call Center to get around bugs in the system/workarounds 

playbook  

Call Center 4/2/2014 Unavailable 

175 Call Center Monthly Score Card (may also be called the SLA Performance Report) Call Center 4/2/2014 4/3/2014 

176 Release management calendar (schedule for the past and future releases) 

-including list of CRs 

- plan that is sent out to the client and stakeholders as a communications notice before/after a release 

• CIs 

• Schedule of activities for development through implementation 

• Instructions for the RM team 

• Backout plan for each CR 

• Backout plan to address the inter-project dependencies 

Deployment 4/2/2014 4/3/2014 

177 Release metrics (# of planned defects/”fast-follow” items VS. # of the released items) Deployment 4/2/2014 4/3/2014 

178 Release notes from the latest release (builds 24 & 25) Deployment 4/2/2014 4/2/2014 

179 Build Plan that details the standardized Build Propagation process to various environments, teams that perform testing in these 

environments, any specific checks that might exist prior to prorogating to the next environment etc. 

Testing 4/3/2014 Unavailable 

180 Regression Test Execution results for Release 23 (03/31 build) Testing 4/3/2014 Unavailable 

181 SIT Test Execution results for Release 23 (03/31 build) Testing 4/3/2014 Unavailable 

182 Export of Regression Test cases from TFS Testing 4/3/2014 Unavailable 

183 Entrance and Exit Criteria Compliance Results for each of the test phases prior to production release, if documented  Testing 4/3/2014 4/9/2014 

184 Details on all existing batch jobs  Production Operations 4/4/2014 4/8/2014 

185 Production batch jobs execution report (for last 7 days) that show which jobs passed/failed and the number of records processed Production Operations 4/4/2014 4/8/2014 

186 c) Production Run Book – This document is used by the production support team that monitors batch jobs (this is listed as #75 – 

Production operations procedures) 

Production Operations 4/4/2014 4/9/2014 

187 Performance Test Plan Testing 4/4/2014 4/8/2014 

188 Automated Regression Test Plan Document Testing 4/4/2014 4/9/2014 



Appendix G:  

Test Cases 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 80 - 

High Level Test Case Description Expected Outcome Actual Result Status of Test Case 

Test payment functionality The user should be able to submit 

payment with checking account 

Submitted payment with checking account Pass 

Test payment functionality The user should be able to submit 

payment with MasterCard 

Submitted payment with MasterCard Pass 

Check if password change is working The user should be able to go the 

account/password change section in 

order to change their password 

The password cannot be changed from the Account 

Management section Instead the user has to initiate a 

password change through the "Can't access account" 

screens 

Fail 

Test if Enrollment (either Medicaid or 

QHP) is being sent back to the 

Exchange and if the user can 

navigate through the dashboard to 

check on the status of an enrollment 

Once the user chooses to enroll in 

plan, if the user logs back into the 

account, the user should see the 

status of the enrollment. (For example 

- pending, enrolled in a plan with 

enrollment date, delinquent if 

premiums are not paid, dis-enrolled if 

delinquency period has passed) 

Even though the Medicaid case was processed 

through AMPS and the result was sent back to BOS, 

the status of the Medicaid enrollment does not display 

on the Exchange site, but continues to show "pending" 

regardless of the status of the application. Similarly, 

even though the premium for a QHP is paid, the status 

continues to show "Pending" 

Fail 

Check if APTC eligibility is calculated 

accurately 

The user should get an accurately 

calculated APTC and should be able 

to apply the APTC to medical plans 

(not dental plans) 

User is able to select QHP with APTC adjusted 

premium. However, the accuracy of the APTC values 

could not be validated in staging because plan 

information was not provided 

Pass 

Test Cases (1 of 11) 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 81 - 

High Level Test Case Description Expected Outcome Actual Result Status of Test Case 

Check if APTC is applied to QHP 

accurately during plan display 
The user should get an accurately 

calculated APTC and should be able 

to apply the APTC to medical plans 

(not to dental/catastrophic plans) 

In some instances, user is able to select QHP with 

APTC adjusted premium. In other instances, APTC is 

incorrectly applied to Catastrophic and Dental Plans 

Fail 

 

Confirm customer service Live Chat 

button/hyperlink working 
Ability to access live chat The live chat button is disabled Fail 

 

Check whether the user can edit any 

section of the application 

The user should be able to edit any 

section prior to submitting the 

application 

Assuming the user wants to edit a section on the 

review page (i.e. household) prior to submitting the 

application, the user needs to click the back button 

several times instead of being taken back directly to 

that page through the side menus. 

 

The “Edit” information prior to the final application 

submit page works inconsistently and throws 

exceptions 

Fail 

A split family with two members living 

in different zip codes is offered 

accurate options based on the 

individuals’ different addresses 

Plan selection/rating is different for 

each member due to the different zip 

codes. Each member is able to enroll 

in separate plans 

Unresolvable error when attempting to start 

application 

Fail 

Test Cases (2 of 11) 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 82 - 

High Level Test Case Description Expected Outcome Actual Result Status of Test Case 

In a household filing taxes separately 

where members are eligible for QHP, 

Nevada Check Up, and QHP/APTC; 

only the appropriate plans should be 

shown to each user in the household 

during plan selection 

Plan displays should only be relevant 

to the appropriate users within a 

family (i.e. adults should not be shown 

a CHIP plan). 

Members are only shown appropriate plans during 

plan selection 

Pass 

Check whether the APTC slider works 

and the premium amount that is 

added to the cart reflects the 

adjustment made to the slider 

The user should be able to vary the 

amount of APTC that can be applied 

to premiums for a given plan. 

APTC amount can be varied after plans have been 

added to cart  

Pass 

Check if all filters on the plan 

selection page work 

The user should be able to narrow 

down the plans by using the available 

filters 

Filters on the page work, but they are very slow Pass 

The user should be able to remove 

plans from their cart prior to enrolling 

in a plan 

The user should be able to edit their 

shopping cart prior to enrollment 

User is able to remove plans from cart during 

shopping 

Pass 

Confirm ability to compare plans on 

plan selection page 

The user should be able to click on a 

“compare" button 

A "compare" button should be added so that the user 

can compare two sets of selections. Currently, only a 

link gets enabled when compare is clicked. This 

should be changed 

Pass 

Test Cases (3 of 11) 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 83 - 

High Level Test Case Description Expected Outcome Actual Result Status of Test Case 

If the user is eligible for cost-sharing 

reductions, on the plan selection 

screens the user should be able to 

easily understand what CSR tier they 

are eligible for and how that CSR tier 

applies to a given plan 

The user should be shown what cost-

sharing reduction tier they are eligible 

for as well as what cost sharing 

subsidies are associated with each 

plan on the plan selection page 

The user is shown a list of options of cost-sharing 

reduction tiers from which to choose. This dropdown 

appears to have no impact and the language is difficult 

to understand. In addition, no FAQs are provided for 

the user’s reference 

 

Fail 

 

If the user selects a plan, they should 

be taken to a page to confirm and pay 

for their purchase 

The user should be able to navigate 

through the appropriate payment 

screens and complete the enrollment 

The user is taken to a screen to confirm and pay for 

the purchase 

Pass 

Upon enrollment, the user receives a 

notification in their plan when 

payment is made and can also check 

the status of payments 

The user should be able to get either 

an on-screen or email notification 

stating that they are enrolled 

The user does not receive any notifications that the 

payment has gone through or whether the payment is 

still pending. Different sections of the website show 

different payment statuses 

Fail 

 

Check if there are exceptions at any 

stage/screen from eligibility to 

enrollment 

All screens should be displayed 

without an error/exception occurring  

Functionality works inconsistently. Exceptions are 

encountered due to staging environment instability 

Fail 

 

Test Cases (4 of 11) 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 84 - 

High Level Test Case Description Expected Outcome Actual Result Status of Test Case 

If the user makes changes to 

enrollment information for qualifying 

life events, the user should be able to 

enroll in a separate plan 

The user should be able to enroll in a 

new plan and pay its premiums 

There is no capability in the system to report a 

qualifying life event, so the user is unable to enroll in a 

separate plan 

Fail 

If a verification document is required, 

the user should be able to use the 

tasks hyperlink and navigate to a 

document upload screen 

The user should be able to navigate 

to the document upload screen from 

the task hyperlink 

Upon clicking on the task hyperlink, the user is not 

navigated to another screen 

Fail 

Brokers register and are able to go 

into their portal 

Brokers should be able to enter their 

license information, navigate into the 

portal, and start a new application 

Broker licenses were provided, but the broker server 

was not responding in the test environment. The user 

was not able to navigate into and use the broker portal 

Fail 

Individual associates to the broker 

and enrolls in a plan. The link of 

broker to individual should be saved 

and transmitted through EDI 

The user should be able to confirm 

that the user’s account is linked to the 

broker. Furthermore, EDI files should 

confirm the linkage between the two 

After enrolling in a plan, the user’s dashboard shows 

no sign of the link to a broker. EDI files were unable to 

be generated 

Fail 

Test Cases (5 of 11) 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 85 - 

High Level Test Case Description Expected Outcome Actual Result Status of Test Case 

Outside of open enrollment, a user 

who is eligible for APTC (has a yearly 

income of $40,000) starts a new 

application and does not have a 

qualifying life event 

User should not be able to enroll in a 

plan 

After clicking save and continuing on the eligibility 

results, the user is presented with a pop-up about 

open enrollment being complete and to contact the 

Call Center for QLEs. They are not directed to plan 

selection 

Pass 

Outside of open enrollment, a user 

who is eligible for Medicaid (has a 

yearly income of $5,000) applies and 

does not have a qualifying life event. 

User applies for SNAP/TANF 

The user should be able to be 

determined eligible for Medicaid and 

select a Medicaid plan 

The user is determined eligible for Medicaid but is not 

able to select a Medicaid plan. A special enrollment 

pop-up is displayed stating that the application would 

be directly sent to DWSS, but has no area to select a 

Medicaid plan 

Fail 

Outside of open enrollment, a user 

who is eligible for Medicaid (has a 

yearly income of $5,000) applies and 

does not have a qualifying life event. 

User does not apply for SNAP/TANF 

The user should be able to be 

determined eligible for Medicaid and 

DWSS should be able to view that 

application 

User is determined potentially eligible for Medicaid. 

However, DWSS test environment is not able to view 

the application 

Fail 

Test Cases (6 of 11) 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 86 - 

High Level Test Case Description Expected Outcome Actual Result Status of Test Case 

Check if data in 834 and 820 matches 

the data entered in Single 

Streamlined application 

All enrollment data entered by the 

user is correctly transmitted in the 834 

Unable to generate EDI files Fail 

Check the APTC amounts are 

correctly transmitted into 834s and 

820 

The APTC-adjusted premium 

amounts should be displayed 

accurately once the plans have been 

selected 

Unable to generate EDI files Fail 

Check if plans are always displayed Plans should always be shown to the 

user (either in anonymous mode or 

after eligibility has been determined) 

Plans sometimes do not display. Likely an issue with 

synchronization with QUOTIT. Unable to replicate 

issue 

Fail 

Check if provider search and 

prescription search are working. 

Check if user has ability to select a 

provider at the time of enrollment 

The user should be able to search for 

plans and providers. The user should 

be able to select a provider at the time 

of plan selection 

User is able to search what prescriptions and 

providers are associated with various plans. 

Additionally, users are able to specify a provider at the 

time of enrollment 

Pass 

Test Cases (7 of 11) 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 87 - 

High Level Test Case Description Expected Outcome Actual Result Status of Test Case 

A mixed family selects plans; one 

member is eligible for QHP and one 

member is eligible for Medicaid 

QHP and Medicaid plans are selected Unresolvable error during plan selection Fail 

A low income individual selects a 

Medicaid plan and their information is 

sent to DWSS 

Medicaid plan is selected, eligibility 

results are sent to DWSS 

Unresolvable error after selecting a Medicaid plan Fail 

A family (subscriber, spouse who files 

taxes separately, and one dependent 

of the spouse). Subscriber and 

spouse each make $10,000 a year. 

Subscriber and spouse select 

different Medicaid plans. Dental plan 

is selected for the dependent. 

Payment is submitted for the dental 

plan and dependent is enrolled in the 

Dental plan 

 

All three family members are 

determined eligible for Medicaid, 

Medicaid enrollment information is 

sent to DWSS, dental payment status 

and statement are viewable in BOS, 

payment is processed, EDIL files are 

generated, and dependent is enrolled 

in the dental plan 

No pending payment history was visible after making 

the payment online on the "Billing and Payments" 

screen. After the payment was processed in GP, the 

payment amounts were listed as $0 instead of the full 

premium amounts. Attempting to view the statement 

resulted in a unresolvable error. Dental enrollment 

status still showed as "pending" even though the 

payment was processed. EDI files could not be 

generated 

 

 

Fail 

A single individual with low income 

selects a Medicaid plan, Medicaid 

eligibility is approved in DWSS, and 

the eligibility approval is sent back to 

BOS 

Confirmation of Medicaid eligibility is 

displayed in the BOS front after being 

approved in DWSS 

The Medicaid plan status showed "pending" in the 

BOS front end on the policy management screen after 

the eligibility results were sent back from DWSS. 

Application resume button instructed the user to shop 

for a plan again even though Medicaid eligibility was 

already approved in DWSS 

Fail 

Test Cases (8 of 11) 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 88 - 

High Level Test Case Description Expected Outcome Actual Result Status of Test Case 

A single individual with low income 

selects a Medicaid plan, Medicaid 

eligibility is denied in DWSS, and the 

eligibility denial is sent back to BOS 

Medicaid eligibility denial is displayed 

in the BOS front after being denied in 

DWSS. Customer is prompted to 

apply for an APTC plan 

The Medicaid plan status showed "pending" in the 

BOS front end on the policy management screen after 

the eligibility results were sent back from DWSS. 

Application resume button instructed the user to shop 

for a plan again even though Medicaid eligibility was 

already denied in DWSS. Customer was not prompted 

to apply for an APTC plan 

Fail 

A family (subscriber, spouse who files 

taxes separately, and one dependent 

of the spouse) shops for plans. 

Subscriber makes $80,000 a year and 

spouse makes $10,000 a year. 

Eligibility is determined and each 

member enrolls in different plans. 

Subscriber enrolls in a QHP plan and 

spouse/dependent enroll in a 

Medicaid/CHIP plans 

 

Subscriber is determined eligible for 

QHP, spouse/dependent are 

determined eligible for Medicaid/NCU, 

Medicaid/NCU eligibility is approved 

by DWSS, and a payment is made for 

the subscriber's QHP plan 

Dependent was determined ineligible for NCU in the 

potential eligibility results. After the Medicaid eligibility 

results were returned from DWSS, there was not an 

option to make a payment for the male's QHP plan. 

Application resume button took the user back to the 

"shop for plan" section even though Medicaid eligibility 

was already approved in DWSS 

Fail 

A single individual with low income 

selects a Medicaid plan, the 

member's address is updated by 

DWSS, and the eligibility results and 

the new address is sent back to BOS 

Address is updated in BOS based on 

the updated in DWSS 

Address was successfully updated in BOS Pass 

Test Cases (9 of 11) 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 89 - 

High Level Test Case Description Expected Outcome Actual Result Status of Test Case 

A single individual with low income 

($5,000) selects a Medicaid plan and 

final eligibility results are returned 

from DWSS 

Medicaid application is sent to DWSS 

and processed by DWSS successfully 

Unresolvable error when attempting to shop for a plan Fail 

A single individual with low income 

($10,000) selects a Medicaid plan and 

final eligibility results are returned 

from DWSS 

Medicaid application is sent to DWSS 

and processed by DWSS successfully 

Unresolvable error when attempting to shop for a plan Fail 

A single individual selects a plan with 

APTC and makes a payment 

Payment is made on the QHP plan 

with APTC amount deducted, 

payment is processed and member is 

enrolled in plan 

Unresolvable error when attempting to shop for a plan Fail 

A single individual with $20,000 yearly 

income is determined eligible for 

APTC, selects a QHP plan with APTC 

applied, and submits a full initial 

payment 

APTC credit is deducted from 

premium, EDI files are generated, 

payment is processed, and member is 

enrolled in the QHP plan 

There was no record of the pending payment in the 

"Billing/Payments screen" after the payment was 

submitted. EDI files were not able to be generated and 

member was not enrolled 

Fail 

Single individual making $5000 per 

year selects a Medicaid plan and a 

dental plan. Member makes a 

payment for the dental plan 

 

Medicaid application is submitted to 

DWSS, EDI files are generated for the 

dental plan, and member is enrolled in 

the dental plan 

Medicaid application was submitted to DWSS. Unable 

to process the dental plan payment. Unable to 

generate the EDI files and enroll in the dental plan 

Fail 

Test Cases (10 of 11) 



Nevada SSHIX Assessment Report 

- 90 - 

High Level Test Case Description Expected Outcome Actual Result Status of Test Case 

Single member making $20,000 is 

determined eligible for APTC, applies 

$200 of the $250 total eligible APTC 

amount, and makes a full payment via 

bank account 

Payment is processed, EDI files are 

generated, and member is enrolled by 

the carrier 

Unable to process the payment, unable to generate 

the EDI files, and unable to enroll with the carrier 

Fail 

A family determined eligible for APTC 

selects a plan for the subscriber only, 

opts out of coverage for the spouse 

and dependent, and makes an 

underpayment via a check 

APTC amounts are deducted from the 

premium, the partial payment is 

deducted from the account balance, 

and family is not enrolled  

Even though the family was determined eligible for 

APTC, no APTC amounts were displayed while 

shopping for a plan. Unable to process the payment 

Fail 

A family is determined eligible for 

APTC, each family member selects a 

silver plan with CSR from different 

carriers, and premiums are paid in full 

The family is determined APTC 

eligible, CSR is applied to each plan 

selected, the payment is processed, 

EDI files are generated for each 

carrier, and the family becomes 

enrolled 

The dependent was determined ineligible for APTC. 

Unable to process payments, unable to generate EDI 

files, and unable to enroll the family 

Fail 

A single individual that makes $5,000 

a year does not enter an SSN in their 

application and potential eligibility is 

determined 

Member is determined potentially 

eligible for Medicaid 

Member was determined ineligible for Medicaid Fail 

Test Cases (11 of 11) 


	Agenda
	Detailed Agenda
	Minutes
	Agenda Item #3 - Victims of Crime Policies
	Agenda Item #4 - Intent to File for a Grant or Loan  From the Disaster Relief Account Which Requires an Extension to Collect Data 
	Agenda Item #5a - SAM Changes - Administrative Services Division
	Agenda Item #5b - SAM Changes - Enterprise Information Technology Services
	Agenda Item #5c - SAM Changes - Fleet Services Division
	Agenda Item #6a - Contract with Former Employee - Education
	Agenda Item #6b - Contract with Former Employee - Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation
	Agenda Item #6c - Contract with Former Employee - Department of Health and Human Services - Director's Office
	Agenda Item #6d - Contract with Former Employee - Department of Health and Human Services - Director's Office
	Agenda Item #6e - Contract with Former Employee - Department of Health and Human Services - Division of Health Care Financing and Policy
	Agenda Item #6f - Contract with Former Employee - Department of Health and Human Services - Division of Public and Behavioral Health
	Agenda Item #7a - Request for General Fund Allocation from the Interim Finance Committee Contingency Fund - Judicial Branch - Judicial Retirement System
	Agenda Item #7b - Request for General Fund Allocation from the Interim Finance Committee Contingency Fund - Judicial Branch - Judicial State Elected Officials
	Agenda Item #7c - Request for General Fund Allocation from the Interim Finance Committee Contingency Fund - Judicial Discipline Commission
	Agenda Item #7d - Request for General Fund Allocation from the Interim Finance Committee Contingency Fund - Department of Taxation
	Agenda Item #7e - Request for General Fund Allocation from the Interim Finance Committee Contingency Fund - Department of Motor Vehicles - Division of Motor Vehicle Information Technology
	Agenda Item #8 - Salary Adjustments
	Agenda Item #9a - Authorization to Approve a Provider Agreement - Department of Health and Human Services - Division of Public and Behavioral Health
	Agenda Item #9b - Authorization to Approve a Provider Agreement - Department of Health and Human Services - Division of Child and Family Services
	Agenda Item #10 - Victims of Crime FY 2014 3rd Quarter and 4th Quarter Recommendation
	Agenda Item #11 - State Vehicle Purchase
	Agenda Item #12 - Leases
	Agenda Item #13 - Contracts
	Agenda Item #14 - Master Service Agreements
	Agenda Item #15 - Informational Item
	Agenda Item #16 - Informational Item - Department of Conservation and Natural Resources - Division of State Lands
	Agenda Item #17 - Informational Item - Deloitte - Assessment Report



